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CASES

ARGUED AND DETERMINED

SUPREME COURT
NORTH CAROLINA
' RAL‘;IGH

FEBRUARY TERM, 1888

G. W. DUGGER ANp W. L. BRYAN v, WESLEY McKESSON AND OTHERS,
AND JOHN E. BROWN, WHO DEFENDS A8 LANDLORD.

Probate — Evidence in Ej ectment — Hearsay — O pindon — Record—
Secondary evidence of State Grants; Alteration of—When void
and when vzqdda,blel—ef udge’'s Charge,; Exceptions to.

1. Before the change in our judicial system, all'the judges of the State had
the power to take the probate and order the registration of deeds.

2. The testimony of one who assisted a surveyor, since deceased, in the survey
of certain old grants from the State, as to & marked line which was
pointed out, and the courses. taken from a point in that line, is not
rendered incompetent by the fact that an agent of the grantee was pres-
ent at the survey.

8. Objection to the testimony of one appointed to survey the lands in con-
troversy, showing how the calls in a grant were inconsistent with a plat
attached to it, comes too late after the cross-examination by the party
objecting. ‘ ‘ ‘

4, And when such testimony, offered by a defendant claiming under the grant,
served to show discrepancies between the plat attached and the land to
which he is attempting to fit it, the plaintiff, i¢ seems, can have no ground
to complain of the evidence.

. Where the grants for large bodies of land contain no reference to streams
claimed to be within their boundaries, it is admissible to prove by an
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experienced éurveyor that thé surveys for such grants are frequently
silent as to the streams, when not lines or termini, or lay them down
inaccurately.

6. The opinion of such surveyor is admissible -to show why all the marks on
trees along a line of a grant were on the northeast side, instead of on
opposite sides, so as to show the exact course of the line.

7. A call of a grant, dated 20 July, 1796, for 59,000 acres, being “north 24°
east 3,098 poles by the Washington County line to a white oak,” and the
party offering the grant proposing to show that the tract was properly
laid down on the line of that county by the act of 1789, ceding the
county and the State of Tennessee to the United States, and offering
for this purpose the act of cesgsion, the act appointing commissioners
to run the lines in 1796, a resolution of Assembly of December, 1799,
ratifying their report, proof of the loss of the report, depositions of
witnesses, accompanied by a book containing notes alleged to be the field
notes of the surveyors who ran the lines for the commissioners in 1799—
the. depositions showing that the field notes were in the handwriting of
one of those surveyors and were in the custody of the son of another, and
their accuracy in calling for the State line, by actual survey and knowl-
edge of one of them—and declarations of deceased persons in respect
to the proceedings of the commissioners and their surveyors: Held, that
there was suflicient evidence of the authenticity of the record of the
surveys to permit the field notes to be read in evidence; and that running
the State line as the boundary in the grant, was a recognition of the
location of the grant by the grantor, the State.

8. Evidence that there is a large number of persons settled within the bound-
aries of two grants issued in 1796, of 59,000 and 99,000 acres respectively,
is admissible to repel the idea that the lands so occupied were vacant, and
liable to entry in 1881.

9. The alteration of a course in a grant after its issue, does not revest the
land in the State, but it.is operative in its original form—there being a
distinction in this respect between executed and executory contracts.

10. While grants for land not subject to entry are void, and the fact may be
shown on the trial of title to the land, a grant irregularly sued out
cannot be avoided in a suit between parties claiming the land, but may
be annulled by proper proceedings instituted by the State.

11. Errors in a judge’s charge must be pointed out specifically, and they will
not be searched for in an entire charge, under an exception “to the
charge as given.” ;

( 83) Action for the recovery of land, begun in MircuerLr County,
and removed to the Superior Court of Carawsa, where it was
tried before MacRae, J., at Fall Term, 1888
The verdiet and judgment were for the defendants and the plaintiffs
appealed. '
The facts sufficiently appear in the opinion.
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Dueeer v. MCKESSON.

J. F. Morphew and J. M. Gudger for plaintiffs.
P. J. Sinclair and G. N. Folk for defendants.

Smrrs, C. J. The plaintiffs’ claim of title to the land sued for, and
" described in the complaint, is derived under a grant of six hundred and

forty acres, made, on 2 February, 1881, to J. F. Amos, and a deed from
the latter, and his wife, executed on the 30th day of the next month, to
the plaintiffs. The defendants, all of whom originally served with proe-
ess, were acting by authority of John E. Brown, subsequently admitted
to defend as landlord, and claiming to be the owner, concede that they
are in the occupation of the same tract, and aver that the title thereto
wag not in the State when the grant issued to the plaintiffs’ bargainor,
but had long before, to wit, on 20 July, 1796, been divested out of the
State by a grant to William Catheart, of a tract of fifty-nine thousand
acres, of which that now in dispute formed an inconsiderable part.

The essential matter in controversy is, as to the location of the bound-
aries of the land contained in the earlier grant, and the estate in which
is claimed by the defendant, Brown.

The issues, eliminated from the pleadings and submitted to the ( 4 )
jury, were with the responses, as follows: '

1. Are the plaintiffs the owners and entitled to the possession of the
lands described in the complaint? Answer: No.

2. Do the defendants wrongfully withhold possession of said lands
from plaintiffs? Angswer: No.

The response to the inquiry of damages was rendered unnecessary by
the other findings, and none was returned.

The defendants offered on the trial in support of the claim of title in
the defendant, Brown:

1. A grant of sixteen thousand acres, issued to William Catheart, on
20 July, 1796. \

2. A grant of same date to William Catheart of eight thousand seven
hundred and sixty acres.

3. A grant to him of same date of ninety-nine thousand acres.

4. A grant to same, and of same date, for fifty-nine thousand acres.

5. A grant, issued on 8 July, 1796, to Samuel Meeker and Alexander
Cochran, for twenty-two thousand acres.

6. A .transeript of proceedings in the Court of Equlty of Buncombe
County, for partition among the heirs of William Catheart, in 1848
and 1849,

7. A sale and conveyance by deed of I. B. Sawyer, clerk and master
in Equity, to W. J. Brown, executed on 10 March, 1853.
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8. A deed for the same lands, made on 27 June, 1883, by said W. J.
Brown to John E. Brown, the defendant admitted into the action at
Spring Term, 1883, and before the removal.

It was admitted that the deeds embrace the same lands as those de-
seribed in the grant to Catheart. Much evidence was introduced: on
each side, and many depositions read in the defense of aged persons as to

declarations of old and deceased persons, of the position of
( 5°) natural objects, and names, acquired by reputation, of certain

loealities, with a view to ascertain the boundaries of the Cath-
cart grants, of which so much only is set out in the case on appeal as will
render intelligible the errors assigned by the plaintiffs and intended for
revision.

Exception 1. An objection was made to the form of probate of the
deed of.the clerk and master when it was produced, but as the probate is
not set out, nor is it shown wherein the alleged defect consists, the
exception cannot be entertained. If it be, as the brief of counsel for the
appellees state, a want of power in the judge to take the probate, and
order the registration, it is expressly sanctioned by the law in force
before the change in the judicial system. Rev. Stat., ch. 37, sec. 1.

- Exception 2. One Wiseman, a witness for defendants, in his examina-
tion as to the location of the 90,000 and. 59,000 acres granted, was
allowed, after objection, to say: “When I was a boy, I was called on by
John Brown to go with one Blackstock, a surveyor, from Buncombe,
and went to a place called Davenport Spring, on Toe River,” where
was found a white oak, line marked, near to the spring, and the witness
testified to the courses taken from that point. It does not appear that
Brown pointed out the tree, or made any remark in regard to these
objects, but he was at the time the general land agent of Catheart, and
this fact, it was claimed, rendered inadmissible, as evidence, what
occurred in his presence. We are unable to see how evidence, otherwise
free from objection, is rendered incompetent by reason of the presence .
of the agent. 'What was said and done, proceeded from the surveyor, a
disinterested person, and was admissible upon his death, in accordance
with repeated adjudications in questions of ancient boundaries. Cald-
well v. Neely, 81 N. C., 114; Huffman v. Walker, 83 N. C., 411;
Stricklond v. szwghn, 88 N. C,, 815.
( 6 ) This is so when the declarant was at the time a slave, disabled
to testify, inasmuch as, if living at the trial, he would have been
heard. Whitehurst v. Pettipher, 87 N. C,, 179.

Exceptlon 3. C. W. Watking, who surveyed the lands and made the
plats in the action, under an order of the court, was examined at great
length upon the boundary lines laid down. by him, and testified in regard .
to the 99,000 acre tract, that one of its calls for the line of the Meeker
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and Cochran grant would never reach it, if the course was followed, and
in pursuing it the tract of 99,000 acres would cut it in two; and he
spoke of errors in the diagram attached to the grant, which, according
to his testimony, did not pursue the calls in the grant itself, though pro-
fessing to do so.

He testified further that Toe River and the mouth of Plum Tree are
placed upon the original plat differently from their location on his own,
and that the survey covers land, judging from the streams, inside of the
59,000 acre grant.

After the testimony had been heard and the cross-examination ended,
but before the redirect examination was concluded, plaintiffs’ counsel
asked that all the foregoing evidence, offered for the apparent purpose
of correcting the original plat, be withdrawn from; the consideration of
the jury. The motion was denied, for that, if tenable, the objection
came too late.

This application is not of right, but was addressed to the diseretion
of the presiding judge, and his ruling is conclusive upon the reviewing
Court. S. . Efler, 85 N. C,, 585; S. v». Pratt, 88 N. C., 639.

We do not mean to say that, if made in apt time, the objection to the
evidence would prevail, for it seems to conduce to a more intelligent ap-
prehension of the controversy, to put the jury in possession of all the
diserepancies between the plat and the locality to which it is attempted
to be fitted, which seem to affect unfavorably the defendants’ case, and
not that of the plaintiffs, so far as it has any, and therefore furnishes
no ground of complaint from them.

Exception 4. The grants were noted for the absence of refer- ( 7 )
ence to streams within their boundaries, and the defendants pro-
posed to inquire of the witness, as an experienced surveyor and familiar
with the subject, whether, in laying down the lines in old grants, the
surveys were careful to give them' an accurate position when not called
for as termini or crossings. The answer, after objection taken and
overruled, was: “They may be correct or incorrect. Where they are not
called for, I do not think they are usually laid down at all. T have seen
them very inaccurate.” )

The ruling is correct, for the usage among old surveyors, derived from
personal examination of them by a surveyor, himself acquainted with
the territory over which they extend, tends to account for error in the
position of natural objects, which, not forming a part of the deserip-
tion of the lines, seem not to have been carefully observed. The fact may
be of little significance in determining the location of the grant, but as
furnishing some aid thereto, it was properly made known to the jury.

Exception 5. Another surveyor, Bright, admitted to be an expert, had
testified as to an alleged boundary of the 8,700 acre tract on the north;
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that all the marked trees found on the line bore marks on the northeast
side, about the same position every time. He was then asked by de-
fendants’ counsel to explain why, in his opinion, the marks were put on
the north side of the trees, variant from the direction in which the line
ran. The plaintiffs objected, but the answer was received, and the -
‘witness said that, in his opinion, it was to protect the marks from the
effect of the sun, and they would remain longer on the north than on the
south side of the tree.

We think the explanation was entirely proper, and that inexperienced
jurors were entitled to know why the marks were not on opposite sides
of the trees, so as to show the course of the line they were put there to

- designate, and thus an error be avoided.
( 8) ZException 6. The 25th call of the 59,000 acre grant being
“north 24° east 3,098 poles by the Washington County line to a
white oak,” the defendants proposed to show that the tract was properly
laid down on the line of that county, as defined by the act of cession, in
which the county and the State of Tennessee were ceded to the United
States, and that this line ran a direct course from the Yellow Mountain
to the point on the Stone Mountain at a place where the Watauga River
breaks through ; that the distance between these points is fourteen miles,
and the course north 24° east, and that the line of the 59,000 tract, sur-
veyed in 1799, ran a direct course for nine or ten miles w1th the Wash-
ington County line, as established in the ceding act; and, further, that
this line, as thus fixed, was capable of being made certdin by the pro-
vision in the act at the time of the entry of that tract in 1796, under a
survey, and that the line and course, as surveyed, is identical with that
run and adopted by the State, through the commissioners appointed to
survey and locate the lines of the Western lands, transferred to the

“United States, pursuant to said act of cession.

For this purpose the defendants offered in evidence:

1. The act of cession aforesaid, found in 1st Martin’s Collection, ch.
299, and in 2 Rev. Stat., at page 171.

2. The act appointing comnnssmners to run the lines in 1796. 1st
Mart Coll., ch. 461.

3. A Jomt resolution of the General Assembly of 4 December, 1799,
ratifying the commissioners’ report.

4. The affidavit of the chief clerk in the office of the Secretary of
State of his search for, and inability to find, the report of the commis-
sioners, with the survey, accepted as ev1dence in the cause.

5. The report of Commissioner J. M. Gudger, employed to
( 9 ) ascertain and fix the boundary between this State and Tennessee,
a document of the General Assembly of 1887.
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6. The depositions of E. Clayton and R. B. Justice, with the book
containing the field notes of John Strother and Robert Henry, alleged
to be the surveyors who ran the line for the commissioners in 1799.

The plaintiff objected to the reception of the field notes as evidence,
on the ground :

1. The want of proof of their being contemporaneous entrles, and

2. For that the survey took place in 1799, after the issue of the grant
to Catheart in 1796.

The depos1t10ns of E. Clayton and R. B. Justice 1dent1fy the book,
which is transmitted, with the record, to this Court, as containing the
field notes, by which the State line was run in 1799, deﬁning the bound-
ary of the ceded territory as being in the handwriting of John Strother,

. one of the surveyors emiployed to run and ascertain the line, and it came
from the custody of the late Judge J. L. Henry, whose father, Robert
Henry, was also one of the surveyors engaged in surveying the line for
the commissioners, Joseph MeDowell, D. Vance and Mussendine
Mathews, and its accuracy in calling for the State line is verified by the
deponent Justice, from actual surveys and personal knowledge, thus
acquired by himself. Testimony was given of declarations of deceased
persons to the witnesses in respect to the proceedings by the commis-
sioners and surveyors, which was not at the time objected to, but was
afterwards.

We think the authenticity of the record of the surveys, then made and
forming part of the survey itself, sufficiently established, to be read in
evidence, the original report thereof being shown to have been lost.

The second reason assigned for rejecting the evidence is alike unten-
able. The running the State dividing line, as the boundary in the grant,
is a recognition of the location of the grant, coming from the
grantor who, alone, has an interest in the lands, and an induce- ( 10)
ment to narrow, rather than enlarge, the limits, and is evidence
of reputation, as to where they lie. Such evidence is admitted as hear-
say, when coming from disinterested and deceased persons, and when
called for in a junior grant. Dobson v. Finley, 8 Jones, 495 ; Bethea. v.
Byrd, 95 N. C., 309; Halstead v. Mullen, 93 N. C., 252.

Exception 7. The plaintiff also objected to proof offered, that there
are settled, upon the 59,000 and 90,000 acre tracts, a large number of
persons, perhaps as.many as 400 or 500. The evidence was pertinent, as
tending to repel the idea, that the lands, so occupied, were vacant, and
subject to entry, in 1881, when the grant, under which the plaintiffs
claim, was issued. The presence of the county town of Mitchell within the
99,000 acre tract, is hardly reconcilable with a supposed vacancy, or of
a grant void for indefiniteness of description of the area enclosed.
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Exception 8. This exception rests upon an alleged unauthorized
change in the 26th call of the 59,000 acre grant, since its issue, from
“south 17° east to” south 30° east.

To support the plaintiffs’ contention, they produced a certified copy
of the grant, from which it appeared that this call, in the body of the
instrument, was for 17°, and in figures, on the margin, 30°. The de-
fendants exhibited the original grant, and the disputed call, being in
“the crease of the fold,” and the paper much worn, it was uncertain
what the true reading was, and conflicting evidence was offered, by the
respective parties, upon the question of an alteration.

The judge, npon inspection, held it to be 30°.

But there was also testimony tending to show that, however read, the
effect, so far as the land claimed by the plaintiffs was concerned, would
be the same, and either running would take in the plaintiffs’ grant. If,
in fact, the change was made in the terms of the grant after its issue, it
would not reinstate the title in the State, but it would operate still in

the original form to vest the estate in the grantee.
(11) Destroying a deed has no legal force in restoring the estate
after it passes out of the grantor and vests in the grantee, and the
case bears no resemblance to the effect produced upon an executory
agreement. The distinction is between a coniract executed and passing
an estate, and a contract executory and to be enforced against one by a
spoliator, to which the court will refuse to lend its aid.

The plaintiffs asked for a series of instructions, of which the 1st, 2d
and 5th were given in very words; the 2d, with additions set out in the
charge, and the 4th and 6th, denied. Those refused are as follows:

4. If the grant of the 59,000 acre tract has been altered by the defend-
ants in the 26th call, so as to substitute 30 degrees in place of 17, the
grant thereby becomes void, and the jury wust determine how that is
from the evidence. ;

6. The grant is void, because, upon the plat of the survey attached, it
appears that no survey was ever made by one having authority to sur-
vey and locate entries.

The first of the refused instructions, numbered 4 in the series, has
already been considered and disposed of ; the last only remains.

While grants of land, the entry of which is forbidden by law, are
void, and the fact may be shown on the trial of title thereto, as in case
of the Indian reservations, and “vacant lands,” as defined in §. .
Bevers, 86 N. O., 588, and others not subject to entry, as held in Strother
v. Cathey, 1 Murph 162, and in Stanmire v. Powell, 13 Ired., 312, it
is as well settled, that for irregularities in suing out a grant, 1t cannot
be avoided in an action between parties, but must be vacated in proper
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proceedings, instituted by the State, to revoke the issue and annul the
deed.  Waugh v. Richardson, 8 Ired., 4705 Stanmire v. Powell, supra,
and other cases.

The rulings are to the same effect in Lowvinggood v. Burgess, Busb.,
407; McCormick v. Monroe, 1 Jones, 13, and Harshaw v. Taylor, 3
Jones, 513.

The charge of the court, which shows familiarity with all the (12)
matters in controversy arising in the protracted trial, and is full
and explicit, we give enfire:

“The general principle upon which we try cases of this kind, is, that
the plaintiff must recover on the strength of his own title, and not
upon the weakness of that of his adversary, and the burden is upon the
plaintiff to prove his case; but in this case the burden, upon the question
of location, has shifted. ‘

The plaintiffs, Dugger & Bryan, bring their action to recover of the
defendants, McKesson and others, a certain tract of land in Mitchell
County; and John E. Brown comes in and makes himself a defendant,
and undertakes to defend the suit, as landlord, for all of his codefend-
ants. The plaintiffs show, in evidence, a grant to J. F. Amos for 640
acres in February, 1881, and a deed from Amos and wife in March,
1881, to them, the plaintiffs.

The defendants admit that the land in dispute, the 640 acres, is prop-
erly located on the plat, and is covered by the grant and deed shown by
plaintiffs.

The plaintiffs, having shown title out of the State and in themiselves
for the land, are entitled to recover, unless the defendants can show the
right to the possession, which they admit they hold, under a better title
than that of the plaintiffs. The issues are: First, are the plaintiffs en-
titled to the possession of the land described in the complaint? The
plaintiffs having shown title, insist that it is upon the defendants now
to satisfy you, by a preponderance of evidence, that they have a better
title. They offer, in evidence, a grant to Wm. Cathcart, dated 30 July,
1796, and the plat and survey accompany the same, which you have a
right to consider in determining the location for 59,000 acres, and they
also offer you evidence of a succession of conveyances of this land by
which it comes to defendant, Brown, under whom all the other
defendants claim. Now, the question is, have the defendants (13)
satisfied you that this 59,000 acre grant covers the 640 acre tract
for which plaintiffs are prosecuting this action? Tf they have located it
80 as to include within its boundaries this 640 acre tract, they have shown
an older, and, therefore, a better title to the land than plaintiffs, and
your response to the issue should be No, the plaintiffs are not the
owners. But if they have failed to convince yon of the fact, the burden
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being upon them, you should answer Yes, the plaintiffs are the owners,
ete. Most of the testimony offéred on each side has been directed to the
question of the location of the boundaries of the 59,000 acre tract, and
in order to properly locate it, the defendants have offered in evidence
several other grants to the same party, Wm. Cathcart, and one to Meeker
and Cochran for large bodies of land, which, they say, will aid you in

your investigation, and enable you to determine whether the 59,000 acre

tract has been properly located by defendants. They have, also, called
your attention to the many acts of Assembly, establishing eounties in the
northwestern section of the State, to the act of 1789, by which a very
large portion of territory was ceded to the United States, out of which
the State of Tennessee was subsequently formed. It is a very interesting
chapter of history which has been brought to our attention, and we
cannot fail to have obtained much information as to the early settlement
of this gection, and the manner of disposition of the land belonging to
the State in those early days of its existence. They have offered you
evidence of the establishing of the county of Burke in 1777 from the
older county of Rowan, and of the boundaries of Burke at its formation,
also of Wilkes and of Washington, which were erected at the same ses-
sion with Burke, and of subsequent acts fixing their boundaries. The
59,000 acre tract, as deseribed in the grant, is in Burke County. The

beginning corner is said to be a white oak, standing on what is
(14 ) supposed to be the line of Wilkes County, and the last call of the

grant is from a black oak south 45° west, 2,040 perches, along the
line of Wilkes County, to the beginning. Unless the 59,000 acre tract, or
a part of it, is in the boundaries of Burke County, as it then was, the
grant is then void and of no effect, but if part of the land granted is in
Burke, the grant is not void, by reason of part of it being outside of the
old boundaries of Burke. Have they located the beginning corner of the
tract? In order to locate a tract of land, it is not necessary that the
surveyor should begin his survey at the beginning corner; he may begin
at any point which can be satisfactorily established, and when one point
has been settled upon, he may fix the other, if he can. The.Washington
County line has also been called for as one of the lines of the tract. Have
the defendants satisfied you of the location of this line, and of the point
near which the Washington and Wilkes lines intersect? One call is for
the line of Washington County; this line of the grant must go to the
Washington County line, if it can be found, the line of Washington
County as it was in 1796, and whether it had been surveyed or not, at
the date of this grant, makes no difference, if it was afterwards run in
accordance with an act theretofore passed, ascertaining where the Wash-
ington County line was; therefore I have admitted in evidence the
notes of the surveyor who ran the State line in 1799, in accordance with
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the act of cession made in 1789, in order that you may determine
whether this location, as contended for by the defendants, is the correct
one, and has reached the Washington County line.

The defendants, for the purpose of satisfying you of the proper loca-
tion of the 59,000 acres, have offered evidence tending to show the
location of the four or five other tracts, and the same rules will apply
to the location of each tract as applies to the 59,000 acre tract. The
number of acres called for in a grant is not always very material,
for the boundaries will control, and if they are correctly ascer- ( 15)
tained, the grantee is entitled to all within them, and not excepted,
whether the number be greater or less than that stated in the grants, but,
in ascertaining the situation of doubtful boundaries, the number of
acres stated in the grant may be considered.

Courses and distances are controlled by a call for known objects or
established lines. If the lines of 99,000 acres have been located to your
satisfaction, and there is a call in the 59,000 acre grant from a point
which has been located to and with the 1ine of the 99,000 acres, you must
go to it with this line regardless of course and distance, but if the
99,000 acres cannot be found, you must follow the course and distance
of the 59,000 acre grant. Where lines of other tracts or counties, or
State lines, are called for, which were known at the time of the grant,
then the truae boundary is such lines so called for, but if at the time of
the 1ssu1ng‘)f the grant such lines were not run and marked, then the
jury are at hberty to locate such lines according to the calls or points
designated, without reference to any subsequently marked line, unless
they have been satisfied that such subsequently marked line was run in
accordance with the act or grant establishing the line. If they are
satisfied that the subsequent survey reached the true location, they will
be governed by it. These general directions will apply to the location of
each of the tracts which the defendants have undertaken to locate to
your satisfaction. The contention of defendants is, that all of these
grants, made on the same day, were a series of grants calling for each
. other, and that the Meeker & Cochran grant, issued a few days before
the others, is also called for in some of these grants, and they say that if
they have satisfied you of the location of each of these different tracts,
and that they correspond with each other, that they will materially
assist you im arriving at your conelusion whether the defendants
have properly located their 59,000 acres so as to include the land ( 16)
in dispute. And so, if they have failed to locate the other grants,
the plaintiffs contend that as the location of the 59,000 acres is so inti-
mately connected with that of the others, they have failed to locate the
59,000 acres.

39



"IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

DueceEr v. MCKESSON.

The copies of the survey and of the grants of the 59,000 acre tract
were admitted, to enable you to see whether there has been an inter-
lineation or erasure in the body of the grant, changing the 26th call
from south 17° east to south 30° east.

It matters not what interlineations are made in the surveyor’s plat
and deseription. The question for you is, Has that call been changed in
the grant since it was issued; and if so, what is the effect of it? If it
has been changed since it was issued, would it affect the location of the
tract to the prejudice of plaintiffs. For, unless the effect of the altera-
tion, if there has been any alteration, would be to include the land
claimed by plaintiff, when otherwise by the grant, as it was originally
issued, it would not have done so, it would make no difference. I don’t
think an alteration would make void the grant; it would only, in this
case, impose upon you the task of ascertaining what were the original
calls of the grant, and whether, as it was written, it includes the
boundaries of plaintiffs’ claim, the land in dispute. But to prove an
alteration, the burden, as entered upon the plaintiffs’ authority, must
satisfy you of its truth by a preponderance of evidence.

The response to the second issue will follow the response to the first.
If you respond Yes to the first, or No to the first, make the same
response to the second.

The third issue is as to damages. If you have found the first and
second issues in favor of the plaintiff, the only testimony to’ damages is
that of plaintiff, Dugger, who testifies that it was more than $200, but

they claim no more than that sum. But if you have answered the
(17 ) first and second issues No, you need not trouble yourselves about
the third.

The plaintiff “excepted to the charge, because of the charge as given,
and because of the failure of the judge to give the charge as requested in
the plaintiffs’ prayer for special instructions.” The jury rendered a
verdiet in response to the first and second issues, No.

We reproduce the instructions, as given, at large, in order to show
their fairness, and the correct exposition made of the law by the able
judge who presided and conducted the trial, of which no better evidence
can be furnished than the failure of the appellants to point out any
specific error in it. We cannot entertain an exception, that, failing to
do this, is taken “to the charge as given.” Errors must be pointed out,
or they will not be searched for in an entire charge, under general words,
such as are here uged.

There is no error and the judgment is

Affirmed.
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Cited: Respass v. Jones, 102 N. C., 11; Burwell ». Sneed, 104 N. C,,
122; McKennon v. Morrison, tbid., 362; Carlton. v. R. R., tbid., 869;
Allen v. Gallinger, 105 N. C., 336; Lewss v. Lumber Co., 113 N. C., 62;
Redmond v. Mullenaw, ibid., 512; Wyman v. Taylor, 124 N. C., 431;
Carson v. B. R., 128 N. C., 97; Bowser v. Wascolt, 145 N. C., 66;
Brown v. Hutchinson, 155 N. C., 208; Hollified v. Telephone Co., 172
N. C., 725.

(18)

A. B. DAVIDSON v. ANN GIFFORD AND OTHERS.

Issues—E jectment—A dmassions of Counsel.

1. When, in an action of ejectment, it is alleged in the complaint “that
plaintiff was the owner” and “entitled to the possession” of the land in
controversy, and the defendant, in his answer, denies each of these allega-
tions, and sets up new matter as a defense; Held, to be error to refuse
‘to- submit the issues raised by the allegations of the complaint, and to
only submit those issues arising on the new matter set up in the answer.

2. When the complaint in ejectment does not set up any particular evidence
of title.in plaintiff, or that plaintiff claims under any specified title, the
plaintiff is at liberty, on the trial, to prove title in himself, in any way
he can, allowed by law.

3. The material issues of fact, raised by the pleadings, must be submitted,
unless it appears to the Court that this right is waived by the parties.

4. When the pleadings are so framed as to present the case of either party
in more than one aspect, as to the evidence that may be produced, the
issues should not be so framed as to exclude any pertinent evidence
affecting the merits, but should be so shaped as to embrace the whole
of the material allegations controverted. This may be insisted upon,
as of right, by either party to the action.

5. Merely casual, hasty, inconsiderate admissions of counsel, in the course of
a trial, do not bind his client, and evidence of such admissions should
be excluded. This is so, although the client was present when the ad-
missions were made, and did not correct his counsel, or disclaim his
authority.

Civin acrion, tried before MacRae, J., and a jury, at the Fall Term,
1887, of MrcrLENBURG Superior Court.

There was a verdict and judgment in favor of the defendants. Plain-
tiff appealed.

The facts are set out in the opinion of the Court.
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W. P. Bynum and C. N. Tillett for plaintiff.
P. D. Walker for defendants.

(19) Mszrrivon, J. The plaintiff alleged in' the complaint, simply,
that he was the owner and entitled to the possession of the land
described therein; that the defendants were in possession thereof, and
wrongfully withheld possession from him; that the rental value of the.
property was $300, and the defendant, Gifford, had had such wrongful
possession ever since November, 1878, and received the rents, ete.

The answer of the defendants broadly and specifically denied the
several allegations of the complaint, except that alleging possession of
the defendants, but it was alleged, as to it, that their possession was
lawful; and it was further alleged in the answer, as a matter of-defense,
that the plaintiff claimed title, by virtue of a mortgage from the de-
fendant, Ann Gifford, executed to the Charlotte Building and Loan
Association of Charlotte, North Carolina; and also, a mortgage of the
land executed to him by her codefendant, Steinhouse, who fraudulently
obtained a deed for her for the land beéfore he executed the last men-
tioned mortgage, and the plaintiff had notice of such fraud, and of her
right in equity to have the deed, so executed by her to her codefendant,
declared void for fraud, ete.

At the trial the plaintiff tendered, and asked the court to submit to the
jury issues, whereof the following is a copy:

1, Is the plaintiff the owner of the property mentioned in the com-
plaint, and entitled to the immediate possession thereof ¢

2. Do the defendants unlawfully withhold the possession thereof?

3. What damages, if any, has the plaintiff sustained &’

The court declined to do so, and this refusal is assigned as error.

The plaintiff objecting, the court submitted to the jury issues, whereof
the following is a copy:

“1. Was the deed from the defendant, Ann Gifford, to defend-
(20) ant, J. E. Steinhouse, obtained by fraud, surprise, or undue
influence over her on the part of the said Steinhouse?

2. Did the plaintiff, A. B. Davidson, purchase the land in controversy
for value, and without notice of the equity of said Ann Gifford?

3. Did the defendant, Ann Gifford, have notice of the sale under the
mortgage from her to the Mechanics’ Building and Loan Association?

4. Did plaintiff take an assignment of the note and mortgage given
by Ann Gifford to the Mechanics Building and Loan Association, and
did he afterwards sell the land, or cause the same to be sold, under said
mortgage, and buy the sathe at said sale?
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The submission of these issues is assigned as error. The court seems
to have rejected the issues tendered by the plaintiff, on the ground that
the state of the pleadings not only did not raise them, but rendered them
wholly nugatory. In this view, we cannot concur; on the contrary, they
were, in our judgment, the principal issues raised by the pleadings, and
the plaintiff had the right to have them submitted, granting that those
submitted were not improper, though not really necessary, as they were
incidental and collateral to the principal ones.

The plaintiff did not allege, in the complaint, any particular evidence
of title in himgelf to the land in question, nor did he allege that he
claimed title thereto by virtue of any particular chain of title, or title
deeds specified, and more particularly, he did not allege that he claimed
title by virtue of the deed, which the defendant, Gifford, alleges her
codefendant obtained from her by fraudulent practices, of which, she
alleges, the plaintiff had notice, nor by the mortgage she executed to the
Loan Association mentioned. He was, therefore, at liberty, on the trial,
to prove title in himself, in any way he could, allowed by law. If he
could not prove title in himself by the mortgages and other deeds, the
validity of which was questioned on the trial, he had the right,
under the pleadings, to give any other evidence of such title ( 21)
within his power, and, moreover, he would have had the right,
under the issues tendered by him, to prove that the defendant, Gifford,
ratified and confirmed the deed, which she alleged her codefendant frand-
ulently obtained from her. No one of the issues raised any question in
this respect, although there was some evidence of such ratification, which
was not called to the attention of the jury, by the court in its instruc-
tions to them, for the reason, no doubt, that it was not pertinent to the
issues submitted.

There is nothing in the record which shows that the plaintiff consented
at all, that his title depended altogether upon the deeds specified in the
defendant’s answer, and put in question by the issues submitted. On the
contrary, it appears tha. he insisted that the principal issues, plainly
raised by the pleadings, should be submitted to the jury, so that he could
give any evidence of title he might be able to give.

The defendants did not admit in their answer that the plaintiff had
title, unless they could avoid and overthrow his apparent title. On the
contrary, they broadly denied that he had any title; and then, as a par-
ticular, specific defense, alleged the matter already adverted to, which,
if sustained, ‘was not conclusive against the plaintifi’s title, nor did it
prevent him from showing title otherwise, and from other sources, nor
from proving that the defendant ratified, and was thus bound by, the
alleged fraudulent deed, already referred to. The issues raised by the
special defense pleaded, were subordinate and collateral to the principal
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ones raised by the general defense, and they did not exclude, supersede,
or necessarily conclude inquiries pertinent, raised by the principal issues;
indeed, they involved but a single aspect of the case, which was not, in
view of the pleadings, conclusive of the whole case. It is not sufficient
to say, that the plaintiff put in evidence only the deeds questioned by the

answers. These deeds, and only these deeds, in certain aspects of
(22 ) them, were put in question by the issues submitted, and they, and

not other evidence of title, were pertinent. If the principal issues
raised by the pleadings had been submitted, it may be that the plaintiff
would have produced other evidence, competent and pertinent, to prove
his alleged title. It may be that the deeds litigated were the only evi-
dence of title in himself that the plaintiff could produce, but it does not
so appear from the pleadings, or in the record, by admission or other-
wise, and we can only see and apply the law to the case as it appears in
* the record.

The material issues of fact raised by the pleadings must be submitted
to the jury, unless, in some way, to be seen by the court, the right of a
party, in this respect, shall be waived. This is essential to a proper de-
‘termination of the aection, particularly in respect to the matters of fact
therein. Porter v. B. R., 97 N. C., 66.

When the pleadings are so framed and directed as to present the case,
on The part of the plaintiff or the defendant, in more than one aspect as
to the evidence that may be produced on either side, the issues of fact
should not be so framed—narrowed in their scope and application—as
to exelude any relative pertinent evidence, affecting the merits of the
cause of action, or the defense alleged; they should be so shaped as to
embrace the whole—not simply a part—of the material allegations con-
troverted, and put at issue by the pleadings. While, perhaps, it may, in
some cases, be convenient to submit issues incident and subordinate to,
and embraced by, the principal ones raised, the latter, as we have already
said, should always be submitted to the jury, unless they shall be waived,
because the trial of them is necessary to settle and conclude all the
material controverted allegations of the pleadings; and this may be
insisted upon, as of right, by either party to the action. Henry v. Rich,
64 N. C., 879; McElwee v. Blackwell, 82 N. C., 345; Porter v. B. R., 97

N. C,, 66, and the cases there cited.
(23) The defendant, Gifford, was examined as a witness in her own
behalf on the trial, and stated, that she was present and examined
on a former trial; that the plaintiff was then present sitting behind his
counsel, and he was then examined as a witness. Her counsel then put
to her this question : “What was admitted by the counsel of plaintiff on
the other trial?” She answered, “It was admitted by counsel that I did
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not have time to think before signing the paper.” The plaintiff objected
to the question and answer. The objection was overruled, and this is
assigned as error.

It is not denied that the evidence objected to was material, if compe-
tent. We think it was incompetent, and ought to have been excluded.
Exactly in what connection, and why, the admission was made, is not
stated, but it does not appear to have been a distinet, formal, solemn ad-
mission, made for the express purpose of relieving the defendant from
proving on the trial the fact so admitted, or some like purpose. Such
must have been: the character of the admission, to render it competent as
evidence against the plaintiff. Merely casual, hasty, inconsiderate ad-
missions of counsel in the conrse of a trial, do not bind the client; they
are not intended to have such effect, nor does the nature of the relation
of attorney and client produce such result. And this is so, although the
client be present when such inconsiderate admissions are made. It
-would be rude, indecorous, disorderly and confusing, if the client should
interpose to correct his counnsel and disclaim his authority to make such
admissions. Neither the court, counsel, nor any intelligent person expects
him to do so. And for the like reason, the client, if examined as a-
witness, is not required to disclaim such admissions of his attorney,
unless he shall be examined by the opposing party for that purpose. .
Moffit v. Witherspoon, 10 Ired., 185; Guy v. Manuel, 89 N. C., 83;
Reed v. Reed, 93 N. C., 462; Tobacco Co. v. McElwee, 96 N. C.,

71; 1 Gf. Ev., sec. 186; Whar. on Ev., sec. 1184; Weeks on ( 24)
Attorneys, 390; Young v. Wright, 1 Comp., 1388; Peltle v. Lyon,
9 Adolph and Ellis, 147.

There are numerous other assignments of error, but we need not
advert to them.,

The plaintiff is entitled to a vendire de novo, and we so adjudge. Let
this opinion be certified to the Superior Court according to law. Tt is
80 ordered.

Error. Vienire de novo.

Cited: Gordon v. Collett, 102 N. C., 539, Paper Co. ». Chronicle, 115
N. C, 149; Hoelms v. Helms, 135 N. C., 176; Falkner v. Pilcher, 137 .
N. G, 451; McKenzie v. McKenzie, 158 N. C., 248 ; Taylor v. Meadows,
169 N. C., 126; T%ra Co. v. Motor Co., 181 N. C,, 231; Erskine v. Motor

Co., 187 N. C,, 831,
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JORDAN SULLIVAN v. WM. POWERS, RUTH ANN POWERS AND OTHERS.
Deed, in Consideration of Marriage—Registration.

A deed was executed in May, 1872, by A. for an expressed -consideration of
$500, but really in consideration of the promise of the bargainee, a single
woman, to marry him; in November following she did marry him, and
the deed was not registered until 1885: Held, that the deed was not a
marriage settlement, or marriage contract, which, under section 1269 of
The Code, is required to be registered within six months, to make it valid.

Civir acrion, tried before MacRae, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of the
Superior Court of Asgr County. )

This action is to recover possession of land, and the sole controversy
is, a8 to the plaintifl’s title thereto, under the following facts:

The defendant, William Powers, owned the land, and, becoming a
surety on the official bond of one Parsons, clerk of the Superior Court

of Ashe County, was sued as such, judgment recovered, and exe-
( 25 ) cution issued, under which the sheriff sold and conveyed the land
to the plaintiff.

The feme defendant, Ruth A., in support of her title, introduced a
deed from the said William Powers to herself, executed in May, 1872,
for the recited consideration of five hundred dollars, conveying the land
to herself, and proved that in April preceding, the grantor had agreed
that, if she would marry him, and to this she gave consent, he would
make her title thereto, in pursuance of which, the deed was made; and
“this was before the execution of the official bond of the clerk. The mar-
riage took place in November of the same year, and the deed to the feme
defendant was registered some time in the year 1885.

Before the trial of the issues, and these facts appearing in evidence,
the court instructed the jury, that the deed to the feme defendant was a
marriage contract or settlement, and, not having been proved and regis-
tered within six months, was inoperative against the plaintiff. To this
_ charge the defendants excepted, and after verdict and judgment against
the defendants, they appealed. '

No counsel for plaintiff.

J. W. Hinsdale for defendants.

Surra, C. J. (after stating the case) : The statute, on the construe-
tion of which the ruling is predicated, is brought forward in The Code,
and constitutes seetion 1269, and is in these words:
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“All marriage settlements and other marriage contracts, whereby any
money or other estate shall be secured to the wife or husband, shall be
proved or acknowledged, and registered in the same manner as deeds for
land, within six months after the making thereof; otherwise, they shall
be v01d against creditors.”

The act of 12 February, 187 2, sections 11 and 12 of which are ( 26)
wn part materia, and may modlfy the effect of that cited, since it
went into operation on the first day of July thereafter, has no applica-
tion to the present case, the -deed having been executed before that time.
The Code, secs. 182, 1821,

The same may be sald of the Act of 1885, which gives efﬁcacy to deeds
conveying lands, other than leases not exceedmg three years in duration,
only from the date of registration, since this deed was registered under
the provision of the law before in force.

The instrument before us is, in form and substance, and was so in-
tended by the parties, an absolute deed, passing the land unclothed with-
any trust whatever, though its consideration unexpressed and the induce-
ment to making were a contemplated future marriage, afterwards
entered into, registration would have disclosed nothing, upon the face
of it, to distinguish it from other conveyances of real property. The
question is, whether the deed, because of its consideration, is within the
purview of the statute cited. In our opinion, it is not. The law requir-
ing registration refers to three classes of deeds: those absolute, and
those with attaching trusts, and of the latter, distinguishes between such
as are securities, and are denominated “deeds of trust and mortgages,”
and “marriage settlements,” and contracts to be enforced as such, These
distinctions run through all the enactments in reference to registration.
“The deed in trust, meant in the act,” says Ruffin, C. J., in Saunders v.
Ferrill, 1 Ired., at page 101, “is that species which, though of recent
origin, has grown into general use as a security for debts, in the nature
of a mortgage, with a power of sale” He intended, of course, to include
in debts liabilities of every kind, fixed or contingent, against which
security or indemnity were intended to be provided. In the same
opinion, he speaks of marriage settlements in these words: “This par-
ticular species of deed of trust is to be governed by its own -
peculiar regulations.” A marriage settlement is, then, a convey- ( 27)
ance of property upon defined trusts, as a marriage contract is an
agreement that it shall be made, enforceable in a Court of Equity, and
its effect to give a different direction to property from that which would
result from a marriage without any settlement or contract for settle-
ment, and looks most usually to the interest of the wife and the issue of
the marriage union.
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The present deed is a simple conveyance to the use of the grantee,
with no consideration or trusts resting in parol, which, as evasive of the
statute and incapable of registration, might vitiate the instrument as
against creditors, upon the ruling in Dukes v. Jones, 6 Jones, 14.

‘What difference can it make, in the nature and effect of the deed,
whether the congideration was in money to be paid or marriage to be
performed, or there was no consideration at all, unless it was put in this
form for the purpose of defrauding future creditors, which is not sug-
gested, inasmuch as the Ziability upon the official bond was not incurred
until after the execution of the deed? We are unable to see how the
nature of the consideration can change the character of the deed, and
correct that which, alike in form and intent, was, and is, an absolute
deed, into a marriage settlement. Nothing else but the title to the land
is settled, and the wife, as well as the husband, retains every legal right
that results from the marriage consummated, to his and her own prop-
erty, and the property of the other, present or afterwards acquired. It
is in no sense the marriage settlement contemplated by the statute, and
to give it a wider force, it would embrace every gratuity given after con-
tract, and in expectation of the forming of future marital relations.
“Money or other estate,” is the comprehensive term used in the Act,
requiring the registration in six months. Even an infant female can

execute a marriage settlement, so far as affects her personal
(28) estate—Satterfield v. Riddick, 8 Ired. Eq., 265—while she could
not make a deed for it, not avoidable, to a stranger.

There is error, and the judgment is reversed and a new trial awarded.

Error.

M. P. PEGRAM v. THE WESTERN UNION TELEGRAPH COMPANY.

Principal and Agent—Telegraph Company—DNegligence in
transmitting Telegram.

1. The sender of a telegram constitutes the telegraph company his agent
for the transmission and delivery of the message just as it is written
by him and no further; therefore, the sender is not bound by the terms of
a telegram in which a material alteration is made by the negligence of
the company in transmitting it.

2. The sender of a telegram is entitled to at least nominal damages, and to
such substantial damages as he may sustain by reason of his message
being improperly transmitted; that is, such damages as are the natural
and proximate consequence of the company’s negligence.
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3. The sender cannot recover of the company damages sustained by the re-
ceiver of a message, although the sender has been obliged, by the judg-
ment of a court in another State, to pay damages sustained by such
receiver, in congequence of the wording of the telegram being changed
in transmission.

4. If an agent, upon being sued for a personal liability incurred by him in
carrying out his principal’'s orders, give due notice of the suit to his
principal, to the end that he may defend it, and, after this, judgment
is rendered against the agent, such judgment is conclusive upon the
prinecipal, as to the extent of the agent’s loss, in an action brought by
the agent against his principal for indemnity. But no such relation exists
between the sender of a telegram and the telegraph company as makes
this principle applicable.

CrviL action, tried before MacRae, J., and a jury, at Septem- ( 29 )
ber Term, 1887, of MrcrLENBURG Superior Court.

The plaintiff resided in the town of Charlotte, in this State, and W. C.
Sedden & Co. were doing the business of brokers in the city of Rich-
mond, in the State of Virginia, in the year 1881.

On 4 February of that year these brokers sent the plaintiff a letter,
as follows:

“If your customer will offer 100 shares (or any part of it), C. C. &
A. R. R. stock at 43, delivered here, please wire us at our expense.”

Afterwards, on the 14th of the same month, the plaintiff addressed to
the brokers mentioned a tessage in these words:

“Party offers 100 shares C. C. & A. stock at forty-three. Answer
quick.” And he delivered it to the defendant, to be transmitted over its
telegraph. Tt is admitted that this message was not sent truly, but that
the word “three,” at the end of the word “forty,” was omitted, so that
the message, as transmitted by the defendant, contained the word
“forty” instead of “forty-three,” as it should have donme. The plaintiff
paid the defendant sixty-two cents, the price required for sending the
telegram, and the agent of the defendant understood at the time he sent
the message that it referred to the stock of the Charlotte, Columbia and
Augusta Railroad Company.

In about two hours after the message was so transmitted, on the same
day, the brokers named replied to the plaintiff’s message as follows:

“Will take the hundred shares; draw at sight, with stock attached.”

Thereupon, at once, on the same day, the plaintiff purchased one
hundred and one shares of the stock mentioned, and made his draft on
the brokers named for $4,343, the price of the stock at “forty-three,”
and sent the same to a bank in Richmond for collection, with the
stock attached, with instructions to the bank to deliver the stock ( 30 )
when the draft should be paid. :
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Afterwards, on the 16th of the same month, when the bank presented
the draft for payment, the brokers were surprised at the amount of the
same, and called upon the plaintiff for an explanation, who at once
rephed as follows:

“My offer was forty-three plainly, and you replied, ‘Will take stoek,’
and bought on your reply.”

The draft was not paid, and the stock was not delivered. This action
is brought to recover damages sustained by the plaintiff, by reason of
the grossly negligent and false transmission, by the defendant, of his
telegram to the brokers named above, on 14 February, 1881, as above
stated.

In the complaint it is alleged, among other things, that in consequence
of the plaintiff’s telegram so falsely sent, the brokers named at once sold
the stock named, then in éransitu to the'm as above stated, at the price
of $41.75 per share, which was the market value thereof in Richmond
(the face value being $100 per share), and as they failed to get the
stock from the plaintiff as they expected to do, they had to buy such
stock to make their contract good, at the price of $41.75 per share, or
more, and that, in consequence of such negligence of the defendant, the
plaintiff was afterwards compelled to pay the said brokers the difference
between $40 per share and $41.75 per share of the stock, and other costs
and damages, aggregating $250.

On the trial it was in evidence that the plaintiff did not send his fivst
telegram mentioned, in response tc' the letter of 4 February, 1881, of the
brokers to him; and that the first knowledge he had, of the missending
of the telegram, was the information he received from the brokers as
stated above.

It was likewise in evidence that the stock named was not regularly
quoted as to price, but it was quoted in the Richmond papers at $41 to

$43, and the market value of it in Charlotte was $42.50; that
(31) propositions between Charlotte and Richmond to buy and sell
stock did not go beyond the day they were made.

It was likewise in evidence that the brokers named brought their
action against the present plaintiff in an appropriate court, in the State
of Virginia, to recover damages for his failure to deliver the stock he so
contracted to sell them—that he made active and earnest defense thereto,
but, nevertheless, the plaintiffs therein recovered the sum of $175 as
damages, as well as costs, and he had to pay reasonable ecounsel fees, and
other costs. '

The plaintiff offered evidence to prove that he gave the defendant
ample notice of the action and its nature so brought against him in the
court of Virginia, to the end it might make defense thereto, and save
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him harmless—that he would hold it responsible to him for any recovery
that might be had against him—that after the recovery against him, he
paid the judgment, costs, ete.

The defendant objected to this evidence; the court sustained the ob-
jection, and this is assigned as error.

There was much other evidence that need not be reported here.

At the close of the evidence the plaintiff requested the court to give the
following instructions to the jury:

‘1, That if the plaintiff was sued by W. O. Sedden & Co. in a court
in Richmond, Va., having jurisdiction of an action for the recovery of
damages, arising out of the mistake in the message, and Pegram, the
plaintiff, gave the defendant company reasonable notice to come in and
defend the said action, and the defendant company failed to do so, and
Pegram, the plaintiff, in good faith, and with due diligence, defended
the said action, and W. C. Sedden & Co. recovered judgment against
him, the defendant would be estopped to deny its liability to the plain-
tiff, and the plaintiff would be entitled to recover the amount of
the said judgment, with costs, provided said judgment and costs ( 32)
*were paid by him. This instruction was refused, and the plaln-
tiff excepted.

2. That if Pegram delivered his telegram of 14 February, 1881, to the
defendant, not in answer to Sedden’s letter of 4 February, 1881, but as
an original and independent proposition to Sedden, to sell him the stock,
then the defendant was the agent of Pegram, and liable to him for any
damages sustained by him from its gross negligence in transmitting the
message.

This instruction was not given in the words asked, and the plaintiff
excepted. ' '
~ The court did instruct the jury that the defendant would be liable for

gross negligence, and that if, by the exercise of ordinary care, the de-
~ fendant could have avoided the mistake in the message, the jury should
respond to the first issue, Yes.
- 8. That if the jury believe the evidence, the defendant was the agent
of Pegram, and lable to him, by reason of its negligence in transmitting
the message. ‘

This instruction was not given in the words asked, but as above stated
and plaintiff excepted. ‘

4, That apart from the estoppel referred to in the first prayer of
plaintiff for instructions, the measure of damages would be the difference
between the price as stated in the Sedden copy of Pegram’s message of
14 February, 1881, and the market value of the stock at Richmond, Va.,
on the day it was to be delivered to Sedden.
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This instruction was refused because the whole contention of plaintiff,
as it appears by his complaint, was that his damage was that he ‘was
compelled to pay W. C. Sedden the difference between 100 shares of
said stock, at $40 per share, and the same stock at $41.75 per share, and
other costs and damages,” ete., and the court held that plaintiff could not

recover back the damage alleged in the complaint, and has proven
( 33 ) mno other except the amount paid for the transmission of the tele-
gram. Plaintiff excepted.

His Honor stated in his charge on the second issue, that the plaintiff
had proven no damages, except the amount paid for the transmission of
the mesgsage, and this is sixty-two cents.

The plaintiff excepted to the instructions and charge given, and espe-
cially assigns as errors therein, that his Honor, instead of the charge
he gave, should have 1nstructed the jury:

1. That the plamtlff is entitled to recover as damages the difference
between the price, as stated in the telegram delivered by him to the
defendant on 14 February, 1881, and that stated in the telegram de-
livered to Sedden on.said day, or the difference between the price of the
stock as stated in the message, as delivered to Sedden by the defendant’
on said day, and its market value in Richmond, Va., on the day the
stock was to be delivered to Sedden, or at the time Sedden first discovered
the mistake; or, that plaintiff is entitled to recover as damages, at least
the amount recovered of him in the action by Sedden against him, and
which he paid before this suit was brought, or said amount and the cost
of said action so paid by him on said amount, and the cost and reason-
able expenses incurred by him in defending the said action, after reason-
able notice to the defendant and its refusal to defend the same, provided
said amount, costs and expenses, were paid by this plaintiff, after notice
thereof to defendant, given before this action was brought; and further,
that plaintiff was entitled to interest on said amount so paid by him, and
certainly entitled to recover interest, if the jury should see fit to allow it.

There was a verdict for the plaintiff on the first issue submitted, and
a verdict on the second issue submitted, in accordance with the instruc-
tions of his Honor, to wit: that plaintiff was entitled to recover, as dam-

ages, sixty-two cents.”
(34) There was judgment for the plaintiff, from which he appealed
to this Court. ;

W. P. Bynum and. P. D. Walker for plaintiff.
C. N. Tillett for defendant. *

Mgerrivon, J. (after stating the facts): A brief reference to the
nature and purpose of the defendant’s employment will serve to throw
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light upon the plaintift’s cause of action, and the extent of damages to
which he is entitled. It is a corporation, invested with powers, and has
functions appropriate in kind and extent, to effectuate and facilitate
the transmission of intelligence from one place to another, by means of
electricity. The chief instrumentality it employs for its purposes is a
machine, apparatus or conirivance, styled the electric telegraph, or
electro magnetic telegrajph, an instrument that conveys intelligence with
the velocity of lightning, by means of signals, certain mechanical move-
ments, or sounds representing letters, words, ideas, or expressions, pro-
duced by the application of electricity—electric fluid—conducted
through and along iron wires for any distance, long or short.

The business of the defendant ordinarily is, to employ its telegraph
for the use, benefit, advantage and convenience of the public—all per-
sons who desire to take benefit of it in the transmission of intelligence
that may be lawfully transmitted, upon the payment of reasonable com-
pensation. In other words, its business, is, by such means and appli-
ances, simply to transmit intelligence—what one or more persons desire
. and intend to say or communicate to another or other persons at a dis-
tance—delivered to it for transmission in the shape of messages, dis-
patches, telegrams, or communications, usually and properly in writing.
Its office and undertaking are to transmit promptly, as directed, in the
message to be sent, precisely what is said and expressed therein—that is,
to transmit, by such signals in the way indicated above, the exact
words, in their proper order and connection, as set down in the ( 35 )
message. In the absence of special agreement, it undertakes to
do, and has authority from the sender of the message, to do no more.

Generally, when it receives the message, it agrees, in terms, or by
implication, to so send it; and has no other agency of the sender, or of
the person to whom it is sent. It has no authority or agency of the
person sending or to whom a message is sent, to make, modify, or alter at
all, the terms or effect of an agreement or proposition to buy or sell any-
thing contained in the message it receives to transmit, or has been trans-
mitted by it, or to bind a person sending or receiving such message.
Tts sole duty is to send the message, truly; and as promptly as may be,
in the order of business. If it is negligent, and fails in this respect, the
party injured by such neglect will have his cause of action against it,
and may recover such damages as he has sustained.

Now, it appears that the defendant received from the plaintiff, and
undertook, for compensation paid, to transmit for him, as directed, this
message: “Party offers 100 shares C. C. & A. stock at forty-three.
Answer quick.”

Tt sent only a part of this message—it negligently omitted to transmit
the word “three” at the end of the word “forty,” thus materially chang-
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ing the proposition to sell, and misinforming and misleading the party
to whom it was sent, and causing the latter to send a message in reply
that misled the plammﬁ

Such neglect created the plalntlff’s cause of action, alleged in the com-
plaint, and he is clearly entitled to recover at least nominal damages,
and such substantial damages as he has sustained; that is, such as in the
course of things were naturally the proximate consequence of the wrong
complained of—such as the parties may have fairly contemplated by

their contract, in case of a breach thereof; but not such as may
( 36 ) have been the consequence of secondary and remote causes, indi-
rectly growing out of such breach.

Thus, if the plaintiff, in consequence of the message received by him
in reply to his, falsely transmitted by the defendant to the brokers in
Richmond, purchased the stock referred to, and failed to realize for it
what it eost him, and reasonable compensation for his labor and trouble
about it, he might recover the amount so lost and such compensation,
and alse the sum he paid for transmitting the message.

But he could not recover damages for any injury sustained by the
persons—the brokers—to whom his message was falsely transmitted, by
reason thereof, because the injury done to them was not an injury to
him. He had no cause of action on that account; they had, if they so
sustained injury.

Nor was the plaintiff liable to the brokers for any such injury sus-
tained by them, or on account of the breach of any contract with them,
created by the message as transmitted, because he did not send, or
direct the defendant to transmit, the message it transmitted—he did not
offer or agree to-sell to the brokers the stock at “forty”—they had no
contract with him.

As we have seen, the defendant had no agency or authority of the
plaintiff to change or modify, in terms, the message he delivered to it to
be transmitted to the brokers named. It transmitted the false message
to them in its own wrong, and it alone was answerable to them for any
injury they sustained thereby—the plaintifi had done them no injury—
the defendant may have done so, in delivering to them the false message,
upon which they may have acted to their detriment. If they did mnot,
they could not have recovered substantial damages. West. U. T. Co. ».
Hall, 125 U. 8., 444. o

But it is earnestly contended by the plaintiff that the brokers named
brought their action in 4 court in the State of Virginia, having proper
jurisdiction, against him, and recovered judgment for damages and

costs, which he paid, on account of such falsely transmitted mes-
(87) sage to them; that the plaintiff notified the defendant to appear
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and defend that action, and save him harmless, which it failed to do,
and he is therefore entitled, in this action, to recover such outlay on
his part as damages. .

- We cannot so decide. We are unable to see how an action upon a con-
tract, never in faét made, could be successfully prosecuted against the
present plaintiff; and it is still more difficult to comprehend how the
damages he has sustained in such action, or any outlay of his therein,
can be recovered by him in this action, there being, as we have seen, no
privity between the pla1nt1ﬂ and defendant in that respect, and no such
relations subsisting as to give the former cause for redress against the
defendant, measured by the results of the action referred to, the only
evidence of which was the transeript of the record thereof. Such evi-
dence would be admissible if an agent, in performing his principal’s
orders, should incur a personal responsibility and loss, and seek indem-
nity therefor against the latter, on the ground of their relations. In
such case, if the principal had notice of the action, its result would be
conclusive as to the extent of the damage. But this is a very different
case from one of that nature.

Here the present plaintiff was not answerable to the plaintiffs in the
action just referred to for injuries they sustained by the negligence of
. the present defendant, nor was the latter answerable therefor to the
plaintiff in this action in any aspect of their relations. Hare v. Grant,
77 N. C,, 208; Leak v. Covington, 99 N. C., 559.

As the defendant was not answerable to the plaintiff for any injury
the brokers named sustained, by reason of the false message transmitted
to them by it, the plaintiff cannot recover from the defendant, as dam-
ages in this action, any sum the brokers may have, for any cause, recov-
ered from the plaintiff.

There is no error, and the judgment must be affirmed.

No error. Affirmed.

Davis, J., dissenting : The plaintiff sent a message and received ( 38.)
a reply thereto. By reason of the gross and inexcusable negli-
gence of the defendant, the message was not delivered as it was given
for transmission, in consequence of which a reply was made to, and
received by, the plaintiff, upon which he acted, and upon which he had
a right to act, because he had a right to assume that the message, to
which it was a response, had been correctly sent. Acting upon the reply
received to the message so transmitted, he purchased and sent stock to
Richmond, which, in consequence, and as a direct consequence, of the
misunderstanding caused by the gross negligence of the defendant, was
there attached, and the plaintiff was put to necessary and unavoidable
cost, expense, and loss, for which (there being gross negligence found)
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I think the defendant was liable. By the inexcusable negligence of the
defendant, the plaintiff has been made to incur expense and loss, which
he could, by no possible diligence, prevent, and for which, I think, the
defendant ought to answer. It was the direct and unavoidable, not the
speculattve or remote, result of the negligence.

I cannot concur in the view taken of the authorities cited, as applied
to this case.

Cited: Hughes v. Tel. Co., 114 N. C., 75; Helms v. Tel. Co., 143
N. G, 393; Cotton Osl Co. v. Telegraph Co., 171 N. C., 707; Leigh v.
Telegraph Co., 190 N. C., 706.

A. G. THORNTON aAxp Wirg v. A. G. BRADY.
Appeal—Practice—Error Apparent in Record—Assignment of Error.

The statute (section 957 of The Code) requiring the Supreme Court to render
such judgment, etc., as shall appear to be proper from inspection of the
whole record, has reference to the essential parts of the record, such as -
the pleadings, verdict and judgment, in which, if there be error, the court
will correct it, though it be not assigned. If there be error in such matters
as are not necessarily of the record, the Court will not see and correct
it, unless it be assigned. (Report of S. v. Reynolds, 95 N. C. 616,
adverted to as incorrect and misleading.) '

Crvir, Acrion, heard before Clark, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of the
Superior Court of CumsrrLanp County.

Judgment was rendered in favor of defendant and the plaintiffs
appealed.

(39) N. 8. Ray for plaintiffs.
D. Rose for defendant.

Mzrrivon, J. In this case, no exception or assignment of error
appears, in terms or by implication, in the case stated or settled on
appeal, or in the record proper. This is conceded, but on the argument
the counsel for the appellants insisted that inasmuch as the statute
(The Code, sec. 957), provides that, “In every case the Court (this
Court) may render such sentence, judgment and deeree, as, on inspection
of the whole record, it shall appear to them ought, in law, to be ren-
dered therein,” ete., it becomes the duty of this Court to scrutinize all
such matters and things as may occur and be noted on the record in
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the course of the action, including the trial, whether error be assigned
or not. This is a misinterpretation of the statutory provisions cited. It
refers only to such constituted matters of the action as must necessarily
go upon and constitute the record of it, and which the Court sees and
must take notice of, such as the pleadings, the verdict, and the judg-
ment; it does mnot refer to such matters and things as are of, but
incident to the action and do not necessarily go upon the record, such
as the rulings of the Court upon questions arising upon motions,
evidence, its instructions to the jury, and the like. Such matters as those
last mentioned, do not go upon and become part of the record, unless
the correctness of the decisions of the court, upon them is gues-
tioned, in which case, they are made part of the record, to the ( 40)
end, the complaining party may enter his objections, and the
grounds thereof, and assign error. Such decisions of the court are
presumed to be correct and acceptable to the parties, in the absence of
objections so made. But as to the essential parts of the record, as
pointed out above, the court will, ex mero motu, take notice of errors
apparent in it, correct them and enter such judgment as in law ought
to be rendered. The reason is, that it is the first and imperative duty
of the court, to render only such judgment as the law, upon the facts
ascertained, allows and will sanction. If what it must necessarily see
in the record of the action is erroneous, it will correct the error, al-
though it be not assigned. If there be error in such matters as are not
- necessarily of the record, it cannot see and correct the same, unless
and until it shall be assigned. Hence Ruffin, C. J., said in Gant v.
Hunsucker, 12 Ired., 254: “But though that be the opinion of the
court, it is not now open to the plaintiff to complain of that error, be-
cause he took no exception to it on the trial. For the best reasons it is
entirely settled, that the court can take no mnotice of an error not
apparent in the record, that is, in the pleadings, verdict, or judgment,
unless the appellant excepted to it.at the trial. Besides the presumption,
that every thing was done right until the contrary be alleged, there is
another, that, for purposes of his own, the party assented to or acqui-
esced in every opinion of the court to-which he did not at the tlme
except.” King v. King, 4 Dev. & Bat., 164

Error, as has been decided in many cases, must be assigned in the
case statéd, or settled on appeal, or in the record of the cause, or
proceedings in the action, unless the error is apparent in the essential
parts of the record, as pointed out above.

The counsel of the appellant cited 8. v. Reynolds, 95 N. C,, 616, as a
case in which no error was assigned as to the instructions given by the
court to the jury, but nevertheless, this Court examined the in-
structions sent up, and discovered and corrected error therein. ( 41)
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The report of the case in this respect is misleading. It is said in the
report, that “the case on appeal did not show that any exception was
made to the charge below.,” This is a mistake. On reference to the
record, we find that Justice Ashe, who delivered the opinion, did not
say, in his statement of the case, that error was not assigned, and it
also appears that exception to the charge was expressly taken.

In this case, error in the record is not apparent, nor is error assigned
in the record, or in a case stated or settled on appeal. The judgment
must therefore be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed,

Cited: 8. v. Watkins, 101 N. C., 704; Hutson v. Sawyer, 104 N. C,,
45 McKinnon v, Morrison, ibid., 864; R. R. v. Church, ibid., 533;
Robeson v. Hodges, 105 N. C., 52; Taylor v. Plummer, ibid., 58;
Walker v. Scott, 108 N, C., 61; Allen. v. R. R., tbid., 528; 8. v. Roberts,
tbid., 664; Baker v. Garris, 108 N, C., 227; Smith v. Smith, ibid.,
368; Rogers v. Bank, ibid., 378; Carter v. Rountree, 109 N. C., 31;
Wells v. Fisher, 112 N. C., 540; 8. v. Ashford, 120 N, C., 589; Ap-
pomattor Co. v. Buffaloe, 121 N, C., 88; Westbrook ». Hicks, 121
N. O, 132; Huntsman v. Lumber Co., 122 N. C., 586; Murray v.
Southerland, 125 N. C., 1165 8. v. Truesdale, bid., 702; Griffith v.
Richmond, 126 N. C., 380; Mfg. Co. v. Hobbs, 128 N. C., 47; Wilson
v. Lumber Co., 131 N. C,, 164; 8. v. Matthews, 142 N. C., 624; Ullery v.
Guthrie, 148 N. C., 419; Hoke v. Whisnant, 174 N. C., 660; Phillips v.
Ray, 190 N. C., 152; Powers v. Jones, tbid., 185; Snipes v. Monds,
tbid., 190, ’ '

J. N. DORSEY axp OrtHERs v. NANCY B. MOORE, H. C. BENNETT
AND OTHERS.

Life Estate—Waste.

1. While a life tenant of forest lands may cut sufficient timber for firewood,
fences, repairs of buildings and erection of suc¢h as' are reasonably
needed on the land or plantation, it is waste to cut timber merely for
sale.

2. One who purchases timber trees from a life tena{nt, and severs them from
the land, is liable to the reversioner for the value of the timber severed,
or for the damage thereby done the inheritance.

‘8. The fact that a purchaser of timber trees from a life tenant has paid
the life tenant for them, is no defense to an action brought against him
by the reversioner, for the waste committed in severing the trees from
the land.
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Crvin action, tried before Boykin, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of Burks
Superior Court. *

It appears that Babel Moore died in the county of Burke in 1874
leaving a last will and testament, which was duly proven, by
which he devised to his surviving widow, Nancy B. Moore, all (42 )
his real estate—the land described in the complaint—for her
~life or widowhood, and then to the plaintiffs, except the husband
plaintiff, in fee.

This action was brought by the plaintiffs, as the owners of the fee
simple estate in the lands, subject to the life estate, to recover damages
for alleged waste by the life tenant and the other defendants, and for
general relief, etec. The following is a copy of the case settled upon
appeal :

“The plalntlﬂs allege in their complamt that the defendant Nancy
B. Moore was the owner of a life estate in the lands described in the
complaint, and was in the possession thereof at the commencement
of this action. They further allege, that said defendant has forfeited
her said estate, by reason of waste committed by her in selling valuable
timber thereon to defendant Bennett, and in permitting him to erect
and operate a saw mill thereon, and in allowing her agent, the de-
fendant Gaither Conly, to cut and remove large numbers of cross-ties
therefrom. It appears in the complaint, that the defendant H. C. Ben-
nett and defendant Nancy B. Moore, the life tenant as aforesaid, had
entered into a contract, whereby the purchaser, said Bennett, was per-
mitted by the life tenant to cut and remove said timber, and to erect and
operate said mill. They demand damages against the defendants, and
ask that they be restrained from committing further waste.

The defendants Bennett and Conly allege in their answer, that they
committed the acts complained of under a contract with the said life
tenant, as appears likewise in the complaint, and declare that they
have satisfied her. At the beginning of the trial, the death of the life
tenant Nancy B. Moore, since the last continuance, was suggested,
whereupon the plaintiffs entered a nol. pros. as to her. The court was
of opinion that the plaintiffs were not entitled to recover upon
the pleadings and admissions, because the life tenant was dead, (43 )
and no personal representative appeared in her behalf in the
cause, and that, therefore, as to her employee Conly, no damages could
be recovered, it being admitted in the complaint that said life tenant,
by and through said Gaither Conly, was engaged in cutting and hauling
away cross-ties, timber, etc. As to defendant H. C. Bennett, it being
" alleged in the complaint, that he had cut and removed said timber,’
and erected and operated said mill, by virtue of a contract with the
life tenant, it was held by the court, that plaintiffs could not recover
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damages therefor in this action against him. The court did not pass
upon the right of plaintiffs with reference to thé other defendants,
further time being granted to make service, etc. The plaintiffs asked
the court to sign judgment, perpetually enjoining Bennett and the other
defendants from committing waste on said land, and taxing the de-
fendant with the cost of the ingunction. The court refused, inasmuch
that it appears from the restraining order of his Honor, Judge MacRae,
that the defendant Nancy B. Moore, Gaither Conly and Thomas Conly,
and their agents, be restrained from committing waste, etc. The de-
fendant Bennett was not restrained, and it was upon this order that
the motion was made by the plaintiffs. Plaintiffs excepted; there was
judgment for the defendants Bennett and Conly.”

The court gave judgment, whereof the following is a copy:

“This action having been brought to trial by the court, and it appear-
ing that the plaintiffs allege a contract between the defendant Naney B.
Moore and Gaither Conly for the sale of timber, and that the said
Nancy B. Moore was in possession of the freehold, and the said Bennett
and Gaither Conly had paid said Nancy B. Moore in full under said
contract, it was now, on motion, adjudged that the plaintiffs take
nothing by their writ against said Bennett and Conly; that said defend-

ants be discharged and go hence without day; that they recover
(44 ) their cost of suit, to be taxed by the clerk.”
From this judgment the plaintiffs appealed to this Court.

C. M. Busbee for plaintiffs.
No counsel for defendants.

Mzrrivon, J., after stating the facts: As to forest lands and timber
trees thereon, generally, the life tenant may, if need be, clear tillable
land, to be cultivated for the necessary support of himself and his
family, and this he may do although the ordinary forest timber be de-
stroyed in the course of clearing the land. He may also cut and use
timber appropriate for necessary fuel, for repairing fences, for making
such as are necessary—for repairing houses and building such as are
reasonably needed on the land or plantation. But it is waste to cut
timber from the land merely for sale—to sell the timber trees and
allow them to be cut down and manufactured into lumber for market—
because this would impair the substance of the inheritance—it would
take from the land that which is not incident to the life estate and the
© just enjoyment of it consistently with the estate and rights of the
‘remaindermen or reversioners. The law intends that the life tenant
shall enjoy his estate in such reasonable way, as that the land shall
pass to the reversioner, as nearly as practicable, unimpaired as to its -
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natural capacities and the improvements upon it. Ballentine v. Poyner,
2 Hay., 268 (110); Churchill v. Speight’s Executors, ibid., 515 (338);
Ward v. Sheppard, ibid., 461 (283); Shine v. Wilcoz, 1 D. & B. Eq.,
631; Davis v. Gilliam, 5 Ired. Eq., 808; Potter v. Mardre, 74 N. C., 36.

Accepting the facts as alleged in the complaint, and admitted in the
answer to be true, the life tenant, in this case, clearly committed waste.
She sold from the land, for the purpose of gain, large numbers of
“cross-ties,” and much timber—to one of the defendants, who
erected a saw mill on the land and sawed the timber into lumber (45 )
for market, All this, the life tenant had no right to do. Plainly,
she committed waste. She, it appears, died pending the action, and thus
passed out of it, and it has not been revived against her personal
representative—indeed, the action as to her is abandoned.

The appellees admit that they cut down and took the timber from
the land, substantially, as alleged in the complaint, but they seek to
justify these “acts complained of under a contract with the life tenant

and declare they have satisfied her.”” But they cannot thus
excuse or justify their acts as to the plaintiffs. The life tenant could
not, by contract or otherwise, authorize them to cut down and remove
the timber for any purpose; she had neither right nor authority to do
so, and the fact that they “satisfied her,” cannot alter the case. She
could'not authorize them to do what she could not lawfully do herself.
They cut down the timber in-their own wrong, and thus a cause of
action arose in favor of the plaintiffs against them. Their acts were an
injury to the inheritance—indeed, trees, as soon as they were cut down,
became the personal property of the plaintiff, and they could have
maintained an action to recover the same. They might have sued for
and recovered the value of the timber severed from the land; or they
may maintain their action for the injury to the inheritance, and this
seems to be the scope and purpose of the present action, which, under
the system of civil procedure that lately prevailed in this State, would
be designated as an action on the case, in the nature of waste. Williams
v. Lanier, Bush., 30; Dozier v. Gregory, 1 Jones, 100; Bennett v.
Thomgpson, 8 Ired., 210; Burnett v. Thompson, T Ired., 486; Potter v.
Mardre, supra; Ellitt v. Smith, 2 New Hampshire Rep., 430; Close v.
Hazleton, Tred., 1753 6 Wait’s Ac. & Def., 253.

The judgment, it seems, is founded upon the supposition, that the
contract between the life tenant in possession and the appellees, pur-
porting to give them the right to cut and remove the timber,
had the legal effect to exempt them from liability to the plaintiffs ( 46 )
on such account. This was a misapprehension of the law appli-
cable. Upon the pleadings, the court should have given judgment for
the plaintiffs, directing an inquiry as to the damages.
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There is error. The judgment must be reversed, and further pro-
ceedings had in the action according to law.. To that end, let this
opinion be certified to the Superior Court. It is so ordered.

Error. Reversed.

Cited: King v. Miller, 99 N. C., 597; Turner v. Turner, 104 N. C,,
5783 Sherrll v. Connor, 107 N. C., 633; Latham v. Lumber Co., 139
N. C, 10; Wall v. Holloman, 156 N. C., 276; Thomas v. Thomas, 166
N. C,, 631,

C. A, MULL anxp OruERs v. P. J. WALKER AND OTHERS.

Step—fwther;Parent and Child — Ezecutors and -Administrators —
Statute of Presumptions—Pleading—Counterclaim—7V ariance.

1. Plaintiffs sued the defendant, who was their step-father, and administrator
of their deceased father, for their distributive shares in their father’s
estate, The defendant set up as a counterclaim the money expended by
him in the necessary support of plaintiffs during their minority, and
while they lived with him as part of his family; Held, (1) that as plain-
tiffs’ demand was against the defendants personally, for an estate wasted
and misapplied, there was no want of mutuality in defendant’s demand
for reduction of plaintiffs’ claim, although it was not strictly a counter-
claim; (2) that as the parties in this case constituted one family and
were provided for in common, and it did not appear that the defendant
step-father had not means of his own, sufficient for the support of the
plaintiffs, plaintiffs incurred no liability to defendant, upon an implied
contract, for their support and maintenance.

2. If a step-father, or father, has not means of his own sufficient for the
support of his step-children or children, he may retain the interest on
funds in his hands belonging to them and expend it in their necessary
support. Such expenditure will be allowed him as a lawful disbursement.

3. The statute, Rev. Code, ch. 65, secs. 18, 19, ‘was enacted to quiet contro-
versies and prevent the presentation of stale demands, and contains no
saving clause or exception in favor of infants or femes covert.

4, Where a defendant, sued for an account, sets up, in his answer, matter
in bar of an account, but also demands a reference and account, the de-
mand for the account will not be construed as a waiver of the other
defenses, but must be understood as contingent upon the failure of the
other defenses. Therefore such a demand in answer is not a variance.

(47) COwin acmiow, tried at the Fall Term, 1887, of the Superior
Court of Burge County, before Boykin, J., and a jury.
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The defendant P. J. Walker, individually, and as administrator of
Job Hicks, appealed.
The facts appear in the opinion.

8. J. Erwin for plaintiffs.
E. C. Smith for defendant.

SmirH, C. J. The case made in the complaint is this:

One Job Hicks, the first husband of the defendant Eliza, removed
in 1851, without his family, to California, and soon after died. Admin-
1strat10n on his estate was on 24 November, 1853, committed to the
defendant, Peter J. Walker, with whom his surviving widow had inter-
married, and took possession of the intestate’s personal estate.

The present action begun on 21 May, 1886, is prosecuted by the in-
testate’s two surviving daughters, Mary Jane and Martha, with their
husbands, A. J. Cooper the husband of a deceased daughter and their
infant children, against the defendant Peter J. Walker and wife and
Joseph Brittain, to recover judgment for their distributive shares, and
to pursue a part of the trust fund alleged to have been invested in a tract
of land sold to said Peter by the last named defendant, the title to
which he retains, and subject the land to their claim, as well
as the rents and profits derived by the administrator therefrom. (48)

The complaint further alleges that the infant daughters all
married while under age.

The answer admits the allegations of the complaint in regard to the
death of the said Job Hicks, and the issue of letters of administration
to him, as well as his taking possession of the personal property, but
alleges that he has used the same, and more, in the support of the chil-
dren, while living with him before marriage, to wit: for the several
periods of 15, 14, and 8 years, and denies the purchase and payment
of the land to have been made with the moneys or funds of the trust
estate.

It moreover sets up the defense of the statute of limitations, and the
lapse of the long period of time since the issue of letters of administra-
tion, as a bar to the relief asked.

The defendant Joseph Brittain admits his sale of the land and recep-
tion of full payment, and submits to make title to whomsoever the court
may direct.

There was a replication, denying the debt denominated a counter-
claim, its validity as such in the present suit, and interposing the statu-
tory bar, if it ever existed.

At March Term, 1887, of Burke Superlor Court, a “restralmng
ordeér,” the terms of which are not set cut in the record was issued
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and the cause tried at the next term, before a jury, upon issues in which
they find that the infant daughters of the intestate each married before
attaining their majority, and that the land in dispute was not bought
with money belonging to the estate of the intestate; and thereupon
judgment was rendered against the defendant Peter Walker for the
sum admitted in his. inventory, filed on 22 February, 1855, to be the -
value of the personal estate, reduced by debts paid and commissions,
and mentioned in the judgment; from which the defendant appeals.
After the empaneling of the jury and the reading of the plead-
(49) ings, the court expressed or, as the case states, intimated an
opinion against the counterclaim, as it is called, on the twofold
ground, that it is personal to the defendant, while the action is against
him in his capacity as administrator, and that the law raised no con-
tract, on account of the relations of the parties, of indebtedness on the
part of the infant distributees to pay expenses incurred in their support
while members of the family. Without exception thereto, but in conse-
quence of this intimation of intended ruling, no evidence in support
of this part of the defense was offered.

The defendant insisted upon the statutory bar and the presumption,
arising from the lapse of time, of payment or abandonment of the
present demand, and, further, that the action would not lie until “the
filing of a final account.” The court ruled against the defense, under
the statute, and refused the motion to dismiss the action on account of
the delay in bringing the suit. These rulings are involved in the appeal
and areto be here reviewed and the law declared.

If the refusal to entertain the demand for a reduction of the plain-
tiffs’ claim by the sums expended in their necessary support, out of their
or his own funds, not strictly a counterclaim, but a diminution of the
defendants’ liability, had no other support than the first reason assigned
for its rejection, we should be reluctant, if we did not refuse, to give
our sanction to the ruling.

There is no want of mutuality in the relation of the claim. The
plaintiff’ demand is against the defendant personally, for an estate
wasted and misapplied by his individual conduct, and the execution
upon the judgment would run against his own property only. Where
the judgment and execution are against him upon a liability incurred
by the intestate (or testator, as the case may be), it is against him
in his representative capacity, and satisfaction is to be made out of the

goods of the deceased.
(50) But the second ground assigned for disallowing the defense,
in the form in which it was presented to the court, is tenable and
quite sufficient. No liability is incurred upon an implied contract,
where the parties, as in this case, constitute one family and are pro-
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vided for in common. Hussey v. Rountree, Bush,, 110; Dodson wv.
McAdams, 96 N. C., 149; Barnes v. Ward, Bush. Eq., 93. :

If, however, the step-father, or even the father, has not means of his
own, and has in his hands funds belonging to them, which he employs in
their necessary maintenance, he would be allowed to retain so much as
does not exceed accruing interest, and be accountable for what remains,
not as a contract, but as a lawful disbursement.

But these modifying circumstances are not suggested, to exempt the -
claim from the operation of the rule, that excludes the inference of an
implied contract, which would be drawn if no such family relations
existed. Walker v. Crowder, 2 Ired. Eq, 478,

But we do not concur in the opinion and consequent ruling against
the defense, growing out of the long lapse of time since the cause of
action existed and the bringing of the suit.

Letters of administration issued in 1853, two years after which the
administrator could have been called to an account and settlement. The
suit was not brought until nearly thirty-one years had passed, and if the
time during which all legal and statutory presumptions are drawn from
its lapse be deducted, there would still remain about 22 years of inac-
tion. The statute then in force, Rev. Code, ch. 63, secs. 18 and 19,
restricts the period to ten years, after which all contracts, unrecognized
as binding during the intermediate space, are presumed to have been
satisfied, and all “equitable interests,” after “the right of action shall
have accrued on any equitable interest or 01a1m,” are presumed to have
been, in like manner, pald or abandoned.

Now, there is no saving clause in this enactment, made to quiet ( 51)
controversies, and prevent the presentation of stale demands, or
exception in favor of infants or femes covert, and hence the cumulative
d1sab111t1es, which prevent the starting of the statute limiting the time
in which other actions are to be brought, have no application here.
 Hamlin v. Mebane, 1 Jones Eq., 18; Hodges v. Council, 86 N, O., 181;
Headen v. Womack, 88 N. C., 468,

The answer of the defendant Walker, whom we refer to when using
the word, inasmuch as he is the only contestant party, itself demands a
reference and account, the ordinary effect of a judgment for which con-
clides all defenses that are made to the defendant’s liability. But
obviously this consequence cannot be aseribed to the present pleading,
consistent with its general purpose and other parts, as the objection to
the action is made, and the right to make it recognized and acted on by
the court. The demand for the account must, therefore, be understood
as contingent upon the failure of the defense to the action, when it might
become necessary. This, then, is not a variance.
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At the opening of the cause, the appellee moved to dismiss the appeal,
upon the alleged insufficiency of the papers to warrant it in forma
pauperis, but was denied.

There is error, and the judgment is reversed, and the court below will
prooeed to dispose of the case in accordance w1th the law, as declared in
this opinion,

Error. Reversed.

(52)

W. SMITHDEAL, SURvIVING PARTNER, ETc., v. JAS, WILKERSON.

Venue, or Place of Trial—Claim and Delivery—Distress.

The words “distrained for any cause”. (section 190, (4) of The Code), in refer-
ence to the place of trial of actions for the recovery of personal property,
do not apply to the seizure. by the sheriff in the provisional remedy by
claim and delivery; and the situation of the property in such actions, in

_which claim and delivery is resorted to, does not regulate the place of
trial of the actions. .

Orvir aoriow, for the recovery of personal property, heard before
Clark, J., at November Term, 1887, of the Superior Court of Rowax
County.

The plaintiff alleges that he is the surviving partner of Smithdeal &
Ritchie, and, as such, is the owner and entitled to the immediate posses-
gion of the horse described in the complaint.

The plaintiff is a resident of Rowan County, and claims the horse by
virtue 6f a chattel mortgage, executed by one Daniel to Smithdeal &
Ritchie, and duly registered in Cabarrus County. The defendant is
resident of Stanly County, and the plaintiff alleges that the horse is
wrongfully detained by him. :

At the same time that the summons was issued to the county of Stanly
(3 November, 1887), the plaintiff filed the necessary affidavit, ete., for
claim and delivery, which was issued, and under which the horse was
taken by the sheriff of Stanly, but, the defendant giving the requisite
undertaking; the horse was left in his possession.

At the return term, after complaint filed, and before answering, and
before the time to file an answer expired, the defendant made a motion
in writing for a change of venue from the county of Rowan to the

~ county of Stanly, in which the defendant resided, and in which
(53 ) the horse, the subject of the action, was when the summons and
order were issued.

.
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“The court (Clark, J.), being of opinion, upon a proper construetion
of section 190, subsection 4, of The Code, that the plaintiff can bring
his action in the county of Rowan, in which the plaintiff resides, the
motion for change of venue was denied.” |

From this the defendant appealed.

Theo. F. Klutz for plaintif.
J. M. Brown (by brief) for defendant.

Davis, J. (after stating the facts): The defendant insists that the
action should have been brought to the county of Stanly, in which the
defendant resides, and where the horse, the subject of the action, is. He
says it is governed by section 190, subsection 4, of The Code, which pro-
vides, that actions “for the recovery of personal property, distrained
for any cause,” must be “tried in the county in which the subject of the
action, or some part thereof, is situated,” and that the place of trial
should be changed, as provided in section 195 of The Code.

This depends upon the construction to be placed upon the words “dis-
trained for any couse.

It is said by Taylor, C. J., in Kitchin v. Tyson, 8 Murph 314, “It is
a rule, that when a statute makes use of a word, the meaning of which
was well ascertained at common law, the word will be understood in the
sense it was at common law.” The same rule is laid down in Adams v.
Turrentine, 8 Ired., 150, '

Bhe word “d1stra1ned ” uged in The Code, must, of necessity, consti-
tute an exception to this general rule. The old action of “Distress,”
which Blackstone says was of “great use and consequence,” was 1imited,
to the distraining cattle or goods for “nonpayment of rent, or other
duties, or distraining another’s cattle, damage feasant ” Thls
old remedy, as was said by Rodman, J., in Harrison v, Ricks, 71 ( 54 )
N. C., 7, quoting Dalgleish v. Gmndy, Conf. R., 22, “was long
ago held to have been abolished in this State.” The Word “distraint” or
“distrained,” cannot have the old technical common law meaning; in the
legal vocabulary of the present day; with all its “use and consequence”
to the landlord of old, and all the ancient learning incident to it, we now
have no practical concern. But conceding, as the appellant insists, that
its common law meaning no longer attaches, we are unable to see, if it
has any meaning, how it can help the defendant; for the property in
question was not “distrained” for any cause; and, to adopt the construc-
tion insisted upon by him, these words must be treated as superfluous
and unnecessary, which is not permissible, if any consistent meaning can
be given to them. If the view of the defendant be correct, the Legisla-
ture would have simply said, “for the recovery of personal property,”
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without the added words, which limited, and were intended to limit it,
to property “distrained,” that is, “seized,” “taken and lawfully held,”
not wrongfully, but by some recognized legal right. We think this is
made clear by the oath required of a plaintiff before he can obtain an
order for the delivery of personal property. He is, among other things,
required to make oath; that the property “has not been taken for tax,
" assessment, or fine, pursuant to a statute, or seized under an execution or
attachment against the property of the plaintiff,” ete.

There is another view fatal to the appellant’s contention. Claim and
delivery is not a substantive action, but is only provisional and ancillary
to the action for the recovery of personal property, where the plaintiff
seeks to get possession of the property, pending the action, and in this
respect it is not unlike the old action of replevin, which would not lie
_against an officer who had seized property under legal process, or

“against persons holding the same in custody of the law.”
(35) The plaintiff is not obliged, when he brings an action for the

recovery of personal property, to make the affidavit and give the
undertaking required for claim and delivery. The latter is only ancil-
lary, and if he does not give such undertaking, the judgment, if he
recover, as in the old action of detinue, is for the possession of the prop-
erty, or for its value, and damages for its detention. Jarman v. Ward,
67 N. C,, 32. ' :

It may be that great inconvenience and difficulty may sometimes arise,
in the enforcement of the ancillary remedy of claim and delivery, when
the plaintiff resides in a county at a great distance from that in v&]ich
the defendant, from whose possession the property is taken, resides; but
this cannot affect the clear meaning of the ¥tatute, which allows actions
for the recovery of personal property (unless “distrained for any cause’)
to “be tried in the county in which the plaintiffs, or the defendants, or
any of them, shall reside at the commencement of the action.”

Before the present system (Revised Code, ch. 31, sec. 87, and ch. 98), -
a plaintiff residing in the county of Cherokee might bring his action of
replevin to the Sugperior Court of that county, against a defendant,
wrongfully in possession of his property, residing in the county of Curri-
tuck, We think the law is plain, and the difficulties or inconvenience
that may result, are not for our consideration.

There is no error. ' Affirmed.

Cited: Kelly v. FZemq;ng, 113 N. C,, 138; Vann v. Edwdrds, 135.N. O,,
667; Brown v. Cogdell, 136 N. C., 83; 01l Co. v. Grocery Uo., ibid., 355.
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(56)°
JOS. DOBSON AND OrHERS V. ROXANNA SIMONTON, EXECUTRIX,
AND QTHERS,

Res Judicata—dJ udgments of the Supreme Court.

1. When this Court announces its decision, that there is no error in.the
judgment rendered in the court below, that court has no right or power
to modify the judgment in any respect. The judgment cannot be modified
except by a direct proceeding, alleging fraud, mistake, imposition, etc.
This rule holds and applies also to an adjudication upon an inter-
locutory order reviewed on appeal.

2, The Superior Court has no right to disturb a judgment which has been
affirmed by the Supreme Court, no matter how un;]ust the ruling might he,
if it were an open question,

Civir actiow, heard by Gilmer, J., at May Term, 1887, of IrepeLL
Superior Court.

T. C. Hauser’s executors, who were plaintiffs, appealed.

The facts appear in the opinion of the Court.

J. B. Bdtchelor for plaintiffs.
D. M. Furches and B. F. Long for defendants.

Surrm, C. J. T. C. Hauser deposited moneys in the bank of States-
ville, which, with interest computed to 13 December, 1880, the rest fixed
in the referee’s report, at which ‘the value of all the creditors’ claims is
ascertained, amounts to $3,125.27. Of this sum, he had sued and recov-
ered from Samuel McD. Tate, two thousand and five hundred dollars,
the facts connected with which, forming the basis of his demand, and
set out in the case on appeal, are reported in 85 N, C., 81. The judg-
ment hag been paid in full. In the distribution of the dssets of the
insolvent bank among the creditors in the present action, Hauser proved
his whole claim, as if none of it had been paid, and claimed a pro rata
share of the fund, estimated upon his entire and undiminished
debt against the bank, and it was allowed by the referee. The (-57)
ruling, upon exceptions, was so far corrected by the court as to
‘allow a pro rata division upon the whole deposit, exeept that when the
deficiency, that is the difference between the sum recovered from Tate
and the proved demand, was made up, and the whole demand thus satis-
fied, Hauser should receive no more., Tate does not, himself, prefer any
claim on the fund. From this ruling Hauser appealed, while none others
- did, and the appeal was disposed of by affirming the Judgment See case
reported in 95 N. O, 812.

The concluding sentence in the oplmon declares that “there is no
error in the order appealed from, of which the appellant can complain.”
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"very distinctly intimating that if there were error in the ruling, it was
in allowing the appellant to share in the apportionment upon any larger
sum than the excess of his demand ,over what he had collected. TUpon
the resumption of the case in the court below, the judge directed the
receiver to pay over to the executors who, after the death of Hauser,
had assumed the administration of his personal estate and been made
parties in his place, “the pro rafa per cent on the sum of $617.36, as has
been, or shall be hereafter, paid to the other creditors of the bank, who
have proven their claims, and which have been passed on and allowed by
the court. That 80 per cent upon this amount shall be paid to the
executors of said Hauser before the credltors, who have heretofore re-
ceived that amount, shall receive any more.”

The previous adJudmatlon determined the sum which was to share
with the other proved claims, and this was not unsettled by the appeal,
but the judgment in this respect remained in force, the distribution being
arrested when the debt was paid in full, so that there should be no over-

lapping beyond.

'(38) In Calvert v. Peebles, 82 N. C., 834, it is declared that when

this Court announces, by its decision, that there is no error in the
judgment in the court below, that court has no right or power to modify
that judgment in any respect, and that this can be done only by a direct
proceeding, alleging fraud, mistake, imposition, etc. This is not less
true of an adjudication upon the matter of an interlocutory order, re-
viewed on appeal.

This is held in Mabry v. Henry, 83 N. C., 298; again, in Wilson v.
Lineberger, 82 N. C., 412, a demurrer was interposed by the defendant
and overruled, and an appeal entered but not prosecuted. At a subse
quent term a motion was made to dismiss the action, and it was decided
that the subject-matter was res adjudicata, and the motion denied.

The Court, therefore, had no right to disturb the affirmed judgment in
this particular, however unjust the ruling might be, if it were, as it is
not, an open question. It was error to do so, and, in reversing this
action, the cause must proceed to a final determination, according to the
ruling upon the former appeal, which seems to have been mlsmterpreted
by the judge in the court below. ~

It is so ordered . _ .

Error. : Reversed.

Cited: Herndon v. Ins. Co., 108 N. C., 650; Banking Co. v, Morehead,
126 N. C., 282, 291; Merrimon v. Lyman, ibid., 542; McCall v. Webb, .
wbid., 762 Oook v, Bank' 181 N. C,, 98; Tussey v. Ow/en 147 N. C,
337, Jones v. I/Lfe Assocmtwn, 150 N C 381; Chawis v. Brown, 174
‘N. C 123.. o L
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(59)

W. H., PHIFER, ASSIGNEE, v. JNO. R. ERWIN, ADMINISTRATOR OF
MARSHALL E. ALEXANDER.

Evidence—Fraud—Intent—Mortgage of Stock of Goods—
Sale; what constitutes.

. Where evidence is offered of an act, from which a fraud may be presumed,

the adverse party is entitled to show other acts and declaratlonl con-
nected. therewith, in explanation.

. Where a witness, on his examination upon a second trial, gave his opinion

. that the value of the property in controversy was greater than the
amount he had testified to on a former trial: Held, that he might state
the reasons for the change, by way of explanation.

. In questions of unlawful intent, when the facts conclusively show an

illegal purpose, and the party. intended to do the act, from which the
consequences inevitably flow, he is held to intend both, and cannot be
heard to the contrary; but when the act and the intent must be alleged
and proved, as distinct facts, the inference of an illegal intent may be
repelled by the testimony of the party, that such intent was not enter-
tamed by him,

. So where a mortgagor of a stock of goods was left in possession of them,

1o dispose of them to the best advantage, without any arrangement for
the appropriation of the moneys received, it was competent for him to
testify that he had no intent, in making the mortgage, to defraud his
creditors.

. One taking, by assignment, such mortgage and a note secured by the same,

can testify in his own behalf, that he knew nothing of any understanding
between the parties to the mortgage, that the mortgagor was to remain
in possession, nor of any purpose on the part of either to defraud the
mortgagor’'s creditors,

. To render a conveyance fraudulent, it must be so in its execution, and a

fraudulent use of the property afterwards does not avoid it, though it
furnishes strong evidence of the intent, in. making the conveyance, from
which the jury may infer fraud. :

. A charge to the jury, that when one mortgages a stock of goods to secure

a debt, and is permitted to remain in possession of them, to use them
as his own, and sell and replenish the stock, and deal with them as in
ordinary course of business one deals with his own property, the trans-
action is fraudulent and void as to creditors, without referring to the
intent with which the deed was made, is erroneous.

Our law differs from the civil law, which requires a fiwed price for the
purchase to constitute a sele; and with us it is sufficient, if the price
is left. to be fixed afterwards, by reference to the market value, by a

designated person, or in any other way in which it may be ascertained
' ‘with certainty, especially when there is a delivery of the article,

71



- IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

PHIPER v. ERWIN.

(60)  OrviL acTioN, tried before MacRae, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of
the Superior Court of MEcKLENBUERG.

On 25 December, 1882, W. H, D. Wager bought a stock of goods from
M. E. Crowell, for which he gave his note for $1,910.18, payable on
20 February following, and to secure the same, as also a debt of about
$300, due by account, reconveyed the same by deed of mortgage to said
Crowell. The latter, on 10 October, 1883, assigned the debt and the
mortgage security to the plaintiff.

On 15 October, five days after the assignment, certain creditors of
Wager, who had recovered judgment against him in a justice’s court,
caused the same to be docketed in the Superior Court of Mecklenburg,
on which executions issued to Marshall E. Alexander, sheriff of that
- county, and he seized and sold the goods to satisfy said debts. To recover
damages for the conversion, the present action was begun and prosecuted
to final judgment, from which the defendant appealed to this Court, and
it was reversed, and a new trial awarded. Phifer v. Alexander, 97
N. C., 335.

The sheriff having since died, intestate, the present defendant, Erwin,
has become a party to the actlon, as his administrator, and in h1s stead.

At Spring Term, 1887, of said Superior Court, the cause was again
tried before the jury upon issues which, and the responses to each, are
 as follows:

1. Is the plaintiff the owner of the property described in.the. com-
plaint? Answer: Yes.

2. Did the defendant’s intestate seize and convert it? Answer:
(61) Yes.
3. What is the value of it? Answer: $350.
And from the judgment thereon the defendant again appealed.

C. W. Tillett for plaintiff.
© Platt D, Walker for defendant.

Smrrw, C. J. (after stating the case) : The controversy is -confined to
the disputed efficacy of the mortgage executed by Wager to Crowell,
which the defendant assails as fraudulent and void, as to the executions
sued out against the property of the judgment debtor, in which inquiry
the bona fides of the assignment does not enter, as there is no judgment
upon any indebtedness of Crowell, the ass1gn0r, of which his creditors
alone can complain.

The only question arises, under the first issue, as to the plaintiff’s title,
and that depends on the validity of the deed of Wager. Upon the former
hearing in this Court, when the mortgage was not copied in the record,
as it iz not now, though referred to as an exhibit in the case, Merri-
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mon, J., speaking for the Court, and referring to its absence, says that,
“so far as appears from the pleadings and the evidence, it is not, upon
its face, fraudulent, and the jury expressly find that it was not made
-with the actual intent of the parties to it to defraud the creditors of the
mortgagor.” The remark is not out of place in the aspect which the
case, upon the evidence, now wears, and the fraudulent intent, as an
outside but coincident fact, must be found by the jury, to render the
mortgage deed void, as against the attacking creditors of the mortgagor.
To this view of the case, we confine our examination of the record in de-
termining the appeal. The exceptions consist of two classes: that relat-
ing to evidence, and that relating to the instructions asked and
refused, and those given to the jury. : (62)

Exceptions concerning evidence: ‘

1. Exception.—The mortgagee, Crowell, testified that the day after
the assignment the plaintiff, who lived at Monroe, came to Matthews,
where witness resided, and they went to the storehouse of Wager, when
the fact of the assignment was made known to him, and the plaintiff
took possession of the goods, and locked them up, and that some of the
property was left by plaintiff with witness, who knew more about the
debtors than the plaintiff; but he “was not authorized to use any of the
money.”

The latter remark was ob,]eeted to but allowed, and the exception
thereto is now very properly withdrawn.

The witness was then asked, “for what purpose did the plaintiff leave
the notes with you?’

Objection was made to the question, and to the answer in response,
but they were allowed, and the witness replied: “From the fact that I
had contracted the debts with the parties and was acquainted with them,
and better able to collect than the plaintiff,” who left nothing with the
witness that was included in the assignment, except the evidences of
debt. The evidence was properly admitted. If the inference of a fraudu-
lent connivance for the ease of the debtor, Wager, was sought to be
~drawn from the fact of the property being placed in the hands of the
witness, it was surely competent to explain the transaction, and repel the
inference, by stating the other facts, of which the understandmg of the
parties, if not expressed in terms, constitutes a part. The force of the
declaration is spent in removing an injurious imputation upon a naked,
unexplained fact, and for this limited purpose (and its legal effect
extends no further) the statement was clearly receivable.

2. The next exception rests upon these facts: The witness, from his
_experience in the mercantile business, estimated the goods to be worth
$550, and, upon crosg-examination, was inquired of, if he had not,
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(63) at a former trial, put upon them a lower valuation, of $4007%

The witness replied in the affirmative, adding, that from what he
gaw of the goods, and information received since, he had given the higher
estimate, and that he had not, when his first opinion was expressed,
examinéd them closely.

Upon his examination by the plaintiff, he said: “I changed my mind
as to the value of the property from what I heard the other witnesses
testify at that trial, after my examination.”

To this testimony objection was made, and overruled.

We are unable to see any reason for excluding the evidence. It was
explanatory of a discrepancy in the estimates; and certainly a witness,
who hears a fuller deseription of the goods, and thus has information of
their condition and kind, may change his mind as to their value; and
besides, it was -competent to account for the change his opinion had
.undergone, and his reasons for it, and is but matter going to his credit,
and the weight due to his opinion. The defendant examined Wager
himself, who, in describing what occurred at the time when the plaintiff,
after the assignment, came for the goods, stated that he said to the
plaintiff, that if the latter -would take an inventory, and give witness
credit for the stock in hand, and the book accounts, he would turn over
the stock; that no agreement was made, and the stock was turned over,
with the understanding that credit should be given on the secured debts
for whatever sum might be derived from sales and collections, The
witness, in answer to defendant’s inquiry, “How did you turn over the
goods to him % replied: “Of course, I turned them over to him as mort-
gagee.”

He further stated, that when he made the mortgage, it was under-
stood between them, that witness was to remain in possession and make

the most he could out of the goods.
(64) TUpon his cross-examination, the witness said it was not under-
stood between himself and Crowell that witness was to sell the
goods and apply the proceeds to that debt, as he was expecting at
that time to get between five and ten thousand dollars, pension money,
and he had no intention, when he made the mortgage, to defraud his
_ereditors. To this latter statement objection was made, and overruled,
and it has been earnestly pressed in the argument here, upon the
authority of rulings in this Court, which affirm the general proposition,
that acts fraudulent in themselves, as tending to hinder or obstruct
a creditor pursuing his legal remedy, “do not cease to be such because
_the frand, as an independent fact, was not then in the mind.” Cheatham
v, Hawkms, 80 N. C., 161; Boone v. Hardie, 83 N. C,, 470; same case,
‘on second appeal, reported in 87 N. C., 72
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The contention is, of course, undeniable, that where the necessary
consequences of an act are to defraud a creditor, as by securing property
for the use of the debtor, and if upheld, to place it beyond the reach of his
. debts, whether patent upon the face of the instrument or proved aliunde,
the fraudulent element cannot be purged by a disavowal of such
intent as present in the mind, and inducing the act. .

Here, the evidence to sustain the imputation of fraud, is derived
from the mortgagor’s being left in possession, to dispose of the goods
to the best advantage, and the absence of any positive arrangement
for the appropriation of the moneys received by sale, and because the
debtor expected to discharge the secured debts out of other funds he
was looklng for. Now, these.facts furnish evidence of a fraudulent
purpose, in making the mortgage to secure the goods for the benefit
and ease of the debtor, calling for repelling proof to the contrary, and
we can see no reason, in such case, for refusing to hear the mortgagor
diselaim such intent, without which, its infectious presence in the trans-
action might, upon the other facts accompanying, have been inferred.
As in the present case the intent with which the conveyance is
made is not an irrebuttable presumption, but must so exist in ( 65)
the act of making the mortgage to render it void against a
creditor, it is competent for the mortgagor to deny that it was enter-
tained.

“The test of the admissibility of the evidence of motive, or 1ntent,
says this Court, “is the materiality of the motive or intent in giving
character to the act, and when they must, as separate elements, coexist
to constitute guilt or produce a legal result. When, as distinet facts,
each must be alleged and proved, the inference to be deduced may be
met and repelled by the direct testimony of the party as to their being
entertained by him.” S. «. King, 86 N. O, 603, citing 1 Whar. Ev,,
sec. 482,

When the facts show, 1rres1st1bly, the illegal purpose, and the party
intended to do the act from which the consequences inevitably flow, he is
held to intend both, and cannot be heard to speak to the contrary.

The plaintiff, then, on his own behalf, was allowed, after objection, to
state that he knew nothing of any understanding between the parties to
the mortgage, that the mortgagor was to remain in possession, when the
goods were delivered to him, nor of any purpose on the part of either to
defraud the mortgagor’s creditors.

This negative testimony, disconnecting the plaintiff from any pervious
arrangements between them, affecting him as a purchaser, without
notice, and for a valuable consideration, was competent and pertinent,
so obviously so as to render comment and the citation of authority
needless ; and we proceed to examine the ingtructions asked.
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These were seventeen in number, and the appellant admits that those
numbered 4, 5, 11, 13 and 15, are substantially given, while the plaintiff
ingists that all are embodied therein, except such as are numbered 1, 2, 3,
7, 8 and 10, These instructions requested, as well as the charge given |

in extenso, are as follows: ‘ '
(66) 1. That even if the jury should find the facts to be as stated
by the plaintiff’s witnesses, Phifer and Crowell, as to the trans-
action with W. H. D. Wager, at his store, on 11 October, 18883, there
was no sale to the plaintiff, and no title passed to him by said transac-
tion, but the goods still belonged to Wager, at least so far as his creditors
were concerned.

2, That if no inventory was taken of the goods, and there was no
agreement between Wager and Phifer as to the value or price] then there
was no sale to Phifer, sufficient to pass the title and right of the posses-
sion to him, and certainly not, as against the creditors of Wager, of the
sheriff who seized them under executions against Wager.

3. Even if the jury believe the testimony of Crowell and Phifer, no
title or right of possession to the property in dispute passed to the plain-
tiff by the transaction at the store of Wager.

4. That if, under the instructions of the court, the jury shall find the
‘morigage of Wager to Crowell to be void, and shall further find that the
goods were taken by Phifer by virtue of, and under the said mortgage
and assignment thereof to him, or that the goods were delivered to the
plaintiff, as the assignee of the mortgage, and not simply and solely to
pay the debt, without regard to the mortgage, the plaintiff cannot
recover, provided the defendant’s intestate seized the goods under judg-
ments, and executions issued thereon against Wager for his debts, as
testified to. |

5. That if Wager, from and after the time the mortgage was given to
Crowell, continued in possession of the property mortgaged, by or with
permission or consent of Crowell, dealing with and selling the same in
the usual course of business, and appropriating the proceeds. to his own

use, and with the understanding and agreement, that he should so
(67) deal with them, and the said Wager was insolvent, then the mort-
' gage, as to his creditors, would be void.

6. That if the jury should find that if, at the time Crowell made the
assignment to the plaintiff, he was 1nsolvent or had no other property,

- subject to the payment of his debts, but that conveyed in the assignment,
and retained possession of any of the property with Phifer’s consent,
and in pursuance of a prior understanding to that effect, it is void, and
passed no title or right of possession to Phifer to the debt of Wager due
Crowell, and the mortgage made is to secure it or the property in dis-
pute. ‘
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- 7. That there is a presumption of law that Phifer took the goods
under and by virtue of the mortgage from Wager to Crowell.

8, That there is the same presumption of fact.

9. That the possession of Wager of the goods in dispute is construe-
tive notice to plaintiff of the fraund.

10. That if the property in dlspute was placed in possession of the
plaintiff as a pledge, then the pledge is void by reason of uncertainty,
no time being fixed for the dispossession of the property pledged.

11. That if, at the time the mortgage of Wager to Crowell was exe-
cuted, Wager was insolvent and indebted, and it was understood and
agreed that he, Wager, should remain in poésession of the property and
use it as his own, selling it and approprlatmg the proceeds of sales to his
own use, and Wager did remain in possession, as testified, the said mort-
gage was fraudulent and void as to the creditors of Wager, and the de-
fendant, or the creditors in the executions; and if the jury find further
that Phifer took the goods from Wager as mortgagee, then he did not
acquire a good title, as against defendant’s intestate, and they will
respond to the first issue, “No.”

12, That if it was understood and agreed that Crowell should remain
in possession of the property conveyed by the assignment, and he did
remain in possession, and Crowell was insolvent at the time the
assignment was made, the assigninent would be void, and they (68)
will respond to the first issue, “No.”. :

13. That if it was agreed that Wager should dehver and surrender,
and Wager did deliver and surrender the property to Phifer under the
mortgage, because of Phifer’s right of possession as mortgagee and the
power of sale given to him.(Phifer), in order that he might sell and
discharge the debt to the value of the goods, the jury will find that
Wager delivered the goods to Phifer as mortgagee, and that Phifer took
them as mortgagee.

14. That if Phifer knew of the contents of the mortgage to Crowell at
the time he took hig assignment, and that Wager was in possession of the
property, using it as his own, and that Wager was insolvent, the law
raises a presumption that he had notice of the fraudulent character of
the mortgage, and the jury will find that he had such notice, if they
find the mortgage was fraudulent,

15. That from a knowledge of the facts stated in the last instruction,
the law raises a presumption, that Phifer made due inquiry into the
character of the transaction, and had notice of such facts as that inquiry
would have disclosed.

16. That the registration of the mortgage to Crowell was notice to
Phifer, as to its contents, at the time he took the assignment.
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17. That if it was understood between Phifer and Crowell at the time
the assignment was made, that Crowell should remain in possession of
the land conveyed in the assignment and use it as his own, receiving and
enjoying the rents and profits thereof, and he did so remain in possession,
in pursuance of said assignment, the assignment would be void as to the
- creditors of Crowell and the defendant’s intestate who held and levied
under executions as testified, and the plaintiff acquired no right or title
or right of possession to the property described in the complaint, by
virtue of said assignment.

His Homnor instructed the jury as follows:

(69)  This was an action brought by the plaintiff against M. E.

Alexander, now deceased, to recover damages for the taking and
conversion, as it is called, of a certain stock of goods, which, it is alleged, .
he seized and converted. The plaintiff says Mr. Wager, in December,
1882, made a mortgage to one Crowell of a certain stock of goods at
Matthews, to secure the payment of a $1,900 note, due 25 February,
1883, and that Crowell assigned, among other things, this note and
mortgage to plaintiff, in October, 1883, and that, by this assignment,
the plaintiff became the legal owner of the stock of goods, and that
Alexander took those goods out of the possession of the plaintiff, and
plaintiff demands a Judgment for the value of said goods and damages
for the taking and conversion.

The defendant, as administrator, answers, that defendant Alexander-
was sheriff of Mecklenburg County, and had execution in his hands, and,
by his deputy, levied upon, seized and sold the goods as the property of
Wager; he says that the alleged mortgage from Wager to Crowell was
fraudulent and void; and therefore the assignment from Crowell to
Phifer of this mortgage, and the note by which it was attempted to be
secured, did not pass anything to Phifer. And the first issue submitted
to you, “is the plaintiff the owner of the goods?” ete., involves in it these
important questions, concerning the validity of the mortgage from
Wager to Crowell. Upon the face of the mortgage there is nothing to
indicate fraud; so you must look further to see whether the mortgage
from Wager to Orowell was in fraud of the creditors of Wager. Now
the burden being on the defendant, if he has satisfied you, by a prepon-
derance of evidence, that, at the time the mortgage from Wager to
Crowell was executed, Wager was insolvent, and indebted to other per-

sons than Crowell, and that it was understood and agreed between
(70) Wager and Crowell that he, Wager, should remain in possession
of the property conveyed by the mortgage, and use it as his own,
selhng it and appropmatmg the proceeds to his own use, and Wager did
remain in possession, as testified, then the mortgage was fraudulent and
void as to the creditors of Wager and the defendant, or the creditors in
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the execution; and if the jury find further, that the plaintiff took the
goods from Wager as mortgagee, then he did not acquire a good title as
against defendant’s intestate, and the response to the first issue should
be “No.” The fact, as proven, that the mortgage was made to secure, in
large part, an indebtedness incurred at the time of the execution of the
mortgage, cannot affect the principle of the law, which is applicable to
this case, that when one mortgages a stock of goods to secure a debt, and
is permitted to remain in possesion of this stock, and use the same as his
own, and sell and replenish the stock, and deal as in ordinary course of
business one deals with his own property, the transaction is fraudulent
and void as to the creditors of the mortgagor; that is, while it may be
good between the parties themselves, yet, as to the creditors of the mort-
gagor, the transaction cannot be allowed te stand to their prejudice.
Whether there was an actual intent to defraud, makes no difference, for
the law holds that the effect of such delivery is to hinder and delay credi-
tors of the mortgagor. So that, if Phifer took the stock of goods because
he was the assignee of Crowell, and therefore stood as the mortgagee
himself, and for the purpose of appropriating them as directed by the
mortgage, and if you have found that those circumstances were around
the mortgage transaction, which I have told you would make it fraudu-
lent as to creditors, and if Phifer knew of the contents or provisions of
the mortgage to Crowell at the time he took the assignment (and the
registration of the mortgage was notice to him of its provisions), and if
he knew that Wager was in possession of the property, using it

as his own, that he was insolvent and was indebted to others, the (71)
law raised the presumption that he had notice of the fraudulent

character of the transaction, and your response to the first issue should
be “No.” The plaintiff was not the owner of the goods. But if the
testimony brings you to the conclusion that Phifer, being the assignee
of the note, took the goods from Wager without regard to the mortgage,
and independently thereof, in payment of the note, the debtor, Wager,
would have the right to pay the note, even though he owed other debts,
and to deliver up the goods in payment, or satisfaction of the said note;
and if this was the transaction between Wager and Phifer, the giving
up of the goods, to be sold and credited upon the note, without regard
to the mortgage, the effect would be to treat the mortgage as if it had
never been, and simply being indebted on the note, to turn over the
goods in payment of the debt as far as they would go, and Phifer did get
a good title to the goods, your answer will be “Yes”; unless you shall
find that the assignment from Crowell to Phifer was fraudulent, upon
the same principle of law as I have explained to you, governing the
mortgage from Wager to Crowell. The placing of notes and accounts in
the hands of Crowell, or the leaving them in his hands for collection, as
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agent of Phifer, or the leaving of the land, described in the assignment,
in the possession of the assignor, he being insolvent, would not, of them-
selves, raise a presumption of fraud in the assignment. Now, if upon
these prineiples, which I have endeavored to explain to you, you have
come to the conclusion that the plaintiff Phifer was not the owner of
the goods, and your answer being “No,” you may return your verdict
without troubling yourselves about the other issues; for if he was not
the owner of the goods, the plaintiff has no right of action. " But if you
have come to the conclusion, upon the evidence, that the plaintiff was
the owner of the property described in the complaint, you will respond

to the first issue “Yes,” and your response to the second issue will
(72) follow, as a matter of course, that of the first. If you say “Yes”

to the first, say “Yes” to the second, and proceed to consider the
third and last issue, as to the value of the goods, and there is not a great
deal of testimony on this issue; the largest estimate is'$500 to $550, the
lowest is something like $300. You will consider the testimony, and say
what you think right.

Defendant excepted, and assigns as ground for exception:

1. That his Honor refused to give his prayers for instruction in
several particulars, as shown by the prayers and the charge.

2, That hig Honor erred in that part of his charge in instructing,
relating to the fraudulent character of the assignment to Phifer.

Jury found issues one and two for plaintiff, and assessed his damages
at $350.

Motion by defendant for a mew trial; motion overruled. Judgment
for plaintiff, and appeal by defendant.

Theé charge, in response to the proposition in which are enumerated,
in juxtaposition, the facts which, if found to exist upon the evidence,
involve fraud, and render the mortgage deed void, strongly presents the-
case against the plaintiff claiming under it, and, to say the least, quite
as favorably to the appellant as he could reasonably ask. In portions of
the charge the mortgage is declared void in law, upon certain facts ex-
isting and found by the jury, without any finding of the intent. Thus
it declares, that “when one mortgages a stock of goods to secure a debt,
and is permitted to remain in possession of this stock, and use the same
as his own, and sell and replenish the stock, and deal as in ordinary
course of business onie deals with his own property, the transaction is

“fraudulent and void, as to creditors,” etc.; and this, without reference
to the intent with which the deed was made, or the inferences to be
drawn, by the jury, from these subsequent facts, of the intent in making
it, of which those facts are forcible evidence.
(73) To render an instrument frandulent, it must be so in its execu-
tion, the vitiating intent, coexisting in the making; and a fraudu-
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lent use aifterwards made of the property, does not, per se, awoid the

conveyance, but furnishes evidence, very strong, from which the jury

may infer the intent in making the conveyance, and this use may call

for the intervention of the equitable power of the court in behalf of the

creditor. Moore v. Hinnant, 89 N. C., 455; Beasley v. Bray, 98 N. C,,
266.

We refer to this much of the charge as going very far in sustaining
the defendant’s contention, and, in our opinion, invading the preroga-
tives of the jury, in deducing conclusions, as to the intent, from the
subsequent action of the parties, in regard to the use of the property.

The only matter contained in the instructions requested, not responded
to favorably, is, as to what transpired when the goods passed into the
possession of the plaintiff, and its legal effect in passing title, if none
passed under the mortgage.

The jury were advised that if the plaintiff took the goods, without
regard to the mortgage, and independently of it, in part payment of the
note, as understood by both, and it was agreed that the sum to be
credited should be whatever was collected, then the plaintiff would
acquire the title thereto. The evidence pointed strongly to a delivery to
the plaintiff, as assignee of the mortgagee, yet there was some evidence
to support the hypothesis of a disposition of the goods, and to, warrant
the charge, if correct in law, and this brings us to the conmderatmn of .
this ‘point.

The appellants’ counsel insists that, assummg the parties 1ntended a
sale, it was ineffectual to pass the property in the goods, by reason of the
want of a fixed and agreed price. Such was the rule of the civil law,
and Mr. Justice Story, who was most learned in that system of -
jurisprudence, and’an admirer of it, as his valuable works all (74)
show, in the copious illustrations drawn from that source, says:

“It seems to be of the very essence of a sale that there should be a fixed
price for the purchase” Flagg v. Mann, 2 Sum. R., 538,

But the rule, established by repeated adjudications, is not so rigorous,
and the price may be left to be fixed afterwards, by reference to market
value, or by a designated person, or in any other way in which it may
be ascertained with certainty, and then the sale is effectual, and the
price determined; and especially is this so, when the thing is delivered
to the purchaser. ' If nothing is said at the sale and delivery, the sum
to be paid is what the goods are reasonably worth. 2 Benj. Sales, 102,
4 Am. Ed,, in two volumes. It is only necessary to refer to a definite
standard, that the price may be made certain. 1 Parson Cont., 459.

The only material matter to give efféct to a sale, and the transfer of
title, is to provide in the contract a definite and sure mearns of arriving
at the sum to be paid, and when this is ascertained, it is the same as if it
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had been deﬁnitely agreed upon at the time of the sale, and the vesting
of the property is referable to that time.

Tt is otherwise if the price is left open for future adjustment between
the parties, with no agreement, binding on each, as to how the price is to
be ascertained, and what it shall be.

These principles are settled by Mr. Benjamin in chapter 5 of the
2d volume of his excellent work, and in the valuable notes contributed
thereto. Wittkowsky v. Wasson, 71 N. C., 451; Mallory v. Jordan, 12
Ired., 79; De“vmw v. Fennell, 2 Ired., 36; Mm'gan v, Perkins, 1 Jones,
171,

It must be declared that there is no error, and the judgment is

affirmed. ‘
No error. _ Affirmed.

Cited: Bobbitt v. Rodwell, 105 N. C., 245; Booth v. Carstarphen, 107
N. C,, 401, 402; Barber v. Buffaloe, 111 N. C., 213; Autry v. Floyd,
127 N. C., 188; McArthur v. Mathis, 133 N. C., 143; Sanford v.
Eubanks, 152 N. C., 700; Smathers v. Hotel Co., 167 N. C., 474; Chilton
v. Groome, 168 N, C., 641; Little . Fleishman, 177 N. C., 25; Williams
-v. Bailey, ibid., 37; 8. v. Biggs, 181 N. C., 550.

(75)

J. 8. RAMSEY anp W. R. MAXWELL v. DAVID WALLACE AND
'~ AMELIA WALLACE, His WIrE,

Sale of Lond—Fraudulent REepresentations—Negligence of Purchaser— '
' Measure of Damages on Warranty of Title.

1. Where an issue was submitted, whether the defendant, in order to induce
" the plaintiff to buy a certain town lot, falsely and fraudulently repre-
gsented that the boundary began at-a certain point and ran so as to in-
clude a strip of land, which was not, in fact, included, a charge to the
jury that, if the defendant, at the time of sale, or pending the negotiations
which led to it, represented that the boundary began as plaintiff alleged,
and that said representation was false, and the defendant knew it to be
false, or had no knowledge whether it was true or false, nor any reason-
able grounds to believe it to be true, or had no honest or well grounded
belief that it was true, they should find for the plaintiff, but if otherwise,
for the defendant, was not liable to exception by the plaintiff.

2. An issue being, whether the plaintiff, relying upon such (fraudulent) repre-
sentation, purchased the lot from the defendant, it was proper to charge
the jury that, if, upon the evidence, they found that plaintiff and defend-
ant agreed for A. B. to settle the boundaries, and he accordingly did
settle them, as contained in the deed, they should find for the defendant.
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3. Where a purchaser is negligent, in cases where he ought to have informed
himgelf of the facts, he will not be heard to say he relied on the vendor’s
representations.

4. 'When the title fails as to part, or all of the land conveyed in a deed,
the bargainee cannot claim as damages, in an action on the warranty
in the deed, more than the purchase money and interest.

Crvin acTIoN, tried before Connor, J., at February Term, 1888, of the
Superior Court of IrepELL County.

The complaint alleges that the plaintiff, desiring to purchase a lot in
the town of Statesville, on which to erect a factory, with the necessary
buildings, in which to carry on the business of manufacturing tobdeco,
and go informing the defendant, entered inte a negotiation for the pur-
chase of that hereinafter mentioned, for which the sum of $500 was
demanded. To induce the purchase, the defendants falsely and
fraudulently represented that the boundary of the lot began at a (76 )
gtake, the middle of the old gate, and so ran as to include a strip
of level land, of the width of eight or ten feet, on the top of the hill,
on the side next to the Baptist church, most of the balance of said lot
being hillside, when, in fact, as the defendants well knew when they made
said representations, the boundary of said lot did not commence at the
middle of the old gate, but eight or ten feet further down the hill, and
did not include the strip of level land, eight or ten feet wide on the side
next to the Baptist church.

4. That afterwards, to wit, on 10 March, 1884, the plaintiffs, relying
on said representations of defendants, and believing that the said lot of
land embraced in its boundaries the said strip of level land, eight or ten
feet wide, on the top of the hill, next to the Baptist church, and would
therefore be suitable for the purpose for which they wanted it, to wit,
the erection of a tobacco factory and appurtenant buildings, purchased
the said lot of land from the defendants, and paid them therefor the
sum of five hundred dollars ($500), and took a deed from defendants in
fee for said land. ‘

5. After said payment and the taking of said deed, plaintiff discov-
ered, for the first time, that the boundaries of said lot of land did not
run go as to include the said strip of level land, eight or ten feet wide, on
the top of the hill next to the Baptist church, but that the said strip,
before the making of plaintiff’s deed, had been conveyed by defendants
in fee to another person.

6. Plaintiffs have, since their said purchase, erected a tobaceo factory
and appurtenant buildings on said lot-of land, but, owing to plaintiffs
not getting said strip of land, eight or ten feet Wide, on the top of the
hill, riext to the Baptist church, said lot was not suitable for the erection
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of a tobacco factory and appurtenant buildings, by reason of which

plaintiffs have incurred great additional expense in building said

(77 ) tobacco factory and appurtenant buildings, and the same are not .

nearly so commodious, convenient or valuable as they would have

been had they obtained the said strip of level land, which they failed to

get ag aforesaid; by reason of which, and by reason of the loss of said

strip of land, which is the most valuable part of said lot, plaintiffs have
sustained damages to the amount of one thousand dollars.

For the alleged damages the plaintiffs demand judgment for the sum
of one thousand dollars.

The answer, admitting the allegations as to the sale of the lot, denies
every imputation of misrepresentation and fraud, and avers that the
plaintiffs well knew the beginning point to be at the corner of the lot on
Broad street, which was conveyed,.in 1876, to Rev. J. B. Boone, of the

- . Baptist church, by a deed duly registered, and whose calls could be

ascertained by reference to the registry, and that the plaintiffs were not
misled or misinformed, as to its location, by the defendant in any way.

The issues submitted, by consent, to the jury, with responses, are as
follows:

1. Did the defendants, or either of them, if so, which, in order to
induce plaintiffs to buy, falsely and fraudulently represent to the plain-
tiffs that the boundary of the lot in controversy began at a stake in the
middle of the old gate, and so ran as to include a strip of land, eight or
ten feet wide, on the hill, on the side next to the Baptist ghurch?
Answer: No.

2. Did the plaintiffs, relying on said representatlons purchase and
take a deed from the defendants for said lot? Answer: No.

The deed of the defendant to Boone, made in 1876, describes the land
therein conveyed, as “beginning at the intersection of Tradd and Broad
streets, and running along Tradd street N. 24° W., 14814 poles, to Davie

avenue; thence with said Avenue N. 2914° E., 132 feet; thence
(78 ) 8. 29° E,, 203 feet, to Broad street; thence S. 66° W., 134 feet,

to the beginning.” A portion of this lot was subsequently sold to
the witness John B. Holman.

The deed to the plaintiffs defines the lot conveyed to them, as follows:
“Adjoining the lands of David Wallace and others, and beginning at
o stake in the middle of the old gate, and corner of Baptist church lot on
Broad street, in the town of Statesville, and runs with said street N. 66°
E., 1387 feet; to David Wallace’s corner; thence N. 24° W., 100 feet;
thence S 66° W., 137 feet, to the said church lot; thence with the same
24° E., 100 feet, to the beginning, containing one-fourth of an acre,
more or less.” There is évidently an omission in not ingerting S. before
“24° E.,” in the last line, as this is necessary to make an enclosure.
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It is hardly necessary to recapitulate the testimony in detail, in refer-
ence to the disputed fact upon which the allegations of fraud and false
representations are dependent, further than to refer to that of G. W.
Clegg, a witness for the defendant, whose statement of what occurred
when the deed was prepared, and preliminary to its being made, is in
some degree explanatory of the misunderstanding between the parties.

He says: “I am a surveyor, and run the lines described in the deed
from the defendants to plaintiffs; there was some sign of an old gate on
Broad street; the center of the gate was the dividing line between the
Baptist church lot and Ramsey & Maxwell; T measured from the corner -
of Tradd street, as it now is, to the center of the old gate; it made 132
or 133 feet; we allowed 56 feet for the width of Tradd street; if the
street is 66 wide, there would be a difference of ten feet. Tradd street
was formerly narrower than now; it has broadened in the last fifteen
years; if the measurement had been made as the street was at the date
of-the deed to Boone, the 134 feet on Broad street, the Baptist church
lot on Broad street, including Holman’s lot, would not have
reached the middle of the old gate. When I went to survey, Mr. (79 )
Ramsey and Mr. Wallace went with me; I was selécted by them to
get the boundaries of the lot from said defendants to the plaintiffs; there
was something said, when we were all there, as to where the corner of
the Baptist church lot was; I said that, by calling for the corner of the
Baptist church lot, and by beginning and ealling for the corner of the
Baptist church lot, all further difficulty as to the location of the begin-
ning point would be obviated. This, as I understood it, was agreed
upon by both parties, and I made out the boundaries accordingly. I
gave D, Wallace a copy; he drew the deed.”

From this testimony it would seem that, by reason of the widening of
Tradd stréet, the position of the beginning corner of the lot conveyed to
Boone, on that street, had been rendered uncertain, and to aveid diffi-
culty, it was concluded to so déseribe the plaintiffs’ lot, as that it would
begin at that corner, wherever its true location might be, and this was
agreed on by both parties to the contract. Aside from all this, the
verdict negatives the charge that the defendants, to induce the purchase,
represented the beginning to be at the gate, and the line to so run as to
include an additional narrow strip of land eight or ten feet wide, or that
the plaintiff relied upon such in accepting the deed for the premises. Our
inquiry, then, is whether there is any error in the refusal of the court to
give the instructions asked for by the plaintiffs, or in those given instead,
which are the subject of exception? It was conceded that the feme de-
fendant executed the deed only to bar her contingent right of dower in
the premises, in case of her survivorship, and had no knowledge of what
- transpired in connection with the sale.
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The court instructed the jury that, as to her, the plamtlﬁ"s could not

recover, and the plaintiffs excepted.
Plaintiffs’ counsel requested the court to charge the jury:

(80) “That if they found that the déefendants, at and before the

purchase, represented to plaintiffs that the middle of the old gate
was the. beginning corner of the lot purchased, and plaintiffs believed
such representation, and relied upon it, and were induced thereby to
make the purchase, and the jury find that said representation was false
in fact, and that, by reason of its falsity, plaintiffs have suffered damage,
plaintiffs are entitled to recover on the first issue, although defendant
did not know, when he so made such representation to plaintiffs, that it
was false.”

The court declined to give the instruction as requested, and plaintiffs
-excepted.

The pla1nt1ffs counsel requested the court to instruct the jury:

“That if the jury find that, when defendant conveyed away the ldnd
adjoining the land sold to plaintiﬂs, he was present, and directed the
line to be run between the land so conveyed to Boone and the land sold
to plaintiffs, so as to strike Broad street below the middle of the old
gate, seven or eight feet further down on the Iot purchased by plaintiffs
than the middle of said gate, and they further find that the defendant
said the line so ran, and directed a deed, from him to Boone, to be made
in accordance with this line, and the deed to Boone was so made, that
this fixes the defendant with actual notice—knowledge of the location
of the line between the lot sold to Boone and the lot sold to plaintiffs;
and although the jury should believe that, at the time he made the repre-
sentation to plaintiffs, if he did make it, and it was false in fact, he had
forgotten these facts, and forgotten where the line was, such forgetful-
ness of defendant would not prevent plaintiffs’ right to recover in this
action, and the jury should find the first issue for the plaintiffs.”

The court declined to give this instruction as prayed, but instructed
the jury that, upon the supposition made, “the burden would be cast

upon the defendant to reconcile such facts with such representa-
( 81) tion, and if he made the same recklessly, and without conmdera-
tion, it would be fraudulent.”

The court proceeded to instruct the jury as follows:

“If, upon the consideration of the whole evidence, the plaintiffs have,
by a preponderance thereof, satisfied you that the defendant, David
Wallace, at the time of the sale or before and during, and as part of the.
negotiations which resulted in the sale, and as an inducement thereto,
represented to the plaintiffs, that ‘the boundary of the lot began at a
stake in the middle of the old gate, and so ran as to include a strip of
land eight or ten feet wide on the hill on the north side next to the
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Baptist church, and that said representation was false, and that the
defendant knew it to be so, or had no knowledge whether it was true or
false, nor any reasonable cause to believe it to be true, or had no honest
or well grounded belief that it was true, that they should find the first

. issue in the affirmative. But if, upon such consideration, you believe the

_ statement was not made, or if made, that it was true; or if untrue, the
defendant honestly believed it to be true, and had reasonable ground to
so believe, then you should find the first in the negative.” The plaintiffs
excepted. .

The court, upon the second issue, instructed the jury:

“That if they found from the evidence that plaintiffs and defendant
agreed for Clegg to settle the boundaries of the lot, and in pursuance
thereof Clegg did make out the boundaries now in the deed, and settle

"them, the jury should answer the second issue in the negative.”

~ Rule for a new trial; rule discharged.
- There was a judgment upon the findings for the defendants, and the
plaintiffs appealed.

R. F. Armfield for plaintiffs. (82)
J. B. Batchelor for defendant.

Smrrm, C. J. (after stating the case) : We do not see any just ground
of complaint, which the plaintiffs can prefer, either in declining to
charge the jury as requested, or in the statement of the law, in the direc-
tions given them by the judge.

‘What more favorable to the plaintiffs could be asked than an instrue-
tion that, if the defendant, David Wallace, represented at the time of the .
sale, or pending the negotiation that looked to this end, “that the
boundary of the lot” began as plaintiffs alleged, and that said represen-
tation was false, and that the defendant knew it to be false, or had no
knowledge whether it was true or false, nor any reasonable grounds to
believe it to be true, or had no honest or well grounded belief that it
was true,” the verdict on the first issue should be in the affirmative?

And then followed the correlative propostition, in a negative form,
upon which the finding should be for the defendant.

The charge upon the second issue ig equally free from objection.

The cases collected by the industry and care of Mr. Batchelor, of the
rulings in this State, are so clear and decisive of the law, as to leave
little to do, except to make reference to them. Tilghman v. West,
8 Ired. Eq., 183; Lytle v. Bird, 8 Jones, 222; Credle v. Swindell, 63
N. C,, 805; Etheridge v. Vernoy, 70 N. C,, 718; Etheridge v. Palin, 72
N. O, 213; Hill v. Brower, 76 N. C., 1245 Knight v. Haughtalling, 85
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N. Q, 17; Cohen v. Stewart, 98 N. O, 97. Several of these cases go
further, and require that the vendee shall not be culpably negligent, in
cases where he ought to have informed himself of facts, and allege, that

.- he relied upon the vendor’s representations.

(83): 1In Etheridge v. Palin, supra, which related to a sale.of per-
. sonal property, the jury found, that the vendor’s representations
were in fact untrue, and that the plaintiff relied upon them, and yet as
they were not embodied in the contract it was held that the plaintiff
could not recover, while the rule was admitted, that “where a party
affirmed as a fact a matter which turns out not to ‘be true, it makes no
difference whether he knows it to be untrue or not.” :

The complaint makes the necessary averments of false and fraudulent
representations, as the inducement that brought about the contract, and ’
the damage alleged to result from it.

There was no inquiry as to the amount of the damages, and it is dis-
pensed with by the verdict; yet we notice that a sum is demanded twice
the amount of the purchase money; so that, while a total failure of title
in an action upon a warranty in the deed would only admit of a recovery
of the purchase money and interest, the loss of a very narrow strip is
to be compensated by a recovery of double the purchase money, accord-
ing to the plaintiff’s demand.

There is no error, and the judgment is aﬁirmed

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: May v. Loomis, 140 N. C., 856; Whitehurst v. Insurance Co.,
149 N. G, 276; Machine Co. v. Feezer, 152 N. C., 520; Unitype Co. v
Asheraft, 155 N. C., 67;.Machine Co. v. Bullock, 161 N. C,, 16; Bell v.
Harrison, 179 N. O 195; Bank v. Yelverton, 185 N. C,, 319 Oov'ley,
Co. v. Griggs, 192 N a, 173

THE SINGER MANUFACTURING C:OMPANY v. M. N. WILLIAMSON.
Report of Referee—Ewceptions to Beport.

A report of a referee having been filed, and the parties allowed time for ex-

. ceptions, a party who has not filed exceptions within the time, has no
right to take the objection, by motion for a recommital, that the evidence
was not filed with the report, and the referee did not report the facts
upon which he based his conclusions of law; though the court might in
its discretion, allow him to except for sufficient cause shown.
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Civin sotioN, heard before Gilmer, J., at November Term, (84)
1887, of the Superior Court of Forsyr Oounty

The facts sufficiently appear in the opinion.

In the course of the action the court directed a compulsory reference
to take and state an account, ete.

The referee, while proceedmg in some respects to act upon the mat-
ters referred to him, declined to pass upon the question of the liability
of the defendant, in a certain respect specified by him, and as to this he
recommended the submission of an issue to a jury.

Thereupon, the court directed that the case be rereferred to a second
referee, and, from the evidence taken by the first one, to report, whether
the defendant ‘““is responsible to the plaintiff for the acts and defaults of
" canvassers working under him.” The second referee afterwards simply

made report that the defendant was responsible to the plaintiff “for the
acts and defaults of canvassers working under him”; he did not report
the evidence before him, nor his findings of fact from the same. '
The second referee having filed his report, “the court granted leave to
both parties to file exceptions within sixty days”; within that time, the
plaintiff filed exceptions to the report of the first referee, Buxton. The
defendant filed no exceptions to either report.
When the case was called for hearing, at November Term, 1887, all
the exceptions filed to referee Buxton’s report were either disallowed or -
‘Withdrawn, and -the defendant filed a written motion to recommit the
question of liability of defendant for the default of canvassers, “to the
end that the referee may report the facts upon which he bases his con-
clusions of law, so that the court may be able to review his findings.”
The court denied this motion, and the appellant assigns this denial
a8 error. :
There was judgment for the plaintiff, and the defendant ap-
pealed to this Court. (85)

No counsel for plaintiff.
R. B. Glenn and J. C. Buxton for defendant.

Mzrrivmox, J. The report complained of was not void, and on that
account it was necessary to recommit it; on the contrary, it efficiently
served the purpose of the reference, and was sufficient in the absence of
objection taken to it, by exception, in apt time. When the objection, in
@ case like this, is that the evidence is not reported, or the facts are not
specifically found, the objection must be taken by exception, in which the
- ground of it must be set out with reasonable certainty, so that the op-
posing ‘party can have just opportunity to controvert it, and the court
can see what the objection is—its nature and extent.
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The court allowed the parties sixty days, after the report was filed,
within which to except to it. This was ample time for the purpose.
The defendant did not do so within that time, or at all. As he did not,
the reasonable inference was, that he was satisfied with it. He was bound
to be diligent; he could not be allowed to wait until the case was called
for hearing, and then interpose objections, by motion, that he had ample
opportunity to make, in apt time, by proper exceptions.

If, for some possible reason he could not have excepted, when regu-
larly he should have done so, the court might, in its discretion, still have
allowed him to except, but the exercise of such discretion is not review-
able here. It is not sufficient, that a party has ground of objection—he
must avail himself of it, at the proper time, and in the proper way.

‘Any other course would give rise to injustice and confusion. §. v.
(86) Peebles, 67 N, C., 97; University o, Lassiter, 83 N. C., 88; Long
#. Logom, 86 N. C., 533.
There is no error, and the judgment must be affirmed.
Judgment affirmed. :

Cited: Coleman v. McCullough, 190 N. C.,, 593,

R. C. PEARSON AND ANOTHER v. STONEWALL J. POWELL.

Entry and Grant—Entry-taker—Constructive Noice.

1. Plaintiff made an entry on the books of the entry-taker, and in his presence,
but without his authority: Held, that such entry was void, and, being
void, was not constructive notice to one who subsequently entered the
land and procured a grant therefor according to law.

2. The statute does not authorize an entry-taker to appoint a deputy.

Crvin aorrow, for the recovery of land, tried before Montgomery, J.,
at Fall Term, 1886, of Burkz Superior Court, ‘

The plaintiffs claim title under a grant from the State, dated 4 Sep-
tember, 1882, issued upon an alleged entry, made 10 January, 1880, and
a survey, made 10 February, 1882, of Wh1ch entry, they allege the de-
fendant had notice.

The defendant claims under a grant from the State, issued 31 March,
1881, in pursuance of an entry, made 29 October, 1881, and denies the.
alleged entry of the plaintiffs, or that he had any knowledge of it/

The following is the case on appeal:
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- “The following i issue, by consent of counsel of plaintiffs and defendant,
was submitted to the jury, as the only one material to be submitted to
the jury, to wit:

“Did defendant take his State grant with knowledge or notice,
at the time, that the plaintiffs had an entry on the same land ¢’ ( 87)

The plaintiffs introduced one Harbison, as a witness, who
swore that he was entry-taker for Burke County on 10 January, 1880,
and that he found on the books in the office of the register of deeds for :
said county, the following, to wit:

“No. 1728. Dr. R. C. Pearson enters and locates fifty acres of land
lymg in Burke County, on or near the headwaters of Sandy Run, ad-
joining lands of Monroe Mull, Calvin and John Mosteller and George
Fullbright and others, and,runmng various courses and distances so as
to include vacant lands.”

The witness further testified that the above entry on the books was not
in his handwriting; that he believed it to be in the handwriting of Dr.
Pearson, and that he, witness, has no knowledge of how or when the
said entry was'made on his books; that he never deputized or authorized
any one to take entries.

Dr. R, C. Pearson was introduced for plamtlffs, who swore that he
made that writing on the books, in the presence of the said Harbison, in
the register’s office. Witness further‘ swore that he made it because he
thought there was some vacant land; that he never made any entry or
any other paper, but that all that was done, or written, was the writing
above stated on the books. ,
 The witness further swore that he, as claimant, never had or produced
to the entry-taker any writing signed by himself, setting forth where the
land was situate, etc., as required by Act of Assembly, and that all he
did was to write; in the books, the entry above stated.

There was evidence tending to locate the entry. Plaintiffs closed their
case, when the court intimated that plaintiffs were not entitled to re-
cover, in submission to which plaintiffs submitted to a nonsuit. Judg-
ment against plaintiffs for costs. ‘ ‘ '

Appeal prayed by plaintiffs. Notice waived. Appeal bond ( 88)
fixed at fifty dollars.” ’ '

C. H. Armfield for plaintiffs:
w. 8. Pewrson (by brief) for defendant.

Davis, J. (after stating the facts): Section 2756 of The Code directs
the manner in which the entry-takers shall be elected, and the following
section provides that, in cases of vacancies, the register of deeds shall
discharge the duties of entry-taker.
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The entry-taker is required to give bond for the faithful discharge of
hig duties, and to take an oath of office. His duties are clearly defined.
Section 2765 prescribes the manner in which entries and grants shall be
made and issued. By reference to that section it will be seen that none
of its provisions have been complied with by the plaintiffs.

' The alleged entry was not made by the entry-taker, and the statute
does not authorize him to appoint a deputy, and if it did, the evidence
shows that the. plaintiff was not authorized to take or make the entry.
It is true that the plaintiff testifies “that he made the writing on the
bocks, in the presence of the said Harbison, in the register’s office,” but
he does not say that it was anthorized by the entry-taker, and Harbison
testifies “that he never deputed or authorized any one to take entries.”

The case of Maxwell v. Wallace, 3 Ired. Eq., 593, ¢ited by counsel for
the defendant, is decisive of this case. There the claimant went to the
entry-taker, and the entry-taker being absent, he applied to his wife to
take and make the entry, which she did, but the writing was not signed
by the claimant, and was not left with the wife, but wag carried away
by him.

It was proved by the entry- taker himself that his wife had often
taken entries, and that he had authorized her, in his absence, to enter

them on his books. Nash, J., speaking fo‘r the Court, said: “The
( 89) plaintiff’s claim rests upon the assumed fact that he made an

entry before the defendant, as required by law, and upon it pro-
cured a grant for the land to issue to himself, and that the defendant,
with a knowledge of his priority, made an entry of the same land. As
he has never made an entry, such as the law required, his equity has
never arisen.”

In the case before us, the plaintiff-“has never made an entry, such as
the law requires,” and the entry found on the books, in the office of the
register of deeds, was unauthorized and of no validity whatever. Not
being a proper entry, it was not constructive notice, and there was no
evidence of actual notice, and if thefe had been, the authority of
Mazwell v. Wallace, supra, to the reasonlng in wh1ch we refer, seems
conclusive against the plaintiff.

There 1s no error. Affirmed.

Cited: Brem v. Houck, 101 N. C., 629,
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LYDIA A, JANE M. anp MARGARET STIKELEATHER v. WILLIAM
STIKELEATHER.

Construction of Will—Jurisdiction of Justice of the Peace.

A testator’s will contained the following provigion: “If is my will, and I
direct, that my real estate and personal property be kept together for
the use and benefit of my four daughters (naming them) as long as
they, or any two of them, will remain together,” and three of them (one
having died), the year after testator’s death, lived and raised on the land
devised a bale of cotton, which the executor took and sold: Held, that
they were entitled to recover, and that a justice of the peace had juris-
diction of the action.

Civin Action, heard before Clark, J., at November Term, 1887, (190 )
of Irepeir Superior Court, on appeal from a justiee of the peace.

It appears that Nlcholas Stikeleather died in 18835, leavmg a last
will and testament, which was duly proven.

The following is a copy of so much thereof as is necessary to set
forth here: .

Ttem 3d. It is my will, and I direct, that my real estate and personal
property be kept together for the use and benefit of my four daughters,
Susan Stikeleather, Jane Malinda Stikeleather, Margaret E. Stike-
leather, and Lydia A. Stikeleather, as long as they, or any two of them,
will remain together; and in the event that my four daughters, afore-
mentioned in this item of my will, or any of them, fail to agree or
remain together, then 1 give and devise all my real estate and personal
property to my children above.

The defendant qualified as executor of the will.

The following is a copy of the case agreed, submitted to the court, the
action having been commenced before a justice of the peace, and brought,
by appeal, to the Superior Court, and a jury trial being waived.

Tt is agreed that the plaintiffs raised and picked out the bale of
cotton in controversy, on the farm on which they now live, the same
being the tract of land which belonged to Nicholas Stikeleather at the
time of his death, and being the real estate described in said will.

It is agreed that plaintiffs took the cotton to the gin, the defendant
having told their hired man to take it there, and that defendant went to
the gin and took the cotton to Statesville and sold it for 8 45/100 cents
per pound, there being 434 pounds of the cotton; ten cents off for
weighing.

Plaintiffs are the only surviving daughters of Nicholas Stikeleather,
Susan being dead, and they lived on the land deseribed ever since hls
death, which was in 1885. The bale of cotton sued for was raised in
1886.
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(91) It is agreed, that if, upon the above facts, the justice should
believe that the cotton belongs to plaintiffs, he is to give judgment
in their favor for the price of the cotton and the costs; if he thinks it
does not belong to plaintiffs, he is to give Judgmen’c in favor of the de-
fendant for cost.
The court gave judgment for the plaintiffs, and the defendant ap-
pealed. to this Court.

R. F. Armfield for plaintiffs.

M. L. McCorkle (by brief) for defendant.

Merrivor, J. (after stating the case) : It seems to us very plain that
the testator intended, by the clause of his will above recited, that his
daughters should have the “use and benefit” of his land while they, or
any two of them, should live together upon it—that is, that they should
have the right to live upon, use and cultivate it, or have it cultivated,
for their own exclusive benefit. There is nothing in the will that even
suggests the contrary.

The plaintiffs are the three surviving daughters; they have lived upon
the land together ever since the testator’s death, and upon it they pro-
duced the cotton in question the year next after his death. TIt, so far as
appears, was theirs absolutely. The defendant had no right to it what-
ever, for any purpose; nevertheless, he took and sold it for his own use.
Obviously, the plaintiffs were entitled to recover.

The counsel for the appellant contended, on the argument, that the
clause of the will mentioned, ereated a trust in favor of the plaintiffs,
and inasmuch as a justice of the peace has not authority, ordinarily, to
administer trusts, theréfore he did not have jurisdiction of this action.
This contention is unfounded. Neither the executor nor any other per-
son is directed by the will to take charge of, supervise and control the
property, collect the rents and pay the same to the daughters—no such

' provision appears in terms or by implication. Indeed, it seems

(92 ) that the purpose of the testator was to provide a home for his

daughters, and a means for their support; they were to have the

use and benefit of the land; it was not intended that a trustee should let

the land and hire the personal property, first to one person and after-
wards to another, and account for the rents and hires.

No error. Judgment affirmed.
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BrowN v. COMMISSIONERS.

W. T. BROWN, ON BEHALF oF HIMSELF AND ALL OTHER TAXPAYERS, ETC., V.
THE COMMISSIONERS OF HERTFORD.

Municipal Corporations—Townships—Township Bonds—Consti-
tution—County Revenué Subject to Legislativa Control.

1. Townships are within the power and control of the General Assembly, just
as are counties, cities, towns, and other municipal corporations. It may
confer upon them, or any single one of them, corporate powers, with the
view to ‘accomplish any lawful purpose. Such powers may be conferred
for a single purpose as well as many. Semble, the people of loecalities
may be incorporated into road districts, school districts and the like.

2. The General Assembly may empower a township, with the sanction of its
qualified voters, to aid in the construction of a railroad by levying taxes
and contracting a debt to raise money for that purpose.

3. The mere fact that other neighborhoods will derive incidental advantages
from such action on the part of the township, is no objection to legisla-
tion of this kind.

4. An act of Assembly directing that the county taxes, which might be levied
upon the property and franchise of a railroad company in a certain
township, should be applied, as far as necessary, to the payment of the
interest on bonds issued by such township in aid of the railroad, is
constitutional.

5. The General Assembly may direct how the ordinary county revenue shall
be applied. It may direct that the revenue arising from a specified source
shall be applied to a particular object.

Crvir, acrioN, tried before vaes, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of (93)
Hzrrrorn Superior Court.
The facts appear in the opinion.

Geo. Cowper and Pruden & Vann (by brief) for plaintiffs.
R. B. Winborne and B. C. Smith for defendants.

Mgerrrmon, J. This is a controversy, submitted to the court below
without action, as allowed by the statute (The Code, secs. 567-569). The
plaintiffs are taxpayers of Murfreesboro Township, in the county of
Hertford, and the defendants are the commissioners of that county.

The statute (Acts 1887, ch. 365) incorporates The Murfreesboro Rail-
road Company, and sections fourteen and thlrty—one thereof prov1de as
follows: :

Sec. 14. “That Murfreesborough Township, in Hertford County, and
Town of Murfreesboro, in said county, may subscribe to the capital
stock of The Murfreesboro Railroad Company, or make donations to
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said company, to be secured by the bonds of said Township, or said’
town, as the case may be, bearing six per cenfum interest, as hereafter
provided, subject to the approval of the qualified voters of said Town-
ship or said town.”

Sec. 81. “When any townshlp shall subscribe its bonds to the capltal
stock of said railroad company, or donate the same, as provided in this
act, the county taxes, which shall be levied and collected upon the prop-
erty and franchise of said company in said township, shall be applied
in payment of the interest on the said bonds, to the amount of said
interest, so long as the same shall accerue, and the excess of said taxes, if
any, shall be applied to general county purposes; that when the said

interest shall cease to accrue, by reason of the payment of said
(94) bonds, the said taxes shall be applied to general county pur-
poses.”

Of the numerous questions raised, and submitted to the court below,
the following are the material ones as to which error is assigned :

“l. Has the General Assembly the constitutional power to authorize
a township to vote its bonds to aid in building a railroad, running partly
through said townshlp, into an adjoining county?

2. Has it the power to direct the application of the taxes levied and
collected on the property and franchise of said company, within said
township, to the use of the township, as provided for in section 31 of
said act; if not, does that provision render the whole act unconstitu-
tional,”

As to these questions the court decided :

“l. That the Legislature has not the power under section 4, Article
VII, of the Constitution, to authorize the issuing of the bonds, and the
levying of the tax, provided for in chapter 365, Laws of North Carolina,
session 1887; nor was the power of the Legislature enlarged so as to
authorize the same by section 14, Article VII, of the Constitution, as to
a particular township.

2. That the Legislature had not the power, under the Consututlon
to direct the general tax levied upon the property of the said railroad,
or to be levied to be applied to the purpose named in section 81 of the
act; but this section does not render the whole act unconstitutional, nor
prevent the collection of the tax upon the property of the said rallroad
and its application to general county purposes.”

The appellants contend that these rulings are erroneous.

The court gave judgment that the defendants be enjoined perpetually
against subscribing for the capital stock of the company named, and
likewise against issuing the bonds of the township named, to pay for
such stock, ete., and for costs.
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The defendants, having excepted, appealed to this Court.

Several of the questions raised by the case agreed upon by the
parties and submitted to the court, involving the regularity and ( 95)
sufficiency of the order of the county commissioners, directing an
election to be held, and the conduct of it, to ascertain the voice of the
electors of the township, in respect to the proposed subscription for
capital stock of the railroad company named, were decided adversely to
the appellee. As he did not appeal, these questions are not. before us
for our consideration, and hence, we express no opinion in respect to
them, except so far as they may be incidentally affected by the questions
we are called upon to* decide. Indeed, they might, very properly, have
been omitted from the transeript of the record on appeal.

The Constitution of this State (Art. VII, secs. 3-4), as it prevailed
before it was amended in 1877, and as amended, provided that the county
commisgioners of every county in the State should divide the same into
convenient: districts, determine the boundaries thereof, and preseribe a
name for each. It further provided that when this was done, and report
thereof was made to and approved by the General Assembly, that then
“the said districts shall have corporate powers for the necessary purposes
of local government, and shall be known as townships.”

Thus townships were established in every county invested with cor-
porate powers.

But an amendment of the Constitution provided, as to that article
including the sections thereof cited (sec. 14 thereof), that “the General
Assembly shall have full power, by statute, to modify, change, or abro-
gate any and all of the provisions of this article, and substitute others
in their place, except sections seven, nine, and thirteen.”

The Legislature, in the exercise of the power thus conferred upon it,
enacted (Acts 1876-77, ch. 141, see. 7), that “All the provisions of
Article VII of the Constitution, inconsistent with this act, except those
contained in sections seven, nine and thirteen, are hereby abro-
gated, and the provisions of this act substituted in their place; ( 96)
subject, however, to the power of the General Assembly to alter,
amend, or abrogate the provisions of this act, and to substitute others in
their stead, as provided for in section fourteen of Article VII of the
Constitution.” It further enacted, in the same statute, as follows:
“Sec. 3. The townships heretofore created, or hereafter established, shall
be distinguished by well defined boundaries, and may be altered, and
additional townships created, by the board of county commissioners, but
no township shall have, or exercise, any corporate powers whatever,
unless allowed by act of General Assembly, to be exercised under the
supervision of the board of county commissioners.”

4—100 97
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The counsel for the appellee contended, on the argument before us,
that the statute last cited abolished the provisions of the Constitution
cited in respect to townships, and wholly deprived them of corporate
powers and authority, and that the General Assembly has not power
now to confer upon them such corporate powers, and particularly such
powers for a single purpose, as for the purpose of subseribing for the
capital stock of a railroad company, as in this case, and create a town-
ship debt, secured by bonds, to be put upon the markets to pay for such
stock.

The view thus insisted upon is, we think, clearly untenable. It will
be observed that the provision of the Constitution, conferring power
upon the General Assembly in respect to Article VIII thereof, is clear,
distinet and comprehensive; it confers full power to modify, change or
abrogate its provisions, except as to those sections specified, and to sub-
stetute olhers in their stead.

This does not imply that the General Assembly shall exercise the
power thus conferred, but once, and never afterwards. The effect of
such an interpretation would be to give the act of the Legislature as

much permanency and unchangeable effect, as if it were a consti-
( 97) tutional provision; in that case, the statute could not be changed,

modified or repealed ; and if such was the purpose of the amenders
of the Constitution, they might as well have abolished Article VII
thereof, and substituted one more acceptable for it. The more reason-
able interpretation is, it seems to us, that the purpose was to confer upon.
the General Assembly full power to legislate in respect to the municipal
corporations, provided in the article mentioned, except as to the matters
embraced by sections seven, nine and thirteen thereof; that is, power to
create and abolish them; to amend, modify, or repeal the laws affecting
them, from time to time, as the changing circumstances, the convenience
and common good of the people generally, or in particular sections or
localities may require.

The Legislature, in the statute last cited in the sections above set
forth, cautiously reserved the right and power “to alter, amend, or abro-
gate the provisions of this aet, and to substitute others in their stead,”
and from time to time, in a great variety of Ways such power has been
exercised by it.

Townships are, therefore, within the power and control of the General
Assembly, just as are counties, cities, towns and other municipal cor-
porations. It may confer upon them, or any single one of them, cor-
porate powers, with the view to accomplish any lawful purpose, to
promote the prosperity, safety, convenience, health, and common good
of thé people residing within them, and resorting thither, from time to
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time. " And we can see no good reason why it may not confer such
power for a single purpose, as well as many. There may be enterprises
important to the people of localities—such as townships, road districts,
school districts, and the like—that may be promoted by the exercise of
corporate powers, to a limited extent, by such communities.

It is not necessary to advert here to the nature and extent of
the powers of the Legislature, in creating and eontrolling munieci- ( 98 )
pal corporations. We have had occasion to do so frequently,
within the last two or three years. White v. Commassioners, 90 N. C,,
4375 McCormac v. Commassioners, ibid., 441; Dare County v. Currituck
County, 95 N. C.; 189; Mslls v. Williams, 11 Ired., 358; Caldwell v.
Justice, 4 Jones Eq., 323; Wood v. Ozford, 97 N. C., 227.

We are unable to see any just reason why the people of a township,
through which a railroad is located, shall not, if they see fif, aid in its
construction, by taxing themselves, and creating a debt for the purpose,
when the Legislature provides that they may, just as the people of a
county, city, or town may do, and for the like considerations. It may be
unwise or inexpedient, as a measure of economy, but the taxpayers—
electors—must judge as to that. In important respects, the citizens of a
townghip are an organized community, separate from their neighbors,
and they may derive great and special advantages from a railroad, to be
located and constructed in their midst. The mere fact that other neigh-
borhoods will derive incidental advantages, is no good objection. If so,
it would apply, generally, in the case of such aid extended by counties,
cities and towns.. Wood v. Ozford, 97 N. C., 221.

The objection that the Legislature could not direct the county taxes
levied upon the property and franchise of the railroad company named,
within the township, to be applied to the payment of the interest aceru-
ing upon the bonds to be put upon the market, is unfounded. The sec-
tion of the charter of the company (section 31) complained of, does not,
in any way or respect, interfere with the levy of the taxes referred to;
it only directs the application of the part of the county revenues arising
from the source named, to a particular purpose. There is no provision
of the Constitution that forbids this. The Legislature may direct how
the ordinary county revenues shall be applied within the county for any
lawful purpose. Thus, it might direct that the revenues, arising
from a specified source, should be applied to the debt created in ( 99 )
building a courthouse, a jail, a poorhouse, a public bridge, a
public road, and the like. Counties are instrumentalities of government,
~ and are subject to the control of the Legislature to a great extent, in the
absence of constitutional limitation upon its powers. Holton v. Com-
masstoners, 98 N. (., 430.
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There is, therefore, error. The judgment must be reversed, and judg-
ment entered in the court below for the defendant, as stipulated in the
case agreed upon and submitted to the court. To that end, let this
opinion be certified to the Superior Court, according to law.

Tt is so ordered.

Error. Reversed.

Cited: Jones v. Commissioners, 107 N. C., 265; B. B. v. Commis-
stoners, 108 N. C., 57; Goldsboro v. Broadhurst, 109 N. C., 231; Harris
v. Wright, 121 N, C,, 182; Tate v. Commissioners, 122 N. C., 814; 8. ».
Sharp, 125 N. C., 633; Debnam v. Chitty, 181 N. C., 686; Wittkowsky
v. Commassioners, 150 N. C., 95; Trustees . Webb, 155 N. C., 385;
Newell v. Green, 169 N. C., 464; Cabe v. Board of Aldermen, 185
N. C,, 160.

J. C. HALLIBURTON aAnxp OTHERs, EXeEcUTORS OoF JACOB HARSHAW, v.
JOHN CARSON, Execuror oF GEO. M. CARSON AND OTHERS.
Ezxecutors and Administrators—Evidence, sec. 590—Statute of Limitar
tions and Presumptions—Bonds payable in Coin—Relations be-

tween Personal and Real rapresentatives of Deceased Debtor.

1. An executor, when sued for an account, is entitled to credit for payments
made by him on debts of his testator, although such debts were barred
by the statute of limitations, or were, under the statute of presumptions,
presumed to have been paid at or before the death of the testator. The
law does not require an executor to make his testator “sin in his grave,”
by setting up an unconscientious defense. .

2. Bspecially is the above true, when the testator, shortly before his death,
told the executor that he owed the debts in question, and wished them
paid.

3. In such a case, the testimony of the executor as to the statements of his
testator, that he owed the debts, etc., is not rendered incompetent by
sections 580 and 590 of The Code.

4. An executor, acting under the rule laid down in Roberson v. Brown, 63
N. C., 554, in settling a bond of his testator’s, payable in coin, is pro-
tected, although the rule established by that case is at variance with the

_ruling of the Supreme Court of the United States.

5. The ruling in Bevers v. Park, 88 N. C., 456, as explained and corrected in
Speer v. James; 94 N. C., 417, with reference to the relations existing
between the personal representative of a deceased debtor, and his devisees
and heirs at law, confirmed.

100



N.C.] FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

HALLIBURTON ¥. CARSON,

CrviL action, heard upon exceptions to report of referee G. F. (100)
Bason, by MacRae, J., at Spring Term, 1886, of McDoweLr Su-
perior Court.

The defendants, other than John Carson, appealed.

J. G. Bynum and G. N. Folk for plaintiffs.
J. B. Batchelor, Jno. Devereux, Jr., P. J. Sinclair and W. H. Malone
for defendants. .

Surrr, C. J. This suit, instituted in January, 1876, by the plaintiffs,
executors of Jacob Harshaw who died in 1868, agamst the defendant,
John Carson, executor of George M. Carson, on behalf of themselvcs
and other creditors, is to enforce a sale of the devised land of the testator,
George M., in order that the proceeds, as far as necessary, may be ap-
plied to the discharge of his indebtedness, upon an allegation of an ex-
haustion of the personal estate. The devisees were subsequently made
codefendants. : '

After the complaint and other pleadings were put in, an order of
reference, by consent of counsel, was made to John D. Shaw, to take and
state the administration aceount, and to ascertain and report:

1. The number and value of the shares received by the several lega-
tees, and when taken possession of by each.

2. The value of each of the tracts of land devised by the tes- (101)
tator, George M.; and

3. The refundlng bonds, executed by the legatees each set out in its
essential partieulars. .

At Spring Term, 1881, the defendant, Emily Carson, having died the
year previous, her administrator was permitted to become a party in her
stead, and he filed an answer, adopting that of J. McD. Whitson and
wife Rebecea, and of ... Gowan and wife. At June Term, 1883,
the relations between the original defendant, John Carson, and those
subsequently introduced into the action, being adversary, the said Whit-
son and wife, on behalf of all of the defendants last mentioned, put in
an answer, controverting the allegation contained in the answer of the
former, the executor, to which he made reply.

The referee made his report, to which objections were taken, and,
upon motion of counsel for the contesting defendants, by whom we desig-
nate all except the executor, and upon the ground of newly discovered
matter, omitted in the report, it was set aside, except in so far as it
ascertains the plaintiffs’ debt, and as to this, it was confirmed. It was
then, by consent, referred to W. W. Flemming, to find particularly the
sum due the plaintiffs, and he did so, during the term, reporting a bal-
ance of $3,378.37, whereof $2,167.64 is principal money.
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Thereupon, at the instance of plaintiffs’ counsel, it was “considered
by the court that the said sum of $8,378.87, being principal and interest,
is the amount of the debt of the plaintiffs, and that they are entitled to
judgment ascertaining the same, but in what proportion the same shall
be paid by the devisees of said George M., and others, and at what time,
is left open for adjudication, when the report of G. F. Bason, to whom
the cause has again been referred for an account, shall be returned.” And
it was further ordered, “that this cause be recommitted, and referred to

George F. Bason, to take and state an account of the estate of
(102) George M. Carson, which has come, or ought to have come, from

all sources, into the hands of John Carson, the executor, and
what disposition has been made of such estate, and especially, that he
state what funds have come into the hands of the said executor from the
cstate of William Carson” (he being also executor of the latter), “which
ought to be subjected to the debts of any one, and to him, as executor of
George M. Carson; what personal property of the estate of said
George M. came to the hands of each of his legatees, and the value
thereof ; what real estate of the said George M. came to each of his
devisees, and the value thereof; and in case it shall appear that there
is not in the hands of the executor sufficient assets to pay off the plain-
tiffs’ debt, then to ascertain and report what sum each of the devisees,
including the executor, is liable to contribute to the payment of the
plaintiffs’ debt; that, in aseertaining what sums ought to have come into
the hands of the executor, the referee may inquire what estate, either by
devise, descent, conveyance or gift, if any, has come to the executor from
the estate of William Carsen, subject to the payment of debts due him,
as executor of said George M.

.The referee will find all the facts that he deems material, and state
his conclusions of law; state his account separately, and report to the
next term.”

The referee proceeded to execute the commission, and made the re-
quired report, with separate findings of fact and of law, arising upon
them, from which it appears that the executor has paid towards the lia-
bility of the testator, and the expenses of administering the estate, in
excess of the assets, with which lie is chargeable, the sum of $3,841.92.

Exceptions, twelve in number, were filed by counsel of the contesting
defendants, after the ruling upon which, and exceptions entered thereto,
in so far as they were not sustained, the account was rereferred to the

same referee, for reformation, in the particulars requiring correc-

(108) tion, and again reported to the court, with the evidence taken

upon the matters in controversy. Of this report, it is not out of

place for us to remark that it indicates great care and painstaking, and

the bestowal of much labor, in eliminating from the mass of evidence
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the points in dispute and in presenting them, in a clear and intelligible
form, for the reviewing Court.

Similar objections are made by the same party, to the reformed report,
nine in number, whereupon the court proceeded to render final judg-
ment, and the contesting defendants appealed.

The question, whether the lands devised to the executor in the codieil
to the will, made after the death of some of the devisees, were primarily
liable to be sold to meet the demands against the testator’s estate, in
relief of the other devised lands, or whether all were to contribute, was
decided when that matter was before us, upon a former appeal, in favor
of an equal liability, and is now put out of view., Hallthurton v. Carson,
86 N. O, 290, We pretermit an examination of the exceptions to the
referee’s first report, for the reasons: (1) that it is embodied substan-
tially in the last, to which a new series of exceptions has been filed; and
(2) because the argument here upon points excepted to, and expected to
be decided upon the appeal, has been confined to this series. Indeed, the
argument for the appellant was still more restricted, calling our atten-
tion only to a part of that series of rulings, to which error is imputed.
We limit, therefore, our inquiries into the sufficiency in law of the ex-
ceptions to the last report:

1. The first exception is to the referee’s conclusions that the statutory
limitations of three, seven and ten years, as well as the statutory pre-
sumption of payment, is not available as a defense to claims paid that
had been due more than ten years as an allowed credit to the executor.
The objection applies to the claims, the vouchers showing pay- ;
ment, which are numbered 7 and 16 in the report, and which had (104)
been overdue, and were reduced to judgment without resistance
by the executor, and afterwards paid. These claims were due to Martin
E. Carpenter, by two notes under seal, each in the sum of $550, on
9 May, 1850, and executed by the testators, George M. and William,
suits to recover which were commenced on 30 January, 1867, and to
R. C. Burgin, guardian of James Conley’s heirs, by note under seal,
executed by J. L. Carson, principal, and George M. Carson and John
Carsoy, sureties, for $2,262, principal and interest, when reduced to
judgment, the last payment being made by A. Burgin, administrator of -
the principal debtor, on 5 July, 1873, of $259.50, generally against the
gurety, John Carson, and guards against the representatives of the other
obligors, at Fall Term, 1869,

The defense to these credits is, that more than ten years had elapsed
after the maturity of the bonds, and they are presumed to have been
paid; and are barred by the statute of limitations, applicable to claims
against the estate of deceased debtors.
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2. The admission of the testimony of the executor to show the sub-
sisting indebtedness of the testator, George M., to Carpenter, and others,
which consisted of his declarations made to the witness whom he made
executor in some three months before his death, in which conversation
be said he wanted the Carpenter debt paid. The objection to the decla-
ration of the deceased is based upon the prohibitory provisions of The
Code, sec. 590. v

The referee, in our opinion, misconceives the nature of the objection
to the allowance of the credits, in requiring them to be set out with the
same particularity as the rules of pleading require, when the statutory
bar is relied on to defeat the plaintiff’e action. The complaint is, that

the executor did not set up this defense, and thus protect his
(105) testator’s estate from the demands, and that he was remiss and

neglectful of official duty, and should bear the loss himself. The
bonds are not in suit, and no statutory bar can now be set up. The striet
rule of pleading, which the referee invokes in support of his action, has
no application to the case, and the controversy, as te any particular
item of claim and resisted credit, springs up when it is offered in the
taking the account, and must be disposed of by the evidence in support
of,"and in opposition to, its allowance, then to be produced and heard.
The only inquiry is, shall, under such circumstances, money paid upon’
a debt, presumed to have been paid before, be admitted without proof, in
rebuttal, showing that it has not been paid, or that, acting in entire good
faith, the executor had sufficient reasons for his belief and action in
. making the payment? .

Now, as to the Carpenter notes, if the evidence of the executor is to
be received, the testator, just before his death (and, perhaps, after
making his will, for its date is not given), declares to the person, who is
to settle his estate, that he does owe this debt, and another due to a
named creditor, as well as some others of small amount, and not speci-
fied, and wishes it to be paid, and, in his will, he provides for the pay-
ment of all his just debts. If, then, the testimony, coming from the
source that it does, is admissible, it fully rebuts the presumption of pay-
ment, and leaves the debt as subsisting in full force, notwithstanding the
lapse of time, and justifies the executor in submitting to the judgment
without resistance.

We come now to consider the competency of the witness to testify to
the declarations of the testator, under sections 580 and 590 of The Code,
the interpretation of the latter of which has been a prolific source of
controversy heretofore. The main purpose to be subserved, in the enact-
ment, is as stated by the late Chief Justice in McCanless v. Reynolds, T4
N. ©, 301, and reiterated in Thompson v. Humphrey, 83 N. C., 416,
that of the parties to a transaction or communication, one being

104



N.C.] ' FEBRUARY TERM, 1888,

HALLIBURTON ?. CARSON.

dead, the survivor shall not be permitted to speak of it, because (106)
the mouth of the other is closed, so that his version cannot be
heard. This, however, presupposes some antagonism of interest as to’
the subject-matter of the evidence then existing, which might be favor-
ably affected as to one, and unfavorably as to the other of the parties,
between whom it takes place. Thus, when the controversy was, as to
whom the deed was made by the grantor, he was allowed to testify that
it was to deceased party, under whom the defendant claimed, because
there was no controversy as to the witness’s ownership, and he was in-
different as to the results of the issue. Gwegg v. Hill, 80 N. C., 255.

And so are held to be competent, as outside the purpose of the statute,
declarations and acts of the deceased upon a question of mental capacity,
through whatever witness the testimony is derived. MecLeary v. Nor-
ment, 84 N. C., 235.

In the case before us the executor, being also a legatee and devisee,
had a common interest, with the others, in refusing to allow the debt and
exonerating the trust estate therefrom. - He would in this be promoting
the interest of each, and not his own, separate from theirs.

With such mformatlon as he had from such a source, not to be dis-
trusted, and under a sense of fiduciary duty, could he rightfully repudi-
ate the liability of his testator, and resist the obligation under the tech-
nical rule of presumption opposed to fact; or, if he does not, expose him-
self to the loss of the whole sum paid?

It is true that in Barnawell v. Smith, 5 Jones Eq., 168, Battle, J., dis-
tinguishes between the liability in®urred by an executor or adminis-
trator, in refusing to set up the statutory bar, which puts an end to the
action, and in not taking advantage of the presumption of payment,
raised by the lapse of time, declaring him responsible in the latter case,
unless, when a credit for the expenditure is claimed, he can repel
the presumption, while in the other he may exercise his own dis- (107)
cretion. He says that before paying the demand, against, which
the presumptlon operates, he “ought to show that the presumption was
untrue, and in fact it had not been paid or satisfied,” before permitting
a judgment to be recovered, or making payment.

But if he has personal knowledge or ample proof of the indebtedness
as still subsisting, and acts upon either, we are unable to see why he
should be held personally responsible, and be denied the .opportunity of
giving his reasons therefor, under the old or the recently amended rules
of evidence. In all cases he must act in good faith in protecting the
trust estate against unjust demands, but not against those that are honest,
and just. The law does not require of him, in the expressive words of
another, in opposition to an argument, that it was the legal duty of the
representative to.plead the statutory bar, “te make him sin in his
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grave”; and such is the well established doctrine in this State, under
numerous adjudications of this Court. '

And again, assuming the testimony incompetent to prove the fact of
- ponpayment, why is it not admissible to refute the charge of culpable
indifference and inattention, and show wherefore the indebtedness was
not contested, and the good faith of the executor?

“The legatees or next of kin,” remarks Glaston, J., “cannot, in con-
science, object to payment, whether voluntary or compulsory, made by
the representative of the estate of what was justly due therefrom. In
equity, as respects legatees or mext of kin, the estate consists only of
what remains after satisfaction of the creditors.” Williams v. Maitland,
1 Tred. Eq., 92.

Suppose the presumption could have been repelled by frequent admis-
sions and aets of the debtor, to be proved by an indifferent witness, who
dies before the administration account is taken, so that any resistance to

the action would have been fruitless, must the executor, who pays
(108) the amount after judgment, be disallowed the credit, because the

proof cannot then be had? And shall he not be permitted to show
his reasons for making a useless opposition to the recovery? Yet these
consequences might follow the adoption of the principle that applies to
an action upon the claim itself when in suit, in a controversy growing
out of its payment. Unless some difference is recognized, very great
hardship might come to the most careful and honest trustee in the dis-
charge of his official duties, and for which the enabling statutes in The
Code were specially intended, as i apparent from their structure and
seope.

The rule would be very stringent, which imposed so great responsi-
bility upon fiduciary agent left unprotected, when his disbursements,
made in fidelity to his trusts, and to be disallowed, because of inability
to produce the proofs upon which the claim could have been established,
and when registance would have entailed needless expense. The execu-
tor “is answerable only,” says Nash, C. J., in Deberry v. Ivey, 2 Jones
Eq., 370, “for that crassa negligentia, or gross neglect, which evidences
mala. fides.” To the same effect are Nelson ». Hall, 5 Jones Eq., 32;
Mendenhall v. Benbow, 84 N. C., 646; Patterson v. Wadsworth, 89
- N. C.,, 407. We therefore sustain the rulings of the judge upon these
two exceptions. )

The Burgin judgment, in many of its features, is similar to that
which has been discussed. In some respects it has peculiarities of its
own. John Carson was, himself, a surety obligor, and if the pleadings
were to be verified by oath, how could he swear that the debt had been
paid when he knew it had not been, and why should he be required to
set up for his testator a defense he would not set up for himself? It
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would be evasive to say the debtors relied upon the protection of the
statute, when its presumption was known to be untrue. His duty to the
estate cannot be such as to require him to do, for its exoneration, what
he could not conscientiously do for his own. Their interests are .

one and the same, and every motive was against any develiction (109)
of duty in the premsises to both.

Besides this, he was not bound to set up an unjust, though legal
defense, as the condition of his own recovery from the principal debtor,
or from a cosurety, his ratable part of what he may have been compelled
to pay, by reason of his personal liability. This has been expressly de-
cided, when the surety failed to plead the statute of limitations to a
demand from which it would have protected him, inasmuch as his right
of action commences at the payment. Sherrod v. Woodard, 4 Dev.,
3603 Jones v. Blanton, 6 Ired. Eq., 115.

“There was no obligation on the plaintiff, in law or in equity,” are the
words of Nash, C. J., in the last cited case, “to plead that statute” (pro-
tecting the sureties from liability upon guardian bond, after three years,
from the ward’s becoming of age and not calling him to an aceount) “or
rely upon the protection it gave him,” citing Leigh v. Smath, 3 Ired.
Eq., 442, and Williams o. Maitland, supra. This was said of the plain-
tiffe’ claim for a contribution from a cosurety to the bond.

Why is it more his duty to rely upon a defense, not less unconscien-
tious, furnished in the statutory presumption?

With the funds in his hands, the appropriation was at once made by
the law. Ruffin v. Harrison, reported in 81 N. C., 208, and upon the
rehearing, in 86 N. C., 190. There was, therefore, no limitation result-
ing from the lapse of time afterwards, depriving the executor of his
right to a credit upon a settlement of the estate.

3. The next exception, pressed with earnestness and force by appellees’
counsel, in argument, is in allowing a credit- for an alleged premium,
entering into the judgment rendered upon the bond due to Jacob Har-
shaw, the plaintifis’ testator, and executed by J. L. Carson, William
Carson and George Carson, on 20 April, 1860, and payable upon its
face “in United States coin.” It was reduced to judgment, at
Fall Term, 1869, of McDowell Superior Court, and the record (110)
thereof was produced before the referee Shaw, showing the
amount recovered to be $4,326.45, and upon the back of the bond, besides

‘an endorsed payment of $198.33, is an entry, as follows:

“P1 (intended for principal)............. R $2,167.64

Int. to 2d September, 1869..............ccooovei 1,037.14

Gold premium, 35 per cent..........c.ccooooei . 1,121.67
$4,326.45.”
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This entry, as well as the computation of interest accrued, sufficiently
shows that the premium upon gold has been added to the amount due
upon the face of the bond, which, it is not denied, measured the differ-
ence in value between gold and National currency, at the date of the
judgment. This method of conversion of the one into the other fund, is
in accordance with the decision of this Court in Roberson v Brown, 63
- N. C., 554, while it is at variance with that of the Supreme Court of the
United States—Branson v. Bhodes, T Wall., 229, and Butler v. Horwintz,
ibid., 258, wherein the currency in the contract is preserved, in kind, in
the judgment, and in the execution, that follows. The executor, acting
upon the rule laid down in this Court, is warranted in not resisting the
recovery of the sum thus augmented by the premium upon coin, and
payable in National currency; nor is there ahy principle in law or
equlty, known to us, nor any authority referred to by counsel, on which,
in consequence of the appreciation of the latter to the level of the former
in value, the debt can be reduced, as it could not be 1nereased in case of
depreclatlon

Besides, the sum adjudged due, in the ruling upon the report of the
referee, I lemming, aequiesced in and not the subject of exception, is thus

conclusively settled in this very action, and cannot come up
(111) again, except upon a revisal of that adjudication, upon a proper
application to the Court. '

It is unnecessary to consider the original judgment against the execu-
tor, and inquire if the statute of limitations can still be set up, in-oppo-
gition to the present proceedings, to charge the devised land with the
debt; and it is only necessary to say, that the ruling in Bevers v. Park,
88 N. ., 456, has been misunderstood, and the mistake explained and
corrected in Speer v. James, 94 N. C., 417, where the subject-matter of
the relations between the personal representative of a deceased debtor,
and his devisees and heirs at law, is fully considered.

The other exceptions, based upon alleged erroneous rulings upon the
law, for none others are before us in this appeal, without special and
separate reference to each, must be overruled.

There is no error, and the judgment must be affirmed, and it is so
ordered.

No error. o Affirmed.

Cited: Crenshaw v. Carson, 120 N. C., 276; Marshall v. Kemp, 190
N. C., 493.
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JOHN M. GALLOWAY, EXECUTOR, AND OTHERS, V. W. B. CARTER, JR
AND OTHERS, EXECUTORS.

Construction of Wills—Defeasible Estates.

1. A testator, by hig will, after first making provigion for his wife, and then
for his children, severally, and in order, giving each in severalty certain
lands in fee, besides slaves and other personalty, directed that all his
property, real and personal, not specifically disposed of, should be gold,
and out of the proceeds, after payment of certain pecuniary legacies,
one thousand dollars should be paid to each of his said children, and the
residue divided equally between his wife and children. After the above
provisions, is the following clause: “My will further is, that if any
or either of my children should die without leaving issue living at his, her,
or their death, the share or shares, of him, her or them, so dying (as
well the accruing as the original share) shall be, go over and remain
to the surviving brothers and sisters and the ghild or children of such of
them as may be then dead, equally to be divided between them share and
share alike; but the children of my deceased child shall, in such case,
represent their parents respectively and take in families”: Held, that the
will did not vest an absolute and fee-simple title to any of the property
in a child of the testator living at his—the testator’s—death; but upon
the death of such child, leaving no issue, all the property to which such
child was entitled under the will, went over to and became the property
of the surviving brothers and sisters, and the child or children of such of
them as were then dead, to be divided among them per stirpes.

2. Where the estate created by a will is defeasible, and the intention of the
testator is doubtful, and the property itself is given, and not the mere
use of it, and the time is not definitely fixed at which the estate shall
become absolute, if there be any intermediate period between the death
of the testator and that of the devisee or legatee, at which the estate may
fairly, in view of the whole will, be considered absolute, this time will be
taken as that intended by the testator; but if there be no such inter-
mediate period, and the time of the devisor’s death, or that of the de-
visee’s or legatee’s death must be adopted the former will be treated
as the time intended.

3. The general rule is to construe the estate, whether vested or contingent, as
absolute and indefeasible, rather than defeasible; and if it cannot be
construed to be absolute, then to construe words which make it doubtful,
as to when the estate shall become absolute, in such manner as to render
the estate absolute at as early a period as can be fairly done.

4. The above rules do not apply when a contrary intention appears from the
whole will—its terms, phraseology, several parts, provisions, conditions,
and their bearing upon each other.

5. It is not the object of rules of interpretation to direct, modify or prevent
the intention of the testator, but to ascertam what it is and make it
effectual.

SumrrH, C. J., dissented.
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Crvi acrion, tried before MacRae, J., at August Term, 1886, of
Sroxzs Superior Court.
Judgment for defendants. Plaintiffs appealed.
(113) It appears that Robert Galloway died, in the county of Rock-
ingham, in the year 1832, leaving a last will and testament, which
was duly proven, and the executors therein named duly qualified as
such. The following is a copy of the will:

“In the name of God, amen: I, Robert Galloway, of Valley Field, in
Rockingham County, North Carolina, do make and publish this paper
writing as my last will and testament, hereby expressly revokmg all
former wills by me made.

I give and devise to my beloved wife, Mary S. Galloway, my manor
plantation, and the lands thereto belonging, called ‘Valley Field, and
containing about twelve hundred acres, for and during the term of her
natural life; and I give absolutely to her the following slaves, namely:
Hubbard, Joe, Dick (the miller), Jerry (who has been employed at the
court-house), Patrick, my old and faithful servamnt and friend, Isaac
(who lives at the court-house), Isaac (at the Eagle Falls), Lorenzo, Wil-
liam (purchased from Fitzgerald), Reuben, James, Nancy, Elsey,
Tamer, Diana and her three youngest children, named Grochus, Nancy
and Polly; Leanthea, Alice, Doreas and her child Betsey; Allen, Philip
(at the court-house), and Sylla and Delilah, two children of Nancy; and
also my household furniture and kitchen utensils, at Valley Field; my
farming implements and utensils, wagons, carts, plows, gear, and the
like; stock of horses, cattle, hogs and sheep, and all my crop and pro-
wvisions on hand, and the crop growing on that plantation at my death;
also my twenty-two shares of stock in State Bank of North Carolina,
and the sum of one thousand dollars in money, to be paid as she may
require it. But I further direct that my wife shall furnish my sons,
Thomas. and Rawley, and my daughters, Mary and Elizabeth (if not
domne in my life-time), with three beds and furniture each, and for that
purpose she may take eight beds and furniture from the court-house;

I also give her my carriage and horses.
(114) T give to my son Charles the tract of land called ‘Rose Hill,

situated on Dan River, on which he resides, containing about
thirteen hundred acres, in fee simple; also, the following negroes, to wit:
Reuben, Anthony, Winnie, Philip, Tilda, Pinkney, Nancy, Isaac (son
of Phillis), Lethe, George, Alsey, danghter of Edy, and Billy; also, all
the furniture, household, kitchen and farming utensils, crops on hand or
growing on said plantation, and the stocks of all kinds there belonging.

I give to my son Robert, in fee simple, the tract of land situated on
Dan River called ‘Eagle Falls, containing about one thousand twenty-
five acres; also, the following negroes, to-wit: Armistead, Sam, William,
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Jerry, Delia, Branton, Dochia, Mary, Dick, Alley, Joe and Tom; also,
all the household and kitchen furniture in his possession at Eagle Falls,
or Spring Garden, and all farming utensils, crops on hand or growing at
Eagle Falls, and the stocks of all kinds there belonging,

I give to my daughter Marion, wife of James E. Galloway, in fee
sirnple, the following tracts of land, situated in the Western District of
Tennessee, viz.: One tract on the Obion River, which James Martin con-
_veyed to me, being part of a five thousand acre tract, called the ‘Big

Clover Lick’; and one other tract, containing abount one thousand three
hundred and nine and a half acres, lying on the waters of Loore Hatchee
River, in Fayette county, which the said James E. conveyed to me; also,
the following negro slaves, to-wit: Daniel (whom the said James E. hath
already sold by my consent), Peter, young Hubbard, Lewis, Bob, Henry,
Luey, Hester, Lucinda, Milly, Abbey and Lavinia, and all the furniture,
stock and other perishable property which I put into possession of her
said husband.

I give unto my son Thomas three tracts of land, situated on
Dan River, adjoining each other, which I purchased from Daniel (115)
Worsham and Joseph Orook, and the heirs of Gideon Rooche
(the latter of which was conveyed to him, my said son), containing alto-
gether about one thousand acres, in fee simple; also, the following
negroes, to-wit: Tom (purchased from W. Leary), Stephen, George,
Sam, Hannah, Luke, Armstrong, Martha, Hannah, Esther, Sophy and
Lucretia, and all such stocks of any kind, household and plantation uten-
sils, as I may in my life-time place on sald land, or put into possession
of my said son Thomas.

I give to my son Rawley, in fee simple, a tract of land which I pur-
chased from Theophilus Long, situated on Dan River, containing about
three hundred acres, with all implements of husbandry, and all the stocks
thereon, and the crops thereon growing at my death; also, my manor
plantation, called ‘Vialley Field,” in fee simple, in reversion after his
mother’s death; and also the following negroes, namely: Henry, son of
Tamer, Hubbard, son of Maria; William, son of Dinah; Harrison,
Washington, July, Edy, Shelton, Aggy and Henderson; Elijah, Martha,
daughter of Tamer; Elias. I also give my son Rawley, in fee simple, a
tract of land adjoining the Lacy tract, conveyed to me by the executors
of Martha Scales, and containing about sixty acres, making that whole

-tract about three hundred and sixty acres, or thereabouts.

I give my daughter Mary S. the land which I purchased from Barnes;

also that purchased from George Barnes; also that purchased from Wil-

* liam Pratt, that purchased from Stephen Pratt and John Robinson, and

-that purchased from John Strong, containing about six hundred acres,

more or less, in fee simple; also the following negroes, to-wit: Henry,
111 ’
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purchased of William Buck; James, son of Bridget; Anthony, son of
Winnie; Judah, Mary Ann, Phaebe, Bridget; Abram, son of Diana;
Catherine, Dorre, Ann and Nelson, son of Doreas, at the court-house.
I give to my daughter Ehzabeth in fee simple, the tract of
(116) land called ‘Barnes tract, containing about eight hundred acres,
which was conveyed to me by the Clerk and Master in Equity for
the county; and also the following negroes, to-wit: Martha, Jefferson,
Adam, David, Bonaparte, Peggy, Minerva, Adeline, Harrison, son of
Peggy; Dorcas and her son Lewis, and Abbey, daughter of Tamer. I
also give to each of my said two daughters, Mary and Elizabeth, the
sum of four thousand dollars in ready money, and a horse and saddle, to
be raised out of my estate, as hereinafter directed. I further will and
declare, that any issue belonging to me of any female slave herein be-
queathed, which is now born, and which is not in this will particularly
named, or which may be born before my death, and not otherwise dis-
posed of by me, shall go and belong to the same person or persons to
whom I have bequeathed the mother. This I direct, knowing that sev-
eral already have children, and that others probably will have them.

I order and direct, that my tract of land, called ‘Austin’s old place,’
situated on Dan River, opposite the Mulberry Island, and containing
about five hundred acres, more or less, also my tract, called ‘Spring
Garden,” containing about two thousand one hundred acres, conveyed to
meé by James E. Galloway; and also the lands I purchased from Drury
Williams and son, from Mitchell Pounds and Purtle, and all my lots,
lands and houses near Rockingham court-house, and all the residue of
my lands and real estate, not herein devised, and situated in North
Carolina, which I own in my own right, or in company with others; and
also all my lands situated in Tennessee, and all the residue of my specific
personal estate, be sold by my executors, or such of them as may prove
my will and act in its execution; which sales may be made at public
auction, or by private contract, at the disecretion of my said acting
executor or executors, with this restriction: that no private sale shall be

made to any or either of my executors, but my said executors may
(117) be bidders and buyers at any public sale; and, in that event, the

other executors may, and shall have power to convey the lands, or
other things purchased by a coexecutor, to him or them so buying, in the
same manner as to any other purchaser; and I direct that sales of the
Tennessee lands be made on a eredit of one, two and three years; and out
of the proceeds of such sdles of my stocks of merchandise on hand, and
other property not given away herein, my cash on hand, and debts owing
to me, I order the expenses of the execution of my will to be paid, and -
the pecuniary legacies of my wife and daughters, Mary S. and Eliza- .
beth; the residue thereof I give to my wife and all my children, equally
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to be divided between them, except that my wife is not to have any part
thereof, until each of my children shall have received one thousand
dollars out of this residue.

My will further is, that if any or either of my children should die
without leaving issue living at his, her or their death, the share or
shares of him, her or them so dying (as well the accruing as the original
share) shall be, go over and remain to the surviving brothers and sisters,
and the child or children of such of them as may be then dead, equally to
be divided between them, share and share alike; but the children of my

_deceased. child shall, in such case, represent their parents respectively,
and take in families.

T appoint my four sons, Charles, Robert, Thomas and Rawley, the
executors of this my last will and testament, and I enjoin it on them
and all my children to live in harmony, and carefully to avoid all differ-
ences and disputes about my estate, being well assured that it would be
more for their interest if I had nothing to leave them, rather than that
what I do leave them should break brotherly love, and become subjects of
contention among them.

Given under my hand, this the 8th day of December, 1831.

R. Garioway.

Signed, declared and published by the testator in our presence, (118)
who attested the same in the presence of him and of each other,
by his request. ,
TuaoMmas Rurrin,
Prrer WiLson,
Prrer H. Dirrarp.”

The daughter of the testator, Mary S. Galloway, named in the will,
died in the month of March, 1886, never having been married and with-
out issue, leaving a last will and testament, which was duly proven, by
which she disposed of all her property, real, personal and mixed, in-
cluding such as she acquired under the will of her father. The defend-
ants are the executors, devisees and legatees of her will.

The plaintiffs are the surviving children of the testator, and others,
who represent such of his children as are dead, and the purpose of this
action is to obtain a construction of the will set forth above, an
aceount, ete.

In the Superior Court the defendants moved to dismiss the action,
because the complaint does not state facts sufficient to constitute a cause
of action. The court sustained the motion, and gave judgment accord-
_ingly, and the plaintiffs, having excepted, appealed to this Court.

113



IN THE SUPREME COURT. 1100

GALLOWAY ©¥. CARTER.

The following is so much of the case, settled on appeal, as shows the
contention of the parties:

“The plaintiffs contended that, under the said will, each child took a
defeasible estate in fee in the lands and personal property devised and
bequeathed to said child, and that upon the death of Mary S. Galloway,
in 1886, without issue, living at her death, all her property and estate
that was devised and bequeathed to her by Robert Galloway, her father,
and the residue thereof, in her hands, vested, by way of executory devise,
in the plaintiffs and individual defendants (who are the children of the
deceased children of said Robert Galloway), as tenants in common

thereof.
(119) = The surviving defendants, on the other hand, by demurrer ore

tenus, contended that, by a proper construction of the will of the
said Robert Galloway, deceased, the land and personal property devised
and bequeathed to Mary 8. Gialloway, was vested in fee simple, and ab-
solutely, in the said Mary S. Galloway, upon the death of the testator;
and that, as appears by the complaint, the said Mary S. Galloway had
died, leaving a last will and testament, by which she disposed of her
“estate; and that the plaintiffs were not entitled to the relief demanded -
in the complaint.” :

Mebane & Scott for plaintiffs.
Watson & Glenn for defendants.

Merrivow, J. (after stating the facts): The will before us, to be
interpreted, is orderly in its form, very clear and intelligible—certainly
in most respects—in its several provisions, and, of itself, affords evidence
of an able and skillful draughtsman. By it, the testator carefully dis-
posed of all his large and valuable estate, embracing much real and per-
sonal property, certainly and exclusively to his own immediate family,
consisting of his wife and seven children, thus manifesting a settled pur-
pose to devote his property, as far, as practicable, to persons of his own
blood. _

It will be observed, that the testator first makes provision for his wife,
and then for his children, severally, and in order, giving each, in sev-
eralty, certain lands in fee, besides slaves and other personal property.
Having thus disposed of much the greater part of his property, he
directs that certain lands, specified, be sold—part of them on a credit
of one, two and three years—thus turning them and all his property, not
specifically devised or bequeathed, into a cash fund, out of which he
directs, first, that certain pecuniary legacies be paid to two of his
daughters, named ; secondly, that each of his children be paid-one thou-
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sand dollars; and thirdly, that the residue thereof be divided (120)
equally between and among his wife and children. These dispo-
sitions embrace all his property, and he then adds:

“My unll further 4s, that if any, or either of my children, should dve
without leaving issue living of his, her, or their death, the share or shares
of him, her, or them, so dying (as well the accruing as the original
shara), shall be, go over and remain to the surviving brothers and sisters,
and the child or children of such of them as may be then dead, equally
to be divided between them, share and share alike; but the children of
my deceased child shall, in such case, represent their parents, respec-
tively, and take in families.”

It is this clause of the will that gives rise to the questions presented
for our decision. The prinecipal contention of the appellees is, that the
testator intended that it should have application and operative effect
only in case one or more of his children had died in his lifetime, after
the execution of his will; and that, as his daughter Mary S., now de-
ceased, and under whose will they claim, survived him, her title to the
property, devised and bequeathed to her, became absolute on the death of
the testator. _

Construing the will as a whole, as we must do, we cannot accept the
interpretation thus insisted upon, as the correct one.

As contended by the learned counsel for the appellees, it seems to be
settled—certainly in this State—that where the estate, created by the
will, is defeasible, and the intention of the testator is doubtful--not
clearly expressed—and the property itself is given, and not the mere use
of it, and the time is not definitely fixed at which it shall be absolute, if
there be any intermediate period between the death of the testator and
that of the devisee or legatee, at which the estate niay fairly, in view of
the whole will, be considered absclute, this time will be taken as that in-
tended by the testator; but if there be no such intermediate
period, and the time of his death, or that of the devisee or legatee, (121)
must be adopted, the former will be treated as the time so in-
tended. This is 8o, unless there be words that forbid such interpreta-
tion, or considerations appearing from the will that clearly 1mply, or
diselose, a different intent.

The general rule applicable in such doubtful cases is, to construe the
estate, whether vested or contingent, as absolute and indefeasible, rather
than defeasible; and if it cannot be construed to be absolute in its crea-
tion, then to so interpret words and phrases implying such conditions as
render the estate defeasible, doubiful as to the time of their operation,
5o as to render the estate absolute at as early a period as can fairly be
done. Cox v. Hogg, 2 Dev. Eq., 121; Hilliard v. Kearney, Bus. Eq.,
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291; Biddle v. Hoyt, 1 Jones Eq., 159; Vass v. Freeman, 8 Jones Eq.,
2215 Dawis v. Parker, 69 N. C., 271; Murchison v. Whitted, 87 N. C,,
4655 Price v. Johnson, 90 N. C., 592.

But such rules of interpretation do not apply when, from the whole
will—its terms, phraseology, several parts, provisions, conditions and
their bearing upon each other, and just and reasonable implication aris-
ing thereupon—a different intention of the testator clearly appears. He
might provide otherwise. Unquestionably, it is competent for him to
devigse and bequeath his property to his children, coupled—clogged—
with the condition, that if one or more of them should die at any time
before, or after, his death, without issue then alive, then, and in that
case, it should pass to and become the property of his or her surviving
brothers and sisters. The law, for reasons of wise and sound policy,
does not favor such a disposition of property, but it does not forbid it,
and, on the contrary, when it appears that such ig the purpose of the
testator, it will uphold and enforce his purpose. Bullock v. Bullock,
2 Dev. Eq., 807; Fortescue v. Satterthwaite, 1 Ired., 566; Garland v.

. Waitt, 4 Ired., 287; Biddle v. Hoyt, 1 Jones Eq., 159; Motls v.
(122) Caldwell, Bus. Eq., 289; Webb v. Weeks, 3 Jones, 279; Vass v.
Freeman, 3 Jones Eq., 221; Williams v. Cotten, ibid., 395.

The will, however it may dispose of property, not inconsistently with
the rules of law and statutory regulations, will be upheld, and the inten-
tion of the testator must prevail. The law does not seek to mould or
direct his purpose—on the contrary, it effectuates it as nearly as may
be. Hence, it is no part-of the object of rules of interpretation, such as
those adverted to above, to direct, modify, or prevent the intention, but
only to ascertain what it is, to the end it may become operative and
effectual. ! ‘

Now, in our judgment, the testator of the will under consideration,
intended, by the clause of it above recited, to render the estate and title
of the property devised and bequeathed to his several children,, defeasi-
ble, and to provide that, in case any one or more of them should die at
any time after the death of the testator, without leaving issue living, at
his, her or their death, respectively, the property so devised and be-
queathied, including any that might have accrued under the clause,
should at once, upon his, her or their deaths respectively, at any time,
go over to, and become the property of, the surviving brothers and sisters,
and the c¢hild or children of such of them as may then be dead, equally
to be divided among them, share and share alike, the children of any
.deceased child representing their parents respectively, and taking as
families. This, we think, sufficiently appears from the clause just re-
ferred to. It provides, “that if any or etther of my children should die
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without leaving issue living, at his, her, or their death,” ete. These are
comprehensive words, used in a broad sense—they do not imply, simply,
that if one, two, or three shall so die, but if any—several—an indefinite
number, at least five—shall so die. This is made clearer by the further
provision, in this connection, that then “the share or shares of him or
them, so dying (as well the accruing as the original share) shall

be, go over and remain to the surviving brothers and sisters, and . (123)
the child or children of such of them as may be then dead,” ete.

The testator must have been a man advanced in life—he had a large
family; seven children—and it appears from the will, that at least one
of them was married, thus indicating that the children were not all very
young, and the advanced age of the father. Is it probable—is it rea-
sonable to infer, that he intended such provision to apply to such of his
children as might die in his, the testator’s lifetime? Reasonably, in the
nature of the matter, did he contemplate that several of his children—
perhaps as many as five—would have children, and die before himsclf,
and he ought to provide for such a contingency? We cannot think so.
To conclude that he did, would be to ignore the ordinary course of
nature, in such respect, as well as the common experience and observa-
tion of men. Hulliard v. Kearney, Bus. Eq., 221, 231, 232.

Moreover, if the clause refers to the death of children in the lifetime -
of the testator, then the words of it~—*“as well the aceruing as the original
share”—could have no practical meaning or purpose, because, in that
case, the devise and bequests would lapse and become inoperative, and
under the will, the property would pass into and become a part of the
residuary fund, and thus go to the surviving brothers and sisters and
their mother. But if the clanse applies to such death after the death of
the testator, then the words, “as well the accruing as the original share,”
would serve the important purpose of certainly keeping the whole prop-
erty in the family of the testator—devoting it exclusively to the benefit
of his children and their children, as far and as long as he could. This,
indeed, seems to have been his purpose. It cannot be said that the
testator was inops conciles, and therefore, could not know with accuracy,
the legal effect of such provisions. The will, upon its face, shows the
contrary—that he was well advised how to effectuate his purpose, and
that it was skillfully and very thoroughly drawn.

Then, as the provision of the clause last mentioned does mot (124)
apply to such death of a child or children in the lifetime of the
testator, plainly, by its terms, it has reference and application to such
-death, after his death. At such death of a child, his or her share, includ-
ing any accruing share, would go over, as provided. As the intention of
the testator was that we have indicated, the argument, that his disposi-
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tion of his property was unwise and inconvenient, and might result in
injustice to some of his children, and has so resulted in the case of his
daughter named, who died without ever having had issue, is without
force. He certainly had the right to dispose of it as he did, whatever
may have been his motive and whatever the consequences.

It has been suggested that the clause of condition and defeasance does
not apply to all the devises aud bequests of the will, but only to the
bequests to be paid out of the fund to be raised from the sale of the land
directed to be sold, and the personal property not specifically bequeathed.
‘We cannot yield our assent to this view. There is nothing, it seems to
us, to warrant such, or any restricted application. The clause appears
separately from any other, at the end of the clauses disposing of all the
property, and beging thus: “My will further is”—that is, in addition to
all the testator had provided—and then proceeds as follows: “That if
any, or either of my children, should die without leaving issue living at
his, her, or their death, the share or shares of him, her, or them,” ete.
What share? It is not designated or described in terms, by implication
or inference, as the share of the fund last mentioned. There are no
words implying such, or any restriction, in this respect. These bequests,
in the clause granting them, are not designated as shares—uor are any
of the devises or bequesis so designated in the several clauses creating
them. Nor can we conceive of any adequate reason for such restricted
application. In the abserice of terms or particular provision authoriz-
ing it, it is not probable, nor reasonable, as it seems to us, that the

testator would restrict the application to transitory pecuniary
(125) bequests, without some distinet provision for the purpose, and

not to valuable devises, and bequests of slaves and other personal
chattels, not at the time of the execution of the will so transitory. He
-~ would more likely apply such restriction to the devises and the bequests
of slaves, but, as we have said, there is no such purpose expressed, and
no apparent motive or purpose to make such restriction or distinetion.

If it be said, that it is not likely the testator would intend to restriet
his children in the exercise of the power to dispose of the property given
them, the answer is, he had the right to do so, and in very sweeping
terms, he exercised that right, manifesting, apparently, a settled pur-
pose to devote his property to persons of his own blood. When such pur-
pose appears upon the face of the will, the mere fact that its provisions
may be unwise, inconvenient, and not what most men would make, can-
not be allowed to affect, or give direction to, the intention expressed.
Nor is it at all probable, that a testator who prepared his will so cau-
tiously and intelligently, would have omitted some expression, as to
such restriction, if he imtended it.
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As we have said, the clause in question appears as a separate para-
graph at the end of the clauses of the will, disposing of all the testator’s
property. In its terms, it is precise, apt, comprehensive, and thorough,
for the purpose eontemplated. There are no pertinent restrictive
words—mnothing appears to show that it was intended to apply to one
class of gifts more than another. The term “share” is used without
qualification. In its connection, it must mean share of the festator’s
estate—his whole property disposed of by the will, in which whole each
and all of his children shared. By a child’s “share” was meant his share
of the whole, not his share of a part of the estate, else the testator would
have said so. The clause is inserted in the Wﬂl at the orderly and
proper place, to apply to the whole of the property disposed of; it so
applies in its terms, and nothing to the contrary appears.

There is error. The judgment must be reversed and further (126)
proceedings had in the action according to law. To that end let
this opinion be certified to the Superior Court. It is so ordered.

Error. Reversed.

Smrta, C. J., dissenting: The will, whose construction is the subject
of controversy in this action, came from the hands of the late Chief Jus-
tice of this Court, Thomas Ruffin, who is also an attesting witness to its
execution, and must be read as a well considered and carefully prepared
instrument, and not made, as many are, without intelligent advice, inops -
consilit. The dispositions of his estate among his seven children, observ-
ing an essential equality in the value of what he gives, are separate and
dstinet. Each devise is of land in fee simple, and each clause begins
with words, “I give to,” and then with the real estate a number of named
negro slaves, and that perishable, personal property found on the devised
farms, inclusive of implements of husbandry, furniture, stock, and
growing crops.

The devises to the daughters are of land and slaves, omitting the other
articles given to the five sons, in lieu of which he adds a legacy of $4,000
in money to each, and a horse and saddle to the two.

After this distribution of so much of his estate, intended in the several
clauses that contain them to be absolute and in perpetuity to each, fol-
lows the clause, beginning in a changed form of expression: “I order
and direct that my traet of land called Austin’s Old Place,” ete., in
which the residue of his property is to be aggregated into a sum of
money, which the testator expected it would require a considerable time
to bring about, since the lands in Tennessee were to be sold on a credit
of one, two and three years, and therefrom were to be paid the ex-
penses of administration and the money legacies ($9,000) to his wife
and daughters, and what remained he directs to be divided between
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(127) his wife and children, except that each child should have there-
from $1,000 before his wife shall participate in the distribution.

Then follows the clause, whose legal application and operation form
the subject of contention, abruptly introduced: “My will further is,
that if any or either of my children should die without leaving issue
living at his, her or their death, the share or shares of him, her or them
so dying (as well the accruing as the original share) shall be, go over,
and remain to the surviving brothers and sisters, and the child or chil-
dren of such of them as may be then dead, equally to be divided between
them, share and share alike; but the children of any deceased child shall,
In such case, represent their parents, and take in families.”

In the argument, two repugnant methods of interpreting this last
clause were pressed, with references to adjudged cases, upon our atten-
tion. One, that the limitation was upon all the preceding dispositions,
and the contingency attached to each, at the time of the death of the
several devisees and legatees, whenever that event should happen.

The other, that the contingencies were confined to the testator’s own
lifetime, and ceased to affect the. property at his death.

From a careful and ecritical study of the will, my mind has been
brought to a different conclusion as to the intent of the testator, and
the form in which it finds expression.

It is, I think, plain that the testamentary gifts were to take present
. effect - when the testator died, and were then to become absolute and
unconditional.

The estates in the lands are everywhere declared to be “in fee simple,”
and can it be supposed that stock, farming utemsils, slaves, and even
growing crops, most of it, if not all, worn out or consumed in the use,
were to be accounted for, as in the present case, after a lapse of more
than fifty years? Can it be attributed to the learned and accurate

draftsman who put the testator’s purposes in shape that such a
(128) construction should be given to his work?

Were not the large legacies in money an offset to what the
brothers got besides land and slaves to be as absolute and unconditional
as those for which they were substituted to make all equal? Such a
construction is compatible with the general and controlling purposes
apparent in all the antecedent donations.

" Again, the words used in passing from the next preceding, to the
clause which gives rise to the controversy, are quite different from those
that mark the transition in the others. The beginning of the limiting
clause, “My will further is,” seems to indicate an unfinished dlsposmon
of the residuary fund, now to be supphed

The term implies mcompl’etmess in what goes before, and ig not at all
appropriate to those well defined and clear devises and bequests before
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made to the children separately, and must be supposed to have signifi-
cance in the carefully drawn ingtrument. The reason of the discérimina-
tion is apparent. The previous donations are absolute. The residuary
fund would require years after the testator’s death to be reduced to a
condition that would admit of division. Meanwhile some might die, and
as this provision was for the common benefit of the children as a class
rather than as sndividuals, it was intended to secure the fund to the sur-
vivors and the issue of such as died leaving issue at the period when dis-
tribution was to be made, thus confining the contingencies to the inter-
vening period, and making the bequests, when received, unconditional.

This view derives additional support from the description of the prop-
erty thus limited. The contingent limitation is confined to “shares,” .
original and aceruing, a word aptly designating an interest in a common
fund, not property separately and independently given. “Shares,” in a
striet sense, means a fractional or partial interest in a common fund
held by several, and hence peculiarly applies to the residuary
fund, to be apportioned among the legatees, in the future, who (129)
would be entitled under the prescribed conditions.

This construction derives support also from the case of Cox v. Hogy,
2 Dev. Eq., 121, decided in 1831, just before the will was drawn, and in
which the leading opinion is delivered by the eminent Judge who drew
it. In this case the disputed bequest was in these words: “My negroes
T wish divided equally among my wife, Louisa, Nancy, Olivia, and the
child of which my wife is pregnant, and in the case of the death, that
third share be equally divided among the survivors, and also the remain-
ing parts of my estate; providing in all cases that Lucy Drew (a child
who had incurred her father’s displeasure) shall never inherit one stiver,
in the case of the death of either of the above children or wife.”

This was a disposition and limitation of common property, and would,
perhaps, have been construed, as in Hilliard v. Kearney, Busb. Eq., 221,
but for the-disinheriting provision which might otherwise let in the
daughter Lucy, as confining the contingencies to the testator’s own life
. and to the first death among the legatees. After reciting numerous cases
from the English reports, the Judge says: “Upon their authority I con-
clude, however unnatural that construction may be, when another period
may be collected, not destructive of the fenancy in common, yet that it
i8 to be taken as matural and reasonable and intended, when opposed to
the still more unnatural one of a survivorship indefinitely, whereby the
whoale estate accumulates for one.”

The opinion concludes: “I am therefore of opinion that upon the
death of the testator, which was in this case the period for the vesting
and division, the legacies became absolute to his wife, and such of his
children as were then living.” :
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Harr, J., expresses himself in the same case thus: “In the present

case 1t might not be considered as going far out of the way to

(130) believe that the testator meant this: that if either of the legatees

should die before (in common parlance) they got their legacy, or

before it vested in them, then the survivors should have it. However,

the doctrine seems so well established that words of survivorship added

to a tenancy wn common are so construed as to prevent a lapse, and be-

come Inoperative at the death of the testator, that questions of that
description may be considered as put to rest.”

He cites a long array of authorities for the proposition.

These extracts are reproduced from the exhaustive discussion which
the subject underwent to show that, as in Hilliard v. Kearney, where the
discussion was not less thorough, the rule prevails in limitations of sur-
vivorship among tenants of property given to them in ecommon; and
further, that soon after the decision the present will was prepared by
one of the Judges who participated in making it, and who had become
familiar with the rules of construetion applied to such testamentary
dispositions.

To extend the limitations to all of the property given, and restrict the
defeating contingencies to the testator’s lifetime, would be to provide,
by will, precisely what the law would have done upon the event, without
any testamentary direction; an unnecessary provision, which it can
scarcely be supposed the draftsman would have inserted.

To embrace all the property and tie it up until the death of the donee,
whenever that might occur in the uncertain future, is inconsistent with
the evident intent that each donee of a separate portion of the estate
should have it absolutely, to use and dispose of as his own, and is whelly
irreconcilable with so much of it as that the use and property are in-
separable.

This is a fair and reasonable interpretation of the will, in harmony
with its whole structure and the intention developed in the language
used, to give it force and effect.

Cited: Buchanan v. Buchanan, 99 N. C., 314; Williams v. Lewis,
post, 1455 Bhyne v. Torrence, 109 N. C., 656; Kornegay v. Morres, 122
N. G, 202; Harrell v. Hagan, 147 N. C., 113; Campbell v. Cronly, 150
N. C, 468; Smith v. Lumber Co., 155 N. C., 392; Vinson v. Wise, 159
N. C,, 656; Dunn v. Hines, 164 N. C., 120; Rees v. Williams, 165 N. C,,
208; Springs v. Hoplkins, 171 N. C., 492; Hunt v. Jones, 173 N. C,,
553 ; Ryder v. Oates, tbid., 575 ; Bank v. Murray, 175 N. C,, 65; Radford
v. Rose, 118 N. C., 290; Goode v. Hearne, 180 N. C., 478; Dupree v.
Daughtridge, 188 N. C., 197; McCullen v: Daughtry, 190 N. C., 219;
Robertson v. Robertson, ibid., 562. '
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- (131)
ALBERT D. JOHNSON v. JAMES I. ALLEN. »

Husband and Wife—Harboring Wife—Evidence—Leading Questions—
Dockets of Justices, Quasi Records—Incompetent Evidence Not Ob-
jected to—Vindictive Damages—Evidence to Impeach Verdict.

. In a suit by a husband, charging defendant with harboring and de-
bauching plaintiff’s wife, it was competent to ask the plaintiff, testifying
in his own behalf, in reference to an action theretofore brought by the
wife for divorce, “Do you know who was present (at the trial of that
action) - as the friend and adviser of your wife? If yes, who was it?”

. It is for the judge below to exercise a discretion, as to when the rule as
to leading questions should be relaxed; and it is only when his exercise
of such discretion is clearly erroneous, and to the prejudice of the
complaining party, that it constitutes ground for a new trial. It seems
that the exercise of the discretion is not assignable as error.

. To show relations between defendant and plaintiff’s wife, it was competent
to prove that, while she was living in a house belonging to defendant, he
had her supplied with a sewing machine and instructed in its use.

. While the minutes of proceedings before a justice of the peace are a quasi
record and evidence of what is properly entered upon them, it is com-
petent to prove the conduct of a person at a trial, to show his relations
with one of the parties.

. Plaintiff having, at former term, issued a writ of habeas corpus ad testi-
ficandum, to his wife commanding her to produce the body of her young
child at the trial: Held, that the admission of the writ in evidence was
proper, for the purpose of showing that plaintiff had endeavored to have
witness and child present at the trial. -

. The admission of incompetent evidence, without objection, is assignable as
error, only when the evidence is made incompetent by statute.

. In actions for torts, where it is proper for the jury to give vindictive dam-
ages, it is competent to hear evidence of the pecuniary condition of the
defendant. .

. Where the defendant wantonly enticed plaintiff’s wife away from him,
and harbored and debauched her, held to be a case for vindictive
damages.

9. A stranger is justified in giving the wife of another continued shelter and

protection, only when the husband treats her with such violence as to
endanger her personal safety.

10. Evidence to impeach a verdict for the misconduct of a jury, must come

from other sources than the jury itself.

CrviL action, tried before Shepherd, J., at November Term, (132)
1887, of the Superior Court of Oranar. '
The facts sufficiently appear in the opinion.
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A. W. Graham for plointiff.
J. W. Graham and W. W. Fuller for defendant.

Mzrrimorn, J. The purpose of this action is to recover damages from
the defendant for “enticing, harboring, and debauching the plaintiff’s
wife.” On the trial the plaintiff was examined as a witness in his own
behalf. He testified as to his relations with hig wife and the interference
of the defendant therewith; and further, “That his said wife sued him
for a divorce ‘a mensa et thoro,” the summons being dated 10 July, 1885,
and the case came on for trial at March Term, 1886, of this Court, when
the said wife, after testifying in her own behalf, submitted to. a nonsuit.
Plaintiff’s counsel asked him the following question: ‘On the trial of
the action for divorce, brought against you by your wife, tried at March
Term, 1886, do you know who was present as the friend and adviser of
your wife? If yes, who was it#” To this question the defendant ob- -
jected. Objection overruled. Defendant excepted.

The evidence elicited was competent, because it tended to show the
relations between the wife and the defendaunt. The question was only

slightly leading; it did not strongly suggest the particular answer
(133) to be given by the witness, and, in view of all the evidence, the

discretion exercised by the court in allowing it, and the answer
to it, ought not to be reviewed, although, perhaps, it had been better to
have required the question to be put in a wholly unobjectionable shape.
Much must be left to the just discretion of the presiding judge in the
conduct of the trial, including the examination of witnesses. Particu-
larly, in a case like this, he observes the course of the examination of
the witness, and can better determine when the rule, as to leading ques-
tions, should be relaxed, and to what extent. It is only when the exer--
cise of his discretion in such respect is clearly erroneous and to the
prejudice of the party complaining, that of itself, it constitutes ground
for a new trial. Indeed, it seems that the exercise of the discretion of
the judge is not assignable as error. McCurry v. McCurry, 82 N. C,,
296; 1 Gf. Ev., sec. 435.

A witness for the plaintiffi—a merchant—testified that “Defendant
came to my store and asked the price of sewing machines. T told him
$40. He then selected one, and asked me to bring one like that he had
picked out to that house, the house on the defendant’s land where the
plaintiff’s wife was. He requested me to bring it myself, as the person
he intended it for was in a delicate condition and would rather that T
would not send either of the young men. When I got to the house,
defendant was in the field near by, and came up and sat on the door-
step. I carried the machine in, and was explaining it to plaintiff’s wife,
when defendant asked her, ‘Do you think you understand it % ”
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Defendant objected to all testimony in regard to the sewing machine,
beforo and after it was given. Objection overruled. Defendant excepted.

Obviously this evidence was competent. It tended, in connection with
other evidence, to show the defendant’s illicit relations with the
plaintiff’s wife, and that he encouraged her to remain on his land (134)
away from her husband.

Another witness for the plaintiff testified as follows: “I was deputy
sheriff and constable, and served a peace warrant on plaintiff, and took
him to Rose Jones’, on Colonel Allen’s land, for trial. Defendant was
then acting for plaintiff’s wife, at whose instance the warrant was issued,
and wag urging a trial, and objected to the removal of the case. Plain-
tiff swore that he would not gét justice before Sharp, and the case was
removed to W. T. Tate, another justice of the peace, in same township.
Defendant objected to it, but it was never prosecuted further. Plain-
tif’s wife said she was not in a condition to go to the trial if the case
was removed.”

Defendant objected to the above testimony. Objection overruled.
Defendant excepted. (Defendant had cross-examined plaintiff at length,
and brought out the fact that he had been arrested on a peace warrant
at the instance of his wife.)

The objection to this evidence went upon the ground that the “record”
of the court of the justice of the peace was the only proper evidence as
to what was done in respect to the warrant. The minutes of proceedings
before justices of the peace are, for many purposes, treated as quasi
records, and they are evidence of what is properly entered upon them.
But the purpose of the evidence objected to was not to prove anything
on the minutes kept by the justice of the peace, but to prove the conduct
of the defendant towards the plaintiff’s wife in her relations with her
husband, and for this purpose it was competent and properly received.

It appears that “the plaintiff, in his rebutting testimony, after defend-
ant had closed his testilmony, offered in evidence a writ of habeas corpus
ad testificandum, issued at last term of the court, directed to plaintiff’s
wife, commanding her to produce the body of her youngest child
to give evidence in behalf of the plaintiff.” (135)

Defendant objected. Objection overruled, his Honor allowing
it to be used ounly for the purpose of showing that plaintiff had endeav-
ored to have witness and child present at the trial. Defendant excepted.

‘What evidence produced on the trial by the defendant led to the intro-
duction by the plaintiff of the writ named does not appear. It seems
that it was suggested, in some conmnection, by the defendant, that the
plaintiff had not been diligent in bringing the infant referred to before
the court for some appropriate or supposed appropriate purpose. The
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court received the writ in evidence only for the purpose mentioned. For
this purpose it would, so far as we can see, be unobjectionable. In any
view of it, it was of slight importance, and its admission in evidence is
certainly not ground for a new trial. The burden was on the appellant
to show its importance, its incompetency, and that it tended to prejudice
him in some material respect.

It further appears that “At the close of the testlmony, before any
argument, defendant moved to sirike out all the evidence relating to
defendant’s pecuniary condition. The motion was denied, and defend-
ant excepted. This evidence was not objected to when offered.”

Upon principle and authority, objections to the admission of evidence
on the trial should be made in apt time; that is, when it is offered or
received ; the refusal of the court to exclude it at a subsequent time can-
not be assigned as error, except in cases where the evidence received is
made incompetent by some statutory provision. . Parties in the conduct
of the trial must be ‘circumspect and careful; it is serious; each step in
it ig important, and carelessness cannot be indulged. To allow evidence
to be brought out at one time on the trial, and excluded at a subsequent
one, might work injustice to the party introducing it; give rise to delay

and confusion, and encourage a looseness of practice that would
(188) certainly interfere more or less with the orderly and intelligent

conduct of trials. If, sometimes, the omission to object at the
proper time was occasioned by inadvertence or mistake in some way, the
presiding judge might grant a motion to exclude the objectionable evi-
dence, or allow the objection to be entered as of the proper time, but the
exercise of his discretion would not be reviewable here. 8. v. Ballard,
79 N. C., 627; 8. v. Efler, 85 N. C, 585; S. v. I'ratt, 88 N. CO., 639.
Moreover, as we shall presently see, the evidence which the appellant
sought to exclude was competent.

The case settled on appeal states that the p-laintiff requested the court
to instruct the jury:

“1. That if they believed the defendant used hls wealth and social
posrclon to entice the plamtlff’s wife away from him, and to induce her
to remain, they may glve vindictive damages.”

This instruction was given.

“2. That defendant, not being the parent of plaintiff’s wife, had no
right to harbor her after being forbidden.”

This instruction was given, with this modification: “This is true,
unless he shows he harbors her simply to protect the wife from the vio-
lence of the husband; and as to this, the burden is on the defendant to
show. If he has harbored her after being forbidden, you will find this
issue for plaintiff, unless you find it was unsafe, by reason of violence,
for her to return.”
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The court further instructed the jury “that if defendant aided plain-
tiff’s wife in procuring ‘a divorce, by employing counsel for her and in
advising and encouraging her, they might eonsider this as some evidence
of his harboring her, when taken in connection with the other circum-
stances of the case.”

He further instruected them “That punitive or vindictive dam-
ages are addressed to the sound discretion of the jury, and if, (137)
from all the circumstances of the case, they are satisfied the in- :
jury was wanton and wrongful, they may award such damages.” 7

The defendant, among other special instructions asked for, requested
the court to give the following, which it gave, as stated below :

“9. So, if a wife is kept by the defendant from a principle of hu-
manity, to secure ber from the ill treatment of her husband, an action
will not lie, even after notice.”

This was given, with the following modification: “Provided the ill
treatment is of such a cruel character as to force the wife to leave, and®
1t is not safe for her, by reason of her husband’s violence, to return to
him; and as to this, the burden of proof is on the defendant.”

The defendant insists that the court erred in instructing the jury, in
substance, that they might give the plaintiff vindictive or punitive dam-
ages, if the defendant used his wealth and social position to entice the
plaintifP’s wife away from him, and so remain, and they might give such
damages in their sound . discretion, if they were satisfied from all the
evidence that the injury done to the plaintiff was wanton and wrongful.

The evidence, in some aspects of it, tended strongly to prove that the
defendant was a man of considerable wealth; that he had strong influ-
ence over the plaintiff’s wife; that she occupied a house on his farm,
near, to his dwelling-house, with his permission; that he was often seen
about her—sometimes in the house with her, having the door closed;
that he let her have articles, such as she needed; that he encouraged
and helped her in opposition to her hushand, and the like. We do not
deem it necessary to recapitulate the evidence more at large here. It ig
sufficient to say that, while it was to some extent conflicting, there was
much of it that strongly warranted the instruction given as above stated,
and it was for the jury to take such views of and give it such
weight and application as they might deem just, subject to the (138)
power of the court to get their verdict aside for just cause.

The instructions complained of, now under consideration, were sub-
stantially correct. It is well settled in this State that for tortious in-
juries juries are not confined in ascertaining the damages to such as
are merely compensation for the actual injury sustained; they may go
further and give exemplary, windictive and punitive damages, the
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“amount to depend upon the character of the parties, the nature of the
injury complained of, its circumstances of aggravation and outrage to-
wards the-injured party, the pecuniary eircumstances of the defendant,
and the like considerations.

In Gilreath v. Allen, 10 Ired., 67, thls Court says: “In actions of
tort, where there are elrcumstances of aggravation, juries are not re-
stricted, in the measure of damages, to a mere compensation for the
injury actually sustained, but may, in their discretion, increase the
amount according to the degree of malice by which the evidence shows
the defendant was actuated, the extent of the injury intended, and not
that which was really inflicted. Accordingly juries are told, in many
cases, they may give exemplary damages—that is, such as will make an
example of the defendant, or vindictive damages, or smart money—
terms which explain themselves. . . . Injuries sustained by a per-
sonal insult or attempt to destroy character are matters which eannot
*be regulated by dollars and cents. It is fortunate that, while juries
endeavor to give ample compensation for the injury actually sustained,
they are allowed such full discretion as to make verdicts to deter others
from flagrant violations of social duty. Otherwise there would be many
injuries without adequate remedy.” To the like effect are Howell .
Howell, 10 Ired., 84; McAulay v. Birkhead, 13 Ired., 28; Bradley v.
Morris, Busb., 3955 Smuthwick v. Ward, 7 Jones, 64; Reeves v. Winn,

97 N. C., 246. And these cases and that of Adcock v. Marsh,
(139) 8 Ired., 860, likewise decide that, in such cases, it is competent

to give evidence of the pecuniary circumstances of the defendant,
with the view to enhance the measure of the damages.

There can be no question that the rule of law thus settled in this State
is applicable to the present and like cases. The jury have found, by
their verdict, that the defendant enticed plaintiff’s wife away from him;
that he harbored and debauched her; that he did this “wrongfully and
wantonly!” What greater tortious injury—deeply bumiliating and af-
flicting in its nature—could be done to a man? And for what injury
should the guilty party pay more dearly in exemplary damages, in the
absence of mitigating circumstances?

The defendant complains here that the court below failed to direct
the attention of the jury, particularly, to evidence tending to prove that
the plaintiff and his wife did not live harmoniously together before
their separation ; that he maltreated her; that she was not a pure woman,
and the like, and to give them proper instructions as to this part of the
evidence. But it does not appear from the record that the court did not
give such instructions, nor does it appear that it was requested to give
them, and refused to do so; and, moreover, there is no assignment of
error in that vespect. .
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This Court can only consider and act upon errors assigned. Besides,
where, as in this case, the court gives instructions applicable to the
facts, and gives, or refuses to give, special instructions asked for by the
parties, it cannot be assigned as error that it failed to present to the
jury a possible view of the facts that might have been of advantage to
the complaining party. Burfon v. E. R., 82 N. C., 504; King v. Black-
well, 96 N. C., 322; R. R. v. McCaskill, 98 N. C., 526. -

The court properly declined to give the special instructions
asked for by the defendant. (140)

“Ill treatment” is not a definite expression, but mere ill treat-
ment of the wife did not warrant the defendant in entertaining her,
thus keeping and encouragiug her to stay away and apart from her hus-
band. The purpose and policy of the law are that husband and wife
shall live harmoniously together, and if need be that each shall endure
the shortcomings of the other. They fnay not separate because of slight
or even serious differences and disagreements and mere ill treatment of
one towards the other; and it is only when the husband treats his wife
with violence—endangers her personal safety—that a stranger shall be
justified in giving her continued shelter, support and protection against
the husband’s will. Otherwise the strength and permanency of the
marriage relation would be impaired, to the great detriment of family
ties and the good order and well-being of society.

We think, also, that the court properly told the jury that the burden
of proving the alleged cruel conduct of the plaintiff towards his wife
was upon the defendant. Generally a man shall not entertain and keep
a wife away from her husband against his will; if he shall do se, and
the husband shall bring his action against him for that cause, and he
shall rely upon the defense that the plaintiff was violent towards his
wife and endangered her safety, so that she was forced to flee from him,
he must plead and prove his defense. The plaintiff need not allege in
his complaint that he was not violent towards his wife, and did not
imperil her safety while she lived with him in his house, and he is not
bound to prove an allegation he is not required to make in the com-
plaint. '

The defendant moved for a new trial, assigning, among other grounds
for it, that of the alleged misconduct of the jury in settling the quanfum
of damages allowed the plaintiff. The evidence relied upon to »
support the motion, in this respect, consisted of affidavits, stating (141)
what one or more of the jurors had said, in the presence of the
affiants, as to how the jury had conducted their proceedings in ascer-
taining the damages. To allow the motion, founded npon such evidence,
would be virtually to allow jurors to impeach their own verdict. It is
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settled, as the court properly held, that this cannot be allowed. Evi-
dence to impeach the verdict of the jury must come from sources other
than the jurors themselves. Otherwise motions for a new trial would
frequently be made, based upon incautious remarks of jurors, or declara-
tions by them procured to be made by the losing party or some person
in his interest, and thus the usefulness and integrity of trial by jury
would be impaired. Moreover, controversies thus arising would lead to
unseemly confusion. 8. v. Tilghman, 11 Ired., 513; S. v. Smallwood,
78 N. C., 560; 8. v. Brittain, 89 N. C., 481; S. v. Royal, 90 N. C., 755.

The court did not decide that it did not have authority to set aside
the verdict and grant a new trial because of misconduct of the jury; it
simply held that the evidence relied upon to support the motion was not
competent, and in this it was correct

Judgment affirmed.

Cited: Purcell v. B. R., 119 N. C., 789; Brooks v. B. B., 115 N. C,,
625; Powell v. Benthall, 136 N. C., 1565 Powell v. Strickland, 163
N. C., 400; Hollifield v. Telephone Co., 172 N. C., 7255 Brown v. Hills-
boro, 185 N. O., 873; Bartholomew v. Parrish, 186 N. C., 85; Lumber
Co. v. Lumber Co., 187 N. C., 418; Power Co. v. Cosualty Co, 193
N. C., 618.

(142)
H. C. WILLIAMS AnD WiIrk v. GEO. N. LEWIS.

Construction of Will—Coniingent Limitations—Partition—Estoppel.

1. A testatrix, among other provisions, devised as follows:

“Ttem 3. I will and devise that my son Rebert and my daughter Ellen have
two hundred acres of land laid off in good shape, to include all the houses
and improvements—to remain undivided until Robert becomes of age,
or until one of them gets married—then to be equally divided between
them.

(Item 5, gives land to her son John, in fee.)

“Itgm 9. I will and desire, that should my son John die, leaving no heir,
I will and desire that Ellen and Robert heir his part of my estate; and
should Elen and Robert die leaving no heir, then the surviving one to
heir the estate of deceased brother or sister.”

Held, that the time when the contingencies are to happen, so as to give

effect to the ulterior limitations, is the death of the respective dev1sees
without children then living, and no earlier period.
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2. Where land is devised to several, “to be equally divided between them,”
.with cross contingent limitations, a judgment, in a proceeding for parti-
tion, does not estop either to claim the share of the others upon the
happening of the event which is to give effect to the limitations. The
partition, being in accordance with the provisions of the will, separates
that which was before held in common; but in no way disturbs the
limitations; these adhere to the respective shares after partition, as
fully as they did to the whole before partition. .

Davis, J.; did not sit on the hearing of this case.

Crvir, action tried before Merrimon, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of
Nasu Superior Court.

Judgment for plaintiffs; defendant appealed.

The facts appear in the opinion.

F. A. Woodard (C. M. Cooke also filed a brief) for plaintiffs.

Jacob Battle for defendant.

f

Smrrr, C. J. The controversy in this action arises out of the (143)
conflicting interpretations of the will of William Jane Bryant
(under which both parties derive their claim of title), who died in
August, 1872, shortly after making it.

The testatrix, after giving to her daughter Medora fifty acres, to be
taken from the southern portion of her tract of land, to be run off and
allotted to her by her executor, which has been done, devises as follows:

“Ttem 3. I will and devise that my son Robert and my daughter Ellen
have two hundred acres of land, laid off in good shape, to include all
the houses and improvements, to remain undivided until Robert becomes
of age or until one of them gets marrled then to be equally divided
between them.”

“Item 5. I give and bequeath unto my son, John Bryant, all the bal-
ance of my tract of land, being about one hundred and five acres, to
him and his heirs forever.”” To which, elsewhere, she adds certain
pecuniary bequests.

“Item 9. I will and desire that should my son John die, leaving no
heir, I will and desire that Ellen and Robert heir his part of my estate,
and should Ellen or Robert die, leaving no heir, the surviving one to
heir the estate of the deceased brother or sister.”

The two hundred acres mentioned in the third item of the will were,
soon after the death of the testatrix, cut off by the executor and allotted
to Ellen and Robert, who entered into possession and jointly occupied
the same until November, 1876, when Ellen, the feme plaintiff, inter-
married with Henry C. Williams, who and herself are the parties to the
action; and thereupon, at their instance and in association with Robert,
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under proceedings in the Superior Court before the clerk, the land was
divided, and the moiety of each tenant assigned and set apart to her and
him in severalty.

Robert was at that time a minor, but he became of age before 1882, in

which year he conveyed by deed the tract which he held to the
(144) defendant, George N. Lewis, in fee. Robert died in 1886, never
having married, and w1th0ut 1ssue.

The plaintiffs construe the limitation as dependent upon there being
no issue living at the time of Robert’s decease, and insist that the con-
tingency having happened, the estate of Robert vests, under the will, in
Ellen, his surviving sister. The defendant claims that to make the
limitation valid and effectual the death, without issue, must occur dur-
ing the testator’s lifetime, or at least before the period specified for a
division, and that this not having happened, the estate of Robert became
absolute and free from the contingent limitation. The solution of this
controversy determines the title and the consequent result of the action.

We do not attribute to the proceedings for partition the effect of an
estoppel, since this is in accordance with the provisions of the will, and
it must be consistent with itself. The partition separates into parts that
which was before held in common as a whole, and no more disturbs the
limitations affixed to the devised estates than would have been a devise
of the several portions to the respective tenants by the testatrix herself.
Indeed the separate parts are, after the partition directed, as truly held
under the contingent limitations as were previously thereto the undi-
vided estates of each in the entire three hundred acres. There was no
estoppel, therefore, in executing the directions of the testatrix, and the
recital of the devising clause in the petition shows such was the intent
and understanding of the parties to the proceeding, and that it was not
to supersede or disturb the conditions annexed to the devised estates of
the tenants.

The only question then is as to the time when the contingencies are
to happen, if at all, so as to give effect to the ulterior limitations. In
our opinion the time contemplated by the testatrix is the death of the
respective tenants without an heir—that is, without children then liv-

ing, and no earlier period. The postponed division shows that
(145) it was not the intention of the testatrix to confine the contin-

gency even to the period of her own life, for in such case there
would be no partition to make; nor was it her purpose to restrict it to
the time of making the division, which was but a severance of the
estates, and left the relations between the devisees the same as before.

Taking the terms of the instrument as a guide to us in finding what
the testatrix meant, and without superadding words that she does not
use, it is to us manifest that the estate should remain in each devisee
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until his or her death, and then go over to the survivor, if no children
or child were left by the deceased.

The subject is so fully considered in the cases of Galloway v. Carter,
ante, 111, and Buchanan v. Buchanan, 99 N. C., 308, decided at this
term, that we deem it useless to protraect the discussion. There i1s no
error, and the judgment must be

Affirmed.

Cited: Trexler v. Holler, 107 N. C.,, 622; Harrell v. Hagan, 147
N. C., 113; Dawson v. Ennett, 151 N. C., 545; Perrett v. Bird, 152 N.-C,,
292; Jones v. Myati, 153 N. C., 230; Smith v. Lumber Co., 185 N. C,,
391; Vinson v. Wise, 159 N. C., 656; Weston v. Lumber Co., 162 N. C.,
171; Rees v. Williams, 164 N. C., 132; S. ¢., 165 N. C., 208; Springs v.
Hoplins, 171 N. C., 491; Whitfield v. Douglas, 175 N. C., 48; Stallings
v. Walker, 176 N. C,, 323 Ziegler v. Love, 185 N. C., 42; Cook v. Sink,
190 N. C., 626.

J. S. BURWELL, ADMINISTRATOR, v. H. C. LINTHICUM, ADMINISTRATOR.

Statute of Limgtations—Seal After Signature of Firm Name—The
Code, Sec. 155, Subsec. 9.

1. Where a contract, entered into by an individual and a copartnership, is
reduced to writing, and signed and sealed by the individual, and the firm
name is signed, and a seal put after it by a member of the firm, the
instrument is the covenant of the individual, and the simple contract
of the firm.

2. An action on such an instrumeqt is barred by the statute of limitations
after three years from the time it arose, as to the copartnership and the
members thereof.

3. In 1882 defendant’s intestate contracted to build a house for plaintiff’s
intestate. The house was completed, turned over to, and accepted by
plaintiff’s intestate in 1883. In 1887 plaintiff sued on the contract to
recover for defective work done on the house, contrary to the terms
of the contract, which defects were not discovered until 1885: Held, (1)
That the cause of action arose at the time the house was completed and
accepted, and was barred after three years from that time. (2) That the
action would have been at law, under the former system of practice, and,
therefore, did not come within the saving in subsection (9), section 155,
The Code,.

Crvir acrion tried before Shipp, J., at October Term, 1887, of (146)
Vaxce Superior Court.
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The court intimated an opinion that plaintiff’s cause of action was
barred by the statute of limitations, in deference to which plaintiff sub-
mitted to a nonsuit and appealed.

This action, begun on 2 February, 1887, by the plaintiff, J. S. Bur-
well, administrator of Henry H. Burwell, against the defendant, H. C.
Linthicum, administrator of William H. Linthicum, is brought to re-
cover damages for the breach of a contract in writing for the construc-
tion of a storehouse for the plaintiff’s intestate, the particulars whereof
are set out in detail therein. Tt is only necessary, in order to show the
parties to it and the nature of the obligations respectively entered into,
to set out the beginning and concluding words, and these are as follows:

“Articles of agreement, made and entered into this 31 March, 1882,
by and between Henry H. Burwell, Jr., of the first part, of the county
of Vance, N. C., and Wm. H. Linthicum and James B. Ley, trading
under style and firm of W. H. Linthicum & Co., at Durham, N. C,, of
the second part, witnesseth: That the said W. H. Linthicum & Co.
agree to build for said H. H. Burwell, Jr., in the town of Henderson,

N. C., on the lot,” etc. The concluding words are: “This con-
(147) tract to be in full force, binding on both parties, unless they

hereafter agree on a turnkey job, then this is to be null and void;
otherwise, in full force and effect.

“As witness our hands and seals, this 3 March, 1882.

“H. H. BurwELL. [Seal.]
“W. H. Lizvtarovm & Co.  {Seal.]
“Witnesses: Jas. C. Warkins, E. Hings.”

The complaint assigns viclation of the terms of the contract by the
parties undertaking the work, which are controverted in the answer, and
the further defense is relied on arising from the lapse of time, since the
completion of the building, of more than three years, and the inter-
posing bar of the statute of limitations to the action.

Upon the trial it was admitted that the structure was finished, turned
over to the plaintiff’s intestate, and accepted by him in the summer of
1883, but the defects therein were not discovered until the year 1885.

The court intimated an opinion that the cause of action arose at the
time when the house was finished and received, and that it was barred
by the statute. In deference thereto the plaintiff submitted to a nonsuit
and appealed, presenting the sole question of the application of the
statutory bar.

Geo. H. Snow for plantiff.
No counsel for defendant.
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Surra, C. J., after stating the facts: The rulings of this Court are
decisive of the character of the instrument and the nature of the obliga-
tion which it imposes. While bearing the seals of the parties, it is a
covenant as to the intestate, H. H. Burwell, and a simiple unsealed con-
tract as to the other party. This rule is settled by several adjudications
in this Court.

In Brown v. Bosttan, 6 Jones, 1, which was an agreement to (148)
deliver to the plaintiff firm of Brown, Brawley & Co. one hun-
dred barrels of good, merchantable flour, and after the words, “witness
our hands and seals,” it bore the signatures, thus:

Brown, Brawrey & Co. [Seal.]
Davip BosTian, {Seal.]

In the body of the instrument are found the words: “Said Brown, for
Brown, Brawley & Co., contracts and agrees,” ete., and Battle, J., in the
opinion, says: “It ig true that, in the body of the instrument, the con-
tract purports to be made between John L. Brown, for the plaintiffs and
the defendant; and John L. Brown, for the plaintiffs, promises to pay
the defendant for the flour upon its delivery. Brown, as a member of
the firm, had full authority to make the contract, but not to bind the
partnership by a seal. Had the defendant performed his part of the
contract by the delivery of the flour he might have found a diffienlty
in suing any person upon this written agreement. He could not have
maintained an action upon it against Brown alone, becaunse it was not
signed in his name; nor could he have sued the partnership upon it,
because Brown was not authorized to put their seal to it. The defend-
ant would not, however, have been without an adequate remedy, as he
could have brought an action against them for goods sold and delivered,
and used the written instrument as evidence of the price and terms of
payment.” For this he cites Delius v. Cawthorn, 2 Dev., 90; Osborne v.
Phe High Schools Mining and Mfg. Co., 5 Jones, 177.

In Fronebarger v. Henry, 6 Jones, 548, Buffin, J., declares the rule
of the common law to be “that one partner cannot bind another by deed
by virtue of his authority as partner merely, and that an instrument like
this (before the Court) is the deed of the executing party alone.” And
he questions the admissibility of the instrument as “plenary evi-
dence of a debt of the firm on any consideration.” (149)

In Fisher v. Pender, T Jones, 483, the apparent discrepaney in
the two cases is explained and removed in a full and learned discussion
of the doctrine, and the conclusion reached is announced by Battle, J.,
in these terms: “It is apparent from the case (Elliot v. Dawvis, 2 Bos. &
Pull. Rep., 338) that one partner may bind himself by deed by signing
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it in the name of the partnership, provided he seal and deliver it as his
own deed as well as that of the partnership, and he will be bound by the
instrument, though the other partner or partners will not, unless he had
their authority, under seal, to execute for them. That is the true rule,
and it is in accordance with the well-established principles which govern
the execution of deeds.” '

The same principle is recognized in Osborne v. High Schools M. &
Man. Co., supra, and Taylor v. School Com., 5 Jones, 98; Holland v.
Clark, 67 N. C., 104.

The agreement shows clearly that the partnership and not an indi-
vidual member was intended to be bound, and it was, at most, if effectual
at all, a parol contract of the firm, and subject to the three years statu-
tory bar, while the obligation of the plaintiff’s intestate, incurred by
covenant, is governed by a different period of limitation, and there is
no inconsistency in this, as decided in Dawis v. G'olston, 8 Jones, 28.

The appellant seems to have claimed the benefit of subsec. 9, sec. 155,
of The Code, which provides for relief against fraud in cases thereto-
fore “solely cognizable in a couri of equity,” in which the cause of
action acernes from the time of its being discovered. The present action,
under the former system, would have been at law and not in equity, and
does not belong to the clags mentioned in the statute. Blount v. Parker,
78 N. C., 128, and cases at the foot of the section. There is no error,
and the judgment is

Affirmed.

Cited: Pipe Co. v. Woltman, 114 N. C., 185; Shankle v. Ingram, 133
N. C, 259; Cowan v. Cunningham, 146 N. C., 454; Supply Co. v. Wind-
ley, 176 N. C., 19.,

(150)
BLACKWELL’S DURHAM TOBACCO COMPANY v. JOHN H. McELWEE.

Evidence, Sec. 590—0bjections to Hvidence—E{ffect of Forbearance to
Sue for Unlawful Use of Trademark.

1. In a legal controversy concerning the ownership of a trade mark, plaintiff
claimed title to the same under one G. Defendant also claimed an inter-
est in the trade mark, acquired, as he alleged, in association with, or
by virtue of transactions with G.: Held, that defendant could not be
heard to testify as to any dealings or transactions between bimself and
G.—who was then dead—with reference to the subject of the controversy.
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2. Where a copy is offered in evidence and objection is made, not on the
ground that the original is not produced, but on some other specified
ground, the objection that the paper is not primary evidence cannot be
made in the appellate court.

@

Plaintiff introduced in evidence a copy of defendant’s application for
registration of a trade mark. Defendant stated on his examination
as a witness, that the paper was a copy of his application: Held, that it
was proper to allow plaintiff to require defendant to state that there was
a proceeding or declaration interfering after his application was filed, as
such answer tended to show that there had not been a guiet acquiescence
in the validity of defendant’s claim to ownership of the trade mark,
and a submission to it.

4. Allowing an improper question to be asked cannot be assigned for error
if the witness makes no response to it.

5. As between two adverse claimants of the invention and sole ownershlp of
a trade mark, no greater force is to be given to the fact that one of the
parties used the trade mark for several years without being molested
therein by the other, than that of evidence tending to disprove the claim
of the other. Such forbearance on the part of the true owner, beyond its
weight in disproving his title, cannot have the effect of extinguishing
his rights, or operate beyond barring an action under the statute of .
limitations, or a presumption of an abandonment. But such indulgence
may be deemed such an assent to the use of the trade mark as would
not entitle the owner to demand damages for its intermediate use.

6. Upon an' issue as to the title to a trade mark, a witness testified on the
trial, without objection, “the plaintiff owns it now”: Held, that, there
being no contradictory evidence, it was proper to leave the jury to pass
upon it, although it had been previously shown that B. was formerly
the owner and there was no other proof offered of a transfer from B.
to the plaintiff.

- Crvin action tried before Shepherd, J., and a jury, at Au- (151)
gust Term, 1887, of Durmam Superior Court.
Verdict and judgment for plaintiff. Defendant appealed.

A. W. Graham, John W. Groham, and W. W. Fuller for plaintiff.
John Devereux, Jr., for defendant.

SurtH, C. J. The nature and purpose of the present action, as set
forth in the pleadings, are restated and explained in the opinion of the
Court when the case was before us upon a former appeal (94 N. C.,
425), and dispense with a repetition of the facts. Upon the last trial
at September Term, 1887, of Person Superior Court, issues were sub-
mltted and answered as follows

. “Is the plamtlff as against the defendant, entitled to the gsole and
excluswe use of the device or symbol of a bull in connection with the
words smoking tobaeco, when attached to packages of smoking tobacco ?”

Answer: “Yes.”
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2. “Is the plaintiff entitled to the sole and exclusive use of, as against
the defendant, the label, sign and trademark mentioned in his complaing
and set forth in his exhibit? And if not to all of said trademark, to
what part or parts of it?” Answer: “Yes; all.” V

3. “Hag plaintiff been damaged by the defendant unlawfully affixing
or annexing to packages of smoking tobacco manufactured or sold by
defendant, defendant’s labels containing plaintiff’s trademark, or any
part of it?” Answer: “No.”

The plaintiff derived its claim to the property in and the exclusive

right to use the trademark device and label in dispute under one
(152) J. R. Green, and the defendant introduced evidence to show that

in the fall of 1865 himself and Green, who were partners and
manufacturers of smoking tobaceo, originated and adopted the same
trademark, and used it upon their goods manufactured at Durham. In
the progress of the trial before the jury the plaintiff offered in evidence
a certified copy of a copyright issued to Green which, after objection
from the defendant, was admitted, and it was afterwards ruled out, and
the jury directed to disregard it.

Tho defendant’s counsel proposed to ask him what interest, if any, he
(the witness) had in the trademark at the time when he was manufac-
turing tobacco at Rowan Mills? This inquiry was not allowed for the
same reason that the interest, as the witness had already stated, was
acquired in association with Green, and grew out of a transaction be-
tween them.

A similar question, “When was the trademark originated #” was, upon
the same grounds, not permitted to be answered by the witness.

These rulings form the subjeet of the three exceptions mentioned, and,
we think, come clearly within the inhibitions of the statute, and the
evidence was properly excluded, as coming from a party to the transac-
tion with one under whom the plaintiff claims.

5. The next exception was to the introduction by the plaintiff of a
certified copy of the defendant’s application for registration of his
claimed trademark, admitted to be in due form, and resisted on the
ground that the law under which it had been filed was unconstitutional.
It was permitted to be read as a declaration of the defendant. The de-
fendant said, in his further examination, that he applied for such regis-
tration, and that the paper referred to and handed the witness was his

said application, but he did not remember that he claimed an
(153) exclusive right in the trademark. The plaintiff then inquired,

“Was there not a proceeding or declaration interfering after you
filed the application?” Upon objection made and overruled, the witness
answered “Yes.”
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It is to be observed that the objeetion is not to the character or quality
of the evidence, as secondary, and not admissible under section 4940 of
the Revised Statutes of the United States, but because the Constitution
allows no such exclusive right to the use of a trademark to be thus
secured to the inventor. Regarding the copy as if the original had been
produced, and to this, and for the reason that it was not primary evi-
dence, objection to be available should then have been made (Bridgers
v. Bridgers, 69 N. C., 451; Gidney v. Moore, 86 N. C., 485; S. v. Kemp,
87 N. C,, 538) and put upon proper ground.

The answer to the last question was sought, to show that there had not
been a quiet acquiescence in the validity of the defendant’s claim to
ownership of the trademark and a submission to it. Offered for such
purpose, we find no just ground for exception to its reception.

7. The objection to an inquiry of the defendant, whether he had ever
sued any one for an infringement of his alleged right to the trademark.
This was followed by an answer that he had sued no one but Blackwell
& Carr, and the answer was received as tending to qualify and explain
his previous testimony as to his use of it, and the time and place, when
and where 1t had been so used, and for this object was competent.

8. The inquiry put to S. A. Sharpe, a witness for defendant, as to the
character of the witness Geo. F. Shepherd, whose deposition had been
read, and if there were not, in his community, many hard reports in
regard to his reputation, if liable to objection, is freed from it by the
answer—*“I have heard of none.” Bost v. Bost, 87 N. C., 4717.

The next exceptions are to instructions asked and refused, and to the
instructions given to the jury.

The defendant’s counsel agked the court to charge the jury: (154)

“1. That if they find from the testimony that the defendant
was at any time in the open, public, and continuous use of the trade-
mark in question, by placing it on packages of smoking tobacco, and
placing such packages upon the market in North Carolina and else--
where for the space of three years, with the knowledge of plaintiff or of
those under whom it claims, before plaintiff became their assignee, and
neither plaintiff nor those under whom it claims took any legal proceed-
ings to stop or restrain defendant in the use of said trademark, there
being during these three years no legal proceedings by defendant against
plaintiff or those under whom it claims involving defendant’s right to
so use said trademark, then the jury ought to find that, as against de-
fendant, plaintiff is not entitled to the exclusive use of said trademark.

“2. T ask the above instructions in the same words as above, only
substituting the words fwo years for the words three years in the two
places where they oceur in No. 1, as asked above.
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“3. I ask the same instructions as are asked in No. 1 above, substi-
tuting the words one year for the words three years in the two places
where they occur in No. 1, as above,

“4, If Nos. 1, 2 and 3, as asked above, are all refused by the court,
then I ask the instruction as asked in No. 1, substituting seven years for
three years in the two places where they oceur in No. 1, as above.

“5, I ask his Honor to tell the jury that if they believe the witness
J. 8. Carr, then he had notice in the year 1872 that defendant was using
the said trademark on packages of smoking tobacco; said Carr was then
a partner with W. T. Blackwell, under whom plaintiff claims, in the

use of said trademark.
(155)  “6. I ask his Honor to tell the jury that there is no evidence of

any legal proceeding or litigation involving the right of plaintiff,
or those under whom it claims or of defendant, to use said trademark,
being instituted by either plaintiff, or those under whom it claims or by
defendant, before the year 1880.

“R. F. ArmrFisLp,
Attorney for Defendant.”

If No. 6 is declined, then I ask it with the modification, “before 23
July, A. D. 1877 R. ¥. ArMFIELD.

The court gave instructions 1, 2, 3 and 4, with this modification: “But
if you believe that the plaintiff, or those under whom it claims, did no
act or thing by which the defendant was induced to believe that it had
abandoned its alleged exclusive right to use the said brand, and the
plaintiff and those under whom it claims had been in the continual use
of said brand from its invention and adoption to the present time of the
commencement of this suit, claiming the exclusive right to use it, and
that whenever they had notice of the use of the same by the defendant
they promptly interfered with such use by threats to sue, seizure of the
tobacco so labeled or put on the market by defendant, notice to defend-
ant’s purchasers of the same, or by such other acts and declarations
known to defendant, by which the defendant knew that the plaintiff and
those under whom it claims at all times claimed the exclusive right to
use sald brand, and at all times after notice of the use by defendant
denied and contested the right of the defendant to use it, then the failure
to bring said suit within the periods mentioned would not take away the
plaintiff’s exclusive right to use the same.”

To this modification the defendant excepted.
(156)  The court gave the 5th instruction as prayed for.

The court declined to give the 6th and 7th instructions, stating
to the jury that they might consider the evidence of the defendant and

140



N. C.] FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

Topacco COMPANY v. MCELWEE.

the witness Allen as some evidence on these points. Defendant excepted.

There was a verdict for the plaintiff on the first two issues, and to
the issue as to damages the jury found that no damage had been sus-
tained by plaintiff.

The defendant moved for a new trial on the following grounds:

For that the court admitted incompetent evidence against and ex-
cluded competent evidence for him;

For error in refusing instructions asked and giving others in their
place, and

For that, in the absence of any proof to connect the plaintiff with
W. T. Blackwell in the alleged ownership, it was left to the jury to so
find.

The motion was denied, and judgment being rendered for the plain-
11ff, the defendant appealed. '

The instructions requested are embodied in one general proposition,
varying as to the interval of time only, that the inaction of the suc-
cessive alleged owners of the trademark to put a stop to the use of it by
the defendant by a restraining judicial order or other means, when
aware of the continued infringement, and the same course pursued by
the defendant, asserting, but not enforcing, his own claim thereto, war-
rant the jury in finding the first issue in the negative.

As the question between the parties is as to the invention and appro-
priation of the trademark, whereby a proprietary and sole right to its
use 18 acquired, we do not see why any other force should be given to
the supposed acquiescence in the defendant’s alleged invasion than that
of evidence tending to disprove the claim itself.

The modification in the charge presented the matter in another
aspect, leaving to the jury to pass upon the evidence and derive (157)
such conclusions as were warranted by it. Of the charge, con-

- sidered as a whole, the defendant has no just cause of complaint. If
his contention, as expressed in the instructions asked, was that the pro-
prietor’s righ't was lost by such forbearance, altho-ugh it was already
vested, we cannot give it our sanction. The delay in vindicating an
invaded right, beyond its weight in disproving its existence, cannot have
the effect of extinguishing it or operate beyond barring the action under
the statute of limitations or a presumption of an abandonment. The
indulgence may be deemed such an assent to the use of the device as
would not entitle the owner to demand damages for its intermediate use,
and so, accordingly, none are awarded against the defendant.

Ag is held in Taylor v Carpeater, 2 Woodb. & M., 1, a long delay in
prosecuting the claim after knowledge of the wrong would be competent
evidence of acquiescence in it, but could be no bar to a recovery unless
extended to the period presented in the statute of limitations.
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The last error assigned is that the jury were permitted to connect the
plaintiff in ownership with W. T. Blackwell, from whom it is alleged
to have been derived, without any evidence of a transfer.

The testimony of J. S. Carr was (and that without objection) that
“the plaintiff company owns it now,” referring to the trademark, and
there being no controversy upon this point during the trial, this seems
to have been received as sufficient proof of the fact of transfer, and it
was proper to let the jury pass upon it.

We find, therefore, no error in the record, and the judgment is

Affirmed.

Cited: Carey v. Carey, 104 N. C,, 174,

(158).

THE STATE, O~ THE RELATION 0F MARTIN KELLOGG, v. THI! SUFFOLK
" AND CAROLINA RAILROAD COMPANY.

Rail Bonds—The Code, Sec. 1964.

1. A house and platform on the side of the track of a railroad, at which
freight is occasionally received and discharged by the company, but at
which no agent’s office or books are kept, or bills of lading or receipts
given, is not a “regular depot or station,” within the meaning of section
1964 of The Code, which imposes a penalty on a transportation company
for refusal to receive freight.

2, Where the engineer and conductor of a railroad train occasionally stopped
the train to take on freight at points along the line, not regular stations:
Held, that such acts did not constitute the engineer and conductor re-
ceiving and forwarding agents of the railroad company within the terms
of section 1964 of The Code.

Crvin action tried before Avery, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of GaTss
Superior Court. :

Judgment for defendant. Plaintiff appealed.

The facts appear in the opinion of the Court.

- W. D. Pruden for plaintiff.
L. L. Smgth and John Guatling for defendant.

Davis, J. This was a civil action, originally commenced before a
justice of the peace for the county of Gates, to recover a penalty of $50,
for refusing to receive freight, under section 1964 of The Code, and
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carried by appeal to the Superior Court of said county and tried before
Avery, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of said court.

The evidence was, in substance, that during the latter part of Novem-
ber, 1886, the plaintiff carried two mattresses and put them on the
platform of a building standing at a place on the line of defendant com-
pany’s road called “Meara Station,” about one mile from Sunsbury, a
regular station, and gave the usual signal to an approaching train to
stop. It did not stop, “but the engineer shook his head and went
on.” After the train had passed, at the request of the plaintiff, (159)
Captain Meara, who lived one-fourth of a mile distant, and who
was not an agent of defendant company, procured some tools and a
lock which he put on one door to the building, and nailed up the other
(there were two doors to the building; one of them was off the hinges
and to the other there was no lock) and then “put away” the plaintiff’s
mattresses for him.

On the next morning the train stopped, and they. were shippad to
Suffolk. ‘

Freight had been “taken off and on,” and “it was not uncommon to
see the train stop at the point during trucking season.” There was never
any station agent there; no tickets were kept or sold there; no agent’s
office, and no books were kept there or bills of lading or receipts given.
The conductor stopped the train and took on freight and passengers.
The plaintiff testified that he had heard the conductor say, about ten
days before he brought the mattresses to ship, that he did not intend to
stop at Meara again.

Captain Meara testified that he had known freight to be shipped from
there twenty times since the house was built there two years previously,
and had known freight to be delivered on three or four occasions, and
he had never known the refusal to stop the train before when the usual
signal was given.

The issue was, “Did the defendant company refuse to receive freight
when tendered by the plaintiff at a regular station on its line of road,
to be forwarded as directed by the plaintiff¢”

The court instructed the jury that, upon the testimony, there was no
view in which the plaintiff could recover; that there was no view of the
testimony in which the jury could find, in reference to the issue sub-
mitted, that Meara was a regular station on the defendant company’s
road. There was a verdict and judgment for the defendant, from
which the plaintiff appealed. (160)

Section 1964 of The Code, under which this action was brought,
declares that “Agents and other officers of railroads and transportation
companies, whose duty it is to receive freight, shall receive all articles
of the nature and kind received by such company for transportation
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whenever tendered at a regular depot, station, wharf or boat landing,
and shall forward the same by the route selected by the person tendering
the freight, under existing laws; and the transportation company, repre-
sented by any person, refusing to receive such freight, shall be liable to
a penalty of fifty dollars, and each article refused shall constitute a
separate offense.” ;

Section 1963 prescribes the rules for transportation, and requires
railroad companies, among other things, to provide for the transporta-
tion of such “property as shall, within a reasonable time previous
thereto, be offered for transportation,” ete.

Section 1967 makes it unlawful to permit articles received for ship-
ment to remain unshipped for more than five days, ete.

‘We can see no error in the ruling of his Honor. Meara was no “regu-
lar depot or station,” within the meaning of the statute. There was no
agent of the company there charged with the duty of receiving property
for transportation, and the engineer or conductor on the train could not
be, as disclosed by the evidence, such receiving and forwarding agents as
are contemplated by section 1964.

There are several other questions presented by the record which we
need not consider as the evidence, all of which was offered by the plain-
tiff, fails to present any state of facts that would entitle him to recover.
There is

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Land v. R. R., 104 N. C., 56.

(161)

A. H. HAMMOND axp W. H. JUSTICE v. PHILIP SCHIFF AND
JONAS SCHIFF.

Bzxperts — Fasement—Party Walls—Ewvidence—Pleading—Damages—
Ezcepting to Judge's Charge.

1. The decision of the judge, that a witness is qualified to testify as an expert,
cannot be reviewed in the Supreme Court.

2. A, by a written instrument, signed, but not under seal, agreed, for a
valuable congideration, that B., his heirs and assigns, might use a wall
on land belonging to A., as one of the walls of a building which B. was
about to erect on his lot adjoining A’s: Held, (1) that such an instrument
while it did not transfer an easement in lew, because not under seal, has
in equity, when acted on, a force and efficacy little short of a grant of an
easement, and disables A, and those claiming under him, from an
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arbitrary and reckless use of the land of A. whereon the wall in question
stands, to the detriment of B.; (2) that oral evidence was admissible
to prove acts of the parties to such instrument, treating and recognizing
the wall in question as a party wall.

3. Where the plaintiff had testified, on the trial, that he had told the defend-
ant he would sue out an injunction to stop him from recklessly excavating
the carth close to plaintiff’s wall: Held, that it was not error, to allow
plaintiff to testify, that he did not sue out the injunction because he
could not get to the judge.

4. A general objection to evidence of which only a part is incompetent will
not be entertained, if the evidence is severable,

5. Where plaintiff sued for damages resulting from the unlawful and reckless
undermining of plaintiff’s wall by defendant, evidence of injury to plain-
tiff’s goods by being flooded with water used in extinguishing a fire,
which was caused by the falling of the wall, was properly admitted, al-
though such cause of injury was not specially set out in the complaint.

6. The rules of pleading are not so stringent as to require a special averment
in the complaint, of every immediate cause of injury, in an action for
damages.

7. In an action to recover damages for an injury done to plaintiff’s goods, no
reduction can be made on the ground that plaintiff has recovered on
insurance policies ; because, to allow such diminution, would be to permit
the wrongdoer to take all the benefit of the policy of insurance without
paying the premium.

8. The Supreme Court will not entertain an excepfion in general terms to
an entire eharge;'th_e errors complained of must be specifically assigned,
or they will not be reviewed. ’

9. The employment of experienced and competent agents only extenuates
and excuses when their experience and judgment become the basis of
what is done. The employment of such agents will not excuse one who
insists upon their doing an act which they warn him is dangerous and
likely to cause great injury to another.

Crvir action tried before MacRae, J., and a jury at the Fall (162)
Term, 1887, of MeokLeNBURe Superior Court.

Verdict and judgment for plaintiffs. Defendants appealed.

The plaintiffs, as tenants under a lease from John H. McAden, the
owner, were in the occupation of a house and lot fronting on Trade
Street in Charlotte, pursuing a mercantile business, in the year 1885,
while the defendants, similarly engaged, were early in that year in
possession of an adjoining lot with like frontage, under a contract of
purchase made on 1 July, 1875, with Henry W. Fries, the building on
which was consumed by fire in the month of February, 1885.

While the lots belonging, respectively, to said McAden and Fries,
to wit: on 1 May, 1875, they entered into a contract, a copy of which is
contained in the complaint, and in form is as follows:

145



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

HAMMOND ¥. SCHIFF,

“Whereas, John H. McAden, of Charlotte, North Carolina, is owner
of a certain lot or parcel of land in said city, fronting on Trade Street
and extending back about one hundred and forty feet, and adjoining the
property of W. J. Yates and the lot owned by H. W. Fries, of Salem,
N. C., on which last-mentioned lot is situated the brick storehouse oceu-
pied by W. J. Black, the south wall of said storehouse being built along
the dividing line between the said McAden and Fries;

“Now, this agreement, made this 1 May, 1875, between the said John
H. McAden and the said H. W. Fries,

“Witnegseth: That the said Fries, for and in consideration of

(163) the stipulations and agreement of the said McAden, hereinafter

contained, does hereby covenant that the said McAden, his heirs

and assigns, may use said south wall of said brick storehouse as the

north wall of the storehouse to be erected by the said MeAden on his

aforesaid lot, and may make such excavations in said wall as may be

necessary - for the support of the floor of said house: Provided, however,

that no injury is done to the building of the said Fries.

© “And, provided further, that said wall is not to be torn down without
the consent of the parties hereto, their heirs and assigns.

“And in the event of its destruction by any means, nothing herein
contained is to be construed as conveying to the said McAden any right.
or title to the land on which said wall is located.

“And the said MecAden, for himself and his heirs above, covenants
and agrees to and with the said Fries that he will'add to and improve
said wall at his own expense, and for the mutual benefit of himself and
the said Fries, so as to make it serve as the north wall of his aforesaid
storehouse, which is to have a basement ten feet deep, and to exiend
back from Trade Street one hundred feet, the third story to extend only
fifty feet back, and the front of said wall to be about........ feet high, all
which improvements are to be made in a workmanlike manner, and of
good material, '

“And the said McAden does further agree that the sald Fries, his
heirs and assigns, may use said wall in such manner as may be proper
and necessary to support or strengthen the building he or they may
erect in the place of the one now on said lot; and that he will, at his
owniexpense, repair any injury that may be done to said wall by reason
of said addition made thereto. H. W. Frigs.”

The contract of sale of July following, after a recital of the
(164) terms of sale, not necessary to be set out, contains this concluding
clause:

“Now if the said Schiff & Bros. (the defendants, being its constituent
members) will pay to H. W. Fries the interest due on the above notes
on 1 January of each year, and the principal of the same at maturity,
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the said H. W. Fries will make to the said Schiff & Bros. a déed to the
above described property, free of any encumbrances thereon to this date,
but subject to an agreement made between H. W. Fries and J. H. Mc-
Aden, in regard. to the wall next McAden’s lot.
In witness whereof, we have hereto put our hands and seals.
J. Scurrr. (8Beal.)
Pu. Scairr. (Seal.)
H. W. Frigs. (Seal.)
Test: '
Parricxk MArTIN.
W. E. Spaw.”

After the destruction of the house on the defendant’s lot they deter-
mined, about the middle of May, to erect a new brick building on the
same site, and to excavate for a cellar or basement room underneath,
and having entered into arrangements for doing so, began to dig away
the earth for that purpose, and had proceeded until, from the loosening
and removal of the soil from a too close proximity to the wall, it was
unable to support its weight, and, giving way, the wall fell, causing the
damage to the plaintiff’s goods and his interest in the leased house, for
which the present action is brought. Upon the five issues submitted to
the jury they responded under the charge of the court, as follows:

1. Was the wall between the Schiff building and the McAden building
a party wall? Answer: “Yes.”

2. Did the defendants, by themselves or through their agents, (165)
wnlawfully dig and excavate the earth so near to the wall between
the Schiff and MeAden buildings that it gave way and tumbled in?
Answer: “Yes.”

3. Did théy negligently so dig and excavate the wall that it gave way
and tumbled in? Answer: “Yes.” )
4. Did the plaintiffs, by their want of due care, contribute to the

injury? Answer: “No.”

5. What damages, if any, are the plaintiffs entitled to recover?
Answer: “$9,000.”

The plaintiffs examined three witnesses, whose testimony we give, as
far as necessary to a proper understanding of the rulings assigned as
error, in the defendant’s appeal.

J. H. McAden testified that, in pursuance of his contract with Fries,
he excavated within five feet of the main wall, and erected a dead wall,
on which the sleepers of the witness’s structure rested, extending over
to Fries’ wall, as shown on an accompanying plat; that his building
excavation extended 100 feet back, 40 feet short of his line, and when the
house reached the second story, the joists were let into placés opened in
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the Fries wall; that the parapet wall on the ¥ries building, 9 inches
high, was found to be defective, and witness took it down, and built a
new one 14 inches high; that the Fries building had a rear extension
beyond that of witness, in which were windows, from which the rear of
witness’ lot could be seen, and the wall was in common use by both pro-
prietors; that in 1877 Philip Schiff said that some repairs were needed
in the foundation, and as both were interested in it, witness ought to
pay half the expense, and this witness agreed to do, and did so.

To this evidence objection was made, if offered to show an estoppel
or easement, and after admitting such to be the object, it was received
by the court.

The witness further testified to meeting Schiff soon after the fire in

February, and the latter said he wanted witness to pay for some
(166) repairs in the wall, places where windows had been filled up, the

lintels being on his side, and having been burned, and witness
agreed to pay one-half of the cost, but did not, in consequence of the
wall falling down; that Schiff said he wanted to know, before his pur-
chase, whether he could put an additional story on the front of his house
without paying for the use of the improvement put on the wall by wit-
negs, and inquired if he could use a second story and the windows, to
which he was answered that he would be entitled to use the light from
the windows, and that, in order not to interfere with them, witness had
stopped at 100 feet short of his line, which was 140 feet.

Similar objection was made to this testimony and overruled.

The witness testified that in May, after the fire, Schiff and witness
agreed to bear, in equal parts, the expense of certain improvements in
the wall, to be made by putting new bricks on his side of the wall at the
price of $100.

A similar objection to this testimopy was made and overruled.

The defendants, by contract with Ahrens and Phifer, the latter doing
the work, were about to begin the excavation, when witness laid off a
line five feet from the wall, and insisted that it should approach no
nearer, and so stated to Schiff, as, if pushed further, it would endanger
him; that when they crossed the line, and witness was informed of it by
Phifer, he went to the place, and finding Ahrens and Asbury, the con-
tractors for the brick work, they both expressed the opinion that they
could go nearer than five feet, but not nearer than four feet, without
great danger; that Schiff was sent for and came, and the matter was
discussed, the ground not being clay, but of a micaceous soil, when wit-
ness pointed out the danger, and warned him against going over the
four-foot line; Schiff, becoming vexed, asked Asbury, “Didn’t you make

estimates for excavating to the three-foot line?’ and the latter
(167) replied, “Yes, but how could T tell what was under the ground ?”
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And to a similar interrogatory addressed to Ahrens, the like reply
was returned, Asbury adding that it would be -dangerous for him to
work his bricklayers nearer than the four-foot line, and he did not want
to do it; that Ahrens attempted to explain, when Schiff said he had
made the contract and expected it to be carried out, and left; that Phifer
worked all day on the four-foot line, cutting it down to the fromt, and
Asbury, beginning on the front, had laid a few feet on the same line, and
on Wednesday morning commenced here (pointing out the place on the
 plat), to get it up that day; that Schiff came, and finding that the
bricks were being laid on that line grew angry, and ordered the cutting
to be to the three-foot line; and thereupon witness went to him and told
him he was going to throw the building down, as witness feared, since
he was going beyond the danger limit, and begged him to desist, instead
of which “he got mad” and said “he had made a contract, and given
directions to go to the three-foot line, and they would have to do it, lef
tha consequences be whal they may”; that upon witness remarking that
hfs only remedy was by injunction, Schiff replied, “If you bother me
with an injunction I’} go smack to the wall”; that returning to the
building he found Ahrens marking off a line three feet from the wall
and Phifer chopping, and that he did not sue out an injunction because
he could not get to the judge. ’

To this evidence objection was made and overruled.

That the workmen went to the line so ordered, and desisted for the
night; that the next morning at 9 or 9:30 the wall fell, and when wit-
ness saw the wreck that had been made—the worst, he testifies, he ever
saw—-the intervening wall was 2 or 214 feet deep on the ground, and
the next excavation 9 or 10 feet deep; that the wall that fell out, clear
from top to bottom, until it reached the point where the excavation had
not extended beyond the four-foot line, but there stopped, and
the brick fell over, the foundation standing where it was before. (168)

Upon cross-examination witness stated that Schiff had pro-
posed, before commencing to dig, that it should be done in sections, the
walling keeping up with the excavating, and requested witness to do the
work at his own expense, or to pay half the expense of so doing, which
wag declined, and witness said he did not want the wall’s foundations

- disturbed, and thus weakened.

Upon re-examination witness said that Schiff sent Ahrens to him with
certain propositions, and in the conversation that ensued he said to
Ahrens that the latter had advised witness to put his dead line at five
feet, and ought to adopt the same rule with Schiff and make him set his
dead wall at same distance, and Ahrens replied that Schiff was greedy
for land, and he (Ahrens) would not let him go nearer than five feet, if
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he could talk him out of it, and that he had told him that this would
make a sufficient basement for his store.

To this conversation objection was also made and disallowed.

That Ahrens and Asbury, standing at a corner, called Schiff’s atten-
tion to a seam in the earth, to which Ahrens did not wish to go, and
would not unless he was forced, as the soil was exceedingly treacherous,
and would not bear pressure, and an approach nearer than four feet
would be attended with great danger, and both insisted upon stopping
there, to which Schiff responded that he had made the contract and in-
tended to carry it out, saying at the same time to Phifer if he would
not execute the contract he would get some one who would.

Testimony, quite as strong and to the same effect, as to the persistent
purpose of the acting defendant to push the excavation up to the three-
foot mark, and his disregard of warnings from experienced men whom

he had employed was given by Phifer, and it would be a needless
(169) repetition to state it in detail.

The plaintiff Justice was examined as to the damages hs-
tained by his firm from the falling of the wall, and he gave the estimate,
about which no question of law is raised, except that the defendants
deny their responsibility, if held to be respounsible at all, for such loss
as resulted from the water used to put out the fire, for the reason that
this was a special damage not demanded in the complaint as such.

There were also exceptions to the proof of the witnesses, who were
allowed to express opinions of the hazard of excavating so near the wall,
being experts, which we dismiss at once with the remark that the de-
cision of the court is upon a fact, not examinable on appeal, when there
is evidence, and the correctness of their judgment has been fully vindi-
cated by the results.

The defendants introduced no testimony, explanatory or other, and
asked for these instructions:

1. If the jury believe that F. W. Ahrens was a competent and experi-
enced builder, and the defendants, in making the excavation, acted upon
his advice and assurance, but there was no danger in digging up to the
three-foot line, there was no negligence, and the jury should answer the
third issue “No.”

2. That under the contract with Fries, McAden had no right to rest
the truss and rear wall on Schiff’s wall, and that he, having done so,
was bound, as were the plaintiffs, to prop up their building when noti-
fied of the intention of the defendants to dig out the basement.

The instructions were declined, and mstead the court charged : ,

You have noticed that a great part of the very able and interesting
digcussion of this matter has been addressed to the presiding judge and
not to the jury.
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The evidence in the case is all upon the part of the plaintiff, the de-
fendants having offered none. Not that they have admitted all
of it to be true, but they contend that upon the evidence, as you (170)
may believe it, the plaintiff cannot recover.

The responsibility of declaring the law is upon the judge; it 1s neces-
sary, however, that you shall decide certain issues of fact in order that
the judge may be able to pronounce the judgment of the law.

And the first question is, Was the wall between the Schiff building
and the McAden building a party wall—that is, a wall of right, used
for the common benefit of both?

The answer to this issue depends upon the effect of certain instru-
ments of writing and of certain facts which are undisputed; and as this
effect is entirely a question of law, it devolves upon me to instruct you
what the response to this issue should be upon the evidence. Without
troubling you with a discussion of the law of the case, I will simply say
that upon the evidence your response should be “Yes.”

The second issue is, Did the defendants, by themselves or through
their agents or employees, unlawfully dig and excavate the earth so near
to the wall between the Schiff and McAden buildings that it gave way
and tumbled in? ,

There is no contention on the part of the defendants that the falling
of the wall was not in consequence of the digging away of earth by diree-
tion of defendants (though they say the falling might have been avoided
if McAden had adopted proper measures to prevent it).

The question then is, Was it unlawfully done—that is, was it wrong-
fully done? For it is lawful for a- man to do what he will with his own,
but this is qualified by the maxim that he shall so use his own as not to
injure another’s. As a general principle, if one so uses his own prop-
erty as to inflict unnecessary injury upon the property of another his
acts are wrongful and therefore unlawful.

It follows in this case, as a consequence of the answer to the
first issue, the wall being a party wall, neither party interested (171)
in it-had a right to do anything which would affect the wall in-
juriously to the other,

It 13 my duty to instruct you that if you believe the testimony your
response to this issue should be “Yes.”

The third issue presents the matter in another aspect which, in some
views of the case, may be necessary to be determined by you. Did the
defendants, by themselves or through their agents and employees, negli-
gently dig and excavate the earth so near the wall between the Schiff and
McAden buildings that it gave way and fell in? Did they use proper
precaution and care to avoid injury to the plaintiffs?
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The general rule on this subject of lateral support to adjacent walls,
not party walls, is that one who owns land adjoining another who has a
wall on or near the line may excavate upon his own laund, provided he
_exercises proper care and skill to prevent any unnecessary injury to the
adjacent landowner.

And if he had no just cause for supposing such consequence would
follow and it resulted from some unforeseen cause—if he, not being
skilled in such matters, employed a competent and skillful person to do
the work for him, the making the excavation, and acted upon the advice
and assurance of such person that there was no danger in digging up to
within a eertain distance of his neighbor’s wall, there would not be negli-
gence.

Trying this issue as if it were not a party wall, were the defendants
negligent in their excavation? You are to congider the testimony upon
this point as brought out upon the examination and cross-examination
of plaintiff’s witnesses.

Did defendants act upon the advice of a competent and skillful person
in making the excavation, or did the person employed by defendants, or
did any other competent and skillful person advise the defendants that

it was not safe to excavate up to the threc-foot line, and did the
(172) defendants insist upon the work being done up to that line, not-
withstanding such advice?

It is insisted, on the part of defendants, that the work was done under
the advice of Ahrens, a competent and skillful person, according to the
testimony.

On the other hand, the plainti{fs say that the testimony shows you
that Ahrens advised against it, and that Asbury, another competent and
skillful person, advised against it, and insisted upon putting in a wall
at the four-foot line, and that Phifer protested against it, and that all
the circumstances testified to show you that defendants had notice of
the danger of excavating up to the three-foot line.

You must determine, upon the testimony, whether defendants exer-
cised due care and precaution; if they did, there was no negligence; if
they did not, there was negligence.

The fourth issue is, Did the plaintiffs, by their own want of due care,
contribute to the injury? Did they know of the danger and do what
they reasonably could to prevent the injury? Did they do what plain-
tiffs suggested to them was proper to be done for the protection of their
property? If they did, you will respond to this issue “No.”

If they knew or had reason o believe there was imminent danger of the
fall of the wall, and had time to take precautions and did not do so, you
will answer “Yes.”
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Now you come to consider the last issue—What damages, if any, are
plaintiffs entitled to recover?

If your response to the first and second issues shall be in the affirma-
tive, however, you may answer the third issue; and if you shall answer
the fourth issue “No,” you will proceed to the fifth—What damage are
they entitled to recover, if any?

The measure of damages would be a fair compensation for the (173)
injury received. The value of the goods in the store just before
the fall of the store, from which is to be deducted the value of the goods
after the accident, as impaired by the falling of the wall, the breaking,
the fire and the water. This would leave the loss upon the goods. To
this sum should be added the expense of taking them out of the ruins,
of removing them to another place, of having them cleaned and prepared
for sale, and any other actual expense incurred by the plaintiffs by
reason of the injury, as by loss of time and trouble incurred; and you
may give interest if you see fit. But I have not permitted evidence to
go to you to prove the probable profits which plaintiffs might have
made out of the sale of the goods if they had not been injured, nor injury
to the credit of the plaintiffs by reason of the loss of the stock. You
are to determine this issue upon reason and judgment. I am requested
to instruet you, and do instruet you, that you have no right to have each
" juror to put down his estimate of the damages and divide the aggregate
by twelve. This would not be a sensible manner of reaching your con-
clusion.

To the refusal to charge as requested, and to the charge as given, the
defendants excepted.

The defendants further except specifically to his Honor’s charge as
follows :

1. That his Honor commitied error in instructing the jury that upon
the evidence they should answer to first issue that it was a party wall.

2. That therc was error in instrueting the jury that if they believe
the evidence they should respond to second issue “Yes.”

Schenck & Price (by brief), W. W. Flemming and Batchelor & Dev-
ereux for plaintiffs.
C. N. Tillett and F. H. Busbee for defendants.

Surra, C. J., after stating the facts: With this long and de- (174)
tailed recital of what occurred at the trial, we enter upon a con-
sideration of the exceptions taken by the defendants. -

The exceptions numbered 1, 2 and 3 rest upon the same proposition—
the insufficiency of the acts proved to raise an estoppel or confer any
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right upon McAden or his lessees to the use of the wall built upon the
Fries lot and at its boundary.

The objection is not so mueh, as we have repeatedly had occasion
heretofore to remark, to the admassibility of the evidence as to its suffi-
ciency to prove an estoppel, legal or equitable, against the defendants;
in other words, to its effect.

In our opinion it was competent to show a common interest created
under the contract, and recognized and acted on afterwards in the joint
contributions for the maintenance and repair of the wall made by both
parties.

It contains an express agreement on the part of Fries, based upon a
valuable consideration, that McAden “may use the wall in such manner
as may be proper and necessary to support and strengthen the building
he or they (his heirs and assigng) may erect in the place of the one now
on said lot,” thus creating a vested interest therein.

While an easement is not transferred at law for want of a seal to the
instrument necessary for that purpose, the contract, as executory, has in
equity when acted on a force and efficacy little short, if any, of an ease-
ment or right of support to the wall for the security of the adjacent
premises, and alike disables Fries and his successors from the arbitrary
and reckless use of the adjoining earth, to the detriment of the other
proprietor, without an accountability for the consequences.

Exception 4. This exception has as little support in law as the pre-
ceding. The plaintiffs are charged with a reckless inattention to their
own premises, in not making provision for the strengthening of the

wall to enable it to stand the effects of the removal of the earth
(175) in impairing its capacity to bear the strain to which it was sub-

ject. In this connection MeAden, finding his remonstrances un-
heeded, had threatened a resort to a judicial restraining order to arrest
the work. It was met by a defiant declaration from Schiff that if “both-
ered” in that way “he would dig smack to the wall.”

The objectionable words are but explanatory of the reason for not
making application to the judge for protection against this unwarranted
invasion of a right to be secure in the possession and enjoyment of his
own premises, so seriously menaced. In our opinion it was competent,
and, indeed, the forbearance was a strong appeal to the defendants to
desist from their purpose.

Exception 5. This exception relates to a conversation between Mc-
Aden and Ahrens, who came with propositions from Schiff to the former,
and what passed was clearly admissible. The particular part deemed
obnoxious, we suppose, from the argument, to be the remark about
Schiff’s greed for land. If so, the objection should have been confined
to that remark, for it is an established rule that a general objection to
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evidence, of which only a part was incompetent, will not be entertained
if they are severable. Barnhardt v. Smath, 86 N. C., 473; Smaley .
Pearce, 98 N. C., 185.

If, however, the obnoxious part had been spegifically pointed out, it
was a portion of the conversation drawn out on eross-examination and
pertained to its subject-matter, Schiff’s unwillingness to respect the in-
terests and rights of an adjoining proprietor, and at most was declara-
tory of the principal’s anxiety to have an enlarged basement upon his
own premises. But in any view the exception is untenable.

Exception 6. The exception to the ruling that the witness Phifer was
an expert, after a preliminary examination of his experience in digging
cellars, has been already disposed of, as also the next exception, to his
being allowed to say that it was dangerous to go nearer to the
wall than four feet in excavating. (176)

Exception 8. This relates to the admissions of proof of the
injury to the goods from water employed to extinguish the flames.

We do not understand the rule in pleading to be so stringent as to
‘require a special averment of every immediate cause of the injury suf-
fered, as in this case, from rust, depredations, and the like. The pri-
mary and efficient cause of oll the injury, however, directly produced
from fire or water, was the falling of the wall, and this brought about
by undermining the earth near to it, and all the consequences resulting
therefrom are within the compass of the demand for compensating
damages.

Such is the ruling, even under the former strict practice in White-
hurst v. Ins. Co., 6 Jones, 352, referred to by counsel.

Exception 9. The court refused to entertain an inquiry into insur-
ances effected on the property by the plaintiffs as foreign to the purposes
of the present suit. Thus it has been held that, in an action to recover
damages for an injury to the plaintiffs’ ship, no reduction could be made
on the ground that he had recovered from the insurers. Wood’s Mayne
on Dam., pp. 155-156, citing Yates v. Whyte, 4 B. N. C., 272; Bradium
v. G. W. Radlway Co., L. R., 10 Ex., 1; 44 L. J., Ex. 9.

The reason given for which is that to allow such diminution would
be to permit the wrongdoer to pay nothing and take all the benefit of a
policy of insurance without paying the premium. )

Exception 10. The court charged that upon the evidence acceptéd as
truthful the wall was a party wall—that is, a wall of right, used for the
common benefit of both parties.

That this is such clearly appears from the contract upon the faith of
which it is inferable, from the terms of the instrument as well as from
other facts, the injured siructure was put up, as its timbers entered
into and derived support from the wall. What become party walls
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(177) and in what manner they are created are questions the learning

in regard to which is so copiously set forth in Mr. Washburn’s
book on Easements, at the original paging 429, and following, that we
deem it needless to pursne the discussion in regard to the relative rights
of owners of adjacent lands or lots further than to say whether, in a
technical sense, this was or was not a party wall, it had become invested
with all the incidents attaching to such so far as regards the right to its
use by both, and the denial of the asserted right of the owner of the soil
on which it stood to remove it or endanger its stability by digging
around, without reasonable precautions against doing injury to the other
party interested in its remaining.

Exception 11. We cannot entertain an exception in general terms to
an entire charge, and it is required to assign specific errors therein in
order to the reviewal on appeal.

‘We shall therefore only notice the second alleged error, the first hav-
ing been disposed of in the instruection, that, upon the evidence, if be- -
lieved, the response to the second issue should be in the affirmative.

The evidence was so full and positive, contradicted by no one, not
only of negligence, but of a reckless and persistent disregard of the
admonitions and remonstrances of his own skilled workmen, as well as of
indications visible in the ground, as the work progressed towards the
danger limit, as wholly to set aside the defense and render the defend-
ant’s conduct inexcusable. It may be that the danger would have been
averted if the suggestions had been heeded of excavating and building
the new wall in sections, so that a correspondent strengthening would
have accompanied the weakening as the work progressed, and the result
vindicates the wise judgment of the contractors that it would be safe
to dig up to a four-foot line and dangerous to go beyond it, for the wall

remained when bearing a greater pressure where the four-foot
(178) space was left, and gave way where but three feet were left.
Exception 12. The last exception seeks to excuse the defend-
ants from the consequences, in that they employed skillful workmen to
do the work.

If that had furnished any defense for the reckless manner in which
the work was in fact done, it disappears in the further fact that it was
not left to their experience and judgment, but disregarding their skill
and advice the defendants assumed full control, and ordered and directed
what was done, thus themselves becoming chargeable with the conse-
quences.

The employment of experienced and competent men only serves to
extenuate and excuse when their experience and judgment become the
basis of what is done. There is no complaint that what they were com-
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pelled to do was not done with proper skill, but that they were forced to
go too near the wall, removing too much of the supporting soil, and this
was the direcily ordered act of the defendants.

There is no error and the judgment must be

Affirmed.

Cited: Armfield v. Colvert, 103 N. C., 158; 8. v. Wilkerson, tbid.,
341; Burwell v. Sneed, 104 N. C., 122; McKinnon v. Morrison, ibid.,
362; Carlton v. R. R., tbid., 369; Blue v. B. R., 117 N. C.; 649;
S. v. Stanton, 118 N. C., 1186 Dawis v. Summérfield, 131 N. C., 353;
§. v. Ledford, 183 N. C,, 1223 Cunningham v. B. R., 139 N. C,, 438;
Davis v. Wall, 142 N. C., 451; Rollins v. Wicker, 154 N. C., 563 ; Phil-
lips v. Land Co., 174 N. C., 545; Conrad ». Shuford, ibid., 7121, Hunt
v. Bure, 189 N. C., 488; Dawis v. Robinson, 1bid., 5993 Michaux v. Bub-
ber Co., 190 N. C,, 619.

GEO. W. MICHAEL v. ALEXANDER FOIL.

Bvidence—Statute of Frouds—Attorney at Law . Privileged Communi-
cations—Judge’s Charge—Reasonable Time.

1. At the time of the delivery of a deed for land, and as part of the induce-
ment for its execution, it was orally agreed between the vendor and
vendee, that if the vendee should sell the mineral interest in the land
during vendor’s life, he would pay the vendor one-half of the amount
received therefor: Held, that such agreement could be shown by oral
evidence, and did not come within the statute of frauds.

2. Where an atforney at law acts in his professional capacity for several
parties, in the same transaction, he cannot testify as to what transpired
as between such parties and a third person, unless all the parties for
whom he acted consent; but as between the parties themselves, he can
testify to all that was said and done.

3. It is not the duty of the judge to charge the jury upon a single gelected
fact, nor is he bound to charge in the language asked for in a special
instruection. )

4. The doctrine of reasonable time applies when no time is specified in the
agreement of the parties. Where defendant promised to pay plaintiff
one-half the proceeds of a mineral interest in land if sold during plaintiff’s
life a shorter time will not be fixed by the law. The plaintiff’s life is the
time fixed by the agreement, and the law will not change it.

Crvin acrioxn tried before Connor, J., at January Term, 1888, (179)
of the Superior Court of CaBarrus County. Defendant appealed.
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1. The plaintiff alleged that in 1881 he conveyed, by deed in fee, to
the defendant a tract of land mentioned in the complaint for the sum
of $5,000.

2. That at the time of the execution of the deed and before, it was
contracted and agreed that the plaintiff would take $5,000 for the land,
provided the defendant would pay to him one-half of the proceeds for
which the mineral interests of said land should be sold, if the defendant, -
during his lifetime, should sell said mineral interests. The defendant
agreed to these terms, and the deed was executed, without embracing
them, but subject to them.

3. That in 1883 the defendant sold the land and mineral interests to
W. H. Orchard for $6,000, and received the money therefor—the min-
eral interests for $1,000 and the land for $5,000.

The plaintiff demanded of the defendant the one-half of the proceeds
of the sale of the mineral interests, which was refused, and this action

is brought to recover it.
(180)  The defendant admits the purchase of the land by him at the
price of $5,000, but denies the other allegations.

The following issues were submitted to the jury without objection:

1. Did the plaintiff and defendant contract before and at the time of
the execution of the deed from the plaintiff to the defendant, the deed
being made subject to the contract, that plaintiff should take $5,000 for
the land and the defendant would pay plaintiff one-half of the proceeds
for which the mineral interests in said land should be sold, if defendant
should during his lifetime sell said mineral interests?

2. Did the defendant, on or about 11 April, 1883, sell the mineral
interests, and if so, what was the price paid therefor?

3. What sum of money, if any, is due from the defendant to the
plaintiff ¢

George W. Michael, the plaintiff, was introduced in his own behalf
and testified: “I sold the land to the defendant, 15 March, 1881, for
$5,000.”

The plaintiff’s counsel then proposed to ask the witness the following
questions :

“Was there any agreement made at the time, in respect to the proceeds
of the sale of the mineral interests in the lands, which was not embraced
in the deed #’

Answer: “There was.”

“Was such agreement in writing ?”

Answer: “It was not.”

“What were the terms of said agreement #”

Defendant objected, for that the agreement proposed to be proven was
concerning an interest in land, and could only be shown by some writing
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signed by the defendant. Objection overruled. Exception by defendant.

“The agreement was that T was to have one-half of the pro-
ceeds of the sale of the mineral interests in the land, if sold dur- (181)
ing my lifetime.

“The agreement was made in Mr. Puryear’s office. He drew the
paper. I paid him for it. On the same day and after the deed was
made the defendant said that he would attend to the sale. We agreed
that Mr. Richards should go and show the mine to any person who might
wish to buy. I received a letter from Mr. Richards about the sale.
After 1 heard that defendant had sold, T came to North Carolina and
demanded pay for my share of the proceeds of the mineral interests.
The defendant declined to pay it. I told him that he knew that it was
a fair contract. He said he only got one thousand dollars for the min-
eral interests. He sold to Captain Orchard. He said that he never
would pay me; that he would keep it in court as long as he lived. The
agreement was that Richards and Foil were to sell for our benefit.”

The plaintiff’s counsel then proposed to read a letter from Richards to
plaintiff, and Richards was called and testified that he signed the letter
and Foil, the defendant, wrote it.

The defendant objected. Objection overruled. Defendant excepted.

The following letter was then read, for the purpose of corroborating
the witness:

“Cowcorp, N. C., 21 May, 1881.
Mz. Georae W. MrcmasL:

Dear Sir:—1I mailed you a letter some three weeks ago as to selling
the mining property on Foil’s plantation, and have not received an
answer yet, nor has Mr. Foil. I directed your letter to Ashboro, Illinois,
so I write again. If you want to sell your interest, I am of the opinion
you can do so if you offer it at a low price. I think Mr. Foil is out of
patience, as well as myself, as you have not written to either of
us. Our plan is to make hay while the sun shines. Several (182)
parties have been here, and will not consider any sale until I
hear from you. Have a speedy answer, or all be go-by. Put your price
low down if you want to sell—no mistake. Foil is ready to sell at any
price to make a sale. Let me know your price—at a low rate at that.
With my best wishes to you and family, I remain

' Yours truly, Wirriam Ricmarps.

“Direct your letter: William Richards, Concord, N. C., care of A.
Foil.”

Mr. Hal Puryear was then introduced by the plaintiff and testified:

“I drew a deed for the plaintiff to the defendant. It was drawn in
my office. The first time I heard of thé matter Mr. Foil met me and
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said that he was about to buy some land from Michael; that they
wanted me to draw the deed. They came to my office, and T did so.
Mr. Michael paid me.”

The plaintiff then proposed to ask the witness: “What took place
between the parties at that time, in your presence ¢’

The defendant objected, for that the witness, an attorney at law, was
in the employment either of himself or the plaintiff and himself, and
that the conversation in his presence was, as to him, confidential. The
objection was overruled. Defendant excepted.

“I heard the parties say that when the land was sold the plaintiff was
to have one-half of the proceeds of the sale of the mineral interest. This
is impressed on my memory. I heard it twice. That was their agree-
ment. Michael wanted to retain one-half of the mineral interest and

insert a reservation to that effect in the deed. This was objected
(183) to by Foil. I then suggested a collateral agreement in writing,

and wrote it. TFoil refused to sign it. The agreement was in
parol, that Michael was to have one-half of the proceeds of the sale of
the mineral interest.”

The plaintiff then put in evidence the bond for title from the defend-
ant Foil to W. H. Orchard for the mineral interest in said land, dated
2 April, 1883, by the terms of which he was to convey to said Orchard
the mineral interests, with the timber on twenty-five acres and other
privileges not material to be stated, for the sum of $1,000. On the bond
is the following endorsement :

“Received of William Treloar the sum of one thousand dollars for
one-half interest in the within bond and a second bond covering the
mineral interest of said tract, the said bond bearing even date with this
instrument. W. H. Orcuarp.”

2 April, 1883.

“On the payment of one thousand dollars more I agree to transfer all
of my right, title and interest in the within bond as well as the bond
mentioned above. W. H. Orcrarp.”

2 April, 1883,

The plaintiff then put in evidence the bond for title to the said land
from the defendant Foil to Orchard, dated 2 April, 1883, in which he
enters into the obligation to convey the land to the said Orchard in fee
for the sum of $6,000.

The plaintiff then introduced a deed from Foil and wife to W. H.
Orchard, dated 18 April, 1883, conveying to the latter the land in fee
for the consideration named therein of $6,000.
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He then offered in evidence a deed from himself and wife to the de-
fendant Foil, dated 27 December, 1880, conveying to him the said land
in fee for the consideration named therein of $5,000, “to have
and to hold three-fifths of said land to him, said party of the (184)
second part, and his heirs, ag trustee for Nancy E. Melchor, and :
the other two-fifths to him, the said Foil, and his heirs.”

The defendant then testified in his own behalf as follows:

“The plaintiff came to me and offered to sell his land. Said that he
wanted to leave the State. Something was said about a gold mine. He
charged five thousand dollars for the land. I declined to take it, but
offered four thousand dollars and permit him to retain four acres and
a right of way to thé mine. He finally agreed to rent the land for that
year and pay me nine bales of cotton rent, and I agreed to give five thou-
sand dollars for it. Mr. Puryear wrote the deed. I employed him to
write it. Michael wanted to insert a reservation of omne-half of the
mineral interest. I declined to permit it, but told him that he was to
open the mine and have half of what he got from the sale of the mineral
interest. I did not agree with him to give him one-half of the proceeds
of the sale of the mineral interest. Orchard never paid me anything for
the mineral interest. He paid me for the plantation. I made some
improvements on the land, amounting to about one hundred and seventy
dollars. When I sold there was a erop on it—wheat, ete.—worth about
seven hundred dollars. My interest was about one-third.”

Cross-examined he said:

“I have no recollection that Mr. Puryear, at the time of writing the
deed, suggested that the reservation be put in the deed. I do not think
Michael ‘was present. He and his wife signed the deed the day that it
was written. When I sold the land to Orchard I had been in possession
two years. The first year I got about four hundred or four hundred and
fifty dollars rent for it. The improvements were put on the land before
I sold to W. H. Orchard. I put some after I made the bond to Orchard.
Mzr. McDonald came to me and wanted a bond. I refused to give
it. I told him that I had promised Michael that if he opened up (185)
the mine he was to have one-half of it; that he had a chance on ,
it. I wrote the letter in evidence at Mr. Richards’ suggestion. I sold
the farm to Orchard. I claim no interest there now. I considered the
mineral interest worthless. I made a bond to Orchard, to sell it to him
for two thousand dollars.”

The plaintiff then introduced William Richards, who testified:

“Some time after Michael left I came to town to see Mr. Foil, to
ascertain what he would take for the mineral interest. He said that he
could not sell without Michael’s consent; that he owned one-half interest.
T told him that could be easily fixed, that we could write Michael. He
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then wrote the letter in evidence and I signed it. When Orchard bought
I asked defendant if he had sold the mineral interest and he said yes.”

It was conceded that both of the bonds from defendant to W. H.
Orchard came from the custody of Mr, Treloar.

The defendant requested the court to instruct the jury:

1. That the agreement alleged by plaintiff and shown by his testi-
mony, even if made, is void by reason of the same not being in writing,
signed by defendant or some agent of his.

2. That it being admitted that the four-thousand dollar bond to Or-
chard had never been surrendered, being executed at the same time as
the other bond to Orchard, they should be construed together as forming
one transaction, and the proper construction of the whole transaction is
that the equitable, if not legal, title to the mineral interest remains in
defendant, and therefore the plaintiff ecannot recover.

3. That even viewed as distinet instruments, the effect of the deed

from the defendant to Orchard was not a sale within the true
(186) intent and meaning of the parol agreement a8 testlﬁed to by
plaintiff and his witnesses.

4, That if a sale of the mineral interest was even agreed to be effected
for the joint benefit of plaintiff and defendant, such authority is con-
fined to an execution within a reasonable time, and that two years was
not a reasonable time, and that such agreement had ceased to be of
eﬁect on 1 April, 1883,

. That the agreement, even accordlng to plamtlff’s testimony, is
Wlthout consideration, and therefore the jury should respond to the first
issue “No.”

6. That by the bonds for title, introduced by plaintiff and executed
by defendant to Orchard, and by the assignment of said bonds by Or-
chard to Treloar, there was in equity a conveyance of all the mineral
interest to Treloar, and the deed from defendant to Orchard being made
subsequent to the execution of these bonds, must be construed in the
light of and in connection with the bonds.

And it appearing that these bonds for title were never surrendered by
Treloar to the defendant, there was no estate in the mineral interest
conveyed by the deed. Up to this time, then, the.contract to sell the
mineral interest is executory ounly, and there are no “proceeds of sale”
of the mineral interest from which the plaintiff can recover. All of
which were refused by the court.

The defendant also asked the following instruction, which was given:

“If the jury shall find from the testimony that the contract, if any,
was that the defendant agreed to allow the plaintiff, Michael, to have
half of the mineral interest itself in the land specified in the eomplamt
the jury should respond to the first issue ‘No.’ ”
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The court then instructed the jury that the burden of proof being on
the plaintiff, they must be satisfied by a preponderance of testimony that
the contraet, if any, made by the deferidant was as alleged, other-
wise they should answer the first issue in the negative. (187)

That as to the second issue, the burden was on the plaintiff to
show that the defendant had made sale of the mineral interest and re-
ceived the money therefor; that a sale of the land alone would not entitle
the plaintiff to recover. That they might consider all of the evidence,
including the bonds put in evidence, and say whether the defendant had
sold the mineral interest and received the money therefor, and if so,
what amount.

That as to the third. issue, if they found the two first for the plaintiff,
he would be entitled to one-half of the amount received by the defendant
for the mineral interest, with interest from 12 January, 1884.

Motion by defendant for new trial for error in refusing instructions
asked and for admitting testimony objected to. Motion denied, and
appeal.

B. F. Long and W. G. Means for plaintiff.
W. H. Baaley for defendant.

Davis, J., after stating the facts: 1. The first exception was to the
admissibility of the testimony of Michael to prove the agreement in
parol in regard to the proceeds of the sale of the mineral interest in the
land.

The contract for the sale of the land was in writing—the land itself
was sold—but the agreement, that if the mineral interest in the land
should be sold during the lifetime of the plaintiff he should have one-
half of it, was not put in writing. If the contract of sale was made sub-
ject to this agreement, as an inducement to the contract, the agreement,
though in parol, may be enforced. The agreement did not pass or pur-
port to pass any interest in land, and does not fall within the statute of
frauds.

In Manning v. Jones, Busb., 368, Jones contracted to sell (188)
Manning a tract of land at a stipulated price. It was, at the
same time, agreed that the defendant, Jones, should repair the planta-
tion and houses by a day named. The deed was executed and delivered
to Manning, and at the time of the delivery. of the deed Jones said he
would have the repairs made by the time specified. Having failed to
do so, the plaintiff brought an action to recover on the contract.

The court below held that parol evidence was inadmissible. Nash,
C. J., said: “In this there is error. It is true, as a rule of evidence,
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that where a contract is reduced to writing, parol evidence cannot be
received to contradict, add to, or explain it.

“The error consists in considering the evidence in this case as offered
for either of these purposes. It was offered to set up another and dis-
tinet part of the contract, which never was reduced to writing—a con-
tract which was ancillary to the main one, which was the sale and pur-
chase of the land. . . . As soon as the deed was delivered .
the title passed . . . unclogged with any conditions whatever; but
it did not have the effect to discharge Jones from his obligation to put
on the premises the agreed repairs. And as the contract was in parol,
it might be proved by parol. Tts existence added no new covenant to
the deed, . . . mnor did it contradict or explain any one that was
contained in it. \

“The action is maintainable upon the contract as to the repairs made
at the time the deed was delivered.”

In Trowbridge v. Wetherbee, 11 Allen’s Mass. Rep., 361, it is said
that a parol promise to pay to another a portion of the profits made by
a promissor on the purchase and sale of real estate is not within the
statute of frauds, and may be proved by parol. See, also, Sherrill v.
Hagan, 92 N. C., 345,

2. The second exception was to the evidence of Richards in regard to

the letter written by Foil to the plaintiff, but signed by Richards.
(189) It was competent as corroborating Michael, and also as tending

to show the fact that Foil, after the deed from Michael to him,
recognized the latter as interested in the sale of the mineral interest.

3. The defendant objected to the competency of Puryear, because he
was an attorney and “was in the employment either of himself or the
plaintiff and himself,” and the conversation was therefore confidential
and privileged.

Tt is not denied by the plaintiff that if Puryear had been counsel for
the defendant alone his testimony would have been incompetent, but it is
insisted, and we think it so appears, that he was counsel for the plain-
tiff, who alone paid the fee, and if so, the communication was privileged
only as to him, and could be removed by his consent. 1 Greenleaf’s
Evidence, sec. 243.

But conceding that the witness was the attorney of both the plaintiff
and defendant (there is nothing to show that he was the attorney for
the defendant alone), as between the counsel and the plaintiff and the
defendant, the matter was not, in its nature, private and confidential;
it was common to all three, “and could in no sense be termed the subject
of a confidential disclosure.” 1 Greenleaf Ev., sec. 244.

The learned counsel for the defendant says that if an attorney acts
for several clients he cannot testify without the consent of all, and for
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this he cites several authorities. This is undoubtedly true as between
his clients or any one of them and third parties; “but a communication
made to counsel by two defendants is not privileged from disclosure in
a subsequent suit between the two.”

We are not aware that the question, in its present form, has ever been
before the courts of this State, but in Rice v. Rice, 2 B. Monroe, 417,
referred to in Greenleaf, it was directly before the court, and after
laying down the general rule that a legal adviser will not be permitted
to disclose communications or information derived from clients as such,
1t 18 said:

“But does th1s rule apply in this case? Here the controversy (190)
is between the parties themselves, and the attorney is under the
same obligations to both of them. The matter communicated was not,
in its nature, private as between these parties, who were both present at
the time, and consequently, so far as they are concerned, it cannot, in
any sense, be deemed the subject of a confidential communication made
by one which the duty of the attorney prohibited him from disclosing
to the other. The reason of the rule has no application in such case.
The statements of parties made in the presence of each other may be
proved by their attorneys as well as by other persons, because such state-
ments are not, in their nature, confidential, and cannot be regarded as
privileged communications. The testimony of the attorney was there-
fore properly admitted in this case.”

This reasoning seems to be sound, and so we say, in the present case,
the testimony was properly admitted.

4. The fourth exception is to the refusal of the court to instruct the
jury that the alleged agreement was void because not in writing. This
exception cannot be sustained for the reason assigned for overruling the
first exception to the evidence. If it had been an agreement to sell any
interest in the land, or if, as his Honor charged, it was that the plaintiff
should “have half the mineral interest itself in the land specified,” it
would have been otherwise. ‘

5. Even if the two bonds be taken together and construed as one
transaction his Honor instructed the jury “that they might consider all
of the evidence, including the bonds put in evidence, and say whether
the defendant had sold the mineral interest and received the money
therefor; and if so, what amount ?” and this was a compliance with the
plaintiff’s prayer, as far as he was entitled to it. It was a correct enun-
ciation of the law as applicable to all facts as the jury should find from
the evidence.

It is not the duty of the court to charge the jury upon a single (191)
selected fact, nor is he bound to give the charge in the language
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asked for. Wilson v. White, 80 N. C., 280; Rencher v. Wynne, 86
N. C., 268; 8. v. Boon, 82 N. C., 637; Clements v. Rogers, 95 N. C.,
248.

6. The refusal to give the third instruction as asked for is disposed
of with the last. .

7. The refusal to instruct the jury that, admitting the agreement, the
sale must be effected within a reasonable time, was not error. The
doctrine of reasonable time applies when no time is specified.

When stated in the agreement, why should it be limited to a shorter
time? ‘

8. The sale and conveyance of the land constituted a consideration
for the agreement. Manning v. Jones, supra; Sherrill v. Hagan, supra.

This disposes of the exception to the refusal to give the fifth prayer.

9. The sixth prayer for instruction to the jury is disposed of with the
exception to the refusal to give the second and third. It was substan-
tially given, as far as the defendant was entitled to it.

There is no error. Affirmed.

Cited: Hughes v. Boone, 102 N. C., 1595 Holler v. Richards, ibid.,
549 ; McGee v. Orawen, 106 N. C,, 856; Carey v. Carey, 108 N. C,, 270;
Sprague v. Bond, ibid., 386; Barbee v. Barbee, ibid., 585; 8. v. Booker,
123 N. C,, 125; Quin v. Sexton, 125 N. C,, 452; Winders v. Hill, 141
N. G, 704; Bourna v. Sherrill, 143 N. C., 382; Brown v. Hobbs, 147
N. C,, 74; Buie v. Kennedy, 164 N. C., 300; Brogden v. Gibson, 165
N. C., 19; Holden v. Royall, 169 N. C., 678; Collier ». Paper Corpora-
tion, 172 N. C., 74; Woody v. Spruce Co., 175 N. C., 547, Newby v.
Realty Co., 182 N. C., 40; Wells v. Crumpler, ibid., 365; Pinniz v.
Smathdeal, ibid., 412; Pate v. Gadtley, 183 N. C., 263 ; Erskine v. Motors
Co., 185 N. C., 495; Colt v. Kimball, 190 N. C., 173.

(192) :
W. A, GIBSON v, H. A. BARBOUR AND WIFE.

Trustee and Cestui Que Trust—Purchase by Trustee At His Own Sale—
Acting As Attorney for Both Buyer and Seller—Counterclaim.

1. A purchase by a trustee or mortgagee at his own sale is void, if the cestui
que trust or mortgagor elect so to treat it.

2. A conveyance by a trustee or mortgagee to one who purchased the mort-
gaged property, ag the agent of such trustee or mortgagee, although it
passes the estate, is voidable at the election of the cestui que irust or
mortgagor. '
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3. Where a mortgagee employed an attorney to conduct a sale of the mort-
gaged property, under a power. of sale vested in the mortgagee by the
terms of the mortgage, and a third person employed the same attorney
to buy the property for him at such sale, and at the sale, which was
public, the attorney bid off the property for such third person, who paid
the price and took a deed from the mortgagee: Held, that such sale
was voidable at the election of the mortgagor, and that the legal estate,
which passed to the purchaser by the deed from the mortgagor, remained
charged with the trusts of the mortgage.

4. A mortgagee, of both land and personalty, sold all the property covered by
the mortgage under powers therein contained. Plaintiff purchased the
land at such sale and took a conveyance therefor from the mortgagee.
But the sale was made under such circumstances as rendered it voidable,
in equity, at the election of the mortgagor. Plaintiff brought an action of
ejectment against the mortgagor. The mortgagor pleaded, as a counter-
claim, the matter which rendered plaintift’s purchase voidable, and also,
that the mortgagee had sold and purchased at his own sale the personalty
covered by the mortgage, had taken possession ind rendered no account
thereof. The mortgagor. also demanded that the mortgagee be made party
to the action and that he account for the personalty in question: Held,
(1) that there was no case for marshaling, and a sale of the land should
have been ordered by the court; (2) that the plaintiff occupied the place
of a trustee so far as the mortgagor was concerned, and his money,
expended in purchasing the land, having gone in diminution of the mort-
gage debt, he was entitled to the restoration thereof; (3) that the
mortgagor was only necessary as a party, in order that he might be
compelled to repay the money received by him from the plaintiff, in the
event of the purchase of the land by some one else at the sale to be
ordered by the court; (4) that it was error to order an account of the
personal property to be taken in this action, as the plaintiff was not
interested therein.

5. A counterclaim must be one arising out of the subject of the action as
set out in the complaint, and must have such relation to plaintiff’s claim
as that its adjustment is necessary to a full determination of the cause
between the plaintiff and defendant. Matter in which only the defendant
and his codefendant; or a third person, not a party to the action, are
interested, and the settlement of which is not necessary to a final determi-
nation of the controversy between the plaintiff and the defendant, cannot
be pleaded as a counterclaim.

Crvir acrron for the recovery of land, heard before Connor, J., (193)
at September Term, 1887, of Ricumonp Superior Court.

Jury waived. Trial by the judge.” ‘The plaintiff appealed.

The defendant, Hugh A. Barbour, becoming indebted to the firm of
W. F. Kornegay & Co. in the sum of $2,000 due by notes, to secure the
same conveyed to the said creditors, by deed of mortgage, with a power
of sale in case of default in making payment, as each became payable,
a steam engine and certain other machinery, as also the tract of land
described in the complaint, and sought to be recovered in the present

action.
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The indebtedness not having been provided for at maturity, according
to the stipulations in the mortgage, the personal property conveyed
therein was put up and sold by an agent and attorney of the mortgagees
employed for that purpose, and being bid off by the agent conducting
the sale, was put down by them to him as purchaser at the price of one
thousand five hundred dollars. In like manner, on the day following,
and after due advertisement, the land was also sold at the courthouse

by the agent, who, on behalf and by authority of the plaintiff
(194) Gibson, bid off the same for him at the price of five hundred

dollars, and aceordingly, on his making payment of the price,
the said W. F. Kornegay & Co. executed a deed of conveyance therefor
to him. The present action was then commenced to recover the posses-
sion withheld by defendant, damages for the detention, and to establish
title to the premises.

The defense arises dut of the foregoing statement of facts, and the
defendant resists the claim, insisting upon the absolute nullity of the
attempted sale of the personal property, and demanding that the deed,
purporting to pass the estate in the land, be declared null and inopera-
tive to divest the defendant of his equity of redemption therein, and
that the plaintiff holds the legal estate, clothed with the same attaching
trusts as when held by the mortgagees. He also asks for a reference of
the account between the parties to the mortgage, claiming that there
will be found nothing due from him.

A jury was dispensed with, and the court, by consent, finds upon the
testimony of plaintiff’s witnesses the above facts. At defendants’ in-
-stance W. F. Kornegay & Co. are made parties defendant by summons,
but have failed to make answer or defense. The court, in entering judg-
ment, recites the facts in substance as stated, and proceeds to declare
the deed made to the plaintiff by the mortgagees ineffectual to divest or
defeat the defendants’ equitable right to redeem, and that the trusts of
the mortgage follow and adhere to the transferred legal estate in the
land, and directs a general account to be taken of the mortgage liabilities
between the original parties thereto by the clerk, with the value of the
engine and machinery, to the end that it be applied to the secured in-
debtedness, with leave to said W. F. Kornegay & Co., consisting of W. F.
Kornegay and C. Dewey, partners, to file their answer within thirty

days thereafter, if so advised, and that the cause be retained for
(195) further proceedings.
The plaintiff excepted to the said judgment, and assigned as
grounds of exception:

1. That his Honor has found as a fact that James T. LeGrand, at the
sale of the land, acted as agent of the plaintiff, W. A. Gibson, whereas
upon the evidence, his Honor ought to have found, either as a conclusion
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of fact or law, that LeGrand was not the agent of the plaintiff at said
sale, and did not buy as his agent, there being no evidence of said alleged
agency.

9. That his Honor has found that the defendant Barbour was at the
sale, but did not have notice or knowledge that LeGrand was bidding
for the plaintiff, there being no evidence upon which to base said finding.

3. That his Honor has failed 4o find that thé defendant Hugh A,
Barbour made no objection to the sale, though he was present at the
sale and had the opportunity, all of the evidence being that he made no
objection.

4, That his Honor has failed to find the rental value of the land, all
of the evidence showing that it was between $40 and $50 per year.

5. That he has not found that the plaintiff was the owner and entitled
to the immediate possession of the land.

6. That his Honor, in the said judgment, has not stated separately
his conclusions of fact and law.

From the judgment rendered by the court the plaintiff appealed.

O. W. Tillett and P. D. Walker for plaintiff.
John Devereuws, Jr., and J. D. Shaw for defendants.

Surrm, C. J., after stating the facts: We proceed to examine
the. series of exceptions taken to the rulings of the judge and (196)
brought up on the appeal.

First Exception. So far as the finding of the agency of the attorney -
rests upon the sufficiency and credibility of the testimony’in establishing
the fact, the finding of the judge is conclusive.

I the objection be predicated upon the absence of any evidence it
cannot be sustained, for the attorney expressly states that he acted as
such in the matter of selling the property.

Second Exception. The same witness states: “I made the sale for
W. F. Kornegay & Co., the mortgagees, and bid off the land as agent for
Gibson. Mr. Barbour was here and made no objection to the sale.”

There was no evidence that the defendant was aware of the fact that
the agent, a witness for the plaintiff, knew for whom the land was bid
off. This supports the finding. _

Third Exception. As every fact must be found upon evidence, and
there was none that the defendant had the supposed knowledge, it ecould
not be so found. .

Fourth Exception. The court does not find the rental value of the
land, for in the judgment following the general statement of facts it is
declared that “the rental value of said land was $40 or $50.” The excep-
tion is founded in error.,
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Fifth Exception. The main and really only point embodied in the
fifth exception is as to the effect of the proceedings in conducting the
sale upon the title acquired by the plaintiff, in divesting it of the trusts
of the mortgage, upon which the ruling is against the plaintiff, and in
our opinion it rests upon well established and universally recognized
" principles of equity. At law, a sale by a vendor directly to a vendee,
when one person, is a nullity, since #ll contracts must be between two
or more persons with antagonistic relations as to the subject-matter of
the contract; but a deed executed by the owner of land or other property

to another person, though the latter accepts the title under an
(197) agreement to reconvey at law passes the estate, when the parties

are competent to contract; but it may be avoided by persons in
interest because, though pursuing the forms of law, such a transaction
tends to fraud, under the veil which covers it, and in equity will be
avoided if demanded by those who may be prejudiced. The principle
is elucidated by Reade, J., in Froneberger v. Lewts, 79 N. C., 426, and
reiterated in the more recent case of Sumner v. Sessoms, 94 N. C,, 371,

So far has been carried the doctrine of the right to have set aside a
sale made by a trustee to one who was buying for him, under a promise
to reconvey, that creditors, not secured in a deed of trust, may demand
an annulling of the transaction and an execution of the trust, though
all others interested in the disposition of the property were content with
what was done, and this even after a long interval of delay. Elliott v.
Pool, 3 Jones Eq., 17.

Even when the trustee has an interest in the property thus transferred
1t may be avoided. Hunt v. Bass, 2 Dev. Eq., 292; Boyd v. Hawkins,
2 Ired. Eq., 304.

The principle underlying the equitable rule is in the language of
Lord Eldon in Ex parte James, 8 Ves., 345: “The purchase is not per-
mitted in any case, however honest the circumstances, the general inter-
ests of justice requiring it to be destroyed in every instance”; and he
uses substantially the same language in reference to a commissioner in
bankruptey, purchasing through a solicitor, in Ez parte Bennett, 10
Ves., 385. :

“It is an inflexible rule” are the words of the late Chief Justice, an
Associate Justice when they were uttered, “that when a trustee buys at
his own sale, even if he gives a fair price, the cestud que trust has his
election to treat that sale as a nullity, not because there is, but because
there may be, fraud. Brothers v. Brothers, 7 Ired. Eq., 150.

In Joyner v. Farmer, 78 N. C., 196, after land had been bid
(198) off by an agent of the mortgagee, the mortgagor being present
and not objecting, and as tenant of the latter remaining in pos-
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session for a year, nevertheless as no interveming rights had been ac-
quired by others, and no misconduct in the selling was alleged, the
mortgagor was held to be entitled to have a resale because, as was said
by Rodman, J., in the opinion, “the interest of a vendor and a purchaser
are so antagonistic that the same man cannot he allowed to fill both
characters.” )

“In all cases where a purchase has been made by a trustee,” we quote
from section 322 of the first volume of M. Justice Story’s excellent
treatise on Equity Jurisprudence, “on his own account of the estate of
his cestui que trust, although sold at public auetion, it is in the option
of the cestur que trust to set aside the sale, whether bona fide made or
not.” :

It can make no difference in the result that the same agent employed
to make the sale is employed to make the bid for an independent pur-
chaser. There is a legal incompatibility in one man’s occupying such
adverse relations and representing antagonistic interests in the transac-
tion, and a ecourt of equity will not tolerate the attempt and give efficacy
to what is done, when opposed by competent parties in interest. The
cases to which. the brief of appellants’ counsel calls our attention are
in no degree hostile to this universally accepted rule. That of Dexter v.
Shepard, reported in 117 Mass., 480, simply decides that a trustee, ex-
pressly authorized under the deed to purchase at his own sale, may
exercise the right by employing some one to bid for him at the sale, and
80 might the court, directing a commissioner interested in the trusts to
make a sale, give him authority to bid, as a means of securing himself
against loss, as was done in McKay v. Gilliam, 65 N. C., 130, although
the fact does not appear in the report, and so, we think, may this

be allowable with the general consent of all who could otherwise (199)
make objection to the sale.

The judgment of the court must therefore be upheld, so far as it
charges the legal estate vested in the plaintiff with the trusts of the
mortgage.

But inasmuch as it is apparent that a sale of the property—some of
1t at least—is necessary to discharge the secured indebtedness, the at-
tempted sales being out of the way and there being no rule which re-
quires the personal to be put in front of the real estate in disposing of
the property, the judgment, giving a day for redemption, should have
directed a sale of the land, unless the debt was before paid as “the only
property in conlroversy in this action.”

The case has this aspect: The mortgagee holds, as such, the personal
property under the trusts, and has parted with the legal estate in the
land by his deed to the plaintiff, with its adhering trusts;, and has re-
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ceived $500 in payment therefor. There is no marshaling of the funds
required. The land has been sold and the title conveyed. The plaintiff
occupies the place of the trustee, so far as the mortgagor is concerned,
and he has paid money into the trust fund in the hands of the mort-
gagees which, if the purchase were upheld, would go in diminution of
the indebtedness, and if not, must be restored to the plaintiff, and this
would be a self-adjustment pro tanto should the plaintiff again become
purchaser. .

The presence of the members of W. F. Kornegay & Co. in the cause
is only necessary to compel the restoration of the purchase money in
the event of the land being bought by some one else at a sum less than
that already paid, or to return to the plaintiff, should he buy, the excess
coming to him.

This is the whole extent of the controversy in the aection, und it is
limited to the land and the disposition to be made of it. It would be

unjust to the plaintiff to allow his action to lose its identity by
(200) merging into one of wider dimensions, involving the adminis-

tration by the mortgagees of the whole trust estate, with which,
outside of the land, he has no interest whatever ; and this seems to have
been comprehended in the action of the court in the form of the judg-
ment. Nor does this practice find any countenance in the provisions of
the Code of Civil Procedure in respect to a defense or counterclaim.
Section 244 only authorizes a counterclaim when, as “a cause of action,”
it is one “arising out of the contract or transaction set forth in the com-
plaint as the foundation of the plaintiff’s claim or connected with the
subject of the action,” or when the action is on a contract a counter-
claim on another and independent contract is allowed. The present
counterclaim or defense is not such as the statute authorizes, inasmuch
as it goes wholly outside the limits of the complaint, and is foreign to
the controversy, which springs out of the plaintiff’s action, and intro-
duces a new controversy among the defendants to which he is indifferent.
In the case of Hulbert v. Douglas, 94 N. C., 128, this practice was de-
clared inadmissible and supported by no known precedent. In this
case the court declared that such controversies cannot be “rightfully
introduced in the present action, as they are wholly foreign to its pur-
pose, and must be settled in another suit between the defendants them-
selves. The practice, sanctioned by The Code, does not go so far as to
permit the introduction of questions in dispute among the defendants
undess they arise out of the subject of the action as set out in the com-
plaant, and have such relation to the plaintiff’s claim as that their ad-
justment is necessary to a full and final determination of the cause,”
citing Hughes . Boone, 81 N. C., 204.
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So much of the proceeding as looks to an adjustment of controversies
arising out of the administration of the whole trust estate by the mort-
gagees and beyond that which belongs to the land must be declared to
be erroneous, and is reversed. The cause will proceed in the court
below in accordance with the law as declared in this opinion.  (201)

Modified and affirmed.

Cited: Martin v. McNeely, 101 N, C., 638; 8. ¢, 103 N. C,, 822;
Whitehead v. Whitehurst, 108 N. C., 461; Mawwell v. Barringer, 110
N. C., 83; Cole v. Stokes, 113 N. C., 273; Jones v. Pullen, 115 N. C,,
471; Russell v. Roberts, 121 N. 0., 825; Monroe v. Fuchtler, tbid., 103;
Austin v. Stewart, 126 N. C., 527; Moring v. Privott, 146 N. C,, 564;
Hayes v. Pace, 162 N. C., 292; Owens v. Manufacturing Co., 168 N. C,,
399 ; Thompson v. Buchanan, 195 N. C,, 158.

L. ¢. CALDWELL axp M, G. CALDWELL, His Wirg, v. ELLA V.
STIREWALT anxp C. L. SUMMERS.

Froud in Sale of Land—Injunction Until the Hearing.

1. Where a sale and conveyance of land had been made and bonds and
mortgage executed to secure the purchase money, and the purchaser
brought an action for an alleged fraud in the contract of sale, and asked
for a cancellation of the papers, etc., and moved for an injunction to
restrain defendant from collecting or disposing of the bonds until the
hearing; and the evidence, offered in support of the motion, tended to
prove that the action was brought in good faith: Held, that though the
answer, admitting some of the material allegations of the complaint,
denied others, and alleged matters in defense, and put in question the
matter in litigation, still the cause of action being serious, and there
being a doubt, it was proper to grant the injunction until the hearing.

2. Though one, who would have a sale avoided for fraud, should abandon
it on discovering the fraud, and give notice thereof promptly to the
vendor, where the purchaser alleges that he did so, and details in his
complaint his actions in respect thereto, and on a reasonable interpre-
tation of his conduct, in view of the facts, it is doubtful whether he did
or did not abandon the sale, a decision of the question of abandonment
should be deferred until the hearing. /

MoTION FOR AN INJUNCTION in a civil action heard before Clark, J.,
at November Term, 1887, of the Superior Court of IrepELL County.

This was an application, by motion, for an injunction to restrain the
feme defendant pending the action, until the hearing upon the merits,
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(202) from selling, disposing of, or collecting the promissory notes and
enforcing the mortgage to secure the same, specified in the com-
plaint.

The motion was heard upon the sworn complaint and answers, treated
as afidavits, and additional affidavits of the plaintiffs. The following is |
a copy of the material parts of the complaint:

"The plaintiffs, complaining of the defendants, allege:

1. That on 1 January, A. D. 1886, the defendant Ella V. Stirewalt
was the owner in fee of a lot of land in the town of Statesville whereon
is a dwelling-house, situated on Broad Street, adjoining the lots of C. I.
Armfield, A, A. Hampton, and the heirs of T. S. Tucker, deceased,
known as the Richard Allison lot, and containing about one acre.

2. That on the day last aforesaid the plaintiff M. G Caldwell, through
the plaintiff L. C. Caldwell, her husband, acting as agent, entered into
a negotiation with the defendant Ella V. Stirewalt, acting through her
agent, the defendant C. L. Summers, who is her father and who was
fully thereto authorized by her, for the purchase of said lot of land, and
the plaintiff in said negotiation, through her agent, informed the de-
fendant Ella V. Stirewalt, through her said agent, C. L. Summers, that
she desired to purchase said house and lot for a residence for herself
and family, and that the main and moving cause for her said purchase
was to secure a healthy location for herself and family; and through
her agent aforesaid she called the attention of the defendant’s agent to
a basement under the dwelling-house on said lot, and asked him if the
water ever arose or stood in said basement, and declared to him during
said negotiation that if the water ever did rise or stand in said basement
or get in there in any way she would not purchase said property at any
price whatever. The defendant Ella V., through her said agent, de-
clared to the plaintiff’s agent that the water never did rise or stand in
said basement or get in there in any way; that the same was at all times

perfeetly dry and fit for use as a cook-room or a place for servants
(203) to sleep; whereas, in truth and in fact, said basement was then,

to the knowledge of both of these defendants, and had been for a
long time, in such a condition that whenever any considerable or ordi-
nary rains fell the water would rise, run into and stand in said basement,
rendering the same totally unfit for use, and rendering the whole house
unhealthy to its occupants, damp and unsuitable for a dwelling-house,
and especially rendering the rooms immediately above said basement
damp and unhealthy; so much so that in ordinary wet weather bed
clothing, wearing apparel, and furniture were constantly covered with
damp and mould, and the plaintiff M. G. and her said agent, being
strangers to said property, believed and relied on the said representa-

174



N.C} FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

CALDWELL v. STIREWALT,

tion of said Ella V.’s said agent, and were induced thereby to proceed
with said negotiation, and to purchase said property as hereinafter
stated.

3. That afterwards, to wit, on the day and year aforesaid, the plain-
tiff M. G., acting through her said agent, and moved and induced by the
fraudulent and false representation of the defendant Ella V.s said
agent that said basement was at all times dry and fit for use as afore-
said, and that the water did not rise or stand therein or get in in any
way, bought said property of said Ella V. through her said agent at the
price of $2,250, and took a deed therefor from said Ella V. in fee, and
gave her three several notes for the same, signed by herself and the
plaintiff L. C.; one for $250 due 1 January, 1887; one for $1,000 due
same date, and one for $1,000 due 1 January, 1888, all dated 1 January,
1886, and bearing 8 per cent interest from date, and to secure the same
gave a mortgage on said house and lot, which is recorded in Book 6,
pages 691-2, in the register’s office in Iredell County, and that all of
said notes are now in the possession of said defendant Ella V. or her
said agent.

4. That about the time of said purchase plaintiffs moved into (204)
her house on said lot with their family, and in less than a week
after said purchase, it having rained, the plaintiffs found that in said
basement story the water was standing almost knee deep, and as long
as they remained in said house the water would enter and stand in said
basement until the same was bailed out or escaped by evaporation, ren-
dering said house damp, unhealthy and unfit for occupation as a dwell-
ing, and rendering plaintiffs’ family sick. Plaintiffs repeatedly, during
their occupation of said house, called the attention of the said C. L.
Summers (defendant Ella V. beng at a distance from Statesville) to
the flooded condition of said basement, and requested him to look at the
same and take some steps to remedy it, but he persistently refused to
look at it or take any steps to remedy it.

5. The plaintiffs continued to reside in said house with their family
until about 1 November, 1886, when, finding that said dwelling-house,
by reason of the constant flooding of said basement, was unhealthy and
totally unfit for a dwelling-house, removed from the same and totally
abandoned and surrendered said premises, and notified the said Ella V.
through her agent, C. L. Summers, that they abanoned the said contract
for the said house and lot, and offered him -the key of the house and
possession of the premises, having before that demanded of him that
all their papers in regard to said trade be canceled and delivered up;
and since said 1 November, 1886, the plaintiffs have had no possession
of and have exercised no control over said house and lot or any part of
it, and that a summons has been issued in this action.
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The complaint demands judgment that the sale of the land by the
feme defendant to the feme plaintiff be declared and decreed to be void
for fraud alleged, for further specific relief, and for general relief.

The answers of the defendants admit some of the material
(205) allegations of the complaint, deny others, especially those alleg-
ing fraud, explain others—admitting them in part and denying
them in part, and the feme defendant alleges that the feme plaintiff
knew that the cellar complained of sometimes became wet and damp;
that she occupied the house for months, and did not in good faith offer -
to surrender it or abandon the sale complained of for a long while,
ete., ete.

The court made an order granting the motion for the injunction until

the hearing, ete., from which the defendants appealed to this Court.

R. F. Armfield for plaintiffs.
D. M. Furches for defendants.

MEegrrIMON, J., after stating the case: The plaintiffs allege a cause of
action, and the evidence produced by them in support of the motion for
an injunction until the hearing upon the merits tends strongly to prove
that the action is brought in good faith to obtain the relief demanded,
and that the feme plaintiff may be entitled to have the same substan-
tially. .

On the contrary, while the answer admits some of the material alle-
gations of the complaint and other evidential facts, it denies others and
alleges matter in defense, and seriously puts in question the matter in
litigation. As the matter is serious, and there is doubt, the feme de-
fendant should not be -allowed to collect or dispose of the notes in ques-
tion until the cause of action shall be litigated. The case is one that
comes within the rule of equity applied in Harrison v. Bray, 92 N. C,,
488; Coates v. Wilkes, ibid., 376; Ellett v. Newman, tbid., 5195 Whit-
taker v. Hill, 96 N. C., 2; McElwee v. Blackwell, 94 N. C., 261; Lewts

9. Lumber Co., 99 N. C., 11, decided at this term.
(206) It is true, as contended by the counsel for the appellant, that

the feme plaintiff, if she intended to abandon the sale, should
have done so0, and given notice of this her purpose promptly on discover-
ing the alleged fraud practiced upon her in bringing it about, as was
decided in McDowell v. Simms, 6 Ired. Eq., 278; Alexander v. Utley,
7 Ired. Eq., 242; Knight v. Houghtalling, 85 N. C., 17, and other like
cages But she alleges that she did so, and it is not at all clear that under
the circumstances she did not. What she did in this connection must
receive a reasonable interpretation, in view of the whole facts. That
she did or did not abandon the sale as promptly as she should have done
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is a question that ought not to be decided now. There is such doubt

about it as that it ought to be considered and determined when the case

shall be heard upon the merits. ‘
There is no error. Let this opinion be certified to the Superior Court,

to the end that further steps may be taken in the action there according

to law. It is so ordered. ,
Affirmed.

Cited: Durhamv. B. R., 104 N. C., 264; Dawis v. Lassiter, 112 N. C,,
1303 Moore v. Sugyg, ibid., 2853 Faison v. Hardy, 114 N. C., 61; Yount
v. Setzer, 155 N. C,, 219,

WALLACE BROTHERS v. J. R, ROBESON AND QTHERS,

Attachment—Interpleader—Burden of Proof—Practice in Supreme
Court—Directing the Verdict’

1. Interpleaders in an attachment proceeding having failed to appear and
prosecute their plea, at the proper term of the Superior Court, judgment
was rendered on their bond. At a subsequent term, they moved to set the
judgment aside, which motion was denied; but the judgment was set
aside to the extent that an issue was ordered to be submitted as to the
ownership of the property attached. At a still subsequent term, this
issue was tried, and the interpleaders appealed to the Supreme Court,
from the judgment then rendered. In the Supreme Court it was held, that
the judgment refusing the motion to set aside the judgment rendered on
the bond could not be reviewed on such appeal.

2. In proceedings in attachment, one who interpleads under section 331 of
The Code,. is an actor, upon whom rests the burden of proving his title
to the property he claims. And this is so, although the property was in
his possession when seized by the sheriff,

8. Where an issue is submitted to the jury and the party upon whom rests
the burden of proof refuses to offer any evidence, it is proper for the
judge to direct the jury to answer the issue in favor of the other side.

Crvir aoTION trled before Conmor, J., and a jury at February (207)
Term, 1888, of IrepELL Superior Court.

The plamuﬁ” brought this action against J. R. Robeson, in- the Supe-
rior Court of the county of Iredell, to recover the money alleged to be
due upon certain promissory notes speeiﬁed in the complaint, and in the
action sued out a warrant of arrest and also a warrant of attachment,
which latter was levied upon certain goods alleged to be the property
of the defendant in the action. The plaintiffs afterwards obtained judg-

ment for their debt.
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The appellants claim the goods so levied upon and interpleaded as
allowed by the statute (The Code, secs. 331, 375). They allege “that
on 22 June, 1885, a stock of goods, wares and merchandise belonging
to them, and of which they had possession in their storehouse in said
county of Yancey, was seized and taken by the sheriff of said county,
and they turned out of said house, under an attachment issued from the
Superior Court of Iredell County in favor of the plaintiffs, Wallace
Brothers, and against the defendant, J. R. Robeson, parties to the above
entitled action.

Affiants further state that they are the owners of said stock of goods,
and are lawfully entitled to the possession thereof, and also the building

or storehouse in which the goods are kept.
(208)  That they purchased said stock of goods from the defendant
J. R. Robeson, and also his interest in the storehouse, on 15 June,
1885, and at the same time took possession and control of the whole of
said property.

That the purchase of said property was bona fide, made upon and for .
good consideration by these affiants, who took the same innocently with-
out any knowledge or notice of any fraudulent intent on the part of
defendant Robeson as -alleged by plaintiffs, Wallace Brothers, as alleged
in their affidavit.”

At the August Term, 1887, of the court the appellants, interpleaders,
failing to appear and prosecute their plea, the court gave judgment
upon their bond in favor of the appellees.

At the November Term of the court of 1887 the appellants moved to
set the judgment against them aside because of excusable neglect and
irregularity affecting the judgment. The court, after reciting the facts,
denied the motions, as follows:

“It is therefore adjudged. by the court that the motion to set aside the
judgment for excusable neglect, and to allow the said defendants to plead
and answer and to set aside the judgment for excusable neglect and sur-
prise, be and the same is denied.

“It is further adjudged that the motion to set aside the judgment for
irregularity be allowed, to the extent that an issue be submitted to the
jury to pass upon the said interpleader of Griffith and Higgins, who
claim the said property agreeably to sections 331 and 375 of The Code.

“And it is further adjudged that the motion of the defendant G. D.
Ray to interplead and set up title and claim the property attached, as
aforesaid, in Exhibit ‘C” as his own be denied on the ground that he has
heretofore signed the forthcoming bond of Higgins and Griffith, and
signed and filed an affidavit in the cause setting up title thereto in Hig-

ging and Griffith. His motion is also refused, as a matter of
(209) discretion, after so long a delay to apply.”
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Afterwards, at the February Term, 1888, of the court, the case was
tried. The following is a copy of the material facts of the case settled
on appeal:

The plaintiffs’ action was instituted June, 1885, and warrants of
arrest and attachment sued out, and by successive steps judgments for
the debt sued on and on the bail and attachment bonds, rendered.

After the writ of attachment against the defendant Robeson’s prop-
erty was levied the interpleaders, Joseph Higgins and W. E. Griffith,
filed an interpleader in the cause, claiming the attached property as
their own.

At November Term, 1887, of this Court, Judge Clark modified the
judgment against the attachment bond which had been obtained at the
August Term, 1887, of this Court, as follows, to wit: “To the extent
that an issue be submitted to the jury to pass upon the said interpleader
of Griffith and Higgins, who claim the said property, agreeably to sec-
tions 831 and 375 of The Code.”

_ From this judgment and from the other judgments in the cause there-
tofore rendered no appeals have been perfected by any of the defendants
or the 1nterpleaders

The cause coming on to be heard at this term solely upon the said
interpleader of the said Griffith and Higgins and upon the issue directed
by Judge Clark, as above stated, the counsel for the interpleaders stated
that they only wished to raise the question whether the said interpleaders
were bona fide purchasers of the property attached, for value and with-
out notice of the frandulent character of the assignment; whereupon the
court drew and submitted the following issue:

“Did Higgins and Griffith purchase the property described in the
complaint (interplea) for a valuable consideration and without notice #”

To this issue the plaintiffs objected. The interpleaders insisted
upon the issue as thus framed. (210)

The interpleaders insisted that, upon this issue, the burden of
proof was upon the plaintiffs.

The court held that the burden was upon the interpleaders. The
interpleaders excepted.

The interpleaders declined to introduce any testimony to support the
igsue, whereupon the court directed the jury to answer the issue in the
negative.

The verdict was rendered accordingly.

The interpleaders moved for a new trial. Motion denied. Judgment
was then rendered for the plaintiffs. Appeal by the interpleaders.

J. B. Batchelor and John Devereuz, Jr., for plaintiffs.
C. M. Busbee for interpleaders.
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Mzrrimon, J., after stating the facts: It was contended on the argu-
ment before us by the learned counsel for the appellants that they have
the right in this appeal to insist that the court below erred in denying
their motion to set aside the judgment entered against them at the
August Term of that court of 1887. Clearly they have no such right.
No error was assigned in that respect, nor was there any appeal from
the judgment, which was final. Indeed it seems that they were well
satisfied, inasmuch as the court somewhat irregularly allowed an issue
of fact to be submitted to a jury that afforded them fair opportunity to
prove their title, if they had any, to the goods in question. The appellees
objected to the issue, the appellants insisted upon it, their counsel de-
claring that they only wished to raise the question presented by it. Not-
withstanding their default, in the course of the action the court, anxious
to do them justice, allowed them the largest opportunity to establish

their claim. .
. (211)  The single question presented for our decision by the assign-
ment of error is, On whom did the burden of proof of the issue.
submitted to the jury rest? We cannot hesitate to decide that the court
below held properly that it was upon the appellants.

The statute (The Code, sec. 331) provides, in respect to warrants of
attachment, that “when the property taken by the- sheriff shall be
claimed by any person other than the plaintiff or the defendant, the
claimant may interplead, upon his filing an affidavit of his title and
right to the possession of the property, stating the grounds of such right
and title,” ete. Thus the person interpleading is allowed to come into
the action in the course of it, not as a defendant or an ordinary plaintiff,
but as an actor—in a sense a third party, alleging not simply that he is .
the owner of the property, but he must allege “his title and right to the
possession of the property, stating the grounds of such right and title.”
‘Wherefore such strictness and particularity required of the person inter-
pleading? Is he required thus to allege his title and right of possession
and the.grounds thereof affirmatively, simply to compel the plaintiff in
the action to disprove the same negatively? Rather, is it not the pur-
pose of the statute to allow him to come into the action in its course,
allege and prove his title and right of possession of the property upon
their real merits, and if he shall succeed, take it without the delay and
expense incident to a separate and independent action that otherwise
he might be forced to bring? This seems to us to be the just and reason-
able view and the one that harmonizes with well settled principles of
law applicable. Claywell v. McGinsey, 4 Dev., 89; Churchill v. Lee, T7
N. C, 341; Hudson v. Wetherington, 79 N. C., 3; Bailey’s Onus Pro-
bands, 275 1 Gr. on Ev., 74; Abb. Tr. Ev., 715.
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Moreover the plaintiff, by his action—the warrant of attachment and
the levy of the same on the property as that of the defendant—
has acquired some right to the property for the purposes of the (212)
action that a party interpleading should. ordinarily be required
to overthrow by proving his better title, if he has one. In such case the
presumption is that the property was properly levied upon as that of
the defendant in the action; the warrant commanded the sheriff to levy
upon his property and not that of another.

The counsel of the appellants laid much stress on the fact that they
were in possession of the property when the sheriff levied upon it; he
insisted that such possession was evidence of title. If this be granted,
the burden was on the appellants to prove such possession. It was not
admitted, as alleged, but if it had been, evidence of the admission should
“have been produced by the appellants. But evidence of mere possession
would not have been sufficient; the appellants were bound to prove their
title and right of possession of the property, substantially as alleged by
them and as required by the statute. "Boon v. Chiles, 10 Pet., 211.

There is no error and the judgment must be

Affirmed.

Cited: Wilson v. Chichester, 107 N, C., 389; McQueen v. Bank, 111
N. O, 516; Grambling v. Dickey, 118 N. C., 989; Wagon Co. v. Byrd,
119 N. C., 462; Redman v. Ray, 128 N. C., 507; Tyler v. Capehart, 125
N. C., 70; Cotton Mills v. Weil, 129 N. C., 455; Graves v. Currie, 132
N. C., 811; Maynard v. Ins. Co., ibid., 7135 Mfg. Co. v. Tierney, 133
N. C, 635; Furr v. Johnson, 140 N, O, 160, Patrick v. Baker, 180
N. C., 592. '

WM. REDMOND axp F. M. SCOTT v. EDWARD STEPP.

Boundary—N atural Objects—.Oom'se and Distance—Description in
Complaint—New Trial—Motion in Arrest—Newly Discovered Evi-
dence,

1. When the question is one of boundary of a tract of land conveyed by a
grant or deed, the court decides what are the boundaries, and the jury
ascertain where they are. If besides course and distance, natural objects,
marked trees or lines of adjacent tracts are called for, these control
course and distance; but if they cannot be found, the course and distance
must guide in fixing the boundary.

2. The two last cally in a grant being, “thence south 106 chains to a stake
in the South Carolina boundary line; thence with said line east to the
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beginning,” and it being conceded that such boundary line was south of
the State line as now fixed, it was for the jury to fix that line as recoug-
nized at the date the grant was issued, and according to its intent, as
appearing by reference to natural objects, etc., as then existing, rather
than from course and distance, in case of conflict between them. But if
that line could not be so ascertained, it was proper to follow course and
distance, and the last corner thus being fixed, run direct to the beginning
corner.

8. Land sued for being descrlbed in the complaint as Patent 250, and the
grant having been introduced and a witness allowed to testify as to the
identity of the land, without objection, the vagueness of the description
was no ground for new trial, after a verdict, nor for a motion in arrest
of judgment. If the objection had been made in due time, it could have
been met by an amendment of the complaint.”

4, It is in the discretion of the court below to refuse, or to grant a new trial,
because the verdict was against the evidence, as when it was agains?
the weight of the evidence, and no appeal lies from its exercise.

5. When new evidence is discovered during the term, a motion for a new
trial on account of it must be made to the court which tried the case, and
if denied, it will not be heard in the Supreme Court.

(218)  Crvir actiox for recovery of land, tried before Grawves, J., at
Spring Term, 1886, of the Superior Court of HENDERSON.
The facts appear in the opinion, in which the plat, on page 214, is
referred to.

No counsel for plaintiffs.
T. F. Davidson and S. V. Pickens (by brief) for defendants.

Surra, C. J. The object of the action, begun in March, 1882, is to
establish title to and recover possession of a tract of land described in
the complaint as “known as patent or grant No. 250,” containing 36,494

acres (except certain tracts within the designated boundaries be-
(215) fore granted to others), issued on 26 November, 1796, to one
Tench Coze.

From him, it is not disputed, an unbroken line of conveyances has
transmitted tltle to the plaintiffs.

The controversy between the opposing parties is one of boundary, and
-whether it includes a tract afterwards granted as No. 3732, of which the
defendant was in the occupation, claiming it as his own.

The lines enclosing the large area in the grant to Coxe are very
numerous, calling at times .for natural objects, and. again pursuing
course and distance only, without other guides to their location, yet the
beginning point is fixed at a conceded place, described as “beginning at
a large poplar, marked on the north side R. H., on the west side and on
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the east side R., standing on the South Carelina boundary on a rich
level, on the top of a high ridge near a gap on said ridge on the east
side of said gap below Williams’ Mill, and runs north 32 chains to Paco-
let crossing,” ete.

The last call but one is “thence south 106 chains to a stake in the
South Carolina boundary line,” and the last, “thence with said line east
to the beginning.” The excepted tracts are numerous, and in the aggre-
gate contain about 3,000 acres.

The controversy was about the location of the State boundary, as
along it runs the line lagt .called for in the grant to Coxe, and it is
therein represented as running a due west course from the terminal point
next preceding the last, an undefined distance along the State boundary
to the initial point, or reversing the course, due east from the initial
point to the next corner. If, therefore, the initial point-is, as seems to
be conceded, at the place on the diagram marked No. 1, Pop., the actnal -
line dividing the territory of the two States, if ascertained, as it existed
in 1796, when the grant issued, must be followed, and is the southern
boundary of the land conveyed ; and if it cannot be ascertained, the line

must be run a course east and west, and this is coincident with
(216) and determines, in the absence of other evidence showing a dif-
. ferent location, the position of the said dividing State boundary.

The plaintiffs’ contention is that as the runnings around the tract
bring you to the terminus of the dark line at D, the last line must run
therein direct to the beginning, and that this is the South Carolina line.

The defendant insists upon stopping the line next to the last, at its
intersection with the red line, and thence direct to the beginning. .
Neither of these runs a course directly west, the red line as represented
in the survey, north 8614 west, and the black line in a reversed direction
north 8871/ east, so that each diverges from a west course, but the plain-
tiffs’ in a less degree than the other.

At the close of the evidence the defendant submitied a proposed writ-
ten instruction to be given to the jury, and it was so given, in these
words: ,

“1. In doubtful questions of location as to lines, the intent of the
contracting parties at the time controls everything but calls for a natural
boundary, and that the original plat or diagram made at the time and
accompanying the grant is evidence of such intent.

“2. If the first and last corners called for in the plaintiffs’ grant are
in the South Carolina boundary line, and the last call from one of these
points to the other with the said -South Carolina boundary line, the
burden is on the plaintiff to locate said line so as to include the posses-
sion of the defendant, and on failing to satisfy the jury of such the
plaintiffs cannot recover.”.
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This instruction was not given, and to the refusal of the court so to
charge the defendant enters his first exception.

Instead thereof, upon this point, the jury were told, in substance—
for we do not undertake to set out the charge, which was very full and
extended in words, but so muech of it as will illustrate the exceptions—
that the plaintiffs must locate the land conveyed in the grant to
Coxe and show that the defendant is in possession of some por- (217)
tion of it or they fail in their action. In determining the posi-
tion of the surrounding lines, for the subsequent deeds, it is not denied,
embrace the land in the patent, the rule of law is that the court adjudges
what are the boundaries of a conveyed tract of land, and the jury ascer-
tain where they are. If only course and distance are given, and the
beginning is found, the line will run by course and distance. But when,
in addition to course and distance, natural objects, marked trees or lines
of other tracts are called for, these, when shown, will control course
and distance, and must be reached by a further extension or shortening
of the line, so as to reach such objects, trees, or adjoining tracts. If
none such can be found, then the course and distance must be the guide
in fixing the boundary. It is conceded that the dividing State boundary,
as now established, is south of the black line claimed by plaintiffs, but
the defendant insists, as it existed at the time of the grant, it was further
north at the red line. Our inquiry is, What lands were covered by the
grant when it was made? If, guided by the instructions given, the jury
shall ascertain the recognized line between the States at the period of
its issue, and that it was the intent of the parties to run to and stop at
‘that line, then such must be the effect, but this intent must be ascer-
tained from the provisions of the instrument and the places of the
natural objects, marked trees, or adjoining tracts, as they then existed.
If there was then a line known as “the South Carolina line,” by which
it is designated in the grant, that line, when located, will prevail over
course and distance, in case of conflict between them. But if the jury
are not satisfied upon this point from the evidence, course and distance
must be followed, and when the last corner is reached the line must run
direet to the beginning.

To this responsive instruction, in place of that asked and re- (218)
fused, the defendant’s second exception is entered.

After verdict the defendant moved for a new trial for the reason
that the court permitted evidence to identify the land deseribed in the
complaint as Patent No. 250 by hearsay, or reputation, because of the
vagueness of the deseriptive reference.

The motion was refused, the grant having been introduced and the
witness Watkins allowed to testify to the identity without objection.
This is the defendant’s third exception.
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The defendant also asked that the verdict be set aside:

1. Because it was against the evidence under the instructions of the
court. :

2. For error in refusing an instruction and in that given.

3. For newly discovered evidence which, if heard, would change the
result of the finding by the jury.

This application being also denied, the defendant moved in arrest of
judgment because of the vague and indefinite designation of the land
in the complaint.

This motion was also refused, and from the judgment rendered upon
the verdict the defendant appealed

1. The charge which separates the functlons of the court from those
of the jury in passing upon questions of boundary has the clear sanction
of past adjudications, and is, upon reason, well settled. Tatem v. Paine,
4 Hawks, 64; Burnett v. Thompson, 13 Ired., 8379; Marshall v. Fisher,
1 Jones, 111; Sprudll v. Davenport, ibid., 203; Clark v. Wagoner, 70
N. C., 706 ; Dickson v. Wilson, 82 N. C., 487.

The instruction has equally the support of past rulings as to the run-
nings when the calls are by course and distance, and also refer to
natural objects or well-known lines of adjacent tracts and the predomi-
nance of the latter, when they cannot be reconciled Dickson v. Wilson,
supra; Miller v. Bryan, 86 N. C., 167; Jones v. Bunker, 83 N. C., 324;
Strickland v. Draughan, 88 N. C., 815; and among the older cases,

Cherry v. Slade, 3 Murph., 82; Haughton v. Bascoe, 3 Hawks,
(219) 21; Hurley v. Morgan, 1 D. & B., 425; Brooks v. Britt, 4 Dev.,

481; Slade v. Neal, 2 D. & B., 61; Becton v. Chesnut, 4 D. &
B., 335.

The charge covers so much of the second instruction as the defendant
could properly agk, and there is no error to be found therein.

Third Exception. The objection, first made after verdict, to the in-
definite terms in which the complaint deseribes the lands trespassed
upon, is sufficiently answered in the fact that the grant or patent, re-
ferred to by its number, was produced in aid of the reference, and testi-
mony given as to its location and lines, without opposition, to the jury.
Thus the patent is incorporated in the complaint, and the trial proceeds
as if the complaint specially and in detail set out the lines. There was
no surprise, and the defendant was in no way damaged in his defense.
If the objection had any force 1t would be a case for amendment under
sections 269 and 270 of The Code.

The other grounds for setting aside the verdict are also untenable.

(@) The objection that the verdict is against the evidence is matter
belonging to the discretion of the judge, and is not within our appellate
jurisdiction, whether exercised discreetly or not.
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When it is alleged to be against the evidence, as against the weight
of the evidence, the new trial, for this cause, can only be granted in the
court below. Alley v. Hampton, 2 Dev., 11.  See, also, in this connection
in reference to the effect, as evidence of boundary of the plat annexed
to a grant, Pres. and Dir. Lit. Fund v. Clark, 9 Ired., 58. '

(b) The application based upon newly discovered evidence must be
disposed of in a similar manner.

Where the new evidence is discovered during the term it must be
made, as in this case it has been made, to the court that tried
the cause; the decision, whether granting or refusing the new (220)
trial, is conclusive of the result. It is necessary to refer to but
a single case where the subject is discussed and the rule declared. Car-
son v. Dellinger, 90 N. C.; 226, affirmed in Munden ». Casey, 93
N. G, 97.

The rule which demands a quanium of evidence not possessed at the
trial as a condition for vacating the verdict, according to the estab-
lished practice is one acted on by the court in which the cause is tried,
and involves no assignable error which this Court can correct, for this
Court acts upon the law arising upon facts found, not upon evidence of
the facts, and however strong the proposed proof may be we cannot over-
rule the action of the trying court and reverse what the court does or
refuses, however posjtive the evidence may be.

There ig no principle of law involved in his ruling and our jurisdic-
tion is only to correct, when properly presented, erroneous rulings in
law.

The motion in arrest of judgment is disposed of in what has been
already said.

Thers is no error and the judgment is

Affirmed.

Cited: Davenport v. Terrell, 103 N. C., 53; Allen v. Sallinger, 108
N. C,, 161; Humphrey v. Church, 109 N. C., 139; Buckner v. Anderson,
111 N. C,, 576; Boomer v. Gibbs, 114 N. C,, 81} Norwood v. Crawford,
bid., 5215 Brown v. House, 118 N. C., 881; Higdon v. Rice, 119 N. C.,
. 6255 HEdwards v. Phifer, 120 N. C., 406; Bowen v. Gaylord, 122 N. C,,
820; Echerd v. Johnson, 126 N. C., 411; Turner v. Dawts, 132 N. C,,
1895 Abernethy v. Yount, 138 N. C., 342; Moore v. McClain, 141 N. C,,
4795 Gudger v. White, tbid., 5195 McNeely v. Laxton, 149 N. C., 335;
Mitchell v. Wellborn, ibid., 3523 Bowen v. Lumber Co., 153 N. C.; 369;
Miller v. Johnston, 173 N. C., 56; Geddie v. Williams, 189 N. C., 336,
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ALLISON PERKINS anxp Oruers v. JESSE J. PRESNELL AND ANOTHER.
Power of Sale in a Will—Statute of Frauds, Section 1554, The Code.

1. When, by the terms of a will, power is given to an executor to sell certain
lands, the lands descend to the heirs of the devisor until divested by an
effectual exercise of the power.

2. Where an executor, having power conferred upon him by the will to sell
certain land, exposes the land to public sale, announcing at the time that
no deed or contract for title would be given until the price was paid, and
the land was bid off by a purchaser, who gave his bond for the price, but
received no written acknowledgment of his purchase from the executor:
Held, that the sale was a nullity under the statute of frauds, and the
heirs of the devisor could recover the possession from the purchaser or
those claiming under him.

(221)  Civit acrion (ejectment) tried before MacRae, J., at Spring
Term, 1887, of Burke Superior Court.
Judgment for plaintiffs, Defendants appealed. The facts are stated
in the opinion.

C. H. Armfield for plaintiffs.
C. M. Busbee for defendants.

Surra, C. J. The action is prosecuted by the plaintiffs to recover
possession of the rectangular tract of land described in the complaint
and withheld by the defendants, the title to which is brought into con-
troversy in the pleadings, and the only issues submitted to the jury were:

1. Are the plaintiffs the owners and entitled to the land mentioned
in the complaint? The response being in the affirmative.

2. What damages, if any, have the plaintiffs sustained? The answer
returned : “One penny.”

Oun the trial the plaintiffs produced in evidence a grant for 100 acres, .
issued in 1803 to Benjamin White; a deed for the same land made in
1812 by the grantee to Alexander Perkins, under whom the plaintiffs
claim, and then proved by a witness these facts: The said Alexander
Perking died a few years before the late Civil War, having had three
children—Theodore, Thaddeus and Clarigsa. The two sons died in the
lifetime of their father, the said Theodore leaving one daughter, Clara,

who married and died, as did her husband, without issue. Thad-
(222) deus, the next son, left four children, who, except a daughter,
are plaintiffs in the action. This daughter, Clara, married Hor-
ton, and upon his death married the defendant Jesse J. Presnell, and
then died herself, leaving no issue. In answer to this prima facie show-
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ing of title the defendants introduced the will of the deceased ancestor,
Alexander Perkins, admitted to probate in 1857, wherein Tod R. Cald-
well is nominated executor, so much of which as bears on the matter in
issue is contained in the second clause or item, and is as follows:

“My will and desire is that all my debts be paid by my executor as
soon as funds may come into his hands sufficient to pay the same, and
. for this purpose he is to sell the following negro slaves,” ete. (designat-
ing them by name, and followed by the enumeration of other property,
personal and real), adding, “also one other tract of land, containing
about one hundred acres, lying on the head branch of Camp Creek, pur-
chased by me from Benjamin White, and I desire my executor to apply
" the proceeds of the sale of the foregoing property and lands to the pay-
ment -of my debts and expenses of executing this will; and if after pay-
ing the same there remains a surplus in his hands it shall be disposed of
as hereinafter directed.”

The defendants exhibited a deed executed in 1863 by Isbell and other
heirs at law of Horton, but if they were the children of his wife,
Clarissa, the fact does not appear, conveying the land in dispute to the
defendant Presnell.

The following paper-writing was filed as “facts admitted”:

“Tt is admitted that there was a sale of said land at auction, but that -
it was announced by the executor at the sale that no bond would be given
nor deed made till purchase money was paid for said land; that Horton
bid off the land and gave his note, which note is now in the hands of the
administrator d. b. n. e. t. a. of said testator, who is a party plaintiff to
this action though not in that capacity. It is admitted that all of
the plaintiffs were of full age before the commencement of this (223)
action; that no deed for the land has ever been made by executor
or admlnlstrator de bonis non, nor hag the purchase money ever been
paid to them or either of them.

It was admitted that thé plaintiffs were heirs at law of Alexander
Perkins.

The presiding judge understood that it was admitted that the debts
of the Perking estate had all been settled; that it was not necessary to
sell this land to pay debts.

The contention of defendant Presnell was that by the will of Alex-
ander Perkins the title to the land in dispute passed out of the heirs at
law of Alexander Perkins, or had never vested in them, and that they
could not recover as his heirs; and further, that defendant Presnell had
title by adverse possession of over twenty years.

The presiding judge being of opinion that the plaintiffs had shown
title to the land in controversy in themselves as heirs of Alexander
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Perking, and that there was no evidence of continuous adverse possession
of said land in defendant for twenty years, nor of such possession under
color of title for seven years, instructed the jury that plaintiffs, having
shown title in themselves, were in law entitled to recover possession of
the land. :

The jury found the issues in favor of the plaintiffs. Judgment was
rendered for plaintiffs. Defendants appealed to the Supreme Court.

The defendants’ claim of title, acquired by possession, having been
abandoned, it becomes unnecessary to consider the voluminous testimony
reported in the case sent up upon that part of the defense, and we shall
confine what we have to say to the other defense.

The defendants’ contention in the record is that the legal estate of -
the deceased was not,at his death transmitted to the heirs at law, or if it
' was it was as an equitable estate, equally a bar to the recovery
(224) of possession as would be a legal estate divested, and by the

executor’s sale passed to Horton, and by his heirs conveyed to
- the defendant Presnell.

Assuming the attempted sale to be a nullity under the Statute of
Frauds, the title to the land in controversy, unless embraced in a clause
in the 12th section of the will, descended to the heirs at law; and if
included in the words, disposing of “all the balance of the lands lying
in Burke and Caldwell counties, not heretofore disposed of in the pre-
ceding clauses of this will,” therein found, the estate in the tract is
devised to the executor in trust for the use of his four grandchildren—
Allison, John, Thomas and Thaddeus—who are the plaintiffs. The
solution of this inquiry is not necessary to a decision of the case on
appeal. If the executor is invested merely with a power of sale and the
particular land, as specifically mentioned in the second clause, is not
embraced in the term “balance,” or, more properly speaking, the residue
of lands in the counties specified, nor elsewhere devised, the legal estate
would descend to and remain in the heirs ‘at law until divested by an
effectual exercise of the power conferred upon the executor. This is
ruled in Ferebee v. Proctor, 2 D. & B., 4893 McLeran v. McKethan, 7
Ired. Eq., 70; Beam v. Jennings, 89 N. C., 451, and in Munds v. Cas-
sidey, 98 N. C., 558.

If it be a part of the residue, the equitable estate vested at once in the
grandson’s devisees, and the legal estate also upon the arrival of Thad-
deus at full age, before which only the legal title was to reside in the
executor. ,

These difficulties being out of the way, the inquiry is (and such was
the contention for the appellants), Did the parol sale, even though the
mnote of the purchaser Horton was taken for the price, pass any estate
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of any kind to obstruct the recovery of possession? And especially when
the purpose of the sale is to pay debts and charges of administration,
and the debts had all been settled, and there was no necessity for
making the sale? Tt is too plain for argument that the legal (225)
estate could only be conveyed by a deed in proper form, executed
and registered, and it is not less so that no equitable estate can be created
under a contract not capable of being enforced in equity against the
vendor. There must be a valid obligation entered into, and to this it is
indispensable that it should be in writing “and signed by the party to
be charged therewith, or by some other person by him thereto lawfully
authorized.” The Code, sec. 1554. It is no answer to say that a party
may assent to perform the contract; he must so bind himself that he can
be made, against his will, to perform it, or become answerable in dam-
ages if he refuses. As the sale is repudiated, the note for the purchase
money should be surrendered.

There is no error and the judgment must be and 1is

Affirmed.

Cited: Farabow v. Green, 108 N. C., 343; Speed v. Perry, 167 N. C.,
129; Barbee v. Cannady, 191 N. C., 533.

W. B. ALLEN v. ROBERT STRICKLAND.

Notices; Form and Service of—Personal Property Exemptions; Allot-
ment of—The Code, Secs. 519, 597, 228—Alias Process.

1. Notices of dissatisfaction with allotment of personal property exemption,
under section 519 of The Code, cannot be served by mail or given orally.

2. When a statute requires notice to be given, the notice must be in writing,
addressed to the proper person, contain an intelligent and sufliciently
expressed statement of the matter to be communicated, signed by the
party giving it or his attorney, served in such way that the court can
see that it has been served, and the original, or a copy, properly authenti-
cated, returned into court.

3. Section 597 of The Code is of general application as to notices in judicial
proceedings, and its requirements are essential to a valid notice.

4. The proof of the service of a notice must be such as is required by section
228 of The Code. -
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5. A notice must be given as the law directs or allows, otherwise the party
notified is not bound by it.

6. Since The Code there is no statute allowing judicial notices to be served
by mail, and in the absence of a statute such a service is void.

7. Semble: If a notice is duly placed in the hands of a proper ofiicer, and he
fails to serve it in time, an alias may be ordered. But a notice served
by the party in a manner not recognized by law, is in law no notice,
and therefore no alias can be ordered.

(226)  Civin acrion tried before Merrimon, J., at April Term, 1887,
of Frangrix Superior Court.

Judgment dismissing the action. Defendant appealed.

The following is a copy of the material parts of the case stated on
appeal:

W. B. Allen obtained judgment on 2 November, 1886, before a justice
of the peace against Robert Strickland, and procured execution to issue
thereon to F. C. Holden, the constable. Strickland claimed his personal
property exemption. The constable summoned as appraisers and asses-
sors John Knight, Nathan May, and C. C. Jeffreys who, on 3 November,
1886, appraised and allotted to the defendant certain articles of personal
property as his exemption. They made return of their proceeding to the
justice’s court, and the constable levied on the excess of personal
property.

On 10 November, 1886, the defendant, being dissatisfied with the
valuation and allotment of the appraisers, filed with the clerk of the
Superior Court a transeript of the return of the appraisers, and with
it a statement in writing of his objection to said return; that at the
same time the defendant, by his attorney, prepared and signed a written
notice for the plaintiff in the execution and the constable, of the defend-

ant’s dissatisfaction and exception to the valuation and allotment
(227) of the appraisers, and that his exceptions would be filed, with a
transeript of the return, with the elerk of the Superior Court.

The attorney of the defendant, on the same day, took the said written
notice to the attorney of the plaintiff in the case of W. B. Allen w.
Robert Strickland and told him what the notice was, and showed the
same to the said attorney, but did not leave it with him, and asked him
if he would accept service thereof. He replied that he preferred that
notice should be sent to Mr. Allen, meaning thereby the plaintiff.

The attorney of the defendant then, and on the same day, mailed a
copy of said notice to Allen, and a copy also to Holden, the constable,
directed to their postoffice, Youngsville, on the Raleigh & Gaston Rail- -
road, distant from Louisburg sixteen miles, and between which two
places there is a daily mail. Allen received the notice within ten days
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after the allotment of the exemption; but Holden, although he resided
within one mile of the postoffice, did not receive his until the eleventh
day after the allotment.

The clerk of the Superior Court placed the case on the Civil Issue
Docket for the next term of court, which commenced on the ........ of
January; that at said term the attorneys for the plaintiff Allen entered
a special appearance, stating that they did so for the purpose of moving
to dismiss, on the ground that notice had not been properly served.

The defendant moved for alies notices. The court being of opinion
that notice had not been served, that it had not the power to allow the
defendant’s motion for alias notices, and resting his position on that
ground and stating that if it were in his discretion he should feel it his
duty to allow the motion, refused the motion of the defendant and
allowed the motion of the plaintiff, and gave judgment dismissing the

. action.

To the refusal of the court to allow defendant’s motion and in
allowing plaintiff’s motion, and to the judgment dismissing the (228)
action, the defendant excepted and appealed. ‘

F. D.-Spfruﬂl and N. Y. Gulley for plaintiff.
Charles M. Cooke for defendant.

Mgzrrimon, J., after stating the facts: We think that the appellant
failed to give the notice to the appellee and the constable of his dis-
satigfaction with the valuation and allotment of the appraisers of his
personal property exemption required by the statute. (The Code,
sec. 519.)

Notice in judicial proceedings is important. In many cases it is the
means whereby the jurisdiction of the court attaches to the party, as in
this case, and generally it gives vitality and efficiency to important
action of the court in the course of the action or proceeding. It is not
to be treated lightly and as of slight moment. When, therefore, ordi-
narily a statute requires such notice to be given it is not meant that the
party to whom it is to be given shall simply have information given
orally or in writing, but it must be given in writing, addressed to the
proper person, contain the substance, intelligently and sufficiently ex-
pressed, of the information to be communicated, signed by the party
giving it, by himgelf or his attorney, and served in such way as that the
court can see and learn that it has been served; and, moreover, it or a
copy of it must be returned into court, properly authenticated, unless
"it shall in some way be waived, as by the appearance of the party to be
affected by it.
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The statute (The Code, seec. 597), which is of general application as
to notice in judicial proceedings, provides that: “Noticés shall be in
writing; notices and other papers may be served on the party or his
attorney personally, when not otherwise provided in this chapter.”

The chapter then provides that service may be made by leaving the

notice in the cases provided for at the office of the attorney, the
(229) residence of the person to be notified, by publication, and par-

ticularly how subpeenas may be served. But generally the notice
must be served personally, and the statute (The Code, sec. 228) provides
that “Proof of service of the summons or notice must be:

“(1) By the certificate of the sheriff or other proper officer.

“(2) In case of publication, the aflidavit of the printer, or of his fore-
man or prineipal clerk, showing the same.

“(8) The written admission of the defendant.”

The service of notice, made in a way and manner recognized and sanc-
tioned by the law, is an essential requisite of it; without this it is inef-
fectual for the purpose intended and void. Unless it is given as the law
directs or allows, the party to whom it is given is not bound to recognize
or act upon it, nor indeed is it notice. It is the legal sanction that gives
the notice, in sufficient form and substance, life and eflicacy. Wade on
Notice, sees. 1293, 1295, 1335, 1342,

Now, neither any statutory provision nor any settled practice in this
State within our knowledge, since the enactment of The Code, warrants
the service of notice in judicial proceedings through the mails. In the
absence of statutory regulation such method would be impracticable.
Practically it could not econtemplate a return of the notice or a copy of
it, and it would not be sufficient proof of service of it to show by affidavit
that it was mailed at a particular time and postoffice to the address of
the party to be charged by it. '

The appellant gave no notice to the adverse party and the officer
within ten days, as required by the statute. An dlias notice was not,
therefore, in order or allowable. It may be that if a sufficient notice
had been placed in the hands of a proper officer, to be served by him on
the party to be charged therewith, and he had returned the same un-
executed, that an aléas notice might have been allowed, and thus the
right of the party giving it would be preserved; but any question as

to that is not now before us. The appellant having allowed the
(230) time within which he might have given notice to lapse, the court
' had no authority to revive and give effect to his lost right.
Judgment affirmed.
No error. Affirmed.
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Cited: S. v. Johnson, 109 N. C., 854; Cummings v. Hoffman, 113
N. C.,, 268; Forte v. Boone, 114 N. C,; 177; M¢Neill v. B. B., 117
N. O, 643; Smith v. Smath, 119 N. C., 317; Martin v. Buffaloe, 128
N. C., 308; McKeithen v. Blue, 142 N. C., 362; Lowman . Ballard, 168
N. C, 18; Herndon v. Awtry, 181 N. C., 273; Habch ». R. R., 183
N. C., 621.

J. C. HORNER v. A. H. A. WILLIAMS, Lessee or THE OXFORD
AND HENDERSON RAILROAD.

Contributory Negligence—=Stock Laaw.

1. It is not contributory negligence in a plaintiff to put cattle in an enclosure
of forty acres through which a railroad runs. The fact that the “stock
law” was in force where the enclosure was gituate, makes no difference.

2. Negligence on the part of an injured party will not bar a recovery of
damages caused by the negligence of another, unless the negligence of
such injured party be the direct and proximate cause of the injury.
Farmer v. B. E., 88 N. C., 564, approved.

Civin acTion originally commenced before a justice of the peace for
the county of Grawvirre to recover the value of plaintifi’s cow, killed
on defendant’s road, and carried by appeal to the Superior Court and
tried before Shepherd, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of said court.

Tt was admitted that the plaintiff’s cow was killed by defendant’s rail-
road a month before this action was brought; that the value of the cow
was $50; that Granville ig a stock-law county, and that defendant’s rail-
road is duly incorporated. The defendant denied the negligent killing
and also alleged contributory negligence, and two issues were submitted :

1. Did defendant kill plaintiff’s cow through negligence? -

2. Was the killing caused by the neghgence of the plaintiff (231)
contributory thereto ?

The first issue was found in the affirmative and the second in the
negative.

There was evidence, independent of the statutory presumption, tend~
ing to show negligence on the part of the defendant, but there is no ex-
ception or question before us bearing upon the first issue, and it is only
necessary to state so much of the case as is material to the question
involved in the second issue—that is, contributory negligence.

It is in evidence that the plaintiff’s cow with other cattle was-in an
enclosure, containing about forty acres, used for a pasture, lying on both
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sides of the railroad, with a fence extending to the bed of the road on
each side of the same, and with cattle-guards between the ends of the
fence where the same came to the railroad. That three-fourths of the
land was on the left side of the road going from Oxford to Henderson,
“and within that portion there was a fish-pond near said railroad track;
and there was also a branch of water within and running through the
same portion of said enclosed parcel of ground or pasture and near to
and parallel with said railroad track; that the cattle pasturing in said
enclosed parcel of ground or pasture were turned into the same on that
side which lay on the right of said railroad in going from Oxford to
Henderson, and were usually turned into the same about 7 o’clock a. m.
and taken out a little before sundown, and that the schedule time for
defendant’s train to leave the depot was 9:15 a. m.; that cattle running
in said enclosed parcel of ground or pasture could not pass from the
portion of the same lying on either side of said railroad to the other
without crossing said railroad track, and could at any and all times
freely cross said railroad track in order to pass from the portion of said
enclosed parcel of ground or pasture lying on either side of said railroad
to the other, there being no fence or other obstruction to prevent them -

from doing so; that cattle running in said enclosed parcel of
(232) ground or pasture had no access to water except at said fish-pond

or branch, at which, when running in said pasture, they were
accustomed to drink; that on the morning of the day when plaintiff’s
cow was killed she was turned into said enclosed parcel of ground or
pasture, along with other cattle, at or about 7 o’clock a. m., and was
running loose and unguarded with said other cattle therein; that de-
fendant’s regular train left the depot at Oxford for Henderson the same
morning at the usual time, according to schedule, to wit, at or about
9:15 o’clock a. m.”

It was also in evidence that going from the Oxford depot towards
Henderson there was a heavy descending grade to and entirely through
the enclosed parcel of land.

The defendant’s courfsel asked no special instructions of the court.

Among other things the court charged the jury, on the second issue,
that the fact that plaintiff had fenced in forty acres of land through
which the railroad ran as a pasture, and kept his cattle therein, would
not constitute contributory negligence. To this the defendant’s counsel
excepted. .

There was judgment for the plaintiff and the defendant appealed.

A, W. Graham for plaintiff.
C. M. Busbee for defendant.
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Davis, J., after stating the case: It is insisted by the defendant that
the plaintiff was guilty of contributory negligence in putting his cow
and other cattle in dan enclosure.such as is described in the evidence and
allowing them to run loose and unguarded therein, with nothing to pre-
vent them from crossing and recrossing the railroad track at will, and
that the court erred in the instructions given to the jury. Granville is a
stock-law county, and the able and learned counsel for the defend-
ant ingists that it was a wrongful act on the part of the plaintiff (233)
to permit his cattle to run at large or, what is alleged to be worse,

“pen” them on the railroad.

We do not concur in this view, but think that there was no error in

the charge of his Honor that it was not contributory negligence to put
cattle in a pasture of forty acres through which the railroad ran. The
fact that the “stock law” was in force could make no difference, even
if the fact of negligence on the part of the defendant rested upon no
positive evidence, but only upon the statutory presumption. This is
settled by Roberts v. B. R., 88 N. C,, 560, cited by defendant.
. In Farmer v. B. R., 88 N. C., 564, in considering the question of con-
tributory negligence, Ashe, J., said: “If the act (of the plaintiff) is
directly connected so as to be concurrent with that of the defendant,
then his negligence is proximate, and will bar his recovery; but where
the negligent act of the plaintiff precedes in point of time that of the
defendant, then it is held to be a remote cause of the injury, and will
not bar a recovery if the injury could have been prevented by the exer-
cise of reasonable care and prudence on the part of the defendant.” So
that, assuming in this case that it would be negligence to turn cattle in
a pasture of forty acres, as described in the evidence, even then it would
not be such a direct and proximate cause of the injury as to bar the
plaintiff’s recovery, if caused by the want of reasonable care and pru-
dence on the part of the defendant. But we do not think the fact of
turning the cattle into such a pasture was per se negligence, and we
content ourselves with a reference to Farmer v. B. R., supra, and the
cages there cited.

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Randall ». R. R., 104 N. C., 415 Bethea v. R. R., 106

" N. C,, 2813 Malloy ». Fayettemlle 122 N c, 484 Winkler v. B. R 126
N. O 373,
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(234)
JOSHUA CONWELL V. CHERRY MANN Anp ALANSON CAPEHART.

Ejectment; P'rovvdng Tutle wn Plamtiff—Estoppel of Tenant—What
Constitutes a Tenancy—_Special Instructions; Very Words Need N ot
Be Given.

1. In ejéctment a plaintiff may show title in himself as follows: (1) By a
connected. chain from the State; (2) by showing title out of the State
and that his title matured by seven years’ adverse possession under color

" of title, by himself or those under whom he claims, before bringing his
‘action; (3) by showing possession for twenty-one years under color of
title, ‘in “‘which case he need not prove title out of the State; (4) by
showing  defendant to have been his tenant when the action was. com-
menced, and thus establish his title by estoppel

2. Where A. puts B: in possession of land; saying at the time, “This is a home
for -you. Go and live in it,” and B. enters under such authority, B.
becomes the tenant of A., and.is estopped even after thirty years’ pos-
session, to deny the title of A., or his assigns.

3. If the judge, while not giving a special instruction in very words, puts the
‘defense ralsed therein dwtlnctly to the jury, there is no cause for
complalnt -

: 'CI'VIL AcTioN (ejectment) tried before Awery, J., and a jury at the
Fall Term; 1887, of Norrrampron Superior Court.

Verdict and judgment for the defendant. Plaintiff appealed.

. The plaintiff, in support of his title to the land described in his com-
plaint, preduced in evidence:

1. Proceedings. for partition of land of one Edward E. Moore among
his heirs at law in 1825, and the allotment of share B to Stephen L.
Moore in the court having jurisdiction.

2.. A deed from said Moore, made on 8 November, 1832, to Maurice

, Baugham for the same land.
(235) . 8. A deed dated 1 November, 1848, from said Baugham there-
for to Joab Outland.

4. A deed from the latter bearing date 8 December, 1866, to Alanson
Capehart, one of the defendants, executed also by the plaintiff, upon
certain trusts, and among them that the property. conveyed, both per-
sorial and real, after payment of debts, and the proceeds of such as may
be sold, be paid and delivered to the plaintiff, he undertaking to provide
for and support the said Joab, his father-in-law, and wife, Julia, during
the life of each. It was in evidence that the plaintiff had taken care of
both, furnishing board and clothing as for members of his own family,
until the death of said Joab in 1865, and the death of his wife, who
survived him and died in October, 1878, and provided for the burial of
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each. The plaintiff offered further testimony tending to show that the
said Joab said to William Mann and his wife, also a daughter and a
defendant, “he had beat the race, and that (referring, as we understand,
to the land) was a home for them, and to go and live on it,” and they
were in possessmn in 1881.

It was also in proof that the said Joab lived near Roxobel in: Bertie,
before 1850, and the plaintiff worked there; that plamtlﬁ moved to
Roxobel, and Joab and his wife moved there and lived. with him, and
that all of them moved to Rich Square, in Northampton, between 1850
and 1860 and there lived as one family.

The deed in trust conveys two tracts of land in N orthampton eight
slaves, all the products of the farms and stock and farming implements,
and all debts due the grantor to Capehart, who, after payment of debts,
is required to deliver over the proceeds to the plaintiff “for the -con-
sideration of the said Conwell supporting him, the said Joab, and his
wife, Julia, in a decent and -comfortable manner during their each and
separate lives,” with condition to return the property if he fails.
to do so, and this obligation the plaintiff enters into in becommg (236)
a party to the deed.

In a separate instrument, under seal, made on the same day by all
the parties, and forming part of the deed it ig provided that if not re-
quired to be sold for the debts the slaves may be delivered over with the

" proceeds of such of the property as has been sold to the.plaintiff, upon
the same trusts and conditions.

It is stated in the case to have been admitted that deeds introduced
subsequent to that to Capehart (of whose import this brief mention
conveys the only information we have of them) describe the same land.

The defendants offered in evidence a deed from the: Sheriff of North-
ampton to Jason Lassiter, dated 25 August, 1843, and to prove that it
described the land in controversy. The deed, a copy of which is said
to accompany the case as Exhibit “A,” is not sent up, and we can only
arrive at its contents by conjecture, and from what is said about it in
the deed from Baugham to Outland of 8 N ovember, 1848 ~which is
Exhibit “A.”

This latter, in its recitals of the considerations and 1nducements to
its being made, uses these words: “As also.to remove any doubt that may
exist as to the title to the premises hereinafter described, under a sale
and .deed from the sheriff of said county to one Jason Lassrcer . by whom
the same was conveyed to the said Joab Outland, have bargamed » ete.

The admission of the deed to Lassiter was opposed on-the ground. that
it sets out a levy by the sheriff on the land of Baugham, by virtue of
:several judgments rendered by a justice (executions we must. suppose to
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have been meant), and it was “not competent to show, even by producing
the levies, that he levied on any particular lands.”

The evidence was presently received, the court reserving the question
as to the effect of the deed.

James Langford testified for the defendants that - Baugham

(237) lived on the land now in the occupation of the defendant Cherry

in the year 1843, just before which witness built the house

thereon, Baugham in the meantime cultivating the land and residing
with a brothel

John J. Muldrow testified to the fact that Williasm Mann entered
into possession of the land in 1849, but does not know if he paid rent
for the use of it.

The clerk of the Superior Court testified to his search among the
records for the executions issued on the judgments and for the original
papers, and failing to find them. The defendant was then allowed, after
objection, to read to the jury entries on the execution docket of the
issue of sundry executions against Baugham, returnable to September
Term of the County Court. The reserved gquestion was decided against
the defendant.

G. M. Powell testified that Wﬂham Mann had possession ever since
he knew the land in 1857, cultivating and using it as his own, as has
his surviving wife used it since his death, and he had never heard of
any payment of rent by either. "

Instructions were asked for the plaintiff as follows:

1. If Mann went into possession with the verbal consent of Outland,
he thereby became a tenant at will; and if he continued in possession,
without paying any rent, continued to be a tenant at will until the death
of Outland’s wife in 187 8, when the tenancy was determined, and his
possession was not adverse during that period.

2. That if such be the case, his adverse possession commenced at the
death of Mrs. Outland in 1878, and was not suflicient to bar plaintiff.

3. That if he was a tenant at will, and the tenancy determined by the
death of Mrs. Outland, he had no estate after her death, and the defend-
ant cannot claim under him, and her possession is adverse.

4. If you believe the testimony of the witnesses, the relation of land-

lord and tenant was established between Mann and Outland, and
(238) defendant cannot set up Mann’s possession against the plaintiff.
The court instructed the jury as follows:

The burden is on the plaintiff to establish his title or show that he
was the owner of the land in controversy when the action was brought.
He may do this in either one of several ways.

He may show a connected chain of title from the State to the plaintiff.
He may show the title out of the State, and that his title matured before
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the action was brought by seven years possession by plaintiff or those -
under whom he claims. He may, without showing his title out of the
State, establish his title by showing possession, under color of title, for
21 years.

He may, if he can, show that the defendant, when the action was
brought, was a tenant of the plaintiff as to the land in controversy, and
establish his title by estoppel. The plaintiff has shown papers, title, or
color of title as far back as 1825, but has offered no proof of possession
under it prior to the entry of William Mann, 1848. It is admitted that
William Mann entered on the land in 1848 to 1850, and his wife, Cherry
Mann, the defendant, had had possession from that entry up to the
bringing of the action on 13 September, 1881.

If William Mann entered upon the land in 1848 or 1850 and held the
land, claiming it as his own until his death in the year 1881, and it was
held by his wife, the defendant, Cherry Mann, from his death in 1881
till 13 September, 1881, when the action was broughs, and if Joab Out-
land put Williamm Mann in possession, telling him that the land should
be a home to him, as testified by the witnesses, and the plaintiff com-
plied with the stipulations of the trust deed by supporting Joab Out-
land till he died in 1865, and his wife till she died in 1878, the defendant
would be deemed in law the tenant of the plaintiff and estopped from
disputing his title, and you would respond “Yes” to the first
issue. The finding on the first issue settles the finding on the (239)
second. If Mann did not enter under license from Joab Outland
or as his tenant, you will respond “No” to the first issue; or if the plain-
tiff did not support Outland and his wife until they died, you will re-
spond “No” to the first issue. The jury will respond in dollars and cents
to the third issue, giving the value of annual rent as they may determine
from testimony. The burden is on the plaintiff to show that he has
complied with his contract to support Outland and his wife, and if he
has failed to do so he cannot recover, and you will respond to the first
issue “No.” ‘

The plaintiff excepted to the refusal of the court to give instructions
asked and to the instructions given in lieu thereof. The plaintiff entered
no specific objections to the charge at the time. Verdict for defendant.

T. N. Hill for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendants.

Smira, C. J., after stating the facts: While the instructions askéd
were not given, in very words, all that is material to the defense coh-
tained in them are embodied in the charge. For the court told the jury
that “if Joab Outland put William Mann in possession, telling him
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that it should be a home to him, as testified to by the witnesses; and
further; if the plaintiff complied with the provisions ‘of the trust deed,
the defendant would: be deemed in law the tenant of the plaintiff and
estopped from disputing his title.” So the defense was distinctly put
to the jury, and the appellant has no cause of complaint.

- There is:no error and the judgment is

- Affirmed.

O'Lted Mobleyv Gﬁ]ﬁn 104 N. C,, 1155 Caplton v. R. R., tbid., 368;
_Bonds o. Smath, 106 N. C, 563; Aluxtmdevrv Gibbon, 118 N. C., 798;
‘S. v. Booker, 123 N. C,, 725; Pool v. Lamb, 128 N. C., 2; Stewa‘rt v.
Keener, 131 N. C., 487; Moore v. Miller, 179 N. C., 398.

(240) ,
SARAH OWENS v. JAMES OWENS AND OTHERS.

Dower—PForfeitures for Crime.

1..The only criminal misbehavior which bars a widow’s right of dower is the
commission of adultery and living separate from her husband at the time

_of his death, as provided in section 2102 of The Code. A widow convicted

as accessory before the fact to her husband’s murder, and confined in the
State’s prison under sentence therefor, is entitled to dower in his lands.

2. Forfeiture Of property for crime is unknown to our law, nor does crime
intercept the transmission of an 1ntestates property to his hen's and
dlstnbutees

. ‘SPECIAL PrROCEEDING for dower, heard on appeal at Fall Term, 1887,
of WasminaTon Superior- Court, before Grawes, J.
. There was judgment for the defendants, from  which plalnmff ap-
pealed The facts appear in the opinion.

»T. N . Hdll (8. B. Spm%ll also filed a brief) for plaintiff.
A. W. Haywood (C. L. Pettigrew also filed a brief) for defendants.

Smrra, C. J. This special proceeding, instituted in the Superior
Court before the clerk, on 11 July, 1887, by the plaintiff, the widow of
A. D. Owens, who died by an act of violence intestate, in the month of
September _in - the year preceding, against the defendants, his infant
children “and heirs ‘at law, is to have her dower assigned in the lot
whereon he resided. The defendants, not disputing the general allega-
tions contained in the petition, deny the plaintiff’s right to dower in the
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lot, for that, at Fall Term, 1886, of the Superior Court of Beaufort, on
‘the trial, she had been convieted of being an accessory before the fact
to the murder of the deceased, and was sentenced to imprisonment

for life-in the State prison, wherein in pursuance of said judg- (241)
ment she is still confined. The plaintiff entered a demurrer to

the answer which, upon hearing before the clerk, was ad]udged to.. be
insufficient, and the application denied.

Upon her appeal to the judge he affirmed the Judgment of the elerk
overruhng the demurrer, and from this an appeal is taken to this Court,
in which is brought up the question whether the petitioner, by her
eriminal act in participating in the murder of her husband; has-thereby
deplived herself of the right to have dower allotted to her under.the
law in the estate of which he was seized and which has descended to. hls
heirs at law.

The natural feeling inspired by her proved co-operation: in the un-
natural and wicked act of takmg her husband’s life, and thus avalhng
herself of the generous provision of the law that secures her surviving
a home for life, is repugnant to a claim preferred under such circum-
stances of perfidy to the marital relations. In the absence of authority,
the well instructed and able judge who tried the cause ruled against the
allowance of dower, as it would in fact be “to reward crime” by con-
ferring benefits that result from and are procured by its commission.

We feel ourselves unable to concur in this conclusion for the reason
that while the law gives the dower and makes it paramount to the claims
of creditors even, there is no provision for its forfeiture for crime, how-
ever heinous it may be and even when the husband is its victim.. The
only statutory provision which, for criminal misbehavior, bars an action
prosecuted for the recovery of dower is where she shall commit adultery,
and shall not be living with her husband at his death, “The Code,. sec-
tion 2102, extended to a distributive share in the personal estate, and a
right to administer,” section 1481. The statute is more stringent than
that before existing and found in the Rev. Code, ch. 118, sec. 11, which
bars the claim to dower to cases in which the wife willingly
leaves her husband and continues to live with her adulterer, (242)
unless a reconciliation takes place and the husband agam suffers
her to dwell with him. : :

As there is no other act of the wife which by statute known to us
works a forfeiture, we do not see how any legal obstacle can be in the
way of her seeking to get what the law in unqualified terms gives her.
She ‘may not be able to enjoy in person the possession of the lot—and
5o it might be of other property—yet the profits of the hmlted estate,
the_fruits of the occupancy, are not the less hers and at her disposal.
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She may obtain a pardon and release from confinement and then could
enter into possession, but possession in faet and the right to possess or
lease or sell the estate are distinct and separate things.

Is the right of the wife to share in the personal estate as a distributee
lost or affected by the fact that the intestate died at her hands or through
her procurement? Does the child who slays a parent thereby lose his
right to participate with his brothers and sisters in the distribution of
the personal or to take his part of the descended real estate? Or, re-
versing the matter, does the husband who kills his wife impair his right,
under the statute of distributions, to succeed to the ownership of her
personal property left after payment of debts? Or, in general terms,
does any one, as a consequence of an unlawful taking of human life,
become thereby disabled to take a part of the estate left by the deceased
which the law gives him and gives him subject to no such condition

We are unable to find any sufficient legal ground for denying to the
petitioner the relief which she demands, and it belongs to the law-
making power alone to prescribe additional grounds of forfeiture of the
right which the law itself gives to a surviving wife.

Forfeitures of property for crime are unknown to our law, nor
(243) does it intercept for such cause the transmission of an intestate’s
property to heirs and distributees, nor can we recognize any such
operating principle. We have searched in vain for an authority or
ruling on the question and find no adjudged case; the fact that none
such is met with affords a strong presumption against the proposition.
We must, therefore, determine the appeal “wpon the reason” of the
thing. .

‘There is error, and the judgment must be reversed, to the end that the
cause proceed to a final determination in accordance with law.

Error. ' Reversed.

Cited: Scarborough v. Ins. Co., 171 N. C., 855; Bryant v. Bryant,
193 N. C,, 376.

WM. P. ROBERTS anp OrHeErs v. RICHMOND PRESTON.

Deed, Descm'ptim in—Declaration of Grantor—Res Geste—IEvidence
as to Boundary.

1. Plaintiffs claimed title to land under M. R. Defendant claimed title to the
land under M. and H., to whom certain lands had been conveyed by M. R.
‘The dispute was as to the location of the beginning point called for in
the deed to M. and H. If located as contended for by plaintiffs it did
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not embrace the land in controversy, and consequently the land was
owned by plaintiffs, There were no courses or distances given in the
deed : Held, that it was competent for plaintiffs to prove by H. (one of
the grantees in the deed from M. R. to M. and H.) the declarations of
M. R. made to him, H., contemporaneously with the delivery of the deed,
that the deed did not convey the land in controversy.

2. A statement made under such circumstances amounts to more than a mere
declaration; it is an act, a fact, pers rei geste.

3. The evidence was admissible, not to aid a defective description, but to aid
the jury in determining where the beginning point and boundaries of the
land were.

Crivir action to recover damages for trespass on land, tried (244)
before Grawves, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of Cuowan Superior
Court.

Judgment for defendant. Plaintiffs appealed.

The record is voluminous and the statement of the case is a lengthy
one, but as only two exceptions appear in the record, only so much of
the case is stated here as is necessary to the full understanding of these
exceptions. ’

In the progress of the trial it appeared that Mills Roberts, under
whom the plaintiffs claim, owned two adjoining farms, one called Long
Beach and the other Long Lane, on Albemarle Sound in Chowan County,
Long Beach being on the west of Long Lane, and that in 1863 the said
Mills Roberts executed a deed conveying the land described therein to
Merrimon & Hughes, under whom the defendant claims by a chain of
mesne conveyances, containing the same deseription in each that 1is
found in the deed from Mills Roberts to Merrimon & Hughes, and this
description, so far as it is necessary here to set out, is as follows: “A
certain tract of land and Long Beach fishery, on Albemarle Sound in
Chowan County, beginning on the sound at a ditch in the Roberts-
Benbury farm; thence up the ditch to the fence; then along the fence,
outside, to the edge of the swamp; then up the swamp to the said
Roberts-Benbury line; then along that line to the main Edenton road,”
and other calls, around to the beginning.

It became material to locate the description in the deed from Roberts
to Merrimon & Hughes, for if the land upon which the alleged trespasses
were committed were not embraced in the said deed the plaintiffs were
entitled to recover.

The plaintiffs contended that the description in the deeds under which
defendant claims began on the sound at a ditch which emptied into the
sound, ran along that ditch to the fence; then along that fence
west, on the outside, to the edge of the swamp to a line of marked (245)
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trees, which they claim is the Roberts-Benbury line; then along that
line of marked trees to the Edenton road.

The defendant insisted that the description begins on the sound at

the southwest corner of the Roberts-Benbury line, at a point east of the
ditch claimed by plaintiffs as the true location; thence northwardly
along the original Roberts-Benbury line, along a ditch to the fence;
then along the fence, westwardly, to the edge of the swamp; then up the
swamp to another hne of marked trees, which defendant insists is the
Roberts-Benbury line called for; then along that line of marked trees
to the Edenton road; or if the begmnmg is properly to be on the sound,
at the ditch msisted upon by the plaintiffs as the true beginning, and
run up the ditch to the fence, it then ran east along the outside of the
fence to the edge of the swamp to the Roberts-Benbury line, as claimed
by the defendant.
. If the true location of the llnes of the deed from said Roberts to Mer-
rimon & Iughes is as the plaintifls insist, then the place where the trees
were cut is not embraced in the description; but if either of the views
of the defendant is correct, then the place where the trees were cut is
embraced in the description.

It appeared from the plots used on the trial that if the location of the
description is, as contended for by plaintiffs, both as to the Roberts-
Benbury line and the Merrimon & Hughes line, that about one hundred
and four acres of the Long Beach farm were not embraced in the deed
of Roberts to Merrimon & Hughes (and there was evidence tending to
show that thigs one hundred and four acres were well timbered), and
that if the location was as contended for by the defendant, about twenty-
nine acres of Long Beach farm was not embraced (and the evidence

tended to show that this was cleared land), there was evidence
(246) tending to show that there was not timber enough on Long Lane
farm to fence it.

There was evidence on the part of plaintiffs tending to show that after
the sale to Merrimon & Hiighes, Roberts, and those who claimed under
him, continued to keep the cleared land east of the line claimed by the
plaintiffs enclosed and cultivated, built houses thereon and put tenants
in them up to three months before the bringing of this action; that he
erected buildings and put up a steam sawmill on the woodland east of
the line claimed by the plaintiffs and west of the line claimed by de-
fendant; cut timber for market and did other acts tending to show
occupatiorrand actual possession up to what plaintiffs claim to be known
and visible boundaries; and plaintiffs also offered evidence tending to
show that defendant, and those from whom he claims, did work up to
the line claimed by plamtlffs and not over until the trespasses com-
plained of.
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The defendant offered evidence tending to show the Roberts-Benbury
line, tending to show the age of marks on trees on the line claimed by
defendant, and plaintiffs’ declarations to John Roberts and other testi-
mony tending, as he insisted to the jury, to show that his view was cor-
rect, and among other things that there was another ditch extending to
the edge of the swamp near the sound. The plaintiffs offered evidence
tending to show that this ditch did not extend to the sound, and that it
had been cut subsequent to the making of the deed by their ancestor.

First Exception. The first exception of plaintiffs is to the ruling of
the court excluding the testimony of Hughes as to what was said by
Roberts at the time the deed was made. '

The plaintiffs offered to prove by one of the vendees in the said deed
that at the time of its execution Roberts said to him it did not convey
the whole of Long Beach, but that he had reserved to himself one hun-
dred acres of timber for the use of his Long-Lane farm. To this the
defendant objected, and the court sustained the objection, and
the plaintiffs excepted. S (247)

Second Exception. It gppeared that at a sale made by the
Clerk and Master in Equity in 1858, Mills Roberts bought the Long
Beach farm as the property of Alexander Cheshire, and paid for the .
same and took possession, and no deed was then executed. Since the
beginning of this action a deed has been executed under an order of
court in the original cause, and this deed the plaintiffs offer in evidence
and the defendant objects, and the court sustains the objection, and the
plaintifis except.

T. F. Davidson and E. C. Smith for plaintiffs.
C. M. Busbee for defendant.

Davis, J., after stating the facts: The instructions of the court to the
jury are set out in the case stated on appeal, but as it is stated that no
written instructions were asked and no exceptions were taken to those
. given, they are immaterial for the purpose of this appeal.

No courses and distances are mathematically given in the deeds under
which either plaintiffs or defendant claim. Both claim under titles
derived from Mills Roberts, and this action grows out of a controversy
as to where the boundary between the tracts of land claimed by them
respectively is. On_ the trial much evidence was offered, many deeds
were read in evidence, and many witnesses were examined.

The first exception is to the exclusion of the testimony of Hughes to
prove the declaration of Roberts, made at the time of the execution of
the deed to Merrimon and Hughes, that “it did not convey the whole
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of Long Branch, but that he had reserved to himself one hundred acres
of timber for the use of his Long-Lane farm.” The plaintiffs say that
this evidence is relevant and competent not to vary or change the bound-
ary line in the deed, but to show where the true boundary is, and
(248) that the location of the one hundred acres of timber land alleged
not to have been included in the deed from Roberts to Merrimon
and Hughes is consistent with the boundary as claimed by them, and
inconsistent with the boundary as claimed by the defendant.

The defendant says that it is incompetent:

1. Because it is the declaration of a deceased grantor in his own
interest.

2. Because it varies the terms of the deed.

3. Because it is excluded by section 590 of The Code. :

The plaintiffs say the declaration is competent and will aid the jury
in determining where the boundary line is, and that it is a question for
them. They must begin “on the sound, at a ditch in the Roberts-Ben-
bury line” The plaintiffs say that this ditch is the ditch at a point
designated by them; the defendant says that it is the ditch at the point
designated by him.

In Sasser v. Herring, 3 Dev., 340, it is said that the “single declara-
tion of a deceased individual as to a line or corner” may be permitted
to be proven and have the weight of common reputation, but the declara-
tion of the owner of the land, however ancient, cannot be used in behalf
of those claiming under him, and counsel for the appellees insist that
this well-established rule will exclude the testimony of Hughes.

The defendant, as well as the plaintiffs, claims under Roberts, and
Hughes, to whom the declaration was made and through whom the. de-
fendant claims, was one of the persons to whom the deed was made, and
to whom the declaration of Roberts was made at the time of executing
the deed. It was more than a simple declaration, it was an act, a fact,
pars ret geste, upon which the parties acted.

Why should not the declaration of Roberts to Hughes, made at the
time the deed was executed, indicating what was and what was not eon- -

veyed, be competent? And why is not Hughes, who accepted the
(249) deed therchy, according to the declaration that it did not convey

the one hundred acres of timber land, a competent witness to
prove this fact not for the purpose of varying or changing a known
line, but for the purpose of throwing light upon the matter and aiding
the jury to determine where the controverted and unfixed line really is?
Tt was the declaration of a deceased grantor in his own interest; it was
a declaration made at the time of the execution of the deed to a grantee
against whose interest it was who accepted and acted upon it, and
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thereby recognized it as true, and he is one of the persons through whom
the defendant claims, and is the witness by whom it is proposed to prove
the declaration. It could subserve no purpose in the interest of Hughes,
the grantee, and being made to and acted upon by him at the time it
became more than the mere declaration of Roberts, the grantor. "It was
an accepted fact by both parties, and we cannot see why Hughes, the
grantee under whom the plaintiffs derive title, is not a competent witness
to prove it. It was against his interest. Halstead v. Mullen, 93 N. C.,
2525 Mason v. McCormack, 85 N. C., 226.

The declaration was accepted by Hughes as lessening the area of the
tract of land purchased, and was to that extent in disparagement of his
rights, and is competent as original evidence. 1 Greenl. Ev., sec. 109.

Where the line is uncertain, the acts and admissions of adjoining pro-
prietors are admissible. Dawidson v. Arledge, 97 N. C., 172. Where
there is no ambiguity in the description given in a deed, nothing short
of running and marking a line contemporaneously with the deed can
have the effect to vary the boundaries as called for in the deed. Caraway
v. Chancy, 8 Jones, 361. But here the very question in dispute grows
out of the ambignity or uncertainty as to where the boundary line is.

Evidence to aid a defective description in a deed is not com-
petent. Kitchen v. Wilson, 80 N. C,, 191. (250)

The evidence here is not offered to aid a defective description,
but to aid the jury in determining where the beginning point and
boundaries are. We think that upon no one of the grounds insisted
upon by the defendant can the testimony of Hughes be excluded, and
there was error in sustaining the objection.

As no question is made as to the title of Mills Roberts, we do not see
the materiality of the deed from the Clerk and Master in Equity to
him; but if the deed executed since the beginning of this action contains
matter of description affecting the boundary mnot warranted by the
decree under which it was made, it would not be accepted as concluding
the parties upon the question of boundary; but as there was error in
sustaining the defendant’s first objection we need not comsider this.
There is

Error. Venire de novo.

" Qited: Buliss v. McAdams, 108 N. C., 513; Shaffer v Gaynor, 117

N. C, 24; Hill v. Dalton, 140 N. C., 17; Haddock ». Leary, 148 N. C,,
380; Woodard v. Haprell, 191 N. C., 197.

209



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

BETHERIDGE ©. HILLIARD.

ETHERIDGE, FULGHUM & CO. v. L. HILLIARD & CO.

Chattel Mortgage—Mortgagor, When Agent for Mortgagee—Agent,
Implied Powers of.

Where a mortgagee of an ungathered crop authorizes and directs the mort-
gagor to prepare and house the crop for market, and the mortgagor,
having no other means, sells part of the crop and uses the proceeds for
that purpose: Held, that the directions to house and prepare the crop
for market gave the mortgagor an implied power to sell part of the crop
to get money for that purpose, and a purchaser from him wags protected.

Orvin action tried before Grawes, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of Pur-
Quimans Superior Court, upon the following case agreed:
(251)  “1. On 25 January, 1886, Joshua L. Whedbee executed to the
plaintiffs the mortgage hereto attached and marked ‘A whlch
was duly registered in the proper county at once.

“9. Both plaintiffs and defendants were nonresidents of North Caro-
lina, and were commisgion merchants and cotton factors in Norfolk, Va.

3. About the beginning of the fall of 1886 one T. Clayton Whedbee
went to defendants’ office in Norfolk and said to them, ‘I think I can
make some money buying cotton in North Carolina if I can get it sold
on reasonable terms,’ and asked the defendants to name their best terms
for selling. The defendants answered that they would sell for him any
cotton he might ship them for $1 per bale commissions, to the best
advantage, and would honor Whedbee’s drafts on them to the extent of
such sales. Whedbee returned home, and later in the year shipped to
the defendants, for sale on his own account, over one hundred bales,
which they sold for him on the terms named, placed the proceeds to his
credit as sold, and honored his drafts for it or sent to him by express as
he directed. No other relations existed between T. Clayton Whedbee
and ‘the defendants. ‘

“4, Among the cotton thus shipped to defendanis by T. Clayton
Whedbee were two bales which he bought of Joshua L. Whedbee, and
which had been raised by the latter on the ‘Crow Point’ farm described
in the mortgage referred to in section one hereof, and which netted when

sold ... s B , the proceeds of which went to T. Clayton Whed-
bee’s credit as aforesald and were paid upon his draft or sent to him
by express.

“5. The said two bales were in no way distinguished from the other
cotton shipped defendants by T. Clayton Whedbee. The defendants
had no knowledge of where they were raised, nor had they any
(252) actual notice that the plaintiffs held a claim or mortgage against
Joshua L. Whedbee and no constructive notice of the same, unless
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the facts herein stated amount to constructive notice of the same. T.
Clayton Whedbee did have actual notice of said claim and mortgage,
and knew also that the said cotton was raised on said farm.

“6. The defendants had no such notice, nor was any demand made
on them for the said cotton or its proceeds till after they had settled in
full with T. Clayton Whedbee.

"7, That Joshua L. Whedbee was in possession of the ‘Crow Point’
‘farm, and was authorized and directed to prepare and house the crops
“thereon for market; that he was insolvent and without means, and could
raise money only for that purpose by selling the crops, or part of them,
and the proceeds received by him from the sale of the two bales of cotton
were actually used in housing the crops on said farm, which were shipped
to the plaintiffs.”

" The mortgage referred to as marked “A” was not sent up with the
transeript, but it was admitted on the argument in this Court that J. L.
Whedbee, on 25 January, 1886, executed to the plaintiffs a certain
mortgage, which was duly proved and registered, by which he “conveyed
to the plaintiffs his crops of every kind to be grown by him during the
year 1886 upon a certain farm in said county known as the ‘Crow Point’
farm,” to secure the debt named in said mortgage.

Upon the case agreed his Honor gave judgment for the defendants,
and the plaintiffs appealed.

T. F. Davidson (J. H. Blount also filed a brief) for plaintiffs.
No counsel for defendands.

Davis, J., after stating the facts: Whether the sale of cotton (253)
made by a factor or agent or commission merchant in the State
of Virginia, for his principal in this State, who shipped it to him for
sale in the regular course of business, such factor or commission mer-
chant selling it, without any notice or knowledge of any claim by
another, and paying over the proceeds to his prineipal without such
knowledge or notice, is such a conversion by him as will make him
‘ligble to the actual owner for the proceeds of the cotton so sold and paid
over to his prinecipal, it is not necessary for us to decide in this action.

The case states that J. L. Whedbee was authorized and directed to
prepare and house the crops for market, and that the proceeds of the
cotton in question were so used by him, and that he had no other means
for that purpose. But counsel for the plaintiffs say “the case does not
state who gave this authority or direction.” The clear and only reason-
able inference is that, as it existed, it was given by some one wlo had
the power to give it, and this; we assume, could only have come from
the plaintiffs.
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Having then the authority from the plaintiffs to house and prepare
the crops for market, he had the implied authority from them to use
the necessary and proper meauns to that end. The proceeds of the cotton
were used by him as the means and, as the case shows, the only means
which he possessed for that purpose. The plaintiffs thus, by and
through an agent authorized by them, received the benefit of the pro-
ceeds of the cotton, and to allow them to take the benefit of his act and
to repudiate so much of it as was against them, though necessary and
proper in the execution of the authority given, would be to reverse the
ordinary rules of fair dealing and make fraud easy and profitable.

Whedbee had the authority from the plaintiffs to house and prepare
the corps for market, and this carried with it the implied authority to

use the means necessary for that purpose, and in this respect
(254) the plaintiffs were bound by his acts. Huntley v. Mathias, 90
N. O, 101, and the cases there cited. There is
No error. Affirmed.

Cited: R. R. v. Stmpkins, 178 N. C., 276; Whitehurst v. Garrett,
196 N. C., 158. ,

W. R. HOWELL Axp OTHERS v. MARY A. KNIGHT.

Rule in Shelley’s Case—=Section 1329, The Code—Construction of Will.

1. Chapter 43, section 5, Rev. Code-—section 1329, The Code— may have the
effect of abolishing the rule in Shelley’s case, in the construction of
instruments executed since 1 January, 1856.

2. The rule in Shelley’s. case prevails only where the words ‘“heirs, or heirs
of the body” of the tenant for life, to whom the estate in remainder is
limited, are simply used; but it yields to an intention manifested in the
context, or gathered from other provisions of the instrument.

3. A devise, as follows: “I lend to A., and if he hath a lawful heir begotten
of his body at his death, I give it to said heir or heirs; and if he dies
without an heir as aforesdid, I lend it to B.,” repeating a sgimilar gift
to the heir or heirs of B., if he should have such living at his death,
creates an estate for life only in A., and the rule in Shelley’s case
does not apply.

Crvir action (ejectment) tried before Avery, J., at Fall Term, 1887,

of Enercomsr Superior Court.
Judgment was rendered for the plaintiffs. Defendant appealed. The

facts appear in the opinion.
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John Devereux, Jr. (Gilliam & Son filed a brief) for plaintiffs.
No counsel for the defendant.

Sumrtw, C. J. The controversy is in respect to the proper con- (255)

struction of a clause in the will of James Knight, made in July,
1844, and proved after his death in November, 1847. The facts are
stated in a case agreed and submitted under section 567 of The Code.
The plaintiffs are the children, and as such the heirs at law of James
W. Knight, the devisee named in the fourth item of the will, the mean-
ing and legal effect of which is in dispute, who died intestate in 1875.
The defendant, his widow, claims an estate in fee by virtue of a sale
of the interest in the land devised under execution against her hushand
made in his lifetime by the sheriff to her as purchaser, and his deed of
conveyance therefor. It is agreed that if, under the aforesaid item or
clause of the will, the devisee, James W. Knight, took an estate for life
only, judgment shall be rendered for the plaintiffs, but if an estate in
fee vested in him thereby, judgment shall be for defendant.

The fourth item is in these words:

“T lend unto my son James W. Knight all my land after the death of
his mother, and if he hath a lawful heir begotten of his body at his
death, T give it to said heir or heirs; and if he dies without an heir as
aforesaid, I lend it to Virginia Staton, William Ann Staton and Sim-
mons B. D. Staton, and if Virginia Staton hath an heir lawfully be-
gotten of her body at her death, I give her share to said heir or heirs;
and if not, I lend her share to William Ann Staton and Simmons B. D.
Staton, and if William Ann Staton hath an heir or heirs at her death
lawfully begotten of her body, I give her share of said land to said heir
or heirs; but if she dies without heirs as aforesaid, I lend her part to
Virginia Staton and Simmons B. D. Staton; and if Simmons B. D.
Staton hath an heir or heirs lawfully begotten of his body at his death,
I give his share to said heir or heirs, but if he dies without an heir or
heirs as aforesaid, I lend his share to Virginia Staton and William Ann
Staton; and if all of them die without an heir as aforesaid, then
- I give said land to the two cldest sons of Lunsford R. Cherry, (256)
- of said county.”

The following is the judgment rendered: :

This cause coming on to be heard before me at Fall Term, 1887, of
Edgecombe Superior Court, upon the foregoing statements of facts sub-
mitted as a controversy without action, it 1s adjudged that plaintiffs
recover possession of the land sued for and the costs of this action, from
which judgment the defendant prays an appeal to the Supreme Court.

Exception by the defendant that the rule in Shelley’s case applies;
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that by the will of James Knight the absolute estate in the land sued
for passed to James W. Knight.

From this ruling the subject-matter of exception and the Judgment
consequent thereon, as error assigned, the defendant appeals and brings
up for determination the principle known as “the rule in Shelley’s
case” to the facts of the present case, in interpreting the testator’s will.
The rule in Shelley’s case has long been recognized as in force in this
State, and even so late as the year 1881, in Kung v. Utly, 85 N. C,, 59,
in its application to wills and deeds made previous to the enactment
introduced into the Revised Code, ch. 43, sec. 5. "This act declares that
the limitation in any writing “to the heirs of a living person shall be
construed to be to the children of such person,” unless a contrary inten-
‘tion be apparent in the instrument, and this change, in the interpreta-
tion of the technical words in common use, corresponding with the evi- .
dent intention of the person employing them, may have the effect of
abolishing the rule, as so many of the States have already done. Wash.
Real Estate, note 5, at page 563, in the construction of such phraseology
found in the writings executed since 1 January, 1856, when. that Code
went into effect.

The will before us is not affected by this. statute, as the testator died
before that date, and the clause in dispute must be interpreted in the

light of antecedent adjudications by which the law in force at
(257) the time of its execution is established. The rule, however, is

not an inflexible one, for it prevails only where the words “heirs
or heirs of the body” of the tenant for life, to whom the estate in re-
mainder is limited; are simply used, while the construction yields to an
intent manifested in the context or gathered from other provisions of
the instrument, that persons answering the description should take the
inheritance as a gift.

Thus the superadded words, “equally to be divided between them” or
“share and share alike,” have been held to prevent the application of
the rule of construction, since they require a division per capife among
the donces of the remainder, while under the law of descent the heirs
take per stipes and representatively, and, to give the rule operation, in
the language of the late Chief Justice, “the same persons will take the
same estate whether they take by descent or purchase, in which case they
take by déscent.” Ward v. J ones, 5 Ired. Eq., 400, and Mills 4. Thov%e,
95 N. C., 862.

So; as the predominant and controlling purpose of the testator must
prevail, when ascertained from the general provisions of the will, over
particular and apparently inconsistent expressmns, to which unexplalned
a technical force is given, we may inquire and find out in what sense
such expressions were used and what the testator meant in using them.
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Now, ~examining ‘the will according to this test, we think it quite
manifest the terms. “heir,” “heirs,” “lawful heir begotten of his body,”
were employed not to designate the estate, but the person to take it—
the children of the devisee.to whom thé immediately preceding life
estate is limited; in other words, a designatio personcrum. The con-
siderations which support this view will be briefly mentioned:

1. The testator uses one word when giving a limited or life estate to
a donee and another and different word when giving an absolute estate
or remainder in fee; and this distinetion is carefully maintained
throughout the entire clause, as well as in subsequent clauses (258)
where similar limitations are found. Thus he says: “I Jend
unto my son James,” and “if he hath a lawful heir, begotten of his body
at his death, I give it to said heir” or “heirs”; if he die without such, “I
lend it to Virginia Staton” and others, and upon similar contingency
“I give her share,” ete.; and if she die without such heir, I lend her
. share to William Ann Staton, ete., and at her death “I give the share to
her heir or heirs,” and so.on to the end of the clause. Studiously
throughout the W111 in the disposition alike of real and personal estate,
this phraseology is preserved, the word “lend” being used to indicate
the nature and extent of the donatmn, when the estate or property is to
be limited, implying a reservation in the donor, ag in a strict sense the
word means; and when the absolute property is to be parted with, it is
given to the ulterior donee. This distinctly marks the differences in the
devises and an intent which can only be fulfilled by giving a meamng
to the term “heir;” which confines it to a child or children, a sense in
which it is generally understood in popular use. Payne v. Sale, 2 Dey.
& Bat. Eq., 455; oplmon of Gaston, J.

+ 2. The expression, “if he have a lawful helr, begotten of his body at
his’ dedth,” most clearly points to personal offspring, which must be a
“lawful” as distinguished from an 111eg1t1mate” child. There can be
no such thing as'an unlawful heir, for it is by virtue of the law that one
bears that relation to the estate of an intestate, and the absurdlty van-
ishes when the qualification is attached to a child.

8. The term throughout the will, for it is constantly used, must bear
this construction to glve full seope and efficacy to the successive limita-
tions, and unless it is g1ven the will must utterly fail to carry out the
‘testator’s obvious purposes..

- ‘With this manifestation of an intent predomlnatmg in the will, the
rule in Shelley’s case must be subservient, and the rule itself
ddmits an exception from its operation under such circumstances. (2539)
' We do not subvert a principle which has long been a rule of
property in this State as well as in England, and under which have
vested rights we would be unwilling to disturb; and the General As-
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sembly alone can repudiate it if unjust in its operation, if this has not
already been done as to wills or deeds made after an abolishing enact-
ment. ' :

There is no error and the judgment must be

"Affirmed.

Cited: Taylor v. Smith, 116 N. C., 534; Nichols ». Gladden, 117
N. C., 499; Hauser v. Craft, 134 N. C,, 329; Wool v. Fleetwood, 136
N. C., 470; Perry v. Hackney, 142 N. C., 8753 Puckett v. Morgan, 158
N. G, 847 Settee v. Electric Ry., 170 N. C., 365; Gorham v. Cotton,
174 N. C., 127; Howard v. Mfg. Co., 179 N. C., 118; Blackledge v. Stm-
mons, 180 N. C., 542.

JAMES A. HARRELL v. JAMES C. WARREN.

Execution—False Return—~Sheriffs—The Code, Secs. 1112, 2079—
Pleadings,; Form of Complaint for a False Eeturn.

1. Any person may sue for the penalty imposed upon sheriffs by section 2079
of The Code, for a false return, and he need not mention in his com-
plaint the other party to whom the statute gives one-half of the recovery.

2. The penalty of $500 imposed for a false return by section 2079 is restricted
to sheriffs, and false returns by them made to civil process.

3. Formerly the penalty of $100, imposed for a false return to criminal proc-
ess, was restricted to constables. Under The Code, section 1112, it is
extended to sheriffs and other officers, State or municipal, but is still
confined to criminal process delivered to such an officer as is bound by
law to execute it.

4. In order to render a sheriff liable for a false return under section 2079,
falsehood must be found in the statement of facts in the return.

5. If a return be false in fact, inadvertence or mistake is no excuse or pro-
tection to the officer, although no intentional deceit was practiced.

6. In an action for the penalty imposed for a false return the complaint
stated, in substance: That an execution was placed in the sheriff’s hands,
and by him levied on the goods of the defendant therein named, which
goods the sheriff kept locked up for several days; that defendant in the
execution, at the time of the levy, demanded that his exemptions .be
allotted to him; that defendant paid the sheriff $2.50 in part of the
execution, while his goods were held under the levy; that after keeping
said goods several days and receiving the said $2.50, the sheriff returned
said execution: “Levy made; fees demanded for laying off exemptions
and not paid. No further action taken”; that said return was false in
that it did not state that he had collected said $2.50 on the execution:
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Held, that a demurrer to the complaint should be sustained, Decause there
was no averment that the statement contained in the return was untrue,
or that the demand by the sheriff for his fees was not made and refused.

7. Upon such a state of facts the failure to mention the payment of $2.50
in his return, made the return defective, but such an omission does not
render the sheriff liable to the penalty imposed for a false return.

Crvin acTion against a sheriff to recover the penalty imposed (260)
by section 2079, of The Code for a false return, tried before
Graves, J., at Fall Term, 1887, of Cirowan Superior Court.

The defendant demurred to the complaint. Demurrer overruled.
Appeal by defendant. :

The action, begun by the issue of a summons on 21 March, 1887, is
prosecuted by the plaintiff against the defendant for an alleged false
return made by him as gheriff to an execution delivered into his hands
in favor of John Smith against the plaintiff, and the recovery of the
penalty given by section 2079 of The Code. The complaint filed is as
follows:

The plaintiff, complaining of the defendant in this actlon Alleges :

1. That the defendant, James C. Warren, was duly and regularly
elected sheriff of Chowan County at the 1egu1ar election in November
1884; that he qualified, according to law, on . December, 1884; gave
bonds, which were approved and accepted by the proper authorities;
was indueted into and took possession of said office of sheriff, and
became and continued from that date to be the duly qualified and (261)
dcting sheriff of Chowan County until his term expired, aceord-
ing to law, in December, 1886.

2. That at Sprmg Telm of the Superior Court of Chowan County
for the year 1885, in an action therein pending, a judgment was ren-
dered, in all respects regular and valid, after due notice to this plaintiff,
who was a party thereto, in favor of John Smith and against James A.
Harrell (this plaintiff) for the recovery of a certain horse, described
in the complaint in said action, or for one hundred dollars and interest
on same from date of undertaking in said action, if delivery could not
be had, and for the recovery of the sum of twenty-four dollars and
fifteen cents, costs of said action, and that said judgment was regularly
docketed in said Superior Court at said term.

3. That on 31 August, 1886, said judgment having before then been
settled, except as to the costs, and only a part of said costs having been
paid, an execution was issued from said Superior Court of said county,
directed to the sheriff of said county, commanding him to cause to be
made the sum of twenty-two dollars and fifteen cents of the goods and
chattels, lands and tenements of James A. Harrell (this plaintiff), and
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to return same with said execution to said Superior Ceurt on the fourth
Monday after the first Monday in September, 1886.

4. That said execution, a copy of which is hereto attached, marked
“B” and made a part of this complaint, was delivered to said James C.
Warren, sheriff as aforesaid, and that said Warren, under and by virtue
thereof, on 2 October, 1886, levied upon the goods, wares and merchan-
dise in a store in Edenton, in possession of said James A. Harrell (this
plaintiff) ; locked said store; refused, on demand of Harrell, to have his

exemptions allotted, and kept the keys of said store for several

(262) days, the goods in the meanwhile being locked up in said building.

5. That this plaintiff, on 6 October, 1886, paid to-said James

C. Warren, sheriff as aforesaid, on and in part satisfaction of said
execution, the sum of two dollars and fifty cents.

6. That, after keeping said Harrell’s goods, wares and merchandise
in his custody for several days, and after being paid by Harrell on said
execution the sum of two dollars and fifty cents, as stated, the said
Warren, sheriff as aforesaid, returned said execution to said Fall Term
of Chow#n Superior Court, which began on 4 October, 1886, with a
return endorsed thereon, signed by him as sheriff, in the following words:

“Levy made; fees demanded for laying off exemptions, and not paid.

No further action taken. (Signed) J. C. Warrsn, Sherif.”

7. That said return made by said Warren as sheriff on said execution
was a false return, in that it did not state that he had collected any
money on the same.

8. That this plaintiff, James A. Harrell, is the party aggrieved by
said false return as he still appears by said return as owing the full
amount of said execution, and therefore he brings this suit to recover
the penalty prescribed of five hundred dollars.

9. That before bringing this action he demanded of said Warren pay-
ment of said sum, and that said Warren refused:to pay the same.

Wherefore, plaintiff demands judgment against said defendant for the
sum of five hundred dollars and for costs-of this aetion.

The defendant deraurred as follows:
(263)  “The defendant demurs to the complaint in th1s action because
the facts therein set out do not constitute a cause of action, for
that:

“1. Tt does not appear that the return of the sheriff is false in fact

“2. It does not appear that the return of the sherlff was not a due
return in the meaning of the act. . :

. 3. That if any cause of action is set out in n the complamt the penalty
recoverable for the same is less than two hundred dollars, and this court

has no jurisdiction ‘of the same.
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" “Wherefore, defendant demands judgment that he go without day and
recover his costs.”

The court adJudged that the demurrer of the defendant be overruled
and that the defendant be allowed to answer, and that the plaintiff re-
cover of the defendant the cost of the term. . From this judgment the de-
fendant appealed to this Court.

- John Demlereum, Jr., for pla;mtiff.
. No counsel for defendamt.

Suirm, C. J., after stating the facts: The case has not been argued
for defendant, and besides the specific grounds assigned in the demurrer
we meet at the threshold the question whether any cause of action upon
the facts stated accrues to the plaintiff, and this objection has been dis-
posed of in cases heretofore before the Court.

In Martin v. Martin, 5 Jones, 346, it is decided that any person may
sue for the penalty, and he need not mention the other party to whom
the statute gives one moiety of the recovery. The same point was made
and though not specially mentioned in the opinion was necessarily over-
ruled in the judgment rendered for. the plaintiff in the later cage of
Pocbles v. Newsom, 74 N. C., 478.

Nor is the objection taken in the demurrer to the Jurlsdlctlon (264)
tenable, based upon the suggestion that only $100 are recoverable
accordmg to section 1112 of The Code, the claim to Wh1ch must be made
in a justice’s court.

. The present action is not brought under. that section Whmh belongs to
the chapter. entitled “Crimes and Punishments,” but to enforce the
enactment contained in section 2079, which has long been the law, and
which this Court dec1ded in Mm*tm v. Martin, 5 Jones, 349, was re-
strieted to civil process and false returns made thereto by sherlffs At
the time of this ruling the penalty of $100 imposed for false returns
made to criminal process was restricted to constables, and forms part of
the chapter (section 118) devoted in the Revised Code to crimes and
punishments. In its transfer to the present Code its scope has been
enlarged and made to embrace sheriffs, constables and other officers, state
or munmlpal but is still confined to eriminal process delivered to such
officer as is bound to execute it. There. is, therefore, no unauthorized
assumption of jurisdiction, and the suit is brought in the proper court.
- The main and essential matter is, Has a false return been made? Not
an insufficient return—yor this is punished less rigorously and in a more
stmmary way. There must falsehood in the statement of facts be found
in the return in order to incur the $500 penalty, and for this inad-
vertence or mistake furnishes no excuse and no protection to the officer.
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So it is held in Tomlinson v. Long, 8 Jones, 469; Albright v. Tapscott,
tbid., 473 Finley v. Hayes, 81 N. C., 868, and in Peebles v. Newsom,
supra.

It appears from the plaintiff’s allegation that the defendant refused,
on demand of the plaintiff, who was defendant in the executionm, to
separate from the stock of goods levied on and assigned to the plaintiff
his exempted part thereof, the reason for not doing which is set out in
the sheriff’s return. There is no averment in the complaint that the

statement is untrue or that the demand of the sheriff for his fees
(265) was not made and refused, and that in consequence the sheriff

did not proceed further. There is so far as shown no falsehood
in this part of the return, and no action can be malntamed for the
statutory penalty given for a “false return.”

The numerous adjudged ¢ases fully sustain this 1nterpretat10n of the
enactment and of its purposes, as will be seen by a reference to some of
those most pertinent to the present inquiry.

A sheriff’s return, “Not to be found in my county,” was declared to
be false when no effort had been made to find the party, because “not to
be found” implies and means that a search has been made, and this is
untrue. Tomlinson v. Long, 8 Jones, 469.

“Too late to execute” was so held in Lemdt . Freeman, 7 Ired., 317,
where the process passed into the sherifi’s hands more than ten and 1ess
than twenty days before the term of the court to which it was to be
returned.

In Lemit v. Mooring, 8 Ired., 312, the sheriff sought to excuse the

.neglect to execute the writ, and returned in substance that himself and
his deputies were ofﬁcially and so constantly employed as to be unable
to serve it after it was received; in reference to which Rufin, C. J.,
remarks, in regard to incurring the penalty, that “to have that effect it
(the return) must be false in point of fact, and not false merely as im-
porting, from facts truly stated, a wrong legal conclusion.”

But the subject is very clearly discussed and the true meaning of the
statute, in its application to these officers, ascertained and declared by
the late Chief Justice in the opinion delivered by him in Martin .
Martin, supra, from which we quote, instead of further comment of our
own, as settling the law:

“ ‘Not satisfied’ is an insufficient return to a writ of fieri facias, for

the reason that it does not set forth the ground upon which the
(266) officer lias failed to make the money. But it may, nevertheless,
be a false return. For instance, suppose the officer made the full
amount required by the execution, and returned it ‘not satisfied” Such
a return is clearly false; it may be he has made only a part of the
amount, and without any reference to the part received returns it ‘not
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satisfied’; it would not be a false return, because, taking it literally, the
execution is not satisfied, and the return may have referred to that part
merely. But when, as in our case, the return is made in reference to the
part received, and sets forth a payment in January, and another in
March, suppressing the fact of the other payment in February, then ‘not
satisfied’ is used in the sense of not salisfied as to the residue, and is
necessarily false in respect to the payment suppressed.”

This is a very lucid exposition of the enactment and dispenses with
further observations from us.

Assuming as we must, for the purpose of the demurrer, the truth of
every averment of fact contained in the complaint, there is no conflict
between it and the return that brands the latter with falsehood, and such
repugnance 1s essential to the action.

The defendant, in order to a full and proper response to the writ,
ought to have made mention of the small payment made him, and in
this particular the return is defective, yet he says nothing to the con-
trary, nothing false in fact; and the omission to do what ought to have
been done in making his return does not bring the sheriff under this
condemnation of the statute—an enactment so severe as not to excuse
when there is a mere mistake and no intentional deceit practiced.
Peebles v. Newsom, supra.

There is error. The judgment must be reversed and the demurrer
sustained.

Error. Reversed.

Cited: Mfg. Co. v. Buxton, 105 N. C., 75; S. v. Berry, 169 N. C., 372.

(267)
J. L. GRUBB v. M. A. LOOKABILL anxp F. H LOOKABILL AND OTHERS.

Judicial Sale—Parties—Executors and Administrators—=Section 1492
of The Cede—Judgment Against Deceased Porty—Ejectmient.

1. In an action brought by the personal representative of an obligor in a
bond for title to subject the land to the payment of the purchase money,
the heirs at law of the obligor are necessary parties, in order to a valid
judicial sale of the land. )

2. Perhaps if the bond had been recorded, as required by section 1492, and
that section had been complied with in all other respects, a sale would
be valid, although ordered in an action to which the heirs at law of the
vendor were not parties.
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3. ‘Where, in such an action, the personal representative and one of the heirs
at law of the vendor are plaintiffs, and the vendee is defendant, a sale
made under a consent judgment, passes the equitable estate of the vendee,
and that portion of the legal estate which was vested in the heir at law
who was plaintiff. :

4, When the record contains no notice or suggestion of the death of a party,
a judgment rendered against such deceased, after his death, is not void,
but only voidable.

5. Plaintiff being owner of the equitable estate of the dbligee in a bond for
title, and of a one-fourth share of the legal title, can recover possession
in an action of ejectment against persons claiming under such obligee.

AcTioN oF ByECTMENT, tried before Gilmer, J., at March Term, 1887,
of Davipson Superior Court. ' '

The plaintiff claimed title under a judicial sale made in an action to
which one F. D. Lookabill was a party defendant.

The defendants are the widow and one of the heirs at law of said
F. D. Lookabill.

There was judgment that plaintiff recover the possession of the land
in controversy from the defendants. The other facts are stated by the
Chief Justice as follows:

The title to the land, for the recovery of which this action is prose-

cuted, belonged to Thomas P. Allen, who sold the same to one
(268) F. D. Lookabill, executing to him a title bond and taking frem

him a certain note for the purchase money. Allen died, leaving
a will, in the spring of 1875, and Wiley J. Loftin, his administrator
de bonis non, with the will annexed, instituted suit against Lookabill,
the purchaser, for the purchase money, and that the land mentioned in
the contract should be sold for its payment. To this suit Ambrose D.
Allen, one of the four heirs at law of the deceased vendor, was alone of
them made a codefendant with said F. D. Lookabill in the action. The
latter gave his written consent to the sale, and accordingly it was so
ordered, the land sold, and report thereof made and confirmed, and
judgment rendered directing a deed of conveyance to be made to the
purchaser, H. E. Wylde, for whom was afterwards substituted Elizabeth
Wylde, on payment of the sum bid. The commissioners, under the
order, made a deed for the land to the substituted purchaser, and she
afterwards conveyed it to the present plaintiff. F. D. Lookabill died
on 25 September, 1880, soon after the term of the Superior Court of
Davidson County held in that month had expired, during which the
decretal order of confirmation and for title was entered. At Fall Term,
1882, an order was made allowing certain counsel to appear in the cause
for the heirs at law of Thomas P. Allen, of whose action no mention is
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found in the record, except as may be inferred from the action of the
court at the next succeeding term in entering the following order: “It
appearing that all the parties and their representatives are before the
couit, and the purchase money has not been paid or title made to the
land; it is therefore ordered, by consent, that judgment be entered
against Elizabeth Wylde for the sum of $964, of which sum $800 is-
principal money, with interest on said principal money till paid, and
upon payment of said amount to W. J. Loftin, the commissioner, he
shall make title to her, provided she pays the same on or before 15 June,
1883; but should she fail to so pay, then the said commissioner

shall resell the land for cash, and make title to the purchaser.(269)
and report his proceedings to the next term of this court.

“J. F. Graves, Judge Presiding.”

The order has the signature of counsel for plaintiff Ambrose Allen
and Elizabeth Wylde also, and under the title of the plaintiff against
“F. D. Lookabill and other defendants.”

At Fall Term, 1883, the cause appears on the docket in a similar
form, except that the defendants are designated as F. D. Lookabill’s
heirs and others, and the decretal final order is consummated by the
report of the plaintiff Loftin that full payment of the purchase money,
$976, has been made to him by the said Elizabeth Wylde, and that he
has executed to her a deed in fee simple of the premises, and this report
was confirmed.

The plaintiff further exhibited in evidence a transcript of a certain
proceeding instituted by the administrator against Henry Garner and
wifeé, Maria J., Ambrose P. Allen, Charles P. Allen, Emily P. Wilkie
and L. P. Wilkie, executor of Thomas P. Allen, in which, by petition
before the clerk, he sets out, among other matters, his reception as admin-
istrator of the $976, proceeds of sale of land, and showing a balance to
be still due of the original purchase money on Lookabill’s contract, and
praying for a settlement of the estate of the testator, Thomas P., includ-
ing a charge against him therefor to the extent of the amount received.
To this petition answers were put in, that of Charles P. Allen admitting
the same, that of M. J. Garner denying the allegations, while E. P.
Wilkie, one of the heirs at law, failed to file any answer. The disposi-
tion of the cause is not stated in the record, so much of which is shown
as -discloses the fact that said moneys went into the general administra-
tion account.

Upon this state of facts it was contended by defendants that (270)
no-title passed to plaintiff because three at least of the heirs at law
-of said Thomas P. Allen, to wit, Charles P. Allen, E. P, Wilkie and
M. J. Glarner; had not been made parties to the action by said Wiley J.
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Loftin aforesaid, against F. D. Lookabill, nor the heirs of F. D. Looka-
bill, and because of no description of land in the complaint, but his
Honor was of the opinion that the heirs of the said Thos. P. Allen were
not necessary parties to said action, and that the heirs of said F. D.
Lookabill were presumed to be parties in said action of Wiley J. Loftin,
- administrator, against F. D. Lookabill, and after the death of said
Lookabill continued against F. D. Lookabill’s heirs, and that there was
a sufficient description of the land, and directed a verdict to be entered
in favor of the plaintiff. Defendant excepted and appealed.

E. E. Raper for plaintiff.
W. H. Bailey (Levi Scott also filed o brief) for defendants.

Swmrra, C. J., after stating the facts as above: We do not concur in
the opinion of the court that the heirs of the vendor, Thomas P. Allen,
to whom upon his death the land embraced in his contract with Looka-
bill descended, assuming it not to have been devised, since the legal
estate was in them, are not necessary parties to the action in order to a
full relief and the divesting and transferring the same to the purchaser.
“Before the passing of the act of 1797”7 (The Code, sec. 1492), says
. Nash, C. J., “Where a vendor entered into a bond to make title and died
before so doing, his heirs were the proper persons on whom the pur-
chaser had the right to call for the necessary conveyance. If they re-
fused to convey the title the person was driven into a Court of Equity,
and to such a suit the heirs were necessary parties.” Osborne v. Me-

Millam, 5 Jones, 109. '
(271)  For a similar reason when the personal representative of the
deceased vendor seeks to subject the land to the payment of the
débt, contracted in the purchase, he must make the heirs of his intestate
parties in order to an effectual sale of the descended legal estate.

The action seems to have been prosecuted upon a construction of the
statute referred to, that inasmuch as the administrator of the vendor
~ could himself make title upon payment of the purchase money, his pres-
ence in the action was sufficient to accomplish the double object of
securing the money and passing the estate to a purchaser, when sold for
that purpose. Perhaps this view is admissible if the bond had been
proved and registered as required under the intimation expressed, in the
opinion in Hodges v. Hodges, 2 D. & B. Eq., 72, and White ». Hooper,
6 Jones Eq., 152, without the presence of the vendor’s heirs if, in other
respects, the provisions of the statute had been complied with. For the
form of the proceeding adopted aims at the same thing, the enforcement
of the contract by subjecting the land to the debt incurred in its pur-
chase, and the debtor not only makes no objection but gives his consent
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to the sale, and the sale has at least the effect of passing his equitable
estate in the premises, and also the part of the legal estate which vested
in the said Ambrose D. Allen.

Again, as to the objection that Lookabill’s heirs were not introduced
into the action in his place after his death, it may be observed that
certain counsel were expressly authorized to appear for them, and the
style of the case was immediately changed, as if they had become parties
under that general designation, and so it is declared in the decretal order
of the ensuing term in the recital “that all the parties and their repre-
sentatives are before the court.”

The only further action in the cause, after the death of the vendee,
was to substitute a new purchaser in place of the first, and when the
terms of the decree for title were reported as having been com-
plied with and a conveyance executed, to confirm the report. (272)

But if the heirs were necessary parties after the ancestor’s
death to give efficacy to an order which was made in his lifetime, and
when carried out passed the title as of that date, as ruled in Vass v.
Arrington, 89 N. C.; 10, it is held, at least when the record contains no
notice or suggestion of the death of a party, that a judgment rendered
after such death ig irregular and voidable, but not void in the absence
of any action to make it so. Lynn v. Lowe, 88 N. C., 478.

There is no force in the objection that the land is not sufficiently
deseribed in the petition for a settlement of the estate.

Tt 1s clear that the full equitable estate in the land and a fractional
part of the legal estate is vested in the plaintiff, and this warrants a

recovery.
There is no error, and we affirm the ruling and judgment of the court.
No error. Affirmed.

MARY H. SHAW v. A. B. WILLIAMS.

Buvidence—Restricted Agency—Deed; Recital of Receipt of Purchase
“ Money In.

1. Where defendant relies upon a payment made by him to plaintiff’s agent,
as possession of authority by the agent is essential to the defense, and
must be shown, so restrictions imposed upon the agent’s authority may
be shown as essential parts of it; and such restrictions can be proven,
although they were never communicated to the defendant.

2. A, B. and C,, jointly owned a parcel of land. A. and B. orally empowered
C. to sell the land at a fixed price to defendant. C. made the sale,
and afterwards A., B. and C., executed a joint deed to the defendant,
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which contained the usual recital of receipt of the purchase money. The
deed, with the assent of all, was delivered to defendant by B. The
defendant paid A’s share of the purchase money to C., who never paid
(it to A. A. had instructed C. not to receive her share of the money, but
to leave it with defendant until she called for it. Defendant did not
know of these instructions: Held, that A. could recover her share of the
purchase money from defendant. Af lew, a recovery cannot be had of
purchase money, the receipt of which is recited in a deed. But in equity,
this obstacle is removed when the recital results from inadvertence,
and was inserted under a mistake of its legal effect, without any intention
of the parties that it should bar a recovery of the purchase money.

(273)  Crvir acrion tried before Clark, J., and a jury at May Term,
1887, of CumBerLAND Superior Court. -
Judgment for plaintiff. Appeal by defendant. The facts appear in
the opinion.

R. P. Buwton for plaintiff.
N. M. Ray for defendant.

Surrw, C. J. The plaintiff, her sister, Jane S., who had intermarried
with one W. W. Graham, and her brother, John W. Jenkins, being
tenants in common of an estate in fee in a house and lot in the town of
Fayetteville, the latter, with the consent and by the verbal authority
of the others, contracted with the defendant for the sale of the premises
to him for the sum of nine hundred dollars. A deed bearing date 3
September, 1883, was executed and delivered to the defendant some two
years thereafter, conveying the lot, and in the usual form acknowledging
payment of the consideration and releasing the defendant therefrom.

The plaintiff, not having received her share of the proceeds of sale, on

3 May, 1884, instituted this action to recover the same, alleging
(274) in her complaint that while she authorized her brother to make

the contract, and did not now repudiate it, he was not to receive
her third of the purchase money, and that this restriction was put upon
his power to-act in her behalf when it was conferred.

The answer of the defendant denies his liability, alleging that he paid
the plaintiff’s portion of the purchase money to the said Jenkins, as well
as his own, and went into possession, and continued to occupy the prem-
ises under the contract from the time it was made until the execution of
the deed on 10 November, 1883, recognizing the full agency of said
Jenkins to consummate the contract, including his receipt of the money
due to the plaintiff, and without any communication with her about the
matter or information of any limitation upon his authority.

The defendant relies also upon the acknowledgment of the payment
of the consideration and his release therefrom, contained in the recitals
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in the deed. Issues were drawn from the pleadings and submitted to
the jury which, with the several responses, are as follows:

1. Was Jenkins authorized by plaintiff to receive the purchase money
as her agent? Answer: “No.”

2. Was the purchase money paid by defendant to Jenkins? Answer:
“Yes'”

3. Did plaintiff ratify such payment to Jenkins? Answer: “No.”

4. Was the signature of plaintiff to deed procured by defendant by
ignorance and surprise? Answer: “No.”

5. Is plaintiff indebted to defendant by way of counterclaim; if so,
how much? Answer: “No.”

The plaintiff testified on her own behalf. Having stated that in the
year 1881 she authorized her brother to sell the house and lot to the
defendant for $900, but not to receive her share of the purchase money,
she was asked what were her instructions to him in regard to her share
of the money. The question was objected to by defendant’s coun-
sel on the ground that the limitations upon the agent’s authority (275)
proposed to be shown were not communicated to him. The objec-
tion was overruled, and the witness answered: “My instructions to my
brother John were to leave my share of the purchase money on interest
with Mr, Williams until called for.” .

1. To this ruling the first exception is taken As the possession of
authority to conclude the sale and receive the funds belonging to the
plaintiff is essential to the defense, and must be inferred or directly
ghown, so its intent under imposed restrictions may be an essential part
of it. If proof be given of the conferring of any authority to aet, it
must, to be full and complete, admit evidence of the limitations put
upon its exercise. The answer was, therefore, admissible, whatever may
be its effect upon the defendant, to whom the limitations were not com-
municated ; and this is quite another question not involved in the admis-

.sion of the answer.

2. The witness further testified that on 10 November, 1883, she went,
at the request of her brother, to his house, four miles distant from her
own, where she found him, his wife, one James M. Smith, the father
of the latter, and J. B. Smith, a justice of the peace, and the deed, which
had been executed by W. W, Graham and wife in September previous,
lying on the table. It had just been signed by her brother and his wife,
and she herself then signed it, saying to him, “I want you to go with me
next Tuesday to Mr. Williams to get my money.” He promised to do
s0, but never came for her; nor has she ever received any goods or pro-
visions, nor had her brother any right to take up any for her of the
defendant, or make a debt of any kind with him on her account.
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The witness was then asked by her counsel if she knew, when signing
the deed, the legal effect of the clauses acknowledging payment and
acquitting the defendant of liability therefor. The answer that
(276) she did not was received solely as bearing on the issue as to
surprise. To the reception of this evidence was also interposed

an exception.

Tt was competent for this limited purpose and pertinent to the inquiry
contained in the fourth issue. Upon cross-examination she stated that
she knew that the deed conveyed her title to the land to the defendant
which had been sold to him two years before, and during that time she
had not called or sent to him for purchase money. John frequently
bought groceries for her, but she always furnished him the money—the
money she principally derived from rents, which he would collect for
her, and she would hand him back money to buy groceries for her; that
he had collected for her, for many years, rents on this and other prop-
erty as her agent.

J. B. Smith, the justice, was present when she signed the deed; he
witnessed it and took it off with him.

On re-examination plaintiff said she had received no part of purchase
money from either defendant or Jenkins, and she had never assented
to, authorized, or ratified any payment to Jenkins.

W. W. Graham, witness for plaintiff, testified that he lived in Rich-
mond County and was the brother-in-law of Mrs. Shaw, the plaintiff,
baving married her sister Jane. That he and his wife consented to the
sale of the property to Mr. Williams in 1881, at the price of $900.

That in September, 1883, he and his wife signed the deed in Rich-
mond County, and he came to Fayetteville and delivered it to Mr. Wil-
liams, who seemed satisfied, and asked John Jenkins, who was with me,
if he should pay me. John said yes. And he paid me $300 and interest,
making $341 and some cents, being one-third of $1,024, the consideration
expressed in the deed.

On a subsequent visit to Fayetteville Mrs. Shaw mentioned to me
that she had never received her money, and to ask Mr. Williams for it.

I met him on the street and told him what Mrs. Shaw had said.

(277) He replied that he had paid Jenkins. I told him that would

not do, that Mrs. Shaw wanted her money and had requested me

to ask him for it. He said he had paid it once and would not pay it
again, and walked off.

DEFENDANT’S EVIDENCE.

J. B. Smith, witness for defendant, testified: I was present as a wit-
ness when Mrs. Shaw signed the deed. There was no influence used to
get her to sign, and there was nothing said about money in my hearing.
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Cross-examined by plaintiff’s counsel :

I am a justice of the peace and went out to the house of John McL.
Jenkins, at the request of A. B. Williams, to witness the signatures and
to take the private examination of Mrs. Jenkins, which I did. John
sent off after his sister, Mrs. Shaw. She came before I left and signed
the deed. I witnessed it and carried it to Mr. Williams.

A. B. Williams, defendant, testified: John MecL. Jenkins sold the
property to me in 1881 at the price of $900.

I paid W. W. Graham $300 and interest when he handed to me the
deed executed by himself and wife in September, 1883. I paid Jenkins
the balance of the purchase money. During two years plaintiff did not
call for the purchase money, and she never called for it. I first heard
through her counsel, shortly before this suit, that she claimed the money
had not been paid. '

Defendant’s counsel proposed to prove by this witness, by acts and
declarations of Jenkins, that for a series of years Jenkins was receiving
for Mrs. Shaw rents of this and other property, as tending to show a
general agency. Evidence excluded, on objection by plaintiff, as the
agency must be proved aliunde. Defendant excepted.

Cross-examined by plaintiff’s counsel:

Jenkins was indebted to me for money advanced and goods sold along
during the two years—but mostly for money. In this way the purchase
money was all paid before Mrs. Shaw signed the deed. I have
never paid Mrs. Shaw anything personally. She was never in- (278)
debted to me for goods, and I made her no advances in money.

John Jenking is now insolvent; he was at that time; it was not gen-
erally known, but I had reason to apprehend it.

No demand was made upon me for the money until after Jenkins
became insolvent and left.

I had no acquaintance with Mrs. Shaw. She never told me that
Jenkins was her agent to sell this property, and she never itold me he
was not. I had no communication with her at all.

I took possession in 1881, and soon bargained off a portion of the
property for $800, retaining a small portion which adjoined my home
place.

William T. Taylor, witness for defendant, testified: In 1874 or 1875
T bought a piece of land from Jenkins, acting for Mrs. Shaw, and paid
the money to Jenkins. She signed the deed and made no claim on me
for the money.

There were no special instructions in writing asked for by the de-
fendant’s counsel.

Among other things the court charged the jury that an agency to sell
land did not necessarily imply the right to receive the purchase money;
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but that whether or not Jenkins was the plaintiff’s agent to receive the
purchase money was a question of fact for the jury to find from all the
evidence in the case, and in doing that the jury could consider whether
or not plaintiff had held Jenkins out as her general agent or not; that
the deed (by defendant’s witness) had been carried to defendant by the
justice of the peace, ete., and all the surrounding circumstances of this
transaction. That if plaintiff had made Jenkins her agent to receive
the purchase money or held him out so defendant reasonably acted on
that belief, and she had not received the money, it was her misfortune to

have chosen a dishonest agent. DBut if defendant trusted to
(279) Jenkins as representing himself as her agent, if it turned out to

be untrue, then defendant was the vietim of his own credulity.
Defendant excepted.

Upon the third issue the court charged the jury that if plaintiff re-
ceived from Jenkins the purchase money or any part of it, or if, know-
ing he had received it, she assented to or made no dissent, so defendant
could get it back from Jenkins, that would be ratifying the payment to
Jenkins.

Upon the verdict of the jury the defendant asked the court for judg-
ment in his favor, as the jury had found against the plaintiff upon the
fourth issue as to,ignora.nce and surprise. This was refused by the
court. Defendant excepted.

The defendant then moved for a new trial upon the other issues, for
error in the charge and exceptions to the evidence, which being refused
and judgment rendered for the plaintiff on the verdlct the defendant
appealed.

If the testimony of the plaintiff be accepted by the jury as a correct
statement of what transpired when the agency in respect to the sale was
created, and this it belongs to them to determine, the authority to collect
the money for the plaintiff was expressly withheld, and Jenkins was
only empowered to make the contract. The extent of his authority
seems not to have been inquired into, nor its limits communicated to the
defendant at the time of making the contract or afterwards and when
the deed had been executed. It is further manifest that in giving her
signature and seal to the 1nstrument to give it efficacy as a conveyance,
the plaintiff asserted her right to be paid for what she was conveying,
and expressed her intention to call on the defendant and get her money.
Unless, therefore, she had before permitted her brother to assume and
exercise the functions of a general agent in conducting her business, and
thus held him out as invested with such general authority to act for

her, so as to reasonably induce the defendant to believe in his
(280) possessing the right to take her money, and he did act upon that
belief, she could not repudiate his authority and fall back upon
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_ limitations of which the defendant had no knowledge and compel the
payment a second time. :

In this aspect the case was presented to the jury, and it was as favor-
able to the defense as the appellant could rightfully demand. This
brings up the consideration of the release relied on.

A series of deeisions in this Court has established the proposition that
a recovery cannot be had at law in an action for the recovery of the
purchase money, though never paid in faect, when such payment is ac-
knowledged in the deed and the claim therefor released, nor will evi-
dence be heard to contradiet the recital. Brocket v. Foscue, 1 Hawks,
64; Graves v. Carter, 2 Hawks, 576 Spiers v. Clay’s Admrs., 4 Hawks,
22 Lowe v. Weatherly, 4 D. & B., 2125 Mendenhall v. Parish, 8 Jones,
105. While such is the effect given to the recital in this State, in which
the ruling in the English courts is followed, it is generally held in our
sister States that the recital does not constitute an estoppel, and is but
prima facie evidence, open to disproof, of the fact stated. The authori-
ties will be found in the note to section 26 of the first volume of Green-
leaf’s Work on Evidence.

But in a Court of Equity the obstacle is removed when the recital
results from an inadvertence, and was inserted under a mistake of its
legal effect and without any intention of the parties that it should so
operate as to preclude a recovery of the purchase money.

In Crawley v. Timberlake, 1 Ired. Eq., 346, a bill was filed to get rid
of the release upon an allegation that it was ignorantly inserted in the
deed and its execution obtained by surprise, inasmuch ag- it was not
founded on the consideration imported in it, namely, the payment of the
purchase money, nor any other valuable or meritorious consideration,
and there does not appear to have been any wnfention in {he
plaintiff to abandon or extinguish his demand, thus obviously (281)
just. ’

In delivering the opinion upon the effect of simply setting up to an
impeached release the release itself, without meeting the agsailing aver-
ment or showing an actual consideration, Chief Justice Ruffin uses this
significant language: “A Court of Equity does not sustain these short-
hand bars, such as a release, a stated account and the like, unless they
be pleaded as not only existing instruments, but also as being fair and
true and proper to be equitably enforced.” In the further discussion
he quotes, with approval, the words of Lord Redesdale to the effect “that
the plea of release must set out the consideration upon which it was
made if impeached on that point.”

And so every release must be founded on some. counsideration, other-
wise fraud must be presumed. 2 Dan. Ch. Prac., 766; Story Eq. Plead.,
secs. 766 and 797,
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The jury find—and there is no complaint of the absence of suflicient
evidence to warrant the finding—that the agent had no authority to
receive the plaintiff’s money; never did pay it to her, and that as his
act was never ratified, the payment by defendant is not a satisfaction
of her claim, and he is still exposed to her demand. It is not our prov-
ince to examine the evidence and pass upon its effect, but if we were at
liberty to do so, we could not say there was none to show a mutual
understanding, that the purpose of the execution of the deed was only
to pass the title and not to acquit of the liability for the unpaid pur-
chase money, while no specific issue was framed to raise the question.

The defendant insists, however, that the finding that the plaintiff’s
signature was not affixed to the deed procured by the defendant by
ignorance and surprise leaves the release in full force, and is a bar to
the claim.

The issue is not put in a form to have this effect. There is

(282) no pretense that the plaintiff was surprised into making the

deed or was ignorant of what she was doing. It is manifest that

she executed it with full knowledge that it passed her estate in the land,

and such was her purpose. The true inquiry should have been whether

it was the intent to exonerate the purchaser from his obligation to pay

the consideration money by the introduction of this recital, and if this

was not the understanding, though erroneous, of both; in other words,

a common mistake in both. The finding falls short of this, and there-
fore does not obstruct the rendering of judgment upon the verdiet.

The difficulty we meet is as to the disposition of the appeal, and
whether the cause should or should not be remanded for the trial of an
issue upon this point. But as no actual replication is necessary under
our present system, and the matter set up in the answer is deemed con-
troverted unless it be a counterclaim, we consider the sufficiency of the
release as open to proof as to its binding force, and as the defendant
was content with the issue as drawn up and passed on, and the finding
upon it is insufficient to reinforce the defense as constituting a bar to
the demand, we conclude to affirm the judgment, based upon so much
of the verdict as declares the debt unpaid.

There is no error and the judgment 1s

Affirmed.

Cited: Barbee v. Barbee, 108 N. C., 584; Willis v. R. R., 120 N. C,,

5185 Marcom v. Andrews, 122 N. C., 225; Boutten v. R. R., 128 N. C,,
341; King v. B. B., 157 N. C., 52; Patton v. Lumber Co., 171 N. C,; 839.

232



N.C.] FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

Davis ». ELY.

(283)
JOHN F. DAVIS v. TIMOTHY ELY AND OTHERS.

Complaint; Prayer for Belief in—Fragmentary Appeal—Submitting to
Nonsuit; When Proper—Practice; Reserving Questions of Law
Encouraged.

1. Under the C. C. P., the prayer for relief is most obviously a material part
of the complaint. But semble that failure to insert such prayer is not
fatal. .

2. After the jury was empaneled and the pleadings read, the defendant
moved to dismiss the action, upon the ground that it did not contain a
statement of facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action. This motion
was refused, the judge remarking that a cause of action was stated, but
not such a cause as would entitle plaintiff to the relief he insisted
on in the argument of his counsel. Thereupon, plaintiff submitted to a
nonsuit, and appealed. No evidence was introduced by either party: Held,
that there was no ruling to justify plaintiff’s course, as there were no
admitted facts, or facts that might be found upon proofs, upon which
a practical ruling could have been made, and the appeal would not be
entertained.

3. Fragmentary appeals will not be allowed when the subject-matter could
be afterwards considered and error corrected, without detriment to the
appellant. But this rule does not apply to interlocutory orders, the
granting or refusal of which may produce present injury or loss, as these
come within section 548 of The Code.

4. When a nonsuit is asked at the end of plaintiff’s evidence, it is the better
practice for the judge to reserve the point until after verdict.

- Crvin acTioN tried before Graves, J., and a jury at Fall Term, 1887,
of Campex Superior Court.

Plaintiff, upon an intimation of opinion by the court, submitted to a
nonsuit and appealed. The facts appear in the opinion.

E. F. Aydlett for plaintiff.
Harvey Terry for defendants.

Smrra, C. J. This action is instituted to reform and enforce (284)
the specific performance of a contract, the terms of which are
alleged to have been arranged and agreed on between the defendants and
the father of the plaintiff acting on his behalf verbally, and which con-
tract, by means of the false and fraudulent representations made by the
defendant Terry, acting for his associates, as to the provisions of the
oral agreement, was put in its present form, as shown in the accompany-
ing exhibit. The variation, it is asserted, consists in substituting for
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the Hall tract of land, containing 3,000 acres, which the plaintiff was to
have, in addition to the share to be allotted in the division of the great
Parker estate, an indefinite portion of 1,300 acres adjoining that share,
the correction and amendment required being to bring the matters in
harmony with the parol contract. It is only necessary to say that the
answers of the defendants deny the imputations and enter into an ex-
planation of the facts of the transaction inconsistent with the charges
in the complaint.

The complaint, after a statement of the facts that constitute the cause
of action, concludes with no demand for specific relief except for costs,
adding, “and for such other and further relief as to the court may seem
just.”

As the essence of a bill in equity for relief lies in the recital of facts
and the demand for redress, it ought to be shown therein what is de-
manded, and under a prayer for general relief, if that specified cannot
be given, some other may be, consistent with the structure and objects of
the bill. Whitfield v. Cates, 6 Jones Eq., 136,

The office of a complaint which, under The Code, takes the place of
the bill, is to set out the facts out of which comes the cause of action,

.and as the summons,-which begins the suit, notifies the party on whom
it is served to answer the charges to be preferred against him “or the
plaintiff will apply to the court for the relief demanded in the com-

plaint,” The Code, see. 213, most obviously this becomes a mate-

(285) rial part of the pleading.

But waiving this defect, which we do not declare to be fatal,
we proceed to the consideration of the case presented in the appeal.

The record shows that after the jury had been empaneled and “the

..complaint and answer read,” as we understand, that the matters in issue
might be seen from the conflicting allegations (for no issues in form
appear in the record), the defendants moved to dismiss the action for
an insufficient statement of faects in the complaint. This motion was
denied, the court at the same time remarking that while a cause of action
was stated in the complaint sufficient to warrant the reseission of the
contract, if sustained by the proofs, it could not be reformed, and as cor-
rected specifically enforced, as insisted on by the plaintiff in the argu-
ment. In submission to this intimation of opinion the plaintiff suffered
a nonsuit, and from the judgment appealed.

The opinion expressed was, under the circumstances, purely hypo-
thetical and contingent upon the results of evidence that had not been
heard, and was to be passed upon by the jury. The trial was then
entered upon, and the case not in a condition to authorize any practical

-and effectual ruling upon the point. Such a speculative opinion, open
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to change upon a reconsideration up to the time when the cause was
ripe for judgment, does not authorize an abrupt termination of the
action in the midst of its progress, and we have often announced that
such an appeal, fragmentary and inconclusive, would not be entertained.
In answer to the suggestion that if the opinion were upheld it would
dispose of the cause and save the delay and expense of further litigation,
it may be said that this would be equally true of a motion to dismiss the
action, and yet in a iultitude of cases, when disallowed, it has been held
that an appeal would not lie, and this because no right, if exception to
the ruling be noted, is lost, and the exception may be reviewed

upon an appeal from the final determination. Crawley v. Wood- (286)
fin, 78 N. C.,, 4, and numerous cases cited in Clark’s Code, p.

832 et seq.

The policy of the new practice is to brlng litigation to an early close,
and hence the rulings that an error leading to no present injurious con-
sequences, and capable of correction after trial on appeal, will not be
suffered to interrupt the proeeedan unnecessarily.

On the other hand the inconveniences might be very serious 1f in the
ruling there was found to be no error, and the same had to go back to
be prosecuted from the point of interruption, with all the increased ex-
pense and consequent delay, when as in our case the jury were em-
paneled and the witnesses present to be examined. The trial ought,
therefore, to have gone on, and the failure of the plaintiff to make good
hig allegations would have rendered the oplmon when it was to pass
into a ruling, entirely immaterial.

It has been repeatedly and distinetly held that appeals, fragmentary
in their character, could not be allowed when the subjcet-matter could
be afterwards considered, and any erroneous ruling corrected as well,
without detriment fo the appellant. Hines v. Hines, 84 N. C., 122;
Comrs. v. Satchwell, 88 N. C., 1; Jones v. Call, 89 N. C., 188; Lutz v.
Cline, 1bid., 186.

The rule does not, of course, apply to interlocutory orders made. from
time to time, the granting or w1thhold1n<r of which may produce present
loss or injury and need prompt action to prevent, for these cages come
within the words of section 548 of The Code.

Under the former practice this method was disapproved, and though
allowed, it was suggested as a proper course of action, when a nonsuit
was asked at the close of the plaintifi’s evidence, not at once to rule upon
the point, but to reserve the question and let the ease proceed to a verdiet,
so that if it was against the plaintiff, the reserved point would
be put out of the way, and if for him, the ruling upon it, adverse (287 )
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to the defendant, when erroneous, could be corrected, and in either case
the cause terminated. Kirby v. M4lls, 78 N. C., 124."

What has been said has reference to premature appeals upon rulings
actually made, or upon an intimation of an opinion when about to be
made in a condition of the case admitting it, to avoid which a nonsuit
is suffered ; but even this state of facts is not before us now.

Our decision rests on the fact that there was no ruling, nor could be,
so that it would be avoided by a nonsuit, to call for the action taken by
the appellant, inasmuch as there were no admitied facts or facts that
might be found upon proofs upon which a practical and sufficient ruling
could have been made.

For these reasons we should dismiss the appeal and allow the cause
to proceed in the court below, but that such would not be the result in
this case because of the nonsuit which ends the action, and this action
was in deference to the intimated ruling. We therefore remand the
cause that the nonsuit may be set aside and the action proceed. And it

is so adjudged.

"~ Error. Remanded.

Cited: 8. v. Warren, post, 494; Tiddy v. Harris, 101 N. C., 592;
Lambe v. Love, 109 N. C., 306; Hoss v. Palmer, 150 N. C., 18; Mec-
Kinney v. Patterson, 174 N. C., 489; Lumber Co. v. Johnson, 177 N. C,,
445 Cement Co. v. Phillips, 182 N. C., 440.

T. C. OAKLEY v. C. M. VAN NOPPEN.

Judgment—U ndertwkingt%E zecution—Appeal.

1. Upon the affirmance by the Supreme Court of a judgment of the Superior
Court in favor of the plaintiff, he is entitled, upon motion, to judgment
against the sureties upon an undertaking to stay execution pending ap-
peal ; and such affirmance is conclusive of the liability of the sureties.

2. No particular form is required for an undertaking to stay execution upon
appeal—and if words are inserted in such undertaking repugnant to its
intent, they will be rejected as surplusage.

(288) Morion heard by Philips, J., at March Term, 1887, of

Durranm Superior Court, for judgment in aceordance with the
opinion of the Supreme Court, which had been duly certified, against
the defendant and Eugene Morehead, his surety, upon an undertaking
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to stay execution of the judgment theretofore rendered in this case at
Spring Term, 1886, of Durham Superior Court, and which judgment,
on appeal by defendant, was affirmed by the Supreme Court. Vide,
95 N. C,, 60.

The undertaking was as follows: “Know all men by these presents
that we, C. M. Van Noppen and Eugene Morehead, are held and firmly
bound unto T. C. Oakley in the sum of sixteen hundred dollars. Witness
our hands and seals, this 29 March, 1886.

“The condition of this bond is such that, whereas C. M. Van Noppen
has appealed to the Supreme Court from the refusal of the Superior
Court judge to allot and set aside and declare invalid, as against de-
fendant’s right of homestead, the alleged lien of T. O. Oakley filed in
the Superior Court clerk’s office against the house and premises of said
Van Noppen: Now, then, if upon said appeal the said ruling is af-
firmed and said alleged lien declared and held to be valid as aforesaid,
and the said Vian Noppen shall then and in that case fail to pay the
judgment of $805.90 against him in this action, then this bond shall
remain in force; but if in such event it is paid, the bond is void.”

This undertaking was signed and sealed by C. M. Van Noppen and
Eugene Morehead. '

The defendant and Eugene Morehead opposed the motion because,
first, the contingency upon which said undertaking was to be payable
had not happened, and secondly, at Fall (October) Term, 1886,
of Durham Superior Court, the judge had made an order in an (289)
appeal in said court depending, from the return of the appraisers
of the homestead of defendant under an execution issued in this action,
directing sale of defendant’s house and lot and the payment to him of
one thousand dollars in money in lieu of a homestead, from which order
and judgment the defendant had appealed to the Supreme Court, where
his appeal was still pending and unheard.

His Honor rendered the following judgment:

“The judgment and opinion of the Supreme Court having been filed,
and it appearing that the judgment of the Superior Court is in all
respects affirmed : Now, on motion of plaintiff, it is adjudged that plain-
tiff Qakley recover of defendant Van Noppen and Eugene Morehead,
his surety on his undertaking for stay of execution, the sum of sixteen
hundred dollars, the penalty of said undertaking, to be discharged upon
the payment of $805.90, with interest,” etc.

From this judgment the defendant and Eugene Morehead appealed.

J. W. Graham and Jas. Manning for the plaintiff.
E. 0. Smith and W. W. Fuller for defendant.
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Davs, J. At the March Term, 1886, of the Superior Court of Dur-
ham, there was a judgment in favor of the plaintiff against the defend-
ant, Van Noppen, for $805.93, from which the said defendant appealed
to the Supreme Court, and it was to stay the execution of the judgment
appealed from that the undertaking set out in this proceeding was exe-
cuted. The undertaking is not in the usual form in appeals from judg-
ments directing the payment of money, but contains a condition upon
which the appellants insist that their liability depends, and that the
contingency upon which they were to pay has not happened. They

further object because of what transpired at the Fall Term, 1886,
(290) of Durham Superior Court.

The liability of the obligors rests entirely upon the judgment
of the Supreme Court rendered upon the appeal, and the second ground
of objection to the motion for judgment upon the undertaking cannot be
considered by us. No exact form of undertaking is required; and we
are to consider whether there was such an affirmation by the Supreme
Court of the judgment appealed from as to entitle the plaintiff to judg-
ment upon the undertaking given.

The case as reported in 95 N. C., page 60, is made a part of the case
on appeal, and from it appears, as material for our consideration, that
the plaintiff’s action was for the recovery of money alleged to be due
for the erection of a house by agreement for the defendant; that the
defendant failing to pay, the plaintiff filed a lien upon the house and
lot on which it was built, and he demanded judgment for the amount
alleged to be due, and that the “judgment be declared a lien upon said
house and lot.” The defendant denied the plaintiff’s right to recover.
He also denied the right of the plaintiff “to file or have a lien upon
defendant’s property,” ete., and set up a counterclaim. Issues were
submitted, with the assent of both parties, and upon the first the jury
found that the defendant was indebted to the plaintiff in the sum of
$805.98, and upon the second that the plaintiff was not indebted to the
defendant.

In the statement of the case it is stated that “the defendant in his
answer alleged that the lien was invalid as against his homestead, and
prayed that the court might so determine, and objected to the judgment
unless it contained a clause declaring the lien invalid as against. his
homestead.” After a statement of other facts, Ashe, J., delivering the
opinion of the Court, says: “The only exception presented for our con-
sideration by the record is to the judgment, because it did not declare

the lien invalid as against the defendant’s homestead. The excep-
(291) tion cannot be sustained for several reasons”; and after stating
them he says: “Our conclusion is there was no error, and the judg-
ment of the Superior Court is affirmed.” If the defendant, Van Noppen,
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failed to have the question of his right to a homestead properly pre-
sented, 1t seems to have been from no error in the “ruling” or judgment
of the Superior Court, to which he excepted and from which he appealed,
and that judgment having been affirmed by the Supreme Court, no
subsequent proceedings affecting or declaring the rights of the defend-
ant, Van Noppen, to a homestead could vary or change the liability of
the obligors in the undertaking on appeal. That liability became abso-
lute when the ruling of the court below was affirmed, and the exception
“to the judgment, because it did not declare the lien invalid as against
the defendant’s homestead,” overruled.
There is no error and the judgment is affirmed.

The foregoing opinion was filed at October Term last of this Court.
During that term a motion in behalf of the defendant for a reconsider-
ation was filed, and the case was reheard at this term.

Smite, C. J. We have carefully reconsidered the opinion and the
conclusion to which it leads upon the defendant’s application, and in
the light of the adjudications to which we have been referred, and find
no sufficient ground for changing the result.

The judgment, from which the appeal is taken, is rendered in the
usual form of a simple money demand, and its silence as to the existence
of the lien, asserted and sought to be enforced in the complaint, must
be deemed a denial of the claim and an adjudication against it, and the
subsequent proceedings under execution, in the recognition and allot-
ment of the debtor’s homestead in the land, uncontested, shows such to
be the construction put upon the judgment and its legal effect
by the parties. (292)

There is no ground, therefore, for an appeal by the defendant
from the ruling of the court and the refusal to insert a clause in it
declaring the priority of the homestead right over that of the statutory
lien upon the premises, for the adverse decision as to the latter leaves
the premises, when being subjected to the execution, open, as in the
other cases, to the claim for exemption, to be asserted in the mode pre-
seribed by law. There is, consequently, no just cause of complaint
afforded to the defendant for his appeal, for the proposed modification
of the judgment would have been of no advantage to him.

The complaint, when there is no just reason for it, comes from the
defendant alone, and the appeal is his alone, prosecuted solely to redress
a supposed wrong done to him and correct a ruling from which it is
alleged to result, and the undertaking, put in the form of a penal bond
with conditions, is in his interest and for his relief, and the surety
thereto comes collaterally and contingently into the action, in support
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and aid of the debtor, in effecting a reversal or correction of the ruling
for his relief and benefit. The recitals in the bond show its aim and
purpose to be to subordinate the lien to the homestead by direct declara-
tory terms, and its end is obtained when this result is reached.

The objection of the appellants in the present appeal to the rendition
of the judgment rests upon the introduction into the condition, upon
which the liability depends, the further words, “and said alleged lien
declared and held to be valid as aforesaid,” a contingency which has not
oceurred, since no such adjudication was made. But this provision is
not only repugnant to the clause immediately preceding, for the affirm-
tng of the ruling precludes the making any such inconsistent declara-
tion, and both conditions cannot co-exist, but is contrary to the entire
scope and object for which the undertaking was given, as shown by its

terms. There is then no alternative, and these inadvertent words
(293) must be rejected on account of such repugnancy, or the bond is a

nullity. We are constrained, therefore, to eliminate them, or
give such a construction to the instrument as will make it conform to
the statutory requirement, and the other provisions meet this and render
it, what all parties meant it should be, a security for the debt, if there
was no error found in the action of the court.

In this connection it may be remarked that the very object of the
appeal, a judicial determination of the question of the relations between
the lien and the exemption in favor of the debtor, would be defeated if
this condition now insisted on is essential to the liability, so that the
appellant will extricate himself from his bond by losing the very interest
hig appeal was intended to secure.

The clause which makes the difficulty has no proper place in the
instrument, and it is complete under the statute with the clause omitted,
since the allegation becomes operative by the affirming of the judg-
ment in the appellate court, and so itself and the statute alike provide.
The Code, sec. 554.

As then the liability, before contingent, becomes absolute when “the
judgment appealed from or any part thereof is affirmed or the appeal
dismissed,” and it has been affirmed, we think notwithstanding the
interpolation of the repugnant matter, the bond imposed the obligation
of payment on the surety, and it was properly so adjudged. We have
examined the cases cited, so far as accessible to us, and they do not con-
travene the principle of this adjudication, and that of Crist v. Burlin-
game, 62 Barb., 351, rather gives it support. It cites with approval
what is said by Shaw, C. J., in Burt v. Hartshorn, 1 Met. (Mass.), 24,
as follows: “The rule, as in other cases, must be to look at the whole
instrument and the circumstances and relation in which the parties
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stood to each other at the time of entering into the contract, and there-

from ascertain the intention of the parties; and the intent, when

thus ascertained, must govern the construction of the contract.” (294)

And in the present case we give effect to the maxim, uf res magis

valeal quam pereat, so often quoted in the adjudications of this Court.
We therefore leave undisturbed our former ruling, and find no error

n it.

Affirmed.

H. H. COOK, ADMINISTRATOR, v. WM. E. MOORE, EXECUTOR.
Amendment—Judgment of Supreme Court.

1. Except upon an application to rehear, or because of “mistake, inadvertence,
surprise or excusable neglect,” as provided by statute, the Supreme Court
has no power to amend its regular judgment, regularly entered, at a
preceding term; but it can amend a judgment improperly entered, or
enter one which was not entered, or not properly entered, at a former
term, when the Court intended and ought to have entered it.

2. It manifestly appearing that this Court, at a former term, determined to
reverse a judgment of the court below, but inadvertently an order of
affirmance was made at the foot of the opinion filed by one of the
Justices, for the Court, this Court will strike out that order and enter
one of reversal.

Morron to amend a judgment of the Court inadvertently entered at
October Term, 1886 (95 N. C,, 1.).

R. B. Winborne for plaintiff.
R. B. Peebles for defendant.

Mzerrivon, J. The plaintiff moved at the present term to strike from
the records of this Court an entry made by mistake, as suggested, that
purports to be a judgment in its nature final here in this case, granted
at October Term of 1886, affirming the judgment of the court
below, and to enter of record numc pro tunc the judgment re- (295)
versing that judgment which the court had determined upon and
intended to enter but failed by inadvertence so to do.

It is not contended that this Court can reverse, set aside, or modify
in any material respeet a regular, final judgment at a term thereof sub-
sequent to that at which it was entered. It is clear and well settled that
it has no such authority, except upon an application to rehear or because
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of “mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect,” as may be
allowed by statute. Murphy v. Merritt, 63 N. C., 5025 Mabry v. Erwin,
78 N. C., 45; Moore v. Hinnant, 90 N. C., 163, and cases there cited;
Sebbald v. Unsted States, 12 Pet., 4885 Bank v. Moss, 6 How., 31; Bron-
son v. Schulten, 104 U. 8., 410.

It is just as well settled, however, that the Court has authority upon
application, or ex mero motu, at all times in term, and it 1s its duty to
amend and correct its records so as to make them speak the truth and
be consistent, and to make proper entries nunc pro func that were cer-
tainly intended but omitted to be made by mistake, accident, or inad-
vertence of the Court. Such authority is essential. Courts are not in-
{allible; they, like all other earthly tribunals, are liable to make mis-
takes of fact that cannot be corrected in the ordinary course of pro-
cedure, and it would contravene every principle of reason and justice
if they could not in some way correct them. The law contemplates that
each court can itself the better, the more certainly and accurately correct
such its own mistakes than another court, whether appellate or not. But
such power should be exercised with great care and caution, and only
upon clear and satisfactory proof, because, when entries are made in
the course of the business of the court, they are presumed to have been
made upon careful consideration and to be correct; and, moreover, they
import absolute verity while they are allowed to remain. Farmer v.

Willard, 75 N. C., 4015 Wall v. Covington, 83 N. C., 144; Scolt
(296) v. Queen, 95 N. C., 340; Strickland v. Strickland, 95 N. C., 471;

Brooks v. Stephens, post, 297; Matherson v. Grant, 2 How., 263;
Sheppard v. Wilson, 6 How., 260; 2 Tidd’s Pr., 932; 1 Will. on Exrs.,
762, 763; 3 Chit. Gen. Pr., 101.

The mere entry in writing on the minutes of the proceedings of the
court from which the record is made up when need be does not itself
constitute the judgment; it is only evidence of it, and imports verity
while it remains. But the judgment is. the conclusion of the law, as
determined and applied by the court to the case before it, and it remaing
in the mind of the court until it shall be truly entered of record. When
the conclusion of the law in a case is thus reached the court cannot, after
the term at which it was entered, interfere with it. At the end of the
term it passes beyond the control of the court. But the entry of record
must embody and be what the court determined, decided, and what it
intended should be so entered; otherwise, the judgment will not have
been entered of record, and the court may, at a subsequent term, enter
it correctly nunc pro tunc. The court cannot, at a subsequent term,
amend, modify, or interfere with a regular judgment regularly entered
of record at a preceding term; it can correct, amend, or modify such a
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one improperly entered or enter one which through accident, mistake
of fact or inadvertence of the court was not properly entefed or not
entered at the former term, when the court intended to enter and ought
to have entered it.

In the case before us it is manifest from the opinion of the court filed,
prepared by the late Justice Ashe, that the Court had determined, and
it was its mind and purpose, to reverse the judgment of the court below
and grant a new trial, and to enter judgment accordingly. It also so
appears from the memorandum made by the Court at the time the case
was decided in conference of the Judges. The order of affirmance, made
at the foot of the opinion, was a clear inadvertence of the Court,
and cannot be allowed to prejudice the plaintiff. Through such (297)
inadvertence of the Court its judgment was not entered, and it
must be now.

The motion must be allowed, and it must be declared that there is
error. The judgment of the court below must be reversed and further
proceedings had in the action there, according to law. To that end the
clerk will certify this opinion, and the opinion of the Court as delivered
heretofore, except the memorandum at the foot thereof, to the Superior
Court, and direct the clerk of the latter court to return to the office of
the clerk of this Court the certificate purporting to be the certificate
of the judgment of this Court. '

It is so ordered.

Cited: S. v. Farrar, 104 N. C., 703, 8. v. Willis, 106 N. C., 804;
Summerlin v. Cowles, 107 N. C.; 4415 Scroggs v. Stevenson, 108 N. C,,
262; Solomon v. Bates, 108 N. C., 822; Bernhardt v. Brown, ibid., 711;
James v. B. B., 123 N. C., 306; Board of Hducation v. Henderson, 127
N. C, 9; 8. v. Mapsh, 134 N. C.,, 187; Durham v. Cotton Mills, 144
N. C., 714; Nelson v. Hunter, 145 N. C., 3387; Mann v. Mann, 176
N. C,, 370.

MARY C. BROOKS, Winow oF J. W. SHACKELFORD, v. C. STEPHENS,
R. W. WARD AND OTHERS, CREDITORS OF J. W. SHACKELFORD.

Record—Amendment.

A judge has the power to amend a record, so as to make it speak the truth,
at any time; and, by consent of parties, he may hear the evidence for
that purpose, and make the order of amendment in a county other than
that where the record is.
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ArpEsL by the plaintiff from an order made by Connor, J., at Cham-
bers in Wilmington, in April, 1887, amending a judgment rendered by
Clark, J., at Fall Term, 1886, of the Superior Court of Jones County,
to Wthh the proceedlng had been moved, by consent of parties, from
Ounslow.

The facts sufficiently appear in the opinion.

(298) 8. W. Isler for plaintiff.
Clement Manly for defendants.

Smrra, C. J. There is no error assigned in this appeal, which is
taken from the action of the judge in correcting a mistake made in ren-
dering a judgment in the cause at a previous term, and at a place outside
the county wherein it had been pending.

The subject-matter of the amendment was in the plaintiff’s claim to
dower in a fund which had been produced by the sale of what is called
the Miller land, in which her husband had acquired the equity of re-
demption, subject to two incumbering mortgages, the debt secured in
the latter having been assigned to him. The proceeds of the sale were
insufficient to discharge the secured debts.

In the first judgment the plaintiff was declared to be entitled to one-
third in value of the other lands left by her husband, but that she ‘“is
not entitled to dower or provision in lieu of dower in the fund or money
arising from the J. K. Miller land, as set forth in the third, fourth, and
fifth articles of the complaint.” The amendment consisted in substi-
tuting, for the descriptive words following the word “entitled,” “to
dower in the land set forth in the complaint as the J. K. Miller land,
nor the provision in lieu of dower therein.” The change was entirely
unnecessary, a distinction without a difference, as the land had been sold
under proper proceedings to foreclose, and a claim could only attach to
the money fund.into which the land had been converted by the sale, if it
had any validity in law.

The amendment, the result of overcaution and to prevent a possible
future misconstruction of the terms of the judgment, was allowed upon
full evidence of the intent of the former judge, furnished by himself
and the attorney, who by his direction put his ruling in writing and
inadvertently left out the words now supplied, and at a place and time

agreed on by counsel of both parties. There is no ground for any
(299) complaint on the part of appellant in thus putting the judgment
in proper form, as it was verbally pronounced at the original
rendering. The validity of the action of the court in hearing and
passing upon the application to amend at the place fixed upon is sus-
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tained by the cases of Hervey v. Edmunds, 68 N. C., 243; Harrell v.
Peaebles, 79 N. C., 26, and others subsequently decided.

The power and the duty of making the record speak truly the ruling
of the court and the action taken in a cause is supported by abundant

authority.

The court may, for the purpose of ascertaining the facts, hear evi-
dence, 8. v. Swepson, 83 N. C., 584; may supply an omission, Perry v.
Adams, 83 N. C., 266 ; Walton v. Pearson, 85 N. C., 34, and may do this
without regard to lapse of time, Long v. Long, 85 N. C., 415.

Any matters of law involved in the action, if before us upon exception,
would not require consideration, as they have been passed on in the
case of Shackelford (then the name of the plaintiff) v. Miller, 91 N. C,,
181, where the claim to dower in the fund was asserted and denied by
the court.

There is no error and the judgment ig affirmed.

No error. '

Cited: Cook v. Moore, ante, 296 S. v. Farrar, 104 N. C., 703; Beam
v. Bridgers, 111 N. C., 271; Bank v. Gilmer, 118 N. C., 6703 Murray v.
Southerland, 125 N. C., 178.

(300)

D. F. CANNON, J. W. CANNON (Axp OrHERs), TRADING A8 CANNON,
FETZER & WADSWORTH v. WESTERN UNION TELEGRAPH CO.

1. Plaintiff had contracted to deliver in New York 100 bales of cotton in
December, and 500 in February following. On 3 November, at 9:30 A. M,,
he handed to defendant’s agent, a telegraph operator, a message, in cipher,
on the usual blank of the company, directing plaintiff’s agents to buy, if
market was firm and advancing; and at 11:45 another, algo in cipher,
and on the printed blank, ordering them to buy without condition. The
messages were sent by different connecting lines, the first at 11:15 A. M.,
and reaching New York at 1:20 P. M., and the second at 12:35 P. M., but
reaching New York three minutes earlier than the other. The cotton
exchange closed at 3 o’clock, and the messages, which were not repeated,
were delivered an hour and a half before, but plaintiff’s agent, on account
of the confusion of the orders, did not buy. The next day was a holiday,
and the day after cotton futures had risen several points. In an action
for damages, the judge instructed the jury, that they might give as
damages, the difference between the prices on the 3d and the 5th: Held,
that there was error.

2. If a telegraphic message be in the form of a proposal to buy or sell on
certain terms, its importance appears on its face; but if its importance
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is not thus disclosed, and the sender does not have it repeated, when
thereby a mistake could be avoided, it is at his own risk, in the absence
of gross negligence of the servants of the telegraph company.

3. Whatever the analogy between common carriers of goods and public carriers
of messages, the loss of a bargain, from which profit would have resulted,
cannot be visited in damages upon the carrier, unless informed of the
purpose or importance of the message.

(General responsibility of telegraph companies for erroncously delivering,
and delay in delivering messages, discussed by SmitH, C. J.)

Crvin action tried before Gilmer, J., at January Term, 1887, of the
Superior Court of CaBarrus.
(301)  There was a verdict and judgment for plaintiffs, and defend-
ant appealed.

The plaintiffs, Cannon, Fetzer & Wadsworth, cotton merchants, en-
gaged in business at Concord, in this State, had entered into contracts
with persons in New York to deliver to them respectively one hundred
bales of cotton in December, 1879, and five hundred in February of the
next year. In order to provide for fulfilling said contracts, in the fore-
noon of the 3d day of November preceding they placed in the hands of
the defendant’s agent and operator a message, to be transmitted over the
wires to Tannahill & Co., their agents in New York, in this form:

“If market is firm and advancing, narrator.”

At a later hour the same morning, about the hour 11:45, and after
receiving a telegram giving the state of the market on that day, a second
message was sent, containing the simple word “Narrator,” and omitting
the prefacing conditions of the first. Neither of these dispatches had
upon them any marks indicating the hour at which they were delivered
to the operator, but each was endorsed by the operator with the hour at
which it was sent, showing the first to have been started at 11:15 a. m.
and the next at 12:35 p. m.

There being no direct single telegraphic wire connecting these points,
it was necessary to transmit such communications, when required, to
what are denominated relay offices, where the message was received and,
by repeating, forwarded to its destination, one of them, used at Concord,
being at Charlotte, and the other at Greensboro, and messages were sent
indifferently by the one or the other, whichever less pressed with other
business could most speedily forward them.

The first of these messages passed through the Charlotte office and
thence was sent on to Richmond, where it could not be immediately for-
warded in consequence of the bad working of the wires from atmos-

pheric or other disturbing cause and the consequent accumula-
(302) tion of business in the office, and suffered some delay, reaching
New York at 1:20 p. m.
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The later message, passing through and stopping at Greensboro, with
the greater facilities afforded then by that route, arrived and was de-
livered three minutes earlier than the first.

There being nothing upon the face of either to show its priority in
time, and the market not indicating a tendency to advance, the agents
forbore to proceed, and did not carry out the instructions, exercising
their judgment, as authorized in the first forwarded and last received
dispatch.

The Cipher Code, as the bock is designated, in which unexplained,
and wnmeaning without, words are used by the plaintiffs to convey
directions, unintelligible to others than those who have learned it, con-
tains, according to the testimony of one of the plaintiff firm, 180 pages,
with about 20 ciphers on each, and 35 such on the page whereon the
word “narrator” is found. The telegraph operator had before been in
the plaintiffs’ service and seen the book, but, as he declared when giving
in his testimony, did not know its cipher import nor understood the
importance of the communication, though as the plaintiff J. W. Can-
non, who handed in the first message at 9:30 a. m. swore, that in doing
so he informed the operator, W. H. Holt, of his wish for the prompt
sending off of it in order that it might reach New York if possible before
the opening of the cotton market that day.

The dispatches reached that city and were delivered to the agents,
Tannahill & Co., one hour and a half before the closing of the cotton
exchange, which is at 3 p. m., and they were proceeding to make the
purchases under the unconditional order when they were stopped by the
first order, the filling of which was dependent on the state of the market,
which was not firm, and funds of the plaintiffs sufficient for the purpose
in their hands.

On 3 November cotton futures, deliverable in December, were (303)
selling at 11.01, and in February at 11.27. The next day the
exchange was not opened, it being a legal holiday, and on 5 November
the price had advanced for these deliveries, as it did further on the day
succeeding, to 11.39 and 11.65, respectively.

- The messages were sent on printed forms, in the upper part of which
(and to this attention is called in a memorandum at the foot in large
capital type) is the following clause:

“All messages taken by this company are subject to the following
terms’ : »

“To gnard against mistakes or delays the sender of a message should
order it repeated—that is, telegraphed back to the originating office.
For this one-half the regular rate is charged in addition. It is agreed
between the sender of the following message and this company that said
company shall not be liable for mistakes or delays in the transmission
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or delivery, or for nondelivery of any unrepeated message, whether
happening by negligence of its servants or otherwise, beyond the amount
received for sending the same; nor for mistakes or delays in the trans-
mission or nondelivery of any repeated message beyond fifty times the
sum received for sending the same, unless specially insured; nor in any
case for delays arising from unavoidable interruption in the working of
the lines, or for errors in cipher or obscure messages. .

“And this company is hereby made the agent of the sender, without
liability, to forward any message over the lines of any other company
when necessary to reach its destination.”

Then follows a clause providing for insuring the correct transmission
of the message over the lines of the company at an additional charge of
1 per cent for 1,000 miles or less, and 2 per cent for a greater distance.

It does not appear that the plaintiffs, by their agents or other-
(804) wise, made any contract for the purchase of cotton to meet their
own future deliveries at the enhanced or at any price, and under
the directions of the court the jury were allowed to estimate the damages
at the difference in price on the article on the third and fifth days of the
said month, the advance between those dates being found by the jury
t0 be $855 on the entire lot, with the liberty of allowing interest thereon,
which the jury did give at the rate of 6 per cent per annum. To this
instruction as well as to many others given, or refused when requested
by defendant’s counsel, exception was entered, which we do not find it
necessary to examine, nor indeed to determine the effect upon the de-
fendant’s liability for the alleged negligent delay in transmitting the
message.

Jno. Devereus, Jr., for plamitffs.
P. D. Walker for defendant.

Surru, C. J., after stating the case: Without passing upon the ques-
tion of the plaintiffs’ own culpability in sending off a second so near the
first message without any intimation upon its face that a previous one
had been sent, which the last was intended to modify, and with no allu-
sion whatever to it, a fact which seems to have caused the perplexity in
the minds of the agents as to what ought to be done, and in consequence
they did not act at all; or upon the indifference of the agents themselves
in not at once inquiring by telegraph the meaning of the conflicting com-
munications and regulating their conduct by the information thus ob-
tained, we think it was but a reasonable requirement that the impor-
tance of the message and of its speedy as well as accurate transmission
should have been known to the receiving operator, so as to stimulate his
activity in forwarding it, in more distinct and direct terms than those
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testified to by the partner. The message itself speaks no certain
sound, and conveys to the reader unacquainted with the new (305)
meanings affixed to words in the code no suggestion as to its real
significance, as it did not, as the operator swears, to himself. This is
but a reasonable requirement on the part of the company, and if the
sender chooses to speak in unintelligible language to those who are to
pass it over the wires, it is due to the company, if it is to be held re-
sponsible for serious damages, that the information of its importance
should be given to the sending operator, in order that he may communi-
cate it to an intervening agency employed in forwarding, and thereby
diligence and care be secured from each. If the message be in the form
of a proposal to buy or sell on certain terms, so that, in case of concur-
ring minds, a contract would result, its importance would appear on its
face; if not thus disclosed and a party chooses to send a single unre-
peated message, liable to be misunderstood and erroneously conveyed in
passing through other offices, when at small additional expense the mis-
take could be avoided, it should be at his own risk, in the absence of
gross and inexcusable negligence on the part of the company and its
servants.

Such is the import of the ruling in Lassiter v. Tel. Co., 89 N. C., 334,
where the plaintiff assumed the hazard of a single communication and
acted upon it.

There are decisions which hold an analogy between public carriers of
goods and public carriers of messages, and put the same rigid responsi-
bility upon each. The supposed analogy is repudiated by others, as a
message transmitted has not a property value like goods, requiring safe
custody and delivery.

But assuming some such similar relation to have been formed between
them and the person employing their services, it by no means follows,
in either case, that the loss of a bargain made or which might have been
entered into, from which profit would have resulted, ecan be
visited in damages upon the carrier uninformed of the purpose (306)
or importance of the communication. Thus in Horne v. Mid.

Rasl. Co., L. R. 7, C. P. 583, a case commented on in Wood’s May. Dam.,
sec. 34, p. 40, the plaintiff had contracted to deliver a lot of shoes in
London on 3 February, 1871, intended for the use of the French army,
and on delivering them to the company for transportation he gave the
information to the latter that the contract required a delivery on that
day, but did not state the special nature of the contract. In consequence
of the delay in the carriage the contract could not be complied with, and
the goods were refused. The market price had not varied between the
day when the shoes were due and that on which they were received, but
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it was below the eontract price, of which the company was ignorant.
Tt was held that the company was not liable for this difference, it not
having been advised of the special circumstances which led to the
special loss.

And so in Sanders v. Stuart, 1 C. P. D., 826, noticed in the next sec-
tion of that work, the rule was extended to a telegraph company. The
plaintiffs intrusted the defendant with a message in cipher to be sent by
telegraph to America, which was not delivered, and the plaintiffs lost
considerable profits in consequence which otherwise would have been
made. The message was unintelligible to the defendant, and so intended
to be, giving him no clue as to the special logs that might result from
his negligence. It was held that no more than nominal damages could
be recovered. But a more serious obstacle in the way of the plaintiffs’
recovery of substantial damages is presented in the fact that they made
no contract from which either profit or loss could come, did not buy
(the agents acting for them) at the advanced rates beyond what the
cotton might have been bought for on the day of the reception of the

messages, and for aught that the case shows they might have
(807) bought at a subsequent time before they were required to de-

liver at the same or at a reduced rate. However this may be, no
actual loss is proved fo have been incurred, and the loss is merely of an
opportunity of making a bargain, which would have been profitable had
the goods been sold on the 6th day at the market price then prevailing.
It is not shown that any loss was sustained upon the plaintiffs’ contract
from their being compelled to pay a higher price than that which ruled
on the 3d.

But the very point now under consideration came before the Supreme
Court of the United States at a recent term, W. U. Tel. Co. v. Hall, 124
U. 8., 444, and the opinion of Mr. Justice Matthews is so full and his
reasoning so conclusive that we are content to refer to it as a controlling
authority and decisive of the case before us.

The defendant in error, plaintiff in the court below, at 8 a. m. 9
November, 1882, sent from Des Moines, Towa, by the company’s line of
telegraph a message, upon a similar form as ours, to Charles I. Hall at
Oil City, in Pennsylvania, as follows: “Buy ten thousand, if you think
it safe. Wire me.” The message was forwarded, and from negligence
and want of care reached Oil City at 11 a. m. the same day, leaving out
the name of the person to whom it was addressed. Had it been given,
Hall would have received it at 11:30 and would have bought the petro-
leum, meant in the message, at $1.17 per barrel, the market price.

- When the name was ascertained and the dispatch delivered to Hall at
6 p. m. the exchange was closed, and at the opening next morning the
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price had advanced to $1.35 per barrel, and in consequence, it being left
to his judgment, Hall did not buy. The action was to recover the differ-
ence in price, to wit, 18 cents per barrel. '

After an elaborate examination, following a full and exhaustive argu-
ment, with a large number of ecited cases, the court came to the
conclusion that the plaintiffi could' only recover the cost of (308)
transmitting the message. The Court say: “Of course, where
the negligence of the telegraph company consists not in delaying the
transmission of the message, but in transmitting a message erroncously,
8o as to mislead the party to whom it is addressed, and on the faith of
which he acts in the purchase or salle of property, the actual loss, based
upon changes in market value, are clearly within the rule for estimating
damages”; “neither does it appear,” the opinion proceeds to say, “that it
was the purpose or intention of the sender of the message to purchase
the oil in expectation of profit to be derived from an immediate resale.”

Brought to the test of this ruling it is plain that there have been sus-
tained no damages for which the law will give redress upon the defend-
ant beyond a nominal sum. Had the goods been bought on the day of
receiving the message it was not with a view to sell on the day when the
price had risen, but to provide for existing engagements, and it does not
appear that it could not have been bought on as favorable terms after-
wards in time to fulfill those engagements; and if so, the loss would be
of expected but uncertain profits.

The rule is thus stated in a note at page 242 (332) in Ewell’s Evans’
Agency: “In this country the telegraph company is also liable (having
referred to casés in which it is held that the liability is to the sender
only in England) to the person to whom the message is transmitted,
upon delivery thereof, in case of an error in transmission, attributable
to the fault of the company, “when the error is attended with damage
to the person recetving wt,” referring in support of the proposition to
Big. Torts, 277; Big. Lead. Cases on Torts, 619, 621, and several ad-
judged cases. Unquestionably the same liability will arise when the
damage results from an erroneous communication ef the terms of a
dispatch.

We have avoided an expression of opinion upon the numerous other
exceptions taken at the trial, and will only repeat what was said,
in substance, in Lassiter v, Tel. Co., supra, in reference to the (309)
difficulties incident to a correct communication of intelligence
over wires, and the reasonableness of a rule which, to insure entire
aceuracy, requires the message to be repeated: “The electric ticks to be
given at one end of the line and to be interpreted and read at the other
are not articulate sounds, like those of the human voice, and are much
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more liable to be misunderstood, and the individual handwriting of the
sender himself and his meaning may be misunderstood.” And again, .
quoting the words of Chief Justice Bigelow: “The unforeseen derange-
ment of electric apparatus, a breach in the line of communication at an
intermediate point not immediately accessible, occasioned by accident
or by wantonness, or by malice, the imperfection necessarily incident
to the transmission of signs or sounds by electricity, which sometimes
" renders it difficult if not impossible to distinguish between words of like
sound or orthography, but of different signification; these and other
similar causes, the effect of which the highest degree of care could not
prevent, make it impracticable to guard against errors and delays in
sending messages to distant points.”

These suggestions point strongly to the reasonableness of the require-
ment of a repeated message by which, at an inconsiderable expense, the
error in a dispatch would be avoided, and that the company’s responsi-
bility should be made to depend upon its observance, especially where
the cipher form is adopted, which furnishes to the operator no means
of ascertaining its import.

But, for the errors pointed out, the judgment must be reversed and
a new . trial had in the court below.

Error. Venire de novo.

Cited: Brown v. Tel. Co., 111 N. C., 191; Williams v. Tel. Co., 136
N. C, 89; Helms v. Tel. Co., 143 N. O., 393; Willtamson v. Tel. Co.,
151 N. C., 227; Dawis v. Dawis, 184 N, C,, 108; Hardee v. Tel. Co., 190
N. C, 49. ' :

(310) _
FRANK DEBERRY v. CAROLINA CENTRAL RAILROAD COMPANY.

Damages—Contributory Negligence—Issues—EBvidence—Expert Test-
mony—dJudge’s Opinion as to Facts.

1. Though under chapter 33 of the acts of 1887, a defendant in an action
for damages, who relies on contributory negligence on the part of plaintiif,
must allege it in the answer, it is not error to fail to submit a special
issue, as to such contributory negligence, when there is an issue, whether
plaintiff sustained injuries by the negligence of defendant, under which
the question might be considered; certainly not when the defendant de-
clined to submit such issue when requested.

2. The testimony of experts is not admissible upon matters of judgment within
the knowledge and experience of ordinary jurymen.
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3. A remark by a judge, in the hearing of the jury, when he permitted, in his
discretion, a witness to be recalled and asked a question to impeach his
credibility, that if he had known counsel intended to ask that question,
he would not have allowed the witness to be recalled, is not an expression
of opinion about the facts, in violation of the Act of 1796.

CiviL AcTioN to recover damages for injuries alleged to have been
received by the plaintiff through the negligence of the defendant com-
pany, tried before Connor, J., at September Term, 1887, of RrcamonD
Superior Court.

The plaintiff was a brakeman on the defendant’s road and alleges that
the injury complained of was sustained while he was engaged in the
discharge of his duties as such by reason of the negligence of the defend-
ant, in that it failed to provide a safe and secure platform for the
brakeman to stand on while engaged in putting on the brakes. The
defense of contributory negligence is set up in the answer, as required by
chapter 33 of the Acts of 1887, but, though discussed in this Court, there
is no question involving that issue presented in the record, and only so
much of the case is stated as is necessary to present the questions
that are raised by the appeal. . (311)

The plaintiff was a witness in his own behalf, and testified as
to the manner in which he fell from the platform, and on cross-exami-
nation, among other things, that “the signal was blown just below the
crossing when he was at the brakes; he then put on brakes and stepped -
on the platform of the next car and had hold of the wheel when he
fell. There are iron braces under the platform, and if the iron was
under the step out to the edge it would not split; some of them do not
come out by one inch and a half or quarter; he got his foot on the plat-
form . . . the platform was 2 feet long and 6, 7, or 8 inches wide;
he does not know whether the iron braces were under the step or plat-
form or not, but only knows that when he steppod on it it gave way.”-

Elias Baldwin, a witness for plaintiff, testified, among other things,
“that he did not see the plaintiff when he fell, but saw him a minute

before he broke . . . he saw the strip that was shivered off the
platform, and it looked like an old split; the piece shivered off was about
one and one-half inches wide; . . . the braces did not come to the

edge of the platform.”

Samuel Etheridge, a witness for the defendant, testified “that in
1883 he was foreman of the car repair department in defendant’s shops
at Laurinburg, and remembers the time the plaintiff was hurt; the steps
on brake platform are constructed now as they have always been—=22
inches long on two iron braces; the plank is from 114 to 114 inch thiek,
and projects one-half inch for a rounded edge or finish; there has been
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no change in the construction since 1878.” The witness is a car builder,
and has been a car inspector for the defendant for many years. The
witness stated that he heard plaintiff’s testimony.
(312)  The defendant then asked the witness the following question:
“Tf the jury should find that the car step or platform was built
or constructed as the plaintiff described it, and the plaintiff stepped on
it as he testified, could plaintiff have fallen as he testified, or could the
platform have split?” The witness answered that the platform could
not have split and the plaintiff could not have fallen as he described.

The witness was then agked: “If the platform was constructed as the
witness had described it, could the plaintiff have fallen in the manner
described by him?” The witness answered that he could not, even if the
step had been split, for the braces would support it.

The plaintiff objected to these two questions, and his Honor at first
overruled the objection and admitted the testimony. Afterwards his
Honor excluded the testimony. The defendant’s counsel said nothing.

Before the defendant had closed its testimony the defendant’s counsel
requested his Honor to be allowed to recall the witness Elias Baldwin,
for the purpose of impeaching his credibility as a witness. The request
was granted.

When recalled the witness was asked by defendant’s counsel was he
not brought from the jail to the courthouse? The witness answered
“Yes.” The plaintiff’s counsel then asked the witness for what offense
had he been committed to jail and he replied for assault and battery;
that he had been fined $5 and adjudged to pay the costs, and that he
could not get any one to pay it for him or go his security.

The plaintiff objected to the testimony.

His Honor then remarked, in the presence and hearing of the jury,
that if he had known that the defendant’s counsel intended to ask that
question he would not have allowed the witness to be recalled.

The following issues were tendered and accepted:
(313) 1. “Did the plaintiff sustain injuries by the negligence of the
defendant, as alleged” Answer: “Yes.”

2. “If so, to what damage is he entitled by reason of the same?”’
Answer: “T'wo thousand dollars ($2,000).”

At the conclusion of the argument the court inquired of the defend-
ant’s counsel if they desired the second issue submitted, and they re-
sponded that they thought the whole question involved in the first issue
and they did not think the second issue necessary.

The defendant’s counsel requested the court to charge the jury:

That gven if the step or platform was split or cracked, as testified by
the plaintiff, yet if before he stepped upon it he saw its condition, and
that it was not safe to step upon it, he was guilty of negligence.
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The court declined to give the instruction, but instructed the jury:

“That even if the step or platform was split, yet if a prudent man
knowing its condition would not have stepped upon it, the plaintiff was
guilty of negligence provided he knew, or could by the exercise of rea-
sonable care and eaution have known, the condition of the platform
before he stepped upon it.”

The defendant excepted to the refusal of the court to charge as re-
quested and to the charge as given.

The court instructed the jury as to the duty of the defendant to fur-
nish safe machinery for the use of the employees, to which no exception
was taken. The court then charged the jury:

“That if they believed the plaintiff and Elias Baldwin were playing
or boxing, and plaintiff fell while so engaged and not in the performance
of his duty as brakeman, the jury should answer the first issue in the
negative; that the burden of proof was on the plaintiff to show that he
was Injured by the negligence of the defendant.”

The court charged the jury as to the measure of damages, to (314)
which no exception was taken.

The jury found the first issue in the affirmative, and assessed plain-
tiff’s damages at two thousand dollars.

The defendant made motion for a new trial:

1. Because the court excluded the testimony of Samuel Etheridge, as
stated above.

2. Because of the remark made by the judge when the witness Bald-
win was recalled, as above stated.

3. Because of the refusal to give the instructions prayed for by the
defendant, and because of the instruection given.

Rule discharged. Judgment for the plaintiff and appeal by the
defendant.

J. A. Lockhart for plaintiff.
John Devereux, Jr., for defendant.

Davis, J., after stating the facts: It was insisted in this Court that,
inasmuch as chapter 33, Acts of 1887, requires the defendant, if con-
tributory negligence is relied on, to set it up in his answer, thereby
making it of necessity an issue, it ought to have been submitted to the
jury, and that it could not be waived even by consent. We think differ-
ently. Doubtless the purpese of the act was to require the defendant
to set up the defense of contributory negligence in the answer, when
relied on, so as to remove all doubt and enable the plaintiff to know
with certainty the defense relied on; but whatever may have been the
purpose of requiring it to be set up in the answer in the case before us,
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the defendant was content to submit the question upon the first issue
(under which it might be considered, Scott v. B. B., 96 N. C,, 428).

When the attention of counsel for the defendant was directed to it,

not only was no request made that the issue should be submitted, but

they said “they thought the whole question involved in the first
(315) issue,” not only making no objection, but affirmatively acquiese-

ing, and the defendant cannot for the first time except-in this
Court, even if he had not acquiesced in the couri below. Having not
only failed to tender the issue in the court below, but virtually declined
it when suggested, he cannot now be heard to complain. Kidder v. Mc-
Ilhenny, 81 N. C., 123; Curtis v. Cash, 84 N. C., 41; Oakley v. Van
Noppen, 95 N. C., 60; McDonald ¥ Carson, 95 N. C., 377; Summons v.
Mann, 92 N. C., 12.

- His Homor charged the jury that if they believed the evidence in
regard to contributory negligence they should find the first issue in the
negative. . )

The first exception presented in the record is to the exclusion of the
testimony of Etheridge as an ezpert in respect to the questions asked.

All the evidence offered by the plaintiff, so far as it bears upon the
questions and answers which were excluded by the court, is set out, and
we are not only unable to see that it warrants the hypothetical questions
put, but there is nothing in the plaintiff’s evidence involving any matter
of skill, or science, or peculiar knowledge about which any juror of fair
intelligence might not form as correct an opinion as the supposed expert.
“The testimony of experts is not admissible upon matters of judgment
within the knowledge and experience of ordinary jurymen.” 1 Green-
leaf Ev., sec. 440-a.

The second exception is to the remark made by the judge when the
witness Baldwin was recalled and asked a question for the purpose of
impeaching his credibility as a witness. We are unable to see how the
remark, though made in the hearing of the jury, could be construed. into
an expression of opinion by the court upon any issue or question to be
passed upon by the jury. The recalling of the witness was a matter
entirely within the discretion of the court, and when the character of
the impeaching question was made to appear, it was simply a declara-

tion not of an opinion as to any fact to be passed upon by the
(316) jury, but that he would have exercised his discretion differently

if he had known the nature of the question asked. It was not a
violation of the act of 1796; The Code, sec. 413.

The third exception is to the refusal to give the instruction asked by
the defendant and to the instruction given instead.

The instruction asked was properly refused, because there was no
phase of the evidence that warranted it. There was no evidence that the
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plaintiff saw the condition of the platform before he stepped upon it or
that he saw that it was not safe. The instruction given in lieu of that
asked was as favorable to the defendant as the evidence in respect to the
instruction asked warranted. .

No one of the exceptions presented by the record can be sustained, and
there is no error.

Affirmed.

. Cited: Burwell v. Sneed, 104 N. C., 120; S. v. Jacobs, 106 N, C.,, 696
S. v. Howard, 129 N. C., 661; 8. v. Baldwin, 178 N. C,, 690; Shaw v.
Handle Co., 188 N. C., 233.

M. J. PEMBERTON axp OrHERS V. ELLEN SIMMONS AxD OTHEES.
_Power of Attorney—Mortgage—Presumption of Payment—Pleading.

1. A deed from A, dated 8 June, 1866, appointing B. his attorney in fact,
with authority to sell a house and lot, unless by 1 May, 1867, he should
pay all the debts for which B. was liable as his surety, and adding:
“With this power of attorney, I do hereby convey and assign to said B.
and his heirs such an inferest in said house and lot as shall not be
revocable by me, or by my death, but shall be in said B., as an estate in
trust to pay said debts, and to dispose of and convey to the purchaser.”
In October, 1866, A., by his attorney B., executed to C. a deed, purporting
to convey a fee-simple title for the lot, B. covenanting, for himself, to
warrant the title, but not undertaking to convey any title he had in the
land : Held, that the deed of June, 1866, was a morigage, with power of
sale in B., and being registered, and the deed to. C. being executed before
its conditionr was broken, C. could not claim more than to hold subject to
A’s rights as mortgagor.

2. In such case, the mortgagor having remained in possession over ten years
after the condition of the mortgage was broken, there arose a presump-
tion of the payment of said debts, and the legal estate vested in the
mortgagor, under Rev. Code, ch. 65, sec. 19,

3. In an action to recover possession of land by purchaser from mortgagee,
before condition was broken, against the mortgagor in possession, an
answer by mortgagor, “that the plaintiff has not brought his action within
the time prescribed by law, and the same is barred by the statute of
limitations,” is sufficient to set up the defense of payment presumed after
ten years, under section 19, chapter 65, Rev. Code.

Orvin actiow for recovery of land, tried before Clark, J., at (317)
March Term, 1887, of the Superior Court of CuMBERLAND.

It is admitted that the plaintiffs are the widow and heirs at law of
E. L. Pemberton, deceased. They bring this action to recover the land
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specified in the complaint, and claim to derive title thereto through
their ancestor from George D. Simmons, now deceased.

The defendants are the widow and heirs at law of the last-named
person. ; ~

It appears that on 8 June, 1866, the above named George D. Simmons
executed to George W. Wightman a deed, whereof the following is a

copy :

State oF Norru Carorina—CumsErLanD CoUunTy.
© Know ye that I, George Simmons, of the county and State aforesaid,
do hereby appoint George W. Wightman, of the town of Fayetteville,
in the county and State aforesaid, my true and lawful attorney in fact;
and I do hereby authorize and empower him to sell and dispose of my
house and lot in the town of Fayetteville, where I now reside, being the

same sold to me by I. W. Powers, 5 June, 1858, either for cash
(318) or on credit, at his pleasure, unless I shall, on or before 1 May,

1867, pay off and discharge all the claims for which the said.
George W. Wightman is now liable as my surety, or where I am in-
debted to him or to Sinclair Vanderbilt, whose effects have been assigned
to said Wightman in trust, the whole of my said indebtedness being
seven hundred dollars or thereabouts; and with this power of sale I do
hereby convey and assign to the said George W. Wightman and his
heirs such an ‘interest in the aforesaid house and lot as shall not be
revocable by me or by my death before 1 May, 1867, but shall be in
the said Wightman, as an estate in trust, to pay the said debts and to
dispose of and convey to the purchaser, I hereby confirming the same.

Given under my hand and seal, 8 June, 1886.
(Signed) Geo. D. Stmmons.  (Seal.)
Witness: A. B. Smitn.

This deed was duly proven and registered on 8 June, 1866.

On 10 October, 1866, George D. Simmons, above named, executed by
his attorney, G. W. Wightman, to Edmund L. Pemberton, now de-
ceased, the husband of the plaintiff widow and ancestor of the other
plaintiffs, a deed purporting to convey to him the fee simple in the
land embraced by the deed above recited, and the said Wightman signed
the deed for himself as to the covenants of warranty therein, but he did
not undertake by the deed to convey any title in him to the land.

The said George D. Simmons continued to have possession of the land
embraced by the deeds mentioned above ever after the execution of the
same until his death, and the defendants, his surviving widow and heirs
at law, have had like possession of the same ever since his death.
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The defendants on the trial requested the court to instruet the
jury “That upon the whole evidence they must find a verdict for (319)
the defendants, and relied especially on the plea of the statute of
limitations and the fact that Wightman attempted to sell the land before
the time fixed for payment of the debt had expired under power of
attorney.” But the court instructed the jury to render a verdict for the
plaintiffs, if they believed the evidence. They rendered a verdict for the
plaintiffs; there was accordingly judgment in favor of the latter, from
which the defendants appealed to this Court.

D. Rose for plaintiffs.
N. M. Bay for defendants.

MegrIMON, J., after stating the facts: It seems that the deed above
recited was treated in the court below as simply a power of attorney.
This we think was a misapprehension, and leaves out of view its chief
purpose. It is very informal and disorderly in its provisions, but it has
all the essential elements of and the parties to it intended it to be and it
was, in legal effect, a mortgage, coupled with a power of sale in the
mortgagee. Its purpose was to convey the title to the land to the
mortgagee, to secure the payment of the debts mentioned in it within a
period of time specified, and in case of default by the mortgagor in this
respect, then to give the mortgagee authority to sell the land and apply
so much of the proceeds of sale as might be necessary to the hquldatlon
of the mortgage debts.

Thus the legal title was in Wightman, the mortgagee. He did not
purport to execute his own deed to Pemberton, the ancestor of the plain-
tiff's, under whom they claim, but to execute a deed to him in the name
of Simmons, the mortgagor, by himself as attorney. The authority of
the mortgagee to sell the land did not contemplate such a sale and con-
veyance. The sale was made before the condition of the mort-
gage was broken, and the deed purported to be executed by the (320)
mortgagor by his attorney. Granting, for the present purpose,
that Pemberton got such interest as the mortgagee under the circum-
stances could convey, and that the latter was estopped to deny the title
of Pemberton, the latter took whatever interest he got by the deed with
notice of and subject to the rights of Simmons, the mortgagor, because
the deed of mortgage was registered, and therefore theré was notice of
it to everybody; and, indeed, it would seem that Pemberton had actual
notice of the deed of mortgage. He claimed by virtue of the power
contained in it and probably saw it.

The mortgagee never had possession of the land in question. The
mortgagor continued to have possession thereof until his death; and
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ever thereafter, until this action began in 1884, the defendants, his
widow and heirs at law, have had possession of the same. It does not
appear that the mortgage ever was foreclosed by a sale, as contemplated
by it or by the decree of any court. It does appear, however, that more
than ten years elapsed next after the time when a failure to pay the
mortgage debts would be a breach of the condition thereof. This lapse
of time raised the presumption under the statute applicable (Rev. Code,
ch. 65, sec. 19) that the debts were paid at the time mentioned, and thus
the mortgage was discharged and the legal estate revested in the mort-
-gagor, he, until the time of his death, and the defendants, his heirs,
having had possession of the land as above stated. Powell v. Brinkley,
Busb., 154; Roberls v. Welch, 8 Ired. Eq., 287.

As the mortgage was thus discharged the ancestor of the plaintiffs,
under whom they claim, got no title as against the mortgagor, and hence
none descended to them. The title, so far as appears, is in the defend-

ants, heirs of the deceased mortgagor.
(321) The defendants do not formally plead payment of the debts

secured by the mortgage at the time therein specified and the
consequent discharge of the mortgage, but in the answer they allege
“that the plaintiffs have not brought their action within the time pre-
scribed by law, and the same is barred by the statutes of limitation,” ete.
Taking the whole of the pleadings together we think the statute—not of
limitations, but of presumption—above cited is sufficiently referred to-
to indicate their purpose to rely upon payment presumed as provided
by it.

There is error for which there must be a new trial. To that end let
this opinion be certified to the Superior Court. It is so ordered.

Error. Venire de novo.

Cited: Strause v. Cohen, 113 N. C., 852; Lassiter v. Roper, 114 N. C,,
205 Threadgill v. Comss., 116 N. C., 628; Duckworth v. Duckworth, 144
N. C., 622.

JOHN H. ANDERSON v. TABITHA E. RAINEY, EXECUTRIX, AND OTHERS.

Sale of La,nd—‘Deﬁciency e Quantity Sold—Pleading—Fraud Must be
Alleged—Res Adjudicate—Caveat Emptor.

1. Where two successive contracts for title and a deed were made at intervals,
for a tract of land, describing it by courses and distances, and as con-
taining 893 acres, more or less, and the vendee, after remaining in pos-
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sesgion many years without informing himself as to the number of acres
in the tract, brought an action to enjoin a sale under a morigage given
for the purchase money, alleging that the tract contained only about
798 acres, and that the vendor made false representations as to the
quantity, but not that vendor knew them to be false: Held, that fraud
not being positively charged, it should not be found by implication.

2. To entitle a vendee of land under such contract or deed to relief, because
the tract contains a less quantity than vendee supposed, he should allege
and show that false and fraudulent representations were knowingly made
by vendor, with intent to deceive; or the discrepancy must be so great
as to warrant a correction of the instrument on the ground of mistake.

3. Whatever the representations made by vendor to induce vendee to buy,
when, in an action brought by vendor  to collect the purchase money,
vendee asked an abatement of the amount claimed, on account of alleged
inability of the vendor to make title to part of the land, and asked a
survey of the tract, and the action was compromised upon terms set out
in the judgment, and a deed executed accordingly : Held, that the plea of
res adjudicata applies to an action by the vendee for relief because of an
alleged deficiency in the quantity of land—such plea applying not only
to the points which the court was required to adjudge, but to all others
which properly belonged to the subject of the issue and which the parties,
exercising diligence, might have brought forward.

4. If, in a contract for the purchase of land, a party fails to avail himself of
the sources of information, readily within his reach, and relies upon
representations, which, though not true, were not made with any false and
fraudulent intent, the maxim of caveat emptor applies.

Apprar by the plaintiff from the refusal of Gilmer, J., to grant (322)
a motion made at Chambers, on 30 July, 1887, to continue an
injunction restraining the sale of the land mentioned in the pleadings
until the final hearing of the cause, and also upon exceptions (reserved)
to the rulings of Boykin, J., previously made in the cause, which is
pending in the Superior Court of RocrinamaM.

Graham & Ruffin for plaintiff.
Scott & Mebane for defendants.

Davis, J. The relief demanded by the plaintiff is of an equitable
nature, and it is necessary to a clearer understanding of the questions
involved to give a condensed statement of the material facts set
out in the voluminous record sent to this Court. (323)

On 2 July, 1873, John G. Rainey and Tabitha, his wife, con-
tracted with the plaintiff to convey to him in fee, with covenants of
warranty, a tract of land in Rockingham County known as the “Hobson
tract,” the boundaries of which, with courses and distances, are given,
containing eight hundred and ninety-three acres, more or less, at the
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price of $8,930, for the payment of which two bonds were executed—
one for $1,000, to be paid on or before 1 January, 1879, and the other
for $7,930, to be paid on or before 1 January, 1879, each bearing in-
terest from 1 January, 1874. It was also agreed that the purchaser
should have “the privilege to bargain and sell any portion of the land
described by the mutual consent of the parties as to the price, provided
the purchase money to be paid to the said Rainey and wife to be entered
as a credit” on the bond of the purchaser, who was to have possession on
1 January, 1874; but if he failed to pay the bond to become due on
1 January, 1874, on or before that day, he was to surrender possession
to Rainey and wife, retaining the right to gather and hold the growing
crop; and there was a like provision that if he failed to pay the $7,930
on or before 1 January, 1879, he was to surrender the possession. On
27 January, 1879, another agreement was executed by the parties “in
lieu” of that of 2 July, 1873, by which the plaintiff Anderson executed
his bonds to Rainey and wife for $9,775.50, to be paid as follows: one
for $1,000, 1 June, 1879 ; one for $1,000, 1 June, 1880; one for $1,000,
1 June, 1881; one for $1,000, 1 June 1882, and one for $5,775.50 to be
paid 1 June, 1883, all bearing interest from 27 January, 1879; and the
said Rainey and wife were to convey the said land to the said Anderson
upon the payment of the said bonds and interest, excepting and reserv-

ing, however, a portion thereof within specified boundaries, the
(324) number of acres to be ascertained by survey, for which a credit

of $10 per acre was to be entered as of 27 January, 1879, on the
bond to become due on 1 June, 1883. The number of acres so excepted
was ascertained o be 22714, making the credit $2,275.

Tt was also stipulated that if the said Anderson should fail to pay
promptly the respective sums as they should become due, then Rainey
and wife were to have a lien on and be entitled to take from the premises
one-third of all the crops made on said land, to be credited at the market
price on the bond falling due at time the erop is so taken, and if the
one-third of the crop should exceed the amount of the bond so due, the
excess was to be credited on the bond next to fall due.

There were other stipulations not material to be stated.

At the Fall Term, 1882, of Rockingham Superior Court, Rainey and
wife brought an action against the said Anderson, alleging in their com-
plaint that he had failed to make payment in accordance with the terms
of the agreement referred to, and that, being in default, they had made
application to him for one-third of the crop, as stipulated, to be applied
to the payment of the bond past due, and that he refused to allow them
to take possession of the same, alleging, as a reason for the refusal, that
one of the lines called for in the agreement did not run where he sup-
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posed it did, which, the plaintiffs in that action alleged, was a mere pre-
tense, as the boundaries were distinctly set forth in the agreement, and
the defendant had continually imposed upon them by making promises
to fulfill his obligations. They also alleged that he had no property in
excess of hig exemptions other than his interest in the land, and they
demanded judgment for possession and the appointment of a receiver of
the rents and profits.

The defendant in that action (the plaintiff in this) answered, aver-
ring, among other things, “that while it is true, perhaps, that the ‘
boundaries of the tract as set out in the agreement are correct, (3%5)
yet the plaintiffs, in negotiating with him for the sale, undertook
to point out to him the different lines, and in that portion adjoining
the ‘Brodunax land’ they were careful to designate exactly where the line
was, calling attention to the fertility of the land and making representa-
tions in relation thereto by which he wag induced to enter into said con-
tract of purchase, and matters thus stood till about August, 1881”7
when a portion of said land, embracing 25 or 30 acres, of great and
special value, for reason stated, was claimed by the devisees of E. T.
Brodnax, and the possession surrendered to them by the direction of the
plaintiffs. He further averred that besides the payments of large sums
specified he had put permanent improvements upon the land (enumer-
ating them) exceeding $1,100 in value, and asked by way of relief that
the agreement be rescinded, and that he recover of the plaintiffs (Rainey
and wife) the several amounts paid by him and the enhanced value of
the land, ete., or that he have an abatement of the purchase money by
reason of the inability of the vendors to make title to the 25 or 30 acres
referred to.

A replication was filed denying the statements in the answer relative
to the line and land adjoining the Brodnax land, averring title to the
land claimed by the devisees of E. T. Brodnax, and that the surrender
thereof was not by their direction, and that the alleged improvements,
with slight exceptions named, were made prior to the contract of June,
1879, as also were the payments made on the first contract.

An order was made by Shipp, J., on 5 September, 1882, appointing
a receiver, and subseguently, upon motion of the defendant (present
plaintiff), an order was made by Gilmér, J., for a survey of the land
mentioned in the contract and of the Brodnax land adjoining it.

On 29 April, 1884, the action was ecompromised, the plaintiff agreeing
to allow “a deduction on the purchase money of the land sued for of
one of the bonds of $1,000 and its interest” and other credits'
agreed on, and there was a judgment dismissing the action at the (326)
cost of the defendant Anderson.
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To carry into effect the compromise, the following agreement was
entered into on 14 May, 1884 :

“John H. Anderson and Jonn (. Rainey and wife, Tabitha, having
this day come to a full and complete settlement of all their land diffi-
culties, heretofore the subject of suit between them, the sum of $6,490.66
are ascertained to be due from said Anderson to said Rainey, which sum
is to be paid and secured, respectively, as follows:

“On Friday, the 16th, at Wentworth, the sum of $1,700 are to be paid
by said Anderson to said Rainey. For the balance two bonds are to be

“executed by said Anderson to said Rainey, drawing 8 per cent interest

from 1 May, 1884, the first of which is to be in the sum of $790.66, and
due six months from 1 May, 1884 the second, in the sum of $4,000, and
due twelve months from 1 May, 1884. These bonds are to be secured
by a deed of trust upon said land, with privilege to sell in defanlt of
payment in either case when due, said deed of trust to also secure all
cost attending the same. This deed of trust is to be executed between
now .and the 16th, Rainey and wife having first, or simultaneously,
made said Anderson a deed to said land.

“In addition to the above it is further agreed that said Anderson shall
convey, in said deed of trust, one-third part of his entire tobacco erop,
to be grown during this year (1884), as an additional security to the
said bond of $790.66.

“And it shall be lawful for the trustee in sald deed of trust to take
charge of said one-third part of tobacco crop and manage as he may
think best, applying the proceeds, when collected, to the payment of the
said bond of $790.66, provided the same shall be then unpaid in whole
or in part.

“In the event that said Anderson shall pay the said bond of

(327) $790.66 at its maturity, then, and in that event, the said trustee

shall have no power or authority to take charge, as above, of said
one-third of tobacco.

“It is further agreed between parties aforesaid that if the said Ander-
son hereafter find a receipt covering 25 bushels of wheat, as bought 1880,
and $100, of the spring of 1880, claimed by him to have been paid, or if
he shall offer legal or sufficient proof of either-of the said payments
claimed as aforesaid, then he shall have credit therefor on above bonds.”

On the same day the said Anderson, by deed, conveyed the land so
purchased of Rainey and wife to P. B. Johnson, trustee, eic., in accord-
ance with the agreement.

Johh G. Rainey died on ... , 188...., leaving a will, which was
duly proved, and Tabitha Rainey, the exécutrix named therein, qualified
as such. He also left six children who, with Tabitha Rainey, were the
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devisees of his real and personal estate. At the request of the executrix
P. B. Johnson advertised the land conveyed to him in trust to be sold
on. 29 April, 1887.

On 14 April, 1887, J. H. Anderson commenced this action against
Tabitha Rainey, executrix of J. G. Rainey, and the devisees of said -
Rainey and P. B. Johnson, the trustee.

The complaint, after setting out the substance of the agreements of
2 July, 1873, and of 27 January, 1879, and the settlement of May, 1884,
and alleging certain payments, further alleges:

“7. That at the time of making the original contract on 2 July, 1873,
and when the same was modified and changed on 22 January, 1879, and
at the time of making the deed on 15 May, 1884, although the metes and
bounds of said lands were given in each of said contracts and in said
deed, and although said purchase was by the acre and not per the tract,
yet there was no actual survey to ascertain the number of acres in said
tract because this plaintiff was induced to believe there were 893
acres in said tract of land by the assurances and representations (328)
of the said John G. Rainey, who wds then in the actual possession
thereof and had been for some twenty-five years, and plaintiff avers that
he did not have a survey of said land made to ascertain the number of
acres because of the positive representations and assurances of the said
John G. Rainey that it contained 893 acres at the time said contracts
were made.

“10. That the plaintiff, relying upon the representations and assur-
ances of the said John G. Rainey that said tract of land contained eight
hundred and ninety-three acres, was induced not only to execute the said
contracts and to give the deed of trust to the said P. B. Johnson, trustee,
to secure the balance of the purchase money, but was induced thereby to
pay several thousand dollars of the purchase money to the said John G.
Rainey during his lifetime, and to his personal representative since his
death, and that said plaintiff, at the time of said payments and when
executing said contracts and deeds, believed that said tract of land con-
tained 893 acres, when in fact plaintiff avers that said tract of land did
not contain more than 793 acres, being one hundred acres less than the
number represented by the said John G. Rainey. ‘

“11. That this plaintiff -avers that, having oceasion to bhave a portion
of said tract surveyed, which he had sold to the defendants or some of
them, he ascertained for the first time that said tract did not contain by
one hundred acres or thereabouts the number of acres which the said
Jobn G. Rainey represented and assured plaintiff that said tract con-
tained, and plaintiff avers that he was induced by such representations
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and assurances to buy the same, and that such representations and
assurances, at the time they were made, were false and untrue, but plain-

tiff will not say that John G. Rainey knew them to be false and
(329) untrue, but having the deeds and knowing the number of acres in

his original purchase and the amount of land he had sold, plain-
tiff says he was grossly negligent and careless, so much so as to be guilty
of fraud and wrong to this plaintiff, to make such representations and
agsurances to plaintiff, and thereby inducing him to buy and pay three-
fourths of the purchase money without first correctly ascertaining the
number of acres in said tract, and such representations and assurances,
in the absence of knowledge or putting plaintiff on his guard, is fraudu-
lent, and the injury to the plaintiff will be great and irremediable with-
out the aid of the court. :

“12. That as soon as the plaintiff ascertained that there was such an
error in the number of acres in said tract he advised Tabitha E. Rainey,
executrix of John G. Rainey, of the same, and offered to have said land
surveyed and to pay for all the land in the tract, and claiming that
there should be an abatement of thHe purchase money as to so many
acres as upon survey were found wanting, and plaintiff avers that he is
entitled to a credit for this amount, and that the plaintiff was then and
is now ready, willing and able to pay whatever balance may be found
due from him, after giving him his first and proper credits and making
abatement for the said deficiency in said land.”

After other allegations of the threatened sale, his right to credits, ete.,
the complaint concludes with the following prayer for judgment:

“Wheréupon the plaintiff demands judgment that an account be taken
by the clerk of this court of all payments made by the plaintiff to John
G. Rainey during his life, or to his personal representative and executrix
since his death; and second, what abatement, if any, of the purchase
money the plaintiff is entitled to on account of any deficiency in the
number of acres in the land sold him, and in order to ascertain this
¢ deficit may thére be a survey of said tract of land in order to
(330) ascertain the number of acres. therein. And that in the mean-

time, during the pendency of this action, the defendant P. B.
Johnson, trustee; be restrained and enjoined from selling said land or
any part thereof, or further proceeding under said deed of trust until
the further order of this court. And may the court grant to the plaintiff
such other and further relief as the nature of his case may require.”

.The defendant Tabitha Rainey, whose answer is adopted by the other
defendants, in answer to the complaint, alleges:
%, . For a -defense to the said action and in bar of relief therein
sought: That the plaintiff onght not to be admitted to'institute or main-
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tain this action, nor to have the relief sought by him, and is estopped
so to do, for that all matters in controversy touching the sale of land
mentioned in the complaint were fully and finally settled and adjudi-
cated in a certain action heretofore begun and determined in this court,
wherein John G. Rainey, now deceased, and Tabitha E. Rainey, this
defendant, were plaintiffs, and J. H. Anderson (the present plaintiff)
was the defendant, which said action was so finally disposed of and
ended under a judgment of this court, duly had and rendered at Spring
Term, 1884, thereof, which judgment was based upon the written terms
of compromise and settlement, duly signed by the parties and their
attorneys on 14 May, 1884, as may be fully seen by inspection of the
papers and proceedings constituting the judgment roll in said action,
and of which record a complete exemplification will be attached hereto
if and when required, and to which record is now attached a copy of
said written agreement, marked Exhibit ‘A judgment thereupon,
marked Exhibit ‘B, and of the order of survey thereln, marked Exhibit
‘C’; and this defendant claims the benefit of this her plea in bar as fully
and amply in all respects as if it had arisen upon demurrer.”

Further answering, among other things, she denies that the (331)
sale of the land was by the acre as alleged, but says it was a
“sale of 893 acres, more or less, at the price of $8,930.00 “as may be
seen by reference” to the contract.

“5. That it is true, as alleged in article 7, that no actual survey of
the land was had at the time of the contract referred to, but she doth
aver that it would have been had if required, and that John G. Rainey
made no representations than such as were proper and usual in such
transactions, and she expressly denies the inferential statement of 1 unpo—
sition in said article pleaded by innuendo.

“6. That as to the allegations of article 10 she could not answer of her
own knowledge as to whether the same are true or not, but doth ‘aver
that the plaintiff is estopped, as hereinbefore pleaded, to bring in ques-
tion the quantity of land. '

“7. That the allegations and charges of fraud contained in article 11
are expressly denied, and she doth aver that the allegations therein- as
to the plaintiff’s first knowledge of a deficiency are inconsistent with his
answer in the original suit above referred to, and are 1mmatemal under:
the defendant’s plea of estoppel in this cause. :

“8. That the allegations of article 12 are not true as stated and the
defendant avers that she, having heard that the plaintiff was setting up
claims of deficiency in quantity, sent him word to come and see her and
let her know whether the report was true, but he failed-to do so, and: it
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is not true that he offered to have the land surveyed as alleged; and
she denies, upon information and belief, that the plaintiff is ready,
willing and able to comply with his contracts and agreements, and she
doth charge that this plaintiff hath brought this suit, with its disin-
genious and unfair pleadings, for mere purposes of delay.

“11. That this defendant is advised that this action of the

(332) plaingiff is inequitable, unjust, illegal and not fit to be entertained

by the court; and is further advised that at all events the plain-

tiff’s prayer for an account, a survey, and for a continuous injunction

cannot, in equity, be heard or allowed only upon the condition that the

compromise and settlement and judgment thereon (based as they were

upon an abatement of one thousand dollars from the purchase money

due) be set aside, and the said original suit brought forward on the

docket and set down for hearing so as to place the parties and privies
to said action n staftw quo under their original right.”

Whereupon the defendant demands judgment:

1. That this action be dismissed, or

2. That the original suit be reinstated on the docket and set down for
hearing upon the pleadings therein, and

3. To such other and further relief as she may be entitled unto.

On 30 May, 1887, the case was heard before Boykin, J., at Chambers,
“upon the pleadings, proofs and exhibits adduced, the verified complaint -
and answers being treated as affidavits, duly made for the hearing,” who
found as facts that:

“1. The allegations of fraud set forth in the complaint are not true.

“9. That the judgment rendered at Spring Term, 1884, of Rocking-
ham Superior Court by his Honor, A. A. McKoy, upon the terms of
compromise therein referred to in the case of John G. Rainey and wife
against J. H. Anderson, touching the subject-matter involved in the suit
now before the court, was and is a final and complete determination of
the rights of the parties up to the date of said judgment; and the plain-
tiff in the present action is by the said judgment in said former cause
estopped from asking any relief as to the quantity of the land sold by
Rainey and wife to Anderson, and as to any transactions had or pay-

ments made before and up to the date of said judgment; and the
(333) court further finds that there was no agreement to sell said land
by the acre, but the contract was for the sale by the quantity.”

It was referred to James M. Anderson to take and state an aceount of
all payments, and report. The plaintiff excepted.

“The cause being heard again by Gilmer, J., at Chambers at Went-
worth, on 80 July, 1887, the parties having agreed to the credits to
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which the plaintiff is entitled and avoiding an account, and the plaintiff
moving his Honor to continue the injunction until the final hearing of
the cause, upon consideration of the proofs, the same being those ad-
duced before Boykin, J., his Honor refuses to further continue the
injunction, to- which plaintiff excepts and appeals, giving notice thereof,
which was accepted by defendants.”

It is conceded by the able and learned counsel for the plaintiff that
there was no warranty as to the quantity of the land, and he bases his
equity upon the alleged fraud practiced upon him by John G. Rainey
in representing that the traet contained 893, when in fact, as alleged, it
contained only about 793; that the sale was made at $10 per acre and
not ¢n solido, by the gquantity, “and that the representations and assur-
ances” in regard to the quantity were false. He does not charge that
the vendor “knew them to be untrue”; on the contrary he seems careful
not to so charge, for he states in his complaint that he “will not say that
John G. Rainey knew them to be false and untrue,” and the only
grounds upon which the charge of fraud is based are set out in para-
graphs 7, 10 and 11 of the complaint, and it is insisted by his counsel
‘that by reason of the representations and assurances of the vendor, upon
which the plaintiff relied, he was thrown off his guard, and was induced
to purchase without demanding a survey.

It is conceded—the written contracts and deeds all show—that
the boundaries of the land, with courses and distances, were given, (334)
and it was within the easy power of the plaintiff to ascertain
the quantity embraced within those boundaries, and whether it was
“more or less” than 893 acres. It is also to be supposed that the muni-
ments of the vendor’s title were of record and accessible to him, and if
the record had disclosed a variance, whether as to title or quantity, from
the representations of the vendor, he should have known it—it was his
duty to have known it, for he is charged with a knowledge of the
record—and as he accepted a deed giving the boundaries and calling
for 893, “more or less,” it would seem, nothing more appearing, that so
far from the vendor being so “grossly negligent and careless” in regard
to the representations as to be guilty of fraud, the plaintiff himself was
grossly negligent and careless in failing either to inform himself as to
whether the quantity is more or less or to require the vendor to warrant
that it was at least not less; and it is too late, after a delay of more than
thirteen years, during all which time he was in possession, to agk the
court to find, by implication, that there was fraud, when the plaintiff
himgelf will not charge that the party making the representations knew
them to be false, but only that he induced him to buy, and received a
portion of the purchase money, “without first correctly ascertaining the
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number of acres in the tract.” Fraud should be positively charged, and
not by implication. Mc¢Lane v. Manning, Wins. Eq., 60.

In the substituted contract of 27 January, 1879, the consideration is
put at $9,775.54, and though it does not appear, it is probable that that
was the amount then due on the original contract of purchase, increased
by interest; and assuming it to be so, it serves to show that it was to be
paid for “893 acres, more or less,” as indicated in the first contract, and
that while $10 per acre was the guide or estimate by which the aggre-
gate was arrived at, it was not within the contemplation of the parties
that the price should be varied from that named in the deed, if

there should prove to be more or less than 893 acres. It will
(385) hardly be insisted by the terms of the contract, if upon a survey

made within a reasonable time, in the absence of any agreement
other than those set forth, the land should have been found to contain
10 or 20 acres more, the vendor could have demanded $100 or $200 more,
or if it'should have been found to contain 10 or 20 acves less, the pur-
chaser could have claimed an abatement of $100 or $200, in the absence
of any fraudulent representation or act of the vendor, and to make such
representation fraudulent it must have been false and known to be so,
and made with the intent to deceive; or unless the discrepancy should
be so great as to warrant a correction of the contract or deed upon the
ground of mistake, as in Wilcowon v. Calloway, 67 N. C., 463; Geniry
v. Hamailton, 3 Ired. Eq., 376; Leigh v. Crumyp, 1 Tred. Eq., 299; New-
som 9. Bufferlow, 1 Dev. Eq., 379; Pugh v. Brittain, 2 Dev. Eq., 34;
Pharr v. Russell, 7 Ired. Eq., 222, and like cases.

But whatever may have been the character of the representations
made by Rainey to the plaintiff at the time of the first contract of sale
in 1878, and assuming that they continued to operate upon the mind of
the plaintiff, and that the substituted contract of 1879 was entered into
under the continuing misapprehension as to the quantity, and that the
discrepancy was so great as to have entitled him to have the deed cor-
rected, no such claim could avail him, after the compromise of the action
instituted in 1882, to enforce compliance with the contract of January,
1879. In that action the very question of quantity was raised by the
answer of the then defendant, the present plaintiff, and he asked for an
abatement of the purchase money by reason of the alleged fact that the
vendor could not make title to 25 or 30 acres claimed by the devisees of
Brodnax, and at his instance there was an order of survey. This action
was compromised upon the terms set out in the record; and it would test
the credulity of the most simple and confiding, after reading the answeér

of the plaintiff to that action, to suppose that he would continue
(336) to be misled and deceived by the representations of Rainey, and
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that when Le entered into the compromise, and the original contract
price was abated by $1,000 and interest for an alleged but contro-
verted failure of title to 25 or 30 acres, he was still to get 893 acres,
and as it is-alleged that he gets only 793, a further abatement of $1,000
ig claimed.

No deed was executed by Rainey and wife to carry the contract into
execution until, and in pursuance of the compromise, and the deed and
deed of trust give the same boundaries and courses and distances as the
original contract, and describe it as containing “893, more or less”; and
assuming that the plaintiff, when he accepted the deed, thought that he
was getting 893, and not less, it is mathematically certain, and he is
obliged to have known, that he was not to pay for it by the aere, at $10
per acre, for $1,000 having been abated from the price, reduced it to less
than $9 per acre.

But it is ingisted that the $1,000 abated at the time of the compromise,
had no reference to quantity, but was on account of failure of title to
the land claimed by the devisees of E. T. Brodnax, and the following
statement is presented by counsel to show the wrong and injustice to
which the plaintiff will be subjected, if the judgment below shall stand :

“893 acres @ $10 per acre, as estimated by pa_l“ties, gives.....$8,930.00

Deduct eash payment. ... ... 1,000.00
$7,930.00

Deduet abatement on account of Brodnax land......... ... $1,000.00

‘ A $6,930.00

29716 acres resold to vendors @ $10......................o 2,275.00

' $4,655.00

Deduct cash paid prior to 1 May, 1884 ... 700.30
$3,954.70

242 acres resold to vendor’s sons @ $10.............0........... 2,420.00
$1,584.70.”

And he insists that, taking the number of acres to be 793, and (337)
applying the credit of $1,000 for the deficiency, it will leave a

balance of only $535 of principal money, instead of $1,534.70, as above.
This is erroneous. Deducting the $1,000 and interest, abated on account
of the Brodnax land, from the contract price, and $7,930 are left, which
would reduce the price, per acre, of 893 acres, to less than $9. But the
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plaintiff alleges, in his complaint, that he has paid three-fourths of the
purchase money, but it appears, as is alleged by the defendants, that
much the greater portion of this was by a resale of the land at $10 per
acre, and the $1,000 abatement on account of the Brodmax land; so,
agsuming that he will get, after deducting the quantity resold, only 373
acres, as 1nsisted, he will get it at a cost of less than $10 per acre.

But after remaining in possession for about fourteen years, under a
contract and deed giving the boundaries, and after failing to meet his
obligations first entered into, and entering into a new or substituted
contract, and after litigation in an action brought against him to en-
force that contract, in which the very defense set up raised the question
of boundary and quantity, which could have been settled by the survey,
which was ordered by the court at the instance of the present plaintiff,
and when, by ordinary diligence and care, any mistake or fraud might
have been detected and exposed, and after a compromise of that action,
the plaintiff is precluded, and is not entitled to the relief sought in this
action. The very question could have been disposed of in the action of
Rainey and wife against the plaintiff, which was compromised, and it is
against the policy of the law to allow a multiplicity of suits about the
same matter, and, as was said by Ruffin, J., in Tuitle v. Harrill, 85
N. C,, 456, “the plea of res adjudicala applies not only to points upon
which the court was actually required to pronounce judgment, but to
every point which properly belonged to the subject of the issue, and

which the parties, exercising reasonable diligence, might have
(838) brought forward.” See, also, Wilson v. Western N. C. Land Co.,
77 N. C., 445 Yates v. Yates, 81 N. C., 397. -

If, in a contract for the purchase of land, a party fails to avail him-
self of those sources of information readily within his reach, and chooses
to rely upon representations which, though not true, were not made with
any false and fraudulent intent, the maxim of caweat emptor applies, as
it does to personal property, and courts will not aid the purchaser.
Walsh v. Hall, 66 N. C., 233.

There is no error.

Cited: Woodbury v. Evans, 122 N. C,, 781; Shankle v. Ingram, 133
N. C, 257; Turnage v. Joyner, 145 N. C., 84; Woodbury v. King, 152
N. C,, 681; Ludwick v. Penny, 158 N. C, 109; Colt v. Kimball, 190
N.C, 171,
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BANK OF STATESVILLE, By J. B. CONNELLY, RECEIVER, V.
EMMA WADDELL.

Payment in Equity—Assumpsit.

1. 8. was the executor of W., and trustee under his will, of funds for de-
fendant’s benefit. 8. was also cashier of a bank. 8. placed to his credit,
as such trustee in said bank about $1,400, and gave the defendant per-
mission to draw at her pleasure upon the bank. Defendant drew checks
repeatedly, which were always paid by 8., as cashier, up to his death.
S. died without revoking the permission he had given to defendant, and,
after his death, she drew two checks, aggregating less than the balance
then to the credit of 8.  as trustee.” These checks were paid by the
cashier who succeeded 8., with the intention of charging them against the
said balance to the credit of 8., trustee, but they were never actually
so charged on the books of the bank. After these two last mentioned
checks had been paid, the bank being insolvent, went into the hands of a
receiver, who brought this action to recover the money paid out on them:
Held, that in equity the money to the credit of 8., trustee, belonged to
defendant, and the acts of 8., as detailed above amounted in an indirect
way to a payment thereof to her, and the receiver could not recover it
from her.

2. The promise upon which the action of assumpsii rests is implied, and
arises ex equo et bono, and money paid to the equitable owner under no
mistake of fact and coupled with no implied promise for its return cannot
be recovered.

CrviL acTion, pending in Irepern Superior Court, and heard (339)
and determined by Clark, J., at Chambers, in Salisbury, 29
August, 1887.

Judgment was entered for the plaintiff. Defendant appealed.

This action, at the instance of the receiver of the Bank of Statesville,
whose effects are in course of distribution in a creditor’s suit, was brought
before a justice of the peace, and from his judgment, in favor of the
plaintiff, carried, by the defendant’s appeal, to the Superior Court of
Iredell County. It is prosecuted, to recover the sum of one hundred and
fifty dollars, alleged io have been unlawfully drawn by the defendant
from the moneys on deposit in the bank, and approprlated to her own
use. The defendant denies her respon31b111ty in the premises.

At February Term, 1887, a reference was made under The Code, to
two commissioners named, who were directed “to decide and determine
all questions of law and fact, and report to the next term.”

The report was made at August Term, 1887, with the following:

To the judge of said court:

1. The undermgned referees in said case, beg leave to report that they
find, as facts in said case, that R. F. Slmonton, at the time of his death,
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which occurred in February, 1876, and for some considerable time pre-
vious thereto, was and had been executor of the last will and testament
of David Waddell, deceased, and trustee of the funds arising under said
will for the benefit of the defendant, which amounted to more than the
sums of money hereinafter mentioned as drawn by the defendant, and
that the said R. F. Simonton was, during all the said time, and up to
his death, cashier of the Bank of Statesville.

2. They further find as facts, that some time previous to the death of
the said Simonton, he had entered upon the books of the bank a credit

to himself, as executor of the said David Waddell, of the sum of
(840) fourteen hundred and sixty-six dollars and sixty-five cents, which

credit stood on the books of the bank, undischarged and unre-
duced, at the time of the death of the said Simonton, and at the time of
the drafts, hereinafter mentioned, as made by the defendant on the said
bank.

3. They find as facts that said Simonton previous to his death had
given to the defendant permission to draw at her pleasure upon the bank,
and upon the said eredit of fourteen hundred and sixty-six dollars and
sixty-five cents, and that defendant had repeatedly in his life-time drawn
checks of various sums upon said bank under said permission, which had
been honored and paid by said Simonton as cashier, and that said per-
mission to draw was unrevoked at the time of the death of said
Simonton.

4. They further find as facts, that, after the death of said Simonton,
the defendant, relying on said permission to draw, and acting thereon,
on 3 March, 1876, drew a check on said bank for the sum of $100, and
on 27 April, 1876, drew another check for $50 on said bank, both of
which said checks, on the days on which they were respectively drawn,
were honored and paid by the new cashier of said bank, C. A. Carlton,
or by his assistant cashier, W. K. Howell.

- 5. They further find as facts, that when defendant drew . the said
checks, respectively, she intended to draw them wupon the said fund,
standing on the books of said bank to the credit of the estate of David
Waddell, and under the permission given her to draw by said Simonton
in his lifetime; and that there was due her from R. F. Simonton, as trus-
tee aforesaid, at that time, more than the amount of both said checks;
and that at the time the said checks were paid by said Carlton, cashier,
or by W. K. Howell, assistant cashier, it was the intention of the ‘said

Carlton or Howell, whichever made the payments, to charge the
(341) amount of said payments against the said credit of $1,466.65,

standing on the books of the bank to the estate of David Waddell,
which, however, was never done, and the bank was never reimbursed
for the payment of said checks.
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Upon these facts the referees find as matters of law:

1. That the permission given by said Simonton in his life-time to
defendant to draw upon said fund, standing on the books of the bank
to the credit of the estate of David Waddell, was revoked by the death
of said Simonton.

2. That by the death of said Simonton, said sum of $1,466.65 passed
to the control of an administrator de bonds non and trustee of the estate
of David Waddell, whenever one was appointed, and until such appoint-
ment, was in abeyance, and no one had a right to meddle with it.

3. They therefore find as a matter of law, that any payment made by
C. A. Carlton, cashier, or W. K. Howell, assistant cashier, out of said
fund to the defendant, or any payment attemupted to be made by either
of them, was void and without authority of law.

They therefore find that the plaintiff is entitled to recover of defend-
ant the sum of fifty dollars ($50), and interest thereon at 6 per cent from
17 April, 1876, up to this date, and the sum of one hundred dollars and
interest thereon at the rate of six per cent from 3 March, 1876, up to
this date—in all the sum of one hundred and fifty dollars principal, and
the sum of one hundred and two dollars and thirty cents interest, and
the costs of this action. '

Respectfully submitted, ‘
 Armrrerp & Burkr, Referees.

The defendant then excepts, by her attorneys, to the report of the
referees, in the following words and figures:

The defendant excepts to the report of the referees filed in (342)
this cause:

That the referees erred in their conclusions of law in paragraphs 1,
2.and 8, in that they charge defendant one hundred and fifty dollars,
with interest on the same, checked out by her after the death of R. F.
Simonton.

McCorkre, Brvemam & CarpweLL,
Attorneys for Defendant.

The exception, after argument, was overruled, the report confirmed,
and the plaintiff adjudged to recover of the defendant the sum of
$252.30, whereof $150 is prineipal; and costs, from which the defendant
appeals to this Court. '

D. M. Furches for plaintiff.
B. F. Long (M. L. McCorkle also filed a brief) for defendant.
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Swurrm, C. J., after stating the facts: We do not concur in the opinion
of the Court, which seems to have been controlled by the rules govern-
ing actions at law, and to ignore the admixture of equitable elements in
the present system, under which ultimate results are reached in a single
proceeding. It appears from the report that R. F. Simonton, at the
same time being executor of David Waddell and cashier of the bank,
having trust funds in his hands derived from the testator’s estate for
the benefit of the defendant alone, or in association with another, made
a deposit thereof in the bank in his eapacity as such executor, in the
sum of $1,466.65, and gave the defendant the liberty of drawmg upon
said credit at her pleasure.

This authority she repeatedly exercised during the lifetime of
Simonton, and after his death, in February, 1876, she drew other sums
in a similar manner, to the extent of the judgment rendered against her.

This fund, so deposited and showing the trust upon which it was
(343) held, or at least one-half of it, beyond which the defendant had

not gone, in equity belonged to her, and was in this indirect way
paid to her by the executor and the trustee, as it was meet should be
done.

Assuming that, upon strict legal principles, the money would be re-
coverable only by the personal representative of the depositor (or the
administrator of the testator de bonis non perhaps), it is plain that a
* Court administering the rules that are recognized in equity, as do our
courts as well under their present constitution, would not permit a trust
fund like this to be collected from the equitable owner and applied to
the general indebtedness of an insolvent corporation. And if this were
not permitted, still less could it when it reached the hands of the rightful
owner, be taken from such owner to be misapplied and lost. The old
action of assumpsit was, in some of its features, an equitable proceeding,
and the promise upon which the action rests is implied, and arises ex
®quo et bono. 2 Greenl. Ev., sec. 102.

The equitable right of the holder of a bond, to whom it has been trans-
ferred and delivered unendorsed by the payee, in whose name suit has
been brought and judgment recovered, to receive the money when col-
lected, is decided in Hoke v. Carter, 12 Ired., 324, in which Pearson, J.,
thus explaing the relations between the parties: “The legal effect of the
contract of sale and delivery of the bond was to constitute the testator
an agent of Fleming (the obligee) to receive the money. But the money
vested in the testator as legal owner the moment it was received; for
the chose in action, of which Fleming was the legal owner, was extin-
guished by an act which he had authorized to be done, viz., the reception
of the money, and the money vested in the testator, as legal owner, by
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force of the contract of sale, which thereby became executed in the same
way as if Fleming had himself received the money and handed it to the
testator in execution of the contract.”

This ruling recognizes the right of an equitable owner of an (344)
unendorsed sealed security for the payment of money, to take and
hold the money paid under it against the claim of the legal owner of it;
and such is very much the relation occupied by the defendant in the .
present controversy; and the defendant’s position is strengthened by the
new practice, which allows the party who is entitled to the money and
to receive it, unconditionally to assert the right in his or her own name
in an action instituted to recover it. If the executor did not need the
fund in process of administration, but was bound to pay it over to the
cestui que lrust, as would be his administrator, in discharging the-at-
tached trusts, why should such cestui que trust be required to surrender
it when voluntarﬂy paid to her by the officers of the bank, and use it for
the benefit of the creditors of the latter?

And again, if it could not have been recovered by the defendant in an
action prosecuted against the bank, or the executor trustee, yet it was in
fact paid to her as the owner, under no misapprehension of the fact; and
1o implied promise to return or to account for the money, except as a
payment in part, can arise out of the transaction, and most unquestion-
ably no right of action can accrue to the bank or to the receiver, who is
its representative. Devereux v. Ins. Co., 98 N. C,, 6.

It must be declared there is error in not sustaining the defendant’s
exception, and to this end the judgment is reversed, and the court below

_ will proceed in accordance with this opinion to render a judgment for the
defendant.

Error. . - Reversed.

(345)
L
TRADERS NATIONAL BANK v. MANUFACTURING COMPANY.

Corporation, Mortgage Executed by—Estoppel.

1. Vide Bank v. Mfg. Co., 96 N. C., 298.

2. A mortgage deed executed according to the provision of the Revised Code,
ch. 26, sec. 22 (The Code, sec. 685), is the act of the corporation alone,
and not that of the corporation officers, by whose agency the deed is
executed; and it will not operate as an estoppel to prevent them from
asserting any claim they may have to a security it provides.
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Crvir action, heard upon exceptions to a referee’s report. The case
is fully reported in 96 N. C., 298, in which this Court directed a re-
reference of the account, to be stated upon the basis of -the opinion then
delivered.

W. P. Bynum for plaintiff.
P. D. Walker and C. B. Watson for defendant.

Smrrm, C. J. Upon the coming in of the report made by the referee,
in obedience to an order entered on the hearing in this Court, exceptions
are taken by the defendant, which have been argued and will now be
considered.

First Exception: The said defendant excepts, for that the debt due
him for money loaned is not assigned a place among the old debts, to
be paid as such, but has its origin in the new obligation, created by the
execution of the last bond and the mortgage given to secure it on
30 March, 1882. Of this, we have only to say, that this point was fully
considered and disposed of upon the former hearing and from the ruling
then made, for the reasons assigned, we are not disposed to depart.

Second Exception: The exceptions to the allowance of the debts due
and enuring to the Traders National Bank, the National Bank of

Chester, A. C. Lineberger, the Bridesburg Manufacturing Com-
(3846) pany, A. B. Titman, D. F. Foley Bros & Co., and of Bucking-

ham & Pardson, as constituting liens upon the property of the
Woodlawn Company, have also been passed on, and their preferential -
claim over that of the Fries debt to be sat1sﬁed out of the corporate
property, under the statute recognized and determined.

Third Exception: The exception based on the alleged equity of the -
defendant Fries, to be substituted in place of the officers of the company,
A. . Lineberger, J. M. Lineberger and C. J. Lineberger, and to take
their shares of the fund to be distributed, by reason of the execution
of the mortgage of the corporation by them, as president, secretary and
stockholder, with covenants operating as an estoppel upon them to assert
a claim against him and the security it provides. ~

This exception must be alse overruled, as are the others.

The mortgage deed is the act of the corporation alone, done in pursu-
ance of the statute, Rev. Code, ch. 26, sec. 22, and in no just legal
sense, that of the corporation officers and stockholders, by whose agency
the corporation conveys its real estate. The instrument, upon its face,
professes to be such, and to be made by virtue of, and in pursuance of,
a “resolution of the stockholders of the Woodlawn Manufacturing Com-
pany in Gaston County, North Carelina, in convention assembled, on 29
March, 1882.”
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Moreover, the only covenant of the bargainor in the deed is, that the
premises shall be kept insured to the amount of the bond, and that upon
default, the mortgagee may enter and sell.

But if these obstacles to the assertion of the alleged equity were out
of the way, the controversy about the disposal of the fund is not germain
to the present action, nor is it presented in the appeal.

A somewhat similar effort was made in Hulbert v. Douglas, 94 N. C.,
128, to introduce outside matters of dispute between the de-
fendants, and it was not allowed, for reasons set out in the (347)
opinion of that case. '

The case is now before us upon the seame record, and for a revision
of no errors except such as therein appear, or result from the action of
the referee in executing the order of recommittal.

After the argument, which has been able and full for the exceptor,
our former convictions remain unchanged and we must confirm the
report and direct the distribution of the corporate funds of the company
accordingly.

Report confirmed.

W. H. HUGHES, Execuror oF W. T. STEPHENSON, v. S. P. BOONE.

Dismissing Appeal—Rule 2, Section 8.

Judgment was rendered in the lower court 28 January, 1888. Defendant
appealed, but did not docket his appeal in this Court until 15 February,
1888, too late for argument at this term. On 20 February, 1888, appellee
moved to dismiss the appeal under Rule 2, sec. 8. The motion was re-
fused because not made until after the appeal was docketed and the call
of the district concluded and no notice of the motion given appellant.

Morton to dismiss appeal, heard by the Court at this term.
The facts are stated in the opinion.

No counsel for plaintiff.
R. B. Peebles for defendant.

Merrimon, J. It appears that S. P. Boone obtained a judgment
against W. H. Hughes, executor, etc., in the Superior Court of the
county of Northampton on 28 January, 1888 from which the
latter appealed to this Court; but he did not docket his appeal (348)
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here until 15 February next thereafier, so that, in the order of the call
of the docket, it could not stand for argument at the present term.

On 20 February the appellee moved to docket and dismiss the appeal,
as allowed by Rule 2, sec. 8, suggesting that the appellant, on purpose,
failed to bring up his appeal as promptly as he might and ought
regularly to have done, the object being to delay the disposition of the
appeal until the next term of the Court.

The motion cannot be allowed, because the appellant had docketed
his appeal before the motion was made. Barbee v. Green, 91 N. C., 158,
Moreover, the motion was not made until after the week of the term
assigned to the argument of appeals from the district from which the
appeal in question came, and there was no notice of the motion to the
appellant or his counsel.

Motion denied.

Cited: Bryan v. Moring, 99 N. C., 117.

STATE Ex ReL. E. T. CLARK, ADMINISTRATOR OF S, G. BOONE, v. R. M.
PEEBLES, ADMINISTRATRIX, AND W. W. PEEBLES.

Venue—Admanastration Bond.

A, qualified as administrator of B., in Halifax County, and gave bond there.
Afterwards A. died in Northampton, and C. qualified as his administratrix
in that county. C., administratrix, and D., one of the sureties on the bond
of A., resided in Northampton, and were sued in Halifax County on the
bond of A., by a resident of Halifax: Held, that the action was properly
brought in Halifax, under section 193 of The Code.

Motion to remove a case from Halifax County to North-
(349) ampton County for trial, heard before Avery, J., at Fall Term,
1887, of Harirax Superlor Court,
The facts appear in the opinion.

T. N. Hil for plainiiff.
W. W. Pecbles for defendants.

Smrra, C. J. The present action, begun in the name of the State,
on the relatlon of Edward T. Clark administrator de bonis non cum
testamento annero of Solomon G. Boone is brought upon an adminis-
tration bond executed by J. T. Peebles a. former administrator (of
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whom the defendant R. M. Peebles is administratrix), principal, and the
defendant William W. Peebles, one of the sureties, the other being dead
and his estate insolvent, to recover the trust estate in the hands of the
preceding administrator, with which the bond sued on is chargeable.
The summons was duly served upon the defendants in Northampton
County, and at Fall Term, 1886, of Halifax Superior Court, to which
the process was returnable, the plaintiff filed his complaint, to which a
demurrer was entered. Issue being joined on the demurrer, the cause
stood for trial at Spring Term, 1887, when leave was given the plaintiff
to amend, and to the amended complaint the defendants put in their
answer before the close of the term, and then applied for an order of
removal, as follows:

Motion to remove the cause for trial, under section 193 of The Code,
heard at Fall Term, 1887, of Halifax Superior Court, before Avery, J.

The facts are as follows: Solomon G. Boone died domiciled in Hali-
fax County in 1865. At November Term of the Court of Pleas and
Quarter Sessions, 1865, of Halifax County, William C. Boone qualified
as his administrator with the will annexed. He died, and John T.
Peebles qualified at November Term, 1866, as administrator (850)
d. b. n. c. t. a. The said John T. was a resident of Northampton
County, and died in that county in the year 1879, and R. M. Peebles
qualified as his administratrix in November, 1879.

W. W. Peebles, the defendant, and one of the sureties of John T. -
Peebles, lives now and did live when the administration bond of John T.
‘Peebles was executed, in Northampton County.

Rice B. Pierce, who is a surety on the bond of John T. Peecbles as
administrator, lived in Halifax County and died there, his estate being
insolvent.

The defendants move the court for a change of venue to Northampton
County. The motion, on objection by plaintiffs, and after argument of
counsel, was refused, and the defendants excepted and appealed.

The statute pursuant to which the order of removal is demanded was
not a part of the Code of Civil Procedure in its original enactment, but
was introduced evidently as an amendment and qualification to section
192, which it succeeds in the transfer as section 193 of The Code, where,
in its present form, it appears as follows: “All actions upon official
bonds or against executors and administrators in their official capacity
shall be instituted in the county where the bonds shall have been given,
if the principal or any of the sureties on the bond is in the county; if
not, then in the plaintifi’s county.” The only material change of form
undergone in the transfer is the substitution of “official” in the place of
“fiduciary” before the word “capacity.”
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The preceding section, in broad, comprehensive terms, embraces all
suits, the place of trial of which had not been before provided for, and
directs them to be brought to and tried in any “county in which the

plaintiffs or the defendants, or any of them, shall reside at the
(351) commencement of the action,” and the effect of the added amend-

ment is to withdraw from the sweeping terms the class of cases
mentioned in the amendment.

The operation of this act, passed at the session of 1868-69, chapter
258, is manifestly confined to actions upon official bonds, unless, as
appellants’ counsel insists, its sphere is enlarged so as to apply to all
actions brought against executors and adminisirators in their fiduciary
and representative capacity upon a liability incurred by the testator
or administrator in his life-time.

There would be force in the contention of the appellants as to the
meaning of the aet if the words “executors and administrators” are to
be construed as severed from their place in the section, and without
reference to their conneetion with other and restrictive words which
serve to explain their import and show the legislative intent in passing
the statute. What follows shows them to have been used in a restricted
sense in requiring such actions to be instituted “in the county where
the bonds shall have been given”—that is, the bonds upon which the
suit is brought, and this in case any of the obligors, prineipal or any
surety is (resides) in the county. Manifestly the section exempts from
the operation of that preceding suits upon official bonds, and none
other, and this appears in the fact that such bonds, as giving rise to
the action, are mentioned three times in the section. In our opinion,
the purpose was to require actions on official bonds to be brought in
the county where they were given, whether against the obligors per-
sonally upon the contract or against the representatives of any of them
who may have died; and for this purpose only, were these representa-
tives specially designated, to the end that in either case the attaching
jurisdiction should be in the court of the county wherein such letters
were issued and the bond executed. So the act seems to have been
interpreted when its provisions were applicable to the subject-matter

of judicial investigation.
(852)  “The object of the statute,” says Mr. Justice Reade, speaking
for the Court, “was to have suits against these persons, whether
upon their bonds or not, in the county where they took out letlers and
where they make their returns and settlements and transact all the
business of the estates in their hands. Stanley v. Mason, 69 N. C., 1;
Foy v. Morehead, ibid., 512; Bidwell ». Kwng, 71 N. C., 287. And

the same principle is recognized in reference to an action upon a
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guardian bond in Cloman v. Staton, 78 N. C., 235, where the same
eminent judge delivers the opinion also.

The present action is upon a bond executed in the county of Halifax,
upon the appointment of the intestate of the defendant R. M. Peebles
as administrator, and was required to be there instituted if any of the
defendants had a residence therein. As neither of them did have such
residence, the plaintiff’s residence in the county determines the juris-
dictional question, and the suit is in the proper county. The contrary
view would lead to numerous difficulties in the practical enforcement
of the law, as will readily occur to the professional mind. Suppose
there are numerous sureties, who, residing in different counties, die,
and letters there issue upon the estate of each, must a suit brought
against all in one court, upon the application of each, be divided into
as many fractional parts and sent to their different counties of resi-
dence? Or, to avoid this, must there be as many different actions
brought to enforce the same single obligation against the separate
obligors? Does the statute authorize or compel this unnecessary multi-
plication of actions to effect the same recovery?

Again, it is required, when a removal is directed, that “the clerk
shall transmit to the court to which the same (cause) is removed a
transeript of the record of the case, with the prosecution bond, bail bond
and the depositions and all other written evidences filed therein.” The
Code, sec. 198. R

How is this practicable, in case there are several orders of (353)
removal,-and how can the same original papers, that must accom-
pany the record at the same time, be transmitted to different counties?

If this obstacle be sought to be put out of the way by the removal
of the cause as an entirety to some ome court, difficulties equally in-
surmountable are met. If a resident defendant’s preference is of the
place where the cause is pending, and another, a nonresident, wishes
a removal, whose will is to prevail? Has not the one an equal right
to prevent as the other has to have the proposed removal? Or, if, among
several nonresidents, each wishes to have the cause removed to his own
county, how are the conflicting demands to be adjusted ?

If the right to have the transfer appertains to a defendant when
he is sued, not upon his own bond, but upon an obligation of the
deceased person whom he represents, it must be confined to cases where
there is but himself; or when an associate unites with him in making
the application, so that when jurisdiction is rightfully acquired over
one, it is acquired over all the defendants; and a plaintiff has a right
to bring all the defendants in a single action before one court of
competent jurisdiction. '
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Our conclusion is that the court has jurisdiction and the cause was
rightfully retained. There is no error, and the judgment is affirmed.
No error. , Affirmed.

Cited: Wood v. Morgan, 118 N. C., 751; Alliance v. Murrell, 119
N. Q, 125; Craven v. Munger, 170 N. C., 426.

(354)

J. . SCROGGS, ADMINISTRATOR OF A. R. SIMONTON, v. J. H. STEVENSON,
ADMINISTRATOR OF J. F. ALEXANDER ANp OTHERS,

Practice—Hxceptions to Report of Referce—Res Judicata—Advance-
ments—Executors and Administrators, Commissions Allowed.

1. An exception to a referee’s report, not considered by the judge below,
cannot be considered by this Court on appeal; a ruling in the court below
being necessary to confer jurisdiction on this, Court. In such case, the
cause will be left open in the lower court, that the exception may be
passed upon there. '

2. Where exceptions to the report of a referee are passed upon by a judge of
the Superior Court, such exceptions cannot be reheard by another judge
of that court. The matter is res ju(_uca,ta.

3. Upon the coming in of a referee’s report, defendant filed exceptions, which
were overruled and the case recommitted to the referce. Defendant ex-
cepted and appealed, but failed to perfect his appeal. When the second
report of the referee was filed final judgment was rendered against
defendant, who appealed again: Held, that this Court would review the
rulings embraced in the first appeal, more especially as the former appeal
would have been held premature, if perfected.

4. The point that a referee has not found the facts upon which he bases his
report must be taken by a motion to recommit, and not by exception to
the report.

3. Five per cent is the maximum commissions allowed administrators, and if
the estate passes thtough several successive hands, whatever sum, not
exceeding that limit, is allowed, should be apportioned among them ac-
cording to their respective merits, and services rendered.

6. When a money balance is found due from a former administrator to his
successor, if the last is allowed commissions on it, the amount so allowed
must be deducted from the compensation of his predecessor.

7. A personal representative is entitled to commissions on money raised by

a sale of the lands of his decedent, and coming into his hands for ad-
ministration ; ,also, upon a note or money obligation turned over to the
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legatees or distributees; but commissions are not usually allowed on
. slaves, bank stock, and like property, spec1ﬁcally delivered to the parties
entitled thereto. .

8. The personal representative has nothing to do with the rents of lands be-
longing to decedent’s estate, as between himself and the heirs at law or
© devisees.

9. A testator bequeathed his personal estate to be equally divided between
his seven children, but requiring all of them to account for advancements.
One of the legatees died without issue during testator’s life; another
legatee had been advanced more than an equal share of the estate left for
division: Held, that the legatee who had been advanced more than an
equal share should not be counted as entitled to any part, nor should
the amount advanced to him be taken into the acecount. From the fund
should be deducted the one-sixth, which would have been the share of the
legatee who died before the testator. The residue should then be divided
among the other five legatees. After this, the one-sixth, which would
have gone to said dead legatee, should have been divided among said
five legatees, excluding altogether said legatee who had been advanced.

CrviL acrron, heard upon exceptions to the report of a referce, (355)
by MacRae, J., at May Term, 1886, of IreprrL Superior Court.

The defendant M. M. Alexander who was one of the legatees of
Adam R. Simonton, appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
D. M. Furches and J. B. Batchelor for defendant M. M. Alexander.

Smrra, C: J. Adam R. Simonton died in the year 1863, leaving a
will made in 1859, wherein he appoints Joseph F. Alexander executor,
who, upon its probate and his own qualification, entered upon the
" discharge of his trusts. The executor died intestate in January, 1870,
and the defendant J. Harvey Stevenson became his administrator, and
in the same year letters of administration de bonis non with the will
annexed issued to the plaintiff, James H. Scroggs, on the testator’s
estate. The present proceeding was begun in the probate court
of Iredell against the said Stevenson, as administrator, and the (356)
other defendants, devisees and legatees under the will, for an ad-
justment of the administration made by the deceased executor and for
a general settlement of the testator’s estate with the other defendants.

An account was accordingly taken before the clerk, actimg in his
capacity of probate judge, to which exceptions were entered at March
Term, 1875, of the Superior Court, but it was recommitted, and, after
taking further testimony, again reported, to which numerous exceptions
were again filed. These were heard and passed on by the judge and
the account again referred for reform and correction according to his
rulings. From this an appeal was taken to the Supreme Court, but it
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was not prosecuted and perfected, and a subsequent application to that
Court to issue a certiorar: to bring up the record was refused. Scroggs
v. Alexander, 88 N. C., 64.

The reformed account was reported by the referee, the clerk, at
May Term, 1886, and came on to be heard before the then presiding
judge, the defendant M. M. Alexander insisting upon his passing upon
all her exceptions heretofore ruled upon by the former judge as still
before the court. The court held otherwise and .refused to hear them,
and rendered judgment confirming the report. In the case it is stated
that upon making up the appeal the judge found an exception, to which
he was not advertent during the argument upon the question of his
entertaining jurisdiction of the previous series, as adjudicated, and in
consequence this overlooked exception was not passed upon. From the
refusal to hear that series and the judgment confirming the report the
defendant Mary M. appealed.

The exceptions which the judge refused to rehear, because they had

been heard and disposed of by a former judge, are as follows:
(357) 1. That the judge of probate has not found the facts upon
which he bases his report.

2. That he has allowed commissions to J. F. Alexander, executor
of A. R. Simonton, and also on the same to plaintiff as administrator
de bonis non.

3. That the judge of probate hag deducted from the general fund due
the legatees the full amount of advancements made to J. B. Simonton,
which exceeds his distributive share in said estate, and instead of
dividing the whole distributive share amongst all the legatees except
J. B. Simonton’s heirs he has deducted the said advancements of
$1,353.33, and also the full amount of the d1str1but1ve share of the
said J. B Simonton, from the general fund.

4. That it having been shown to the judge of probate that J. B.
Simonton’s advancements exceed his distributive share, and this fact
appearing from his report, he should have divided the general fund of
$7,772.51 into five equal shares and to have excluded the distributees
of J. B, Simonton from any pro rata of said estate.

5. That no legal notice was given when the account would be taken,
nor when the report would be delivered, nor when the judgment would
be rendered to this exceptant.

6. That he has allowed five per cent commissions to the plaintiff on
land sales aggregating $3,289.56.

7. That the rents paid heretofore for lands belonging to the testator,
by this exceptant, should be allowed to the extent of five-sixths part
thereof to her, it not appearing that she used more than her propor-
tionate part of said estate.
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Exceptions of the appellant appear to have been taken after suc-
cessive reports, and we may misapprehend the record in supposing that
the foregoing list contains all that the judge upon final hearing declined
to entertain, and his action on which is intended by the appeal to be
considered. But, understanding these only to be before us, we proceed
to examine them. There was certainly no error in the refusal
to reconsider the rulings of the preceding judge upon the mat- (358)
ters then before him, for they had passed into and become res
adjudicata, and could only be reconsidered in a direct application
to set them aside, reverse or modify; otherwise there might be in-
consistent adjudications upon the same subject-matter in the record.
8. v. Bvans, 74 N. C., 824; Mabry v. Henry, 838 N. C., 298.

But it is quite a different question as to the appellate reviewing

jurisdiction of this Court when error is alleged to have been committed
at a previous stage of the proceeding, and exception thereto noted, and
the more especially when an appeal then taken would have been deemed
premature. Milchell v. Kilburn, 74 N. C., 483; Crawley v. Woodfin,
78 N. C,, 4; McBryde v. Patterson, ibid., 412, and numerous other
cases. :
The exceptions there mentioned, notwithstanding the attempted and
abandoned appeal, are prosecuted now, and must be examined as far
as questions of law are involved, and no further. The first of these
exceptions should have been taken in the form of a motion to recommit
for a finding of fact, and this does not appear to have been done and
exception made to a refusal. _

2. The second exception is to the allowanee of commissions both to
the executor and the administrator de bonis non of the deceased testator,
A. R. Simonton.

The exception 1s too indefinite in its terms for us to understand
precisely its meaning. Undoubtedly, inasmuch as five per centum is the
maximum of commissions allowed, if the estate passes through several
hands, whatever sum not exceeding that limit is allowed should be
apportioned among the representatives according to their respective
merits and services rendered. This would usually happen when an
uncollected debt passes over to a succeeding representative; but when
a money balance is found due from one to another, if the last is allowed
commigsions, there should be a commensurate reduction in the
compensation to be allowed the former; but this balance, in the (359)
present case, is a very inconsiderable sum, at most; so that
little harm comes from its not being heard for vagueness.

3 and 4. The rule involved in these two exceptions is the proper -one
to apply to the computation and apportionment of the fund. Tnasmuch
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as J. B. Simonton has been advanced largely in excess of his share,
he should not be counted as entitled to any part of the fund, nor should
the amount of his advancements be taken into the account. This
excluded, the division should be confined to the other six and the
fund distributed in that number of parts. This aggregate being reduced
by the deduction of the share accruing to the distributees of A. Carlton,
the residue will be apportioned in equal parts among the remaining
five. The one-sixth due said Adeline Carlton will then be in like
manner divided among the same five, who are her distributees, and the
one-fifth added to the other one-fifth, excluding altogether the said
J. B. Simonton, whose advancements are above both sums united.

5. The fifth exception stands upon the same footing as the first.

6. The court refused to allow commissions in any amount upon the
value of the slaves and bank and railroad stock, but does allow the
" commissions upon the money received upon the several sales of the
land of the deceased; and as a money fund, thus raised and coming into
the plaintif’s hands for administration, we see no just objection to
an allowance, or to the sum allowed. Property specifically delivered
over in the course of distribution, as in this case of slaves and stock, is
usually not burdened with such a charge, and yet a note or money
obligation may be as a receipt, and so it is decided in Shepard v.
- Parker, 13 Ired., 103,

7. We do not see that rents or the value of the use of the lands

previous to the sale enter into the account, nor should they, for
(360) that is a matter to be settled among the owners and occupants,
with which the plaintiff has nothing to do.

The exception not considered at the trial is not before us, since there
must have been a ruling upon it to give us an appellate Jurlsdlctlon
While, therefore, we are not at liberty to give an authoritative opinion
on the subject-matter, it is not out of place to say, that the basis upon
which all the charges for advances are made, that is, to compute
interest after two years from the issue of letters testamentary, as upon
all the debts due the testator, seems to us to be eminently fair and
reasonable. There is no error in the ruling; but the cause must be left
in the court below, to the end that the last exception of the appellant
may be disposed of, and, if ruled adversely to her she may, if so advised,
appeal and have that ruling authoritatively revised and decided.

No error. Affirmed.

- Cited: Scroggs v. Alexander, 103 N. C., 164; Scroggs v. Stevenson,
108 N. C., 261; Blalock ». Mfg. Co., 110 N. O 102; Alexander v.
Alexander, 120N C., 474; Cobb ». Rhea, 137 N. C 298 Tart v. Tart,
154 N. C., 506; S. ». Hetwfmer 168 N. C., 164.
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JOHN A. TYSON anp J. F. GADDY, ExrcuTors oF JOHN TYSON, v.
JAMES M. TYSON aAnp OTHEES.

Jurisdiction of Supreme Court—DBill for Advice to Executors.

1. In an action brought by executors against the devisees and legatees of their
testator, in the nature of a bill in equity, to obtain a construction of the
will for the guidance and protection of the executors, only those questions
will be determined by the court which are necessary to be settled in order
to protect the executors in the discharge of their duties.

2, Disputes between the devisees, as to the construction of the will as bearing
upon their rights, must be left to be settled in an action between them.

3. The appellate jurisdiction of this Court is limited to the correction of
errors in the rulings below. Hence, when there has been no ruling
thereon in the lower court, this Court cannot pass upon a question pre-
sented by the record. (See Scroggs v. Stevenson, ante, 354.)

Civin action, tried before Connor, J., at November Term, (361)
1887, of Axson Superior Court.

The action was brought to obtain a eonstruction of the will of plain-
tiffs’ testator for the guidance of plaintiffis in the discharge of their
duties.

A jury trial was waived and the court found the facts.

Both sides appealed.

The facts are stated by the Chief Justice as follows:

John Tyson died in February, 1885, leaving a will and therein ap-
pointing his son John A. Tyson and his sons-in-law J. F. Gaddy and
Atlas D. Dumas his executors, of whom the first named two are the
plaintiffs in the action, and the defendants are the heirs at law, devisees
and legatees mentioned in the will, with the husbands of such as have
intermarried. )

The will is in these words:

I, John Tyson, of the county of Anson and State of North Carolina,
being of sound mind and memory, but considering the uncertainty of
my earthly existence, do make and declare this my last will and testa-
ment, in manner and form following, that is to say:

1. That my executors, hereinafter named, shall provide for my body
a decent burial, suitable to the wishes of my relations and friends, and
pay all my funeral expenses, together with my just debts, howsoever
and to whomsoever. owing, out of the moneys that may first come into
their hands as a part and parcel of my estate.

2. T give to my beloved wife, Mary Tyson, 200 acres of land, more
or less, on which I now live (for metes and bounds see papers in my
possession), togethér with all outhouses, stock and cattle of all kinds,
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with all supplies of corn, wheat, meat, etc., that may be on hand;
also the growing crops on the place, with all household and kitchen
furniture; indeed, everything on the place as it now is, for and during
her natural life. At her death, the lands herein willed to my

(362) wife to go to Joanna B. Crump and her bodily heirs.
3. I give and bequeath to my eldest son, James M. Tyson
(now in the West), six hundred dollars, which sum, together with
former advances, will make a fair proportion of my personal estate.

4. I give to my son William G. Tyson (also in the West), six hun-
dred dollars, which, together with former advances, will make him a
fair proportion of my personal estate.

5. I give and bequeath to my son John A. Tyson, in addition to
former advances, seventy-eight acres of land, being a part of the Wat-
kins land in Stanly County, and lying on the waters of Pee Dee River,
adjoining the lands of R. F. Tyson and W. H. Watkins (for metes and
bounds see papers in my possession). I also give him six one hundred
dollar shares in the Pee Dee Manufacturing Company; also my silver
watch.

6. I give and bequeath to my son Robert F. Tyson, two tracts of land
in Stanly County, known as the Watkins land, on Pee Dee River-—
tract No. 1, lying as above described, adjoining the lands of Jas. Smith
and John A. Tyson, containing 7814 acres; No. 2 is also part of the
Watkins land, on which he now lives, containing 76 acres, adjoining
* Wall and others. For metes and bounds see papers in .my possession.
I also give him six one hundred dollars shares in the Pee Dee Manu-
faeturmg Company.

7. I give and bequeath to Emehne J. Mills two tracts of land in
Anson County—one on which she now lives, of one hundred acres, more
or less, adjoining the lands of F., A. Clarke and others; the second tract,
lying on the east side of Little Creek, known as the Frem George lands,
adjoining Sibley land and others, containing 194 acres (for metes and
bounds see papers in my possession), the herein described lands to

be hers during her natural life, and then to her bodily heirs.
(363) I also give to the bodily heirs of Emeline J. Mills five hundred
dollars, to be equally divided between them.

8. I give and bequeath to Mary H. Gaddy one tract of land in Anson
County, on which she now lives, on the waters of Rocky River, known
as the R. R. Bill Lee lands, containing 393 acres, more or less. The
herein described lands to be hers during her natural life, and then to
her bodﬂy heirs.

9. I give to Frances E. Dumas two tracts of land in Anson County,
on the waters of Brown Creck—the first a tract on which she now lives,
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containing 143 acres, more or less, known as the George A. Smith lands,
adjoining R. A. Carter and others; the second tract, on Brown Creek,
above the mouth of Jack’s Branch, containing 389 acres, more or less,
adjoining the lands of Wm. Little and others. For metes and bounds
see papers in my possession. The above described lands to be hers dur-
ing her natural life, and then to her bodily heirs. T also give to her five
hundred dollars in money.

10. I give and bequeath to my daughter Joanna B. Crump, in con-

sideration of her taking eare of her mother, two other tracts of land
besides the one referred to in article two—one on which she now lives,
of 181 acres; one other tract of 200 acres on Rocky River, in Anson
County, known as the Turner lands, adjoining the lands of John R.
Richardson. For metes and bounds see papers in my possession. The
above described lands to be hers during her lifetime, then to her bodily
heirs. : A '
11. My will and desire is, that all the residue of my estate, after
taking out the above mentioned, shall be sold and debts owing me col-
lected, and my debts paid, and the surplus shall be equally divided
between my six children, John A. Tyson, R. F. Tyson, Emeline J.
Mills, Mary H. Gaddy, ¥. E. Dumas, and Joanna B. Crump.

12. I hereby appoint and constitute oy son John A. Tyson and my
sons-in-law J. F. Gaddy and Atlas D. Dumas my lawful executors, to
all intents and purposes, to execute this my last will and testa-
ment, according to the true intent and meaning of the same, (364)
and every part and clause thereof, hereby revoking and declaring
utterly void all other wills and testaments by me heretofore made.

In witness whereof, I, the said John Tyson, do hereunto set my
hand and seal, this 23 January, A.D. 1884. Joun Tyson (Seal).

Signed, sealed, published and declared by the said John Tyson to be
his last will and testament, in the presence of us, who, at his request
and in his presence, do subscribe our names as witnesses thereto.

G. 0. Wirnorr.
R. M. Bies.

The action is instituted to obtain the advice of the court as to the
construction of certain provisions in the will, about which a controversy
has sprung up among the defendants, as a guide to the plaintiffs in
discharging their trust, and the interrogations propounded are as
follows :

1. Who are “the bodily heirs of Emeline J. Mills, who is now fifty
years of age, to whom is bequeathed a legacy of $500, in the Tth item #’

2. When and to whom is this legacy to be paid?
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3. Can the shares of each therein be ascertained before the death
of said Emeline?

4. From what time, if any, does this sum bear interest?

5. Does the death of Mary Tyson, during the testator’s life, and some
twenty days previous to his death, defeat the devise contained in the
tenth clause and made “in consideration of her (Joanna B. Crump)
taking care of her mother,” either in the life estate given Joanna, or in

the remainder “to her bodily heirs?”
(865) A jury trial being dispensed with, the court found the facts
and declared the law applicable to the matters in contention in
the following judgment:

This cause coming on for hearing before the court upon the com-
plaint and answers, with the exhibits thereto attached, a jury trial
being waived, the court, by consent, finding the facts:

1. That John Tyson, laté of the county.of Anson aforesaid, having
first made and executed his last will and testament, in sufficient form,
and duly attested, to pass real and personal property, died in the county
of Anson on 19 February, 1885; a copy of said will is hereto attached
as a part of this judgment. (For copy of will, see pages 3-6, “Exhibit
A}’ of this record.)

2. That the plaintiffs, John A. Tyson and J. F. Gaddy (the defendant
A. D. Dumas having renounced his right to qualify), presented the
said will for probate in the court having jurisdiction thereof, on 9
March, 1885, and the same being duly admitted to probate, qualified
as executors thereto, and at once entered upon the discharge of the
duties of said office.

3. That the defendants, James M. Tyson, W. G. Tyson, Robert F.
Tyson, Mary H. Gaddy, Frances E. Dumas, intermarried with A. D.
Dumas, Joanna B. Crump, intermarried with Joseph A. Crump, Eme-
line J. Mills, intermarried with J. Q. Mills, and the children of said
Emeline J. Mills, to wit, John Mills, Lucy Caudle, intermarried with
Isaac Caudle, being of full age, and Mamie Mills, Albert Mills, and
Edgar Mills, infants, and represented by their father and guardian
ad litem, John Q. Mills—are the children and grandehildren of the
said John Tyson, and are the legatees and devisees named in said
will.

4. That Mary Tyson, the wife of said John Tyson, the person named
in the second clause of said will, died on 31 January, 1885, and before

the death of her said husband, the said John Tyson.
(866) 5. That said John Tyson was, at the time of his death, and
at the time of making his will, very old, as was also his wife,
the said Mary Tyson; that said Mary Tyson was, for several years prior
to her death, in feeble health.
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6. That the defendant Joanna Crump, together with the other chil-
dren of said John and Mary Tyson, was kind and attentive to the wants
of their said mother.

7. That the said John Tyson was a man of good estate, and supplied
his family with such articles as were needed and suited to their comfort
and condition in life, and by his will made ample provision for his
wife, had she survived him.

8. That prior to his death, and in contemplation thereof, said John
Tyson placed, in separate parcels, the title deeds to the several tracts
of land devised to his children, and wrote their names on the parcels,
covering the lands so devised. That the title deeds to the land mentioned
in item ten of the will were so placed in a package, and the name of
Joanna B. Crump written thereon.

9. That the plaintiffs executors have in their hands, after dlschargmg
the other trusts declared in said will, a sufficient sum to pay the legacy
mentioned in item seven of the will.

10. That Emeline J. Mills was fifty years of age at the time of the
death of John Tyson, and has had no children since that time.-

Upon the foregoing facts, it is considered and adjudged by the court:

1. That the words “bodily heirs” of Emeline J. Mills, as used in
the seventh clause of the will of John Tyson, fre to be construed as
meaning the children of said Emeline J. The language is not to be taken
in its technical sense, but as describing a class of persons to whom
the testator wished to bequeath the sum of money mentioned. He
recognizes the fact that Emeline J. Mills is living, hence could
have no bodily heirs, technically speaking, Nemo est haeres (367)
viventss; see Bullock v. Bullock, 2 Dev. Eq., 307; Ward v. Stow,

2 Dev. Eq., 509; Svmms v. Garrot, 1 Dev. & Bat. Eq., 393; The Code,
sec. 1329.

2. That the children of said Emeline J., living at the death of the
testator, are entitled to said legacy, “to be equally divided between
them.” Simms v. Garrot, 1 Dev. & Bat. Eq., 393.

3. That said legacy is to be paid at the end of two years from the
qualification of the executors of John Tyson. The Code, sec. 1510.

4, That said legacy bears interest after one year from the death of
John Tyson Hart v. Williams, 77 N. C., 426.

5. That in regard to the effect of the death of Mary Tyson, the wife
of said John Tyson, before his death, upon the devise to Joanna B.
Crump, set out in item ten of the Will, the court will not, in this
proceeding, adjudicate the legal rights of the parties; but for the
purpose of advising the plaintiffs executors in respect to their duties
under the provisions of section 10 of said will, it is considered and
adjudged, that it is'not the duty of said executors to sell the said land
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g0 devised to Joanna B. Crump and divide same, ete. That the plain-
tiffs will pay the costs of this proceeding out of the assets of their
testator.

From the foregoing judgment the plaintiffs and the defendants,
except the children of Emeline J. Mills, and Joanna B. Crump,
appealed.

R. H. Battle and E. C. Smilh for the various parties litigant.

Swmrtw, C. J., after stating the facts: The appellants have no interest

in the solution of the question referable to the pecuniary bequests

“to the bodily heirs of said Emeline J.,” nor would we be dis-

(868) posed to differ with the judge in his rulmgs upon this matter,
if it were before us.

The judge very properly declined to adv1se as to the devise of the
land mentioned in the tenth item, and the effect of the words used in
“connection, “in consideration of her taking care of her mother,” fur-
ther than to say, it was not the duty of the executors, under the 11th
residuary clause, to sell the land given to Joanna, and her bodily heirs
after hear death, in the clause immediately preceding. Whether the
devise failed because bf the death of the mother before that of the
father, the testator, was not an inquiry which the executors could make
of the court, under the established rules of practice. Tayloe v. Bond,
Busb. Eq., 15; Little v. Thorne, 93 N. C., 69; Cozart v. Lyon, 91
N. C,, 282, and other cases, and for the simple reason that a question
of law is raised among heirs and devisees, and must be settled in an
action between the contending claimants to the land. The executors
have nothing to do with this contention, and, as such, have no duty
to perform, unless it devolves upon them, in one view of the case, to
make sale; and this inquiry is answered.

Our appellate jurisdiction is limited to the correction of errors in the
rulings below, and when there has been no ruling, that jurisdiction
cannot be invoked or exercised.

Without intimation of an opinion upon a point not before us, it is
not improper to refer to the recent case of Burleyson v. Whitley,
reported in 97 N. C., 295. There is no error and the judgment is
affirmed. :

No error. _ _ Affirmed.

Cited: Balsley v. Balsley, 116 N. C., 476; Baplist University o.
Borden, 132 N. C., 504; Heptinstall v. Newsome, 146 N. C., 504;
S. v. English, 164 N. ., 509; 8. ». Heavener, 168 N. C., 164; Jordan
v. Sigmon, 194 N. C,, 707; Trust Co. v. Lentz, 196 N. C., 404.
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(369)
HENRY FARRIOR v. GEO. E. HOUSTON AND ANOTHER.

Levy of Execution—Sale of Land under Execution—Sheriff’s
Deed; recitals in.

1. A sale of real estate under an execution issued on a judgment, which is
a lien thereon, is valid without a levy.

2. All that is essential to a valid sale of real estate under execution is that
the requirements of the law be observed and that it be fully made known
at the sale what property is being sold.

3. The recitals in a sheriff’s deed are prima facie evidence as to his acts
recited therein.

Crvir, action of ejectment, tried before Philips, J., at November
Term, 1887, of Duprin Superior Court.

When this cause was before the Court, upon the defendant’s appeal
from a ruling, that under the pleadings, and upon an averment of title
to the land in themselves, they could not be heard to controvert that of
the plaintiff, by opposing evidence merely, the ruling was declared to be
erroneous, the judgment reversed, and a new trial awarded. 95 N. C,,
573. :
Upon the last trial the plaintiff, who claimed the property under one
L. B. Kelly, exhibited in evidence an execution issued in the name of the
said Kelly, against the defendant, George E. Houston and Edward W.
Houston, administrator, to Bland Wallace, sheriff of Duplin, under
which, after a levy of the same, the premises claimed were sold and con-
veyed to said Kelly. The levy was endorsed thereon in these words:

“Levied this execution upon George E. Houston’s interest in 679
acres of land, more or less, in Kenansville Township, adjoining the lands
laid off to him as a homestead, and others.

B. Warrack, Sheriff.”

It appeared from the testimony of one A. B. McGowen, that 182 acres
were assigned for the debtor’s homestead, and, that outside of this tract,
the said George B. Houston then owned 679 acres of land in
Kenansville Township, and no more, and that of these 679 acres, (370)
353 acres adjoined the homestead, and 326 acres, that are now
in controversy, do not adjoin the homestead, and are two miles distant
from it.

The sheriff’s deed 1s as follows:

Stare or Norra Carorina—Duprin Counry.

Know all men by these presents, that the undersigned, sheriff of the
county of Duplin, and State above written, by virtue of an execution

295



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

FARBRIOR v. HOUSTON.

issued from the Superior Court of said county, in the case following, to
wit, in favor of Isaac B. Kelly against George E. Houston and Edward
W. Houston, administrator with the will annexed of Calvin J. Houston,
deceased, and other executions and veén. ex., as of record doth appear,
having levied said execution or fiers facias, on the lands and tenements
of the said George E. Houston, hereinafter described, on the 20th day of
September, 1869—said lands being in excess of his homestead, which had
first been duly laid off—and having made advertisement according to
law, and sold said lands and tenements at public sale, for cash, on the
first Monday of November, 1869, at the courthouse door in said county,
when and where Isaac B. Kelly, of the county of Duplin, and State of
North Carolina, became last and highest bidder, at the sum of three
hundred and thirty dollars, which said sum has been paid to the under-
signed, in accordance with the terms of said sale. In consideration of
the premises, and in further consideration of the purchase money, paid
as aforesaid by the said Isaac B. Kelly, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, hath bargained and sold, and by these presents doth bar-
gain and sell unto the said Isaac B. Kelly and his heirs, all the right,
title and interest of the said George E. Houston, as aforesaid, in and to

the following tracts or parcels of land, levied on as aforesaid,
(871) situate in Kenansville Township, in said county of Duplin, and

bounded as follows: 1st tract: Beginning at an ash in Dark
Branch, and running S. 9 W. 44 poles to a pine at the road, same course
continued to Neal’s line; thence with his line N. 75 W. about 50 poles to
a pine; thence with his other line S. 3614 W. 249 poles to a pine in the
calf pasture, N. 354 W. 186 poles to a pine; thence N. 40 W. 40 poles
to a pine; thence N. 14 W. about 96 poles to the run of Dark Branch;
thence down the run to the beginning—containing 826 acres, more or
less. Second tract includes all the land devised by George E. Houston,
Sr., to said G. E. Houston, except 182 acres set apart and allotted to him
as a homestead, and is bounded as follows, viz.: Beginning at a pine near
the colored people’s church, on the public road—McGowen’s corner,
formerly James Pearsall’s—and the beginning corner of said George E.
Houston’s homestead tract, and runs with MeGowen’s line to Dr. 1. C.
M. Loftin’s corner; then with his line to John A. Bryan’s, formerly
Oliver’s corner; then with his line to the public road, west of the branch
crossing the road; then along the road westerly to the foot of a cart-
path at the turn of the road, the last corner of said G. E. Houston’s
homestead tract; then with his line to the beginning, supposed to contain
........ acres, more or less. To have and to hold said lands and premises,
with all and singular the privileges, improvements and appurtenances to -
the same belonging, to him the said Isaac B. Kelly, his heirs and assigns,
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in as full and ample a manner as the undersigned is empowered by
virtue of his office to convey and assuye the same. And the undersigned,
sheriff as aforesaid, doth covenant, promise and agree to and with the
said Isaac B. Kelly, his heirs and assigns, that he and they shall and
may at all times hereafter, have, hold, occupy, use and possess said lands
and premises, free and clear of, and from all incumbrances had, made
or done by the undersigned, or by his order, means or procurement; and
that the undersigned will forever warrant and defend said lands
and premises to the said Isaac B. Kelly, his heirs and assigns, (372)
so far as his said office of sheriff will authorize and enable him to
do, and no further.

In testimony whereof, the undersigned, sheriff aforesaid, hath here-
unto set his hand and seal this 3d day of May, 1878.

Branp Warvace, Sherdff. (Seal:)

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of
R. W. Harerave,

The court being of opinion that the plaintiff was not entitled to a
verdict upon his proofs of title, and having so intimated, he submltted
to a nonsuit, and appealed. ‘

W. B. Allen for plainiiff.
H. R. Kornegay for defendant.

Swurrr, C. J., after stating the facts: The only question presented is,
whether the alleged imperfect description of the land in the levy invali-
dates the subsequent proceeding to sell, and renders the sale and sheriff’s
deed void.

There have been numerous cases in which defects were alleged to
exist in a levy upon land made under an execution from a justice of the
peace, the imperfect description of the land being held to be too vague
to warrant further proceedings for a sale.

The necessity of a reasonable certainty in ascertaining and identify-
ing it, grew out of the fact that the process, with the levy, were required
to be returned to the County Court where issued and order made to the
sheriff to sell the land so levied on. A levy was therefore a necessity in
such cases, and: of course the land must be sufficiently described to enable
the sheriff, under the venditions exponas, to know what he was to sell,:
and that bidders might understand what they were buying, and yet veéry:
imperfect descriptions have been upheld. Thus; a levy “upon ‘all the’
lands of the defendant lying on Queen’s. creek,” was held te be . .,
fatally defective without evidence of identity, but a levy- “upon- (373)
all the lands of ' the defendant lying ‘on ‘the head waters. of:- | iy !
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Ketchum’s mill pond, adjoining the lands of said Ketchum,” was held
to be sufficient to warrant the sale. Huggins v. Ketchum, 4 D. & B,
414. '

Again, in McLean v. Paul, 5 Ired., 22, Ruffin, C. J., says that a con-
stable’s levy upon land in this form: “This day levied on the legal and
equitable interest of Abraham Paul to 450 acres of land, more or less,
in Robeson County, adjoining the lands of Giles S. McLean, Dugal
MeCallum, John MeLean and others,” is not objectionable upon its face
0 as not to admit of proof or identity.

In Judge v. Houston, 12 Ired., 108, the sheriff, with a writ of fier:
facias in his hands, endorsed on it: “Levied this execution upon the
land of Stephen M. Houston, on the east side of North East River, ad-
joining the lands of Stephen M. Grady and others, and, after due ad-
vertisement, sold the land levied on,” ete. There were two tracts of land,
on one of which the defendant lived, and had cultivated for several
years, in turpentine; the other, which did not adjoin the first; but was
two miles from it. The defendant in the action, who was defendant in
the execution, objected to the levy, for its vagueness and uncertainty,
and that it could not embrace the second tract, which did not touch the
lands of Stephen M. Grady, as was conceded. In noting the objections,
which were overruled in the Superior Court and brought up for exami-
nation by the defendant’s appeal, Pearson, J., uses this language: “The
defendant’s counsel did not advert to the difference between such a levy,
which need not be returned, and the levy of a constable, which creates a
lien, and must be returned, and must have a certain degree of particu-
larity, so as to identify the land and enable the sheriff to know which
land to sell under the venditions ewponas, and of which, notice must be
given. It is not easy to perceive,” he adds, “why a levy is required

when the land is sold under the fi. fa.”
(374)  Still less reason exists for a levy upon land under the new
practice, by which, the command of the writ in the nature of a
venditions exponas is to sell, in the absence of any personal estate which
can be seized by the officer, the real property belonging to the debtor
when the judgment was docketed in the county, or acquired by him
thereafter. The Code, sec. 448, par. 1.

Accordingly, in answer to an exception to the absence of any levy, this
Court say: “There would seem to be little, if any, advadtage, and cer-
tainly no necessity, for making a levy on the real property of the debtor
under the present system of practice, which makes a lien, etec.

The only effect of a previous levy is, the specific appropriation of the

property on which it is made, out of other equally liable to the plaintiff’s

debt, and may confer an equity on others to have the property first

levied on sold and exhausted before resorting to the other real property
208"
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of the debtor.” Surratt v. Crawford, 87 N. C., 372; and the proposition
is reiterated in Barnes v. Hyatt, decided at the same term, and reported
at page 315. All that is essential is, that the requirements of the law be
observed, and that it be fully made known what property, describing it
with sufficient certainty, is exposed to sale, and what the bidder, who
may purchase, acquires. The sheriff’s deed, whose recitals as to his own
acts are prima facte evidence of the facts recited, expressly declares that
the sale was made on the day and at the place specified by law, of the
lands and tenements of the said George B. Houston, levied and “herein-
after described,” and the boundaries of each tract are definitely set out
in the deed. Mc¢Kee v. Lineberger, 87 N. C., 1815 Miller v. Miller,
89 N. C., 402.

‘We must, therefore, deelare there is error, and reverse the judgment;
and it is so ordered.

Error. Reversed.
(875)
JOHN R. TURRENTINE v. WILMINGTON AND WELDON RAILROAD
COMPANY.

Warehouseman; degree of diligence required of—Bailee without profit.

1. A railroad company, the carriage over its road being complete, had in its
possession, as warehouseman, the goods of plaintiff, upon which the
freight had been paid. The goods were retained in the warehouse at
plaintiff’s request. A fire broke out near the warchouse, but not on the
property of the company. While the fire was burning, plaintiff* asked
permigsion to remove his goods. This was refused, because, in the opinion
of the company’s officers, if the warchouse were opened much of the
property stored therein would be stolen, and also because they did not
think at that time there was danger of the warehouse taking fire. The
company made every effort in its power to prevent the communication
of the fire to the warehouse, and, after it was plain that such efforts
would prove fruitless, had the doors of the warehouse broken open and as
many goods removed therefrom as possible. The company had property
of very great value so located that it must have been burned before
the warehouse could take fire, and thé utmost diligence was used to
remove this property. If such efforts had been successful, the danger
of the warehouse taking fire would have been greatly reduced: Held,
that it was not the duty of the company to act upon the suggestion of
plaintiff, or strangers, as to the best method to save the goods in the
warehouse. That if it used all means at its command and acted upon the
bona fide judgment of its employees as to the best method to prevent the
destruction or loss of the warehouse and goods therein, it was not liable
for the destruction of plaintiff’s goods. .
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2. The custodian of another’s property, who uses the means which, at the
time of danger, appear to him best for its preservation, is not to be held
responsible for failing to adopt measures, which subsequent events show
would have produced better results. An honest and reasonable effort made
in the exercise of an honest judgment is all the law requires of him.

Crvir, action, tried before Shepherd, J., and a jury, at January
Term, 1888, of New Hawover Superior Court.

Judgment for defendant. Plaintiff appealed.

This action is prosecuted to recover in damages the value of a
(876) lot of hams and bacon transported over the defendant’s road to its .
terminus, the point of delivery, at Wilmington, in this State,
which, while in the warehouse of the company, were on the 21st day of
February, 1886, destroyed by fire. The complaint attributes the loss to
the negligence of the company and its failure to make proper efforts for
the safety of the goods, or to allow the plaintiff himself to remove them
to a place beyond the reach of the advancing flames. The defendant
denies the imputation of negligence and want of due care and diligence
in an effort for their preservation; and the issue, drawn from the con-
flicting averments contained in the pleadings and put in form and
passed on by the jury, was as follows: ’

Were the goods lost or destroyed by the wrongful act or default of
defendant? Answer: No.

It was admitted at the trial that on Sunday, 21 February, 1886, the
defendant (the carriage over the road being completed) had in its pos-
session, as warehouseman, the goods whose loss is the subject of the suit,
whereof the hams had been therein stored for seven or eight days, and
the bacon, received later, for two days; that the plaintiff knew of the
arrival of the goods and of their deposit in the warehouse, and he had
given directions for their delivery when called for, having paid the
freight charges thereon; that the warehouse was consumed, with a large
amount of goods, besides those of the plaintiff, by an accidental fire that
originated elsewhere, on the premises of others some distance away, and
that, in its progress and before reaching the warehouse, many buildings
and much property were burned; that the fire occurred in the afternoon
of the day mentioned and caught the Champion compress, which was
burning from a half to an hour, according to differing witnesses as to
the time, from which due north was located the warehouse, and that a

strong wind was then blowing from the southwest to the north-
(8177) east. With these concessions, the testimony bearing upon the

- question of the defendant’s negligence and responsibility for the
loss, was as follows: '

The plaintiff, whose evidence alone on his own behalf is given in the
case upon this point, testified that, while the ¢ompress was on fire and a
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half or three-quarters of an hour before the warehouse caught, he saw
Captain Divine, the general superintendent of company, and said to him,
“if you will open the doors of the warehouse all the goods can be saved”;
that Divine refused to open the doors, saying there was no danger, that
the warehouse was fire-proof, and if the doors were opened, more goods
would bé stolen than saved. That shortly after, he saw Mr. Bridgers,
the president of the defendant, and said to him, that if the doors were
opened the goods could be saved. Mr. Bridgers replied that the ware-
house was fire-proof; to which plaintiff said, “fire-proof, hell, with
wooden doors”; Bridgers said, “you had better see Divine”; plaintiff
replied, he had seen Divine, who had refused to open the doors. Bridgers
then said, “Oh for a head for this concern!” That he could have saved
everything in the warehouse if the doors had been opened; that the fire
was a large conflagration, and burned up a large portion of the city.
There was great excitement, and a large number of people of all classes
were about the fire, and all very much excited. It was the custom for
the railroad company to allow goods to remain in the warehouse after
payment of the freight, without charge for storage, to suit the conven-
ience of the consignees to take them away, and the goods sued for were
left in the warehouse under that customm. When the warehouse was
crowded and they wanted room, they would notify us to move the goods.
This was done for convenience of consignees. That the warehouse was a
pretty substantial brick one, with slate roof and wooden doors. That
there was always danger at fires of goods being stolen; generally the case
at large fires that a crowd gathers to plunder. k

It was also in evidence, on the part of the plaintiff, that the (378)
officers of the defendant did not permit the warehouse to be
opened until the warehouse of the W., C. & A. R. R, the building next
to the defendant’s warehouse, had been so far consumed that its roof had
fallen in. That then the locks of the doors were broken, the doors

opened, and a considerable amount of goods saved, by removing them
" from the warehouse. That Superintendent Divine, when requested by
plaintiff to open the doors, gave as his reason for refusing, that the ware-
house was in no danger, and that the goods would be stolen.

R. R. Bridgers, for defendant, testified that he had no recollection of
the plaintiff having had the conversation with him as testified to by the
plaintiff ; that he was very sure he would have remembered such a con-
versation, if it had taken place.

James F. Post, for defendant, testified that he was in the employ of
defendant at the time of the fire as transfer agent; that the spaee be-
tween the W., C. & A. Railroad warehouse and the warehouse of de-
fendant was full of cars; there were over 150 cars there, most of them
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full of very valuable merchandise; that the bridge over the river at
Hilton, on the W., C. & A. Railroad, had broken down, and trains
couldn’t pass; there were four trains at least delayed here, and all these
cars were between the two warehopses; there was a car load of powder,
some 6,000 or 8,000 pounds, that came in Saturday night before the
fire, on the track between the two warehouses, about midway the train;
the employees of the defendant were all absent, it being Sunday, and we
had no engine fired up; I went to work, as soon as I got there, to get the
powder out; if it had been left there, there would have been great
damage to life, probably fifty persons would have been killed. I got an

engine fired up, and went to work before the compress caught, to
(379) clear the track, and hauled the powder out of the city; the greater

part of the railroad’s accommodation to move freight was there
between the two warehouses, fully 150 cars; these cars were filled with
cotton, naval stores, and valuable merchandise; the spring goods were
then going South, and goods of immense value were in these cars; the
cars belonged to defendant, and were worth over $400 apiece; all these
cars were in much greater danger than the warehouse, because they
would have burned before the warehouse; it was necessary to remove
these cars to save the warehouse.

Harry Walters, for defendant, testified that he was general manager
of the Atlantic Coast Line; when he got to the fire, it had not reached
the compress; the offices of defendant were directly east of the compress,
and warehouse directly north; the wind was blowing strong from south-
west to northeast; the offices were burned, and many of the records of the
company ; he went below from the offices and saw fire engine—the water
had given out—and tried to get it to go down to the river to put the
hose in, but they refused; there were a large number of cars between
the W., C. & A. R. R. warchouse and the warehouse of defendant; I
went there and saw that if we could get the cars out, we could save the
warehouse; if wé could get these cars out, there would be no danger; we
got all the cars out but a few; the lines became so blocked with cars we
could not get an engine down; got all the hands we could, and went to
- pushing the cars out by hand; we got all past the warehouse but one car,
which we pushed up to the end of warehouse, but we couldn’t push it any
further; then I ordered the locks to be broken, and the doors to be
opened—we did not have the keys to the doors; the warehouse caught
from that one car, and if it could have been moved out, the warehouse
would have escaped; the wind was blowing obliquely across, and fire
only struck the east end of warehouse; that ear was at east end of ware-

house, and set fire to it; we saved about $6,000 of goods by
(380) moving them away on lighters, and paid out a large amount for
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lighters and labor in saving the goods; the instant we saw we could
not save the warchouse, we broke open the doors; there is generally
a large accumulation of freight on Sunday, and at that time Hilton
bridge was broken down, and five or six traing delayed here; there was a
very large amount of goods in the warehouse and cars; the offices and
records burned before the warehouse; we ecould not concentrate all atten-
tion at any one point; we used all the means at our command ; the offices,
the warehouses, the passenger sheds, machine shops, cars, etc., of the
-defendant were all in jeopardy from the fire at the same time; there
was abont $125,000 of goods in the cars between the two warehouses,
and including the two warehouses and the cars, about $175,000 or
$200,000; the defendant had property in danger from the fire worth
about $500,000. T did not open the doors of the warehouse sooner, for
two rcasons: I did not think it was in danger, and the goods would have
been stolen.

John F. Divine, for defendant, testified : I was general superintendent
of defendant at time of fire; there was a heavy wind, and fire made way
rapidly; we had a large amount of freight accumulated here at the time;
there were 150 to 200 cars on the tracks between the two warehouses; we
got all the cars out except a few next to the defendant’s warehouse, got
hands and pushed these out, all but one or two; the warehouse caught
from this car; if this car could have been pushed out of the way the
warehouse would not have burned; I gave my whole attention to moving
out these cars, as the best means of saving the warehouse; there was a
quantity of powder in one of the cars, but don’t know how much; as soon
as I thought the warehouse was in danger, I broke locks of the doors,
and opened them; the wind was blowing towards the east end of ware-
house, and it caught there; after the doors were opened, we got .
out all the goods we possibly could, and saved them by means of (381)
lighters; I had no conversation with the plaintiff on that day, as
testified to by him.

Mr. Meares testified, that during the fire he saw persons running,
and heard them say there was powder there.

During the examination in chief of the plaintiff, his counsel proposed
to prove by him the facts submitted in the following questions, which
he propounded to the witness: “Were not the people at the fire saying
that the warehouse would burn, and was not that the general belief of
the bystanders?’ The defendant objected, and the objection was sus-
tained. The plaintiff excepted.

The plaintiff proposed to prove by another witness, that the defendant
has settled the claims of other parties whose goods were lost at the same
fire, and under similar circumstances. The defendant objected; the
objection was sustained, and the plaintiff excepted.
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The plaintiff prayed the following instructions:

1. Defendant being custodian of plaintiff’s goods, was bound to exer-
cise such care and diligence in saving them, as a person of ordinary
prudence would exercise with reference to his own property. Neal v.
R. R., 8 Jones, 482.

2. If defendant refused or failed to open the warehouse, and attempt
to save the goods, or permit them to be saved, when the warehouse was
in danger, the fire threatening, and there was good reason to apprehend
destruction, it was guilty of gross negligence, and the first issue must be -
found in the affirmative.

3. If, when the compress was burning, there was a high wind blowing
in the general direction of the warehouse, it was negligence for the de-
fendant to refuse to try to save the goods, or permit them to be saved,
and the first issue must be found in the affirmative.

4. If, when the fire was raging, the circumstances were such as to
cause a person of ordinary prudence to believe that the warehouse would

burn, or was in danger of burning, it was the defendant’s duty
(382) to try to save the goods, and its failure to do so, until the other

warehouse was burning, was negligence, and the first issue must
be found in the affirmative.

5. If the defendant refused, or failed to try to save the goods as soon
as it could be seen that they were in danger from the approaching fire,
it was gross negligence, and the first issue must be found in the affirma-
tive.

6. To establish gross negligence on the part of the defendant, it is not
incumbent on the plaintiff to show any fraudulent purpose or conduct.
Jones on Bailments, page 21, note; Parsons Contracts, 2d vol., page 88.

7. If the defendant was guilty of negligence, it is not exonerated by
reason of the fact that.its own goods were in the warehouse with the
plaintiff’s. Parsons, 2d vol., 91, and note.

8. Even though there was reason to apprehend that opening the ware-
house would result in confusing goods, miscarriage in delivery, or theft,
this did not excuse defendant for its refusal to permit plaintiff to save -
his goods, if plaintiff demanded them.

The first, sixth and seventh were given as prayed for. The others
were not given as asked ; but, after stating the case, the court charged the
jury as follows:

It is conceded by the plaintiff, that the defendant is not liable as a
common carrier, but he contends it is liable as a warehouseman. That
the defendant was a warehouseman, is conceded; and the question is,
whether the defendant is liable for the loss of the goods, occasioned by
what is conceded to have been an accidental fire, originating elsewhere
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than on defendant’s premises, and without any fault on its part. If the
jury believe that the goods were stored by defendant in a brick ware-
house with slate roof, which was its usual place for the storage of its
freight not taken away by consignees; that the fire was accidental,
originating on the premises of others; that when the defendant’s (383)
property was threatened with danger by the fire, the defendant
exerted all the means in its power to save the warehouse, by removing
the alleged intervening box cars, and the alleged car load of powder, and
other efforts, and by these means decreasing the danger of the said ware-
house, and notwithstanding these efforts the warehouse and goods were
destroyed ; then, nothing further appearing, the defendant is not liable.
The plaintiff denies that the defendant used all the means in its power.
First, he says that if the doors of the warehouse had been opened, the
goods could have been saved, and that there was suflicient force present to
have saved them. The court charges you, that the defendant was not
bound to act upon the suggestion, or offers of bystanders, as to the par-
ticular manner in which it should endeavor to save its property, or that
which 1s under its control, but that it is its duty to avail itself of all the
means within its reach to save such property; and upon this question
" the jury may consider the alleged offer of assistance, the opportunity of
employing force, and all the circumstances in evidence, and if, at the
time when danger threatened the warehouse, the defendant had the
means at hand, and could, by their employment have saved the goods
in the Warehouse the defendant failed or refused to employ these means,
it would be liable. But if the jury believe that the fire was raging, and
many bmldmgs in different parts of the city were in flames; that there
was a heavy wind blowing from the southwest to northeast that the
warehouse was due north of the compress; that a large number of per-
sons of all classes and conditions were gathered together in the vicinity of
the warehouse, and that there was danger of theft; that a car loaded with
a large quantity of powder was blocked in on the track near the ware-
house, with a number of cars in front of it; that the fire was on Sunday,
when all of the employees of the defendant were off duty and away; that
there was a large quantity of very valuable freight in the cars and
the warehouse; that many cars—one hundred and fifty in num- (384)
ber—were standing on the track between the two warehouses;
that the efforts of the superintendent and manager were principally
directed in removing the powder first, and then the cars; that these were
near to the fire, and in greater danger than the warehouse in which were
stored the plaintiff’s goods; that several buildings of the defendant, in-
cluding its offices, containing all of its records, at different points were
on fire, and that property to the value of about $500,000, belonging to
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the defendant and under its charge, was in danger, and threatened by
the fire; and if the jury further believe that, by reason of these alleged
circumstances, all of the available force at the defendant’s command was
being used to move the intervening cars and powder, and in other efforts
to remove inflammable matter between the fire and warehouse, and that
by throwing open the doors of the warehouse the goods therein would
have been exposed to a promiscuocus crowd and in danger of theft, then
the defendant would not be guilty in failing to open the doors of the
warehouse.

The plaintiff contends that without regard to this, he is entitled to
recover because, after danger threatened, he requested the defendant to
open the doors of its warehouse in order that he might remove his goods.
This request is denied, and the burden of proof is on the plaintiff to
show that he made such request. If you find there was such a request,
then the court charges that it was the duty of persons having freight in
such warehouse to apply for its delivery during business. hours and on
business days (counsel conceded at this stage of the charge that the
demand, if any, was made on Sunday, and that Sunday was not a proper
day for the delivery of freight by defendant in the ordinary course of
business), and if, when such demand was made to open the doors, all of

the available force of defendant was engaged in protecting 1ts
(385) property, and that of others In its ctistody, which was in more

imminent danger, and that, under the circumstances, it had not
the proper force to make a safe dehvery of the plaintiff’s property in the
warehouse, and that opening or breaking open the doors, the key not
being there, it is alleged, and allowing the plaintiff to remove his goods,
would have exposed a large amount of goods in said warehouse to theft
or miscarriage, and defendant was, in good faith, using all of its avail-
able means in protecting property in more imminent danger; that the
fire was raging and many buildings in different parts of the city were
in flames; that there was a heavy wind blowing from the southwest to
the northeast ; that the warehouse was due north of the compress; that a
large number of persons of all classes and conditions were gathered to-
gether in the vicinity of the warehouse, and that there was danger of
theft; that a ear loaded with a large quantity of powder was blocked in
on the track near the warehouse with a number of cars in front of it;
that the fire was on Sunday, when all of the employees of the defendant
were off duty and away; that there was a large quantity of very valuable
freight in the cars and the warehouse; that many cars, one hundred and
fifty in number, were standing on the track between the two warehouses;
that the efforts of the superintendent and manager were principally di-
rected in removing the powder first, and then the cars; that these were
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nearer to the fire and in greater danger than the warehouse in which
were stored the plaintiff’s goods; that several buildings of the defendant,
including its offices containing all of its records, at different points, were
on fire, and that property to the value of about $500,000 belonging to the
defendant and under its charge, was in danger and threatened by the
fire, and if the jury further believe that by reason of these alleged cir-
cumstances all of the avilable force at the defendant’s command was
being used to move the intervening cars and powder, and in other
efforts to remove inflammable matter between the fire and the (386)
warehouse, then the defendant was under no obligation to open its

doors to the plaintiff.

But if, under the circumstances, you believe that the defendant had
the means to have safely delivered to the plaintiff his goods, or that
opening the door and permitting him to receive the same, would not,
under the circumstances, have probably exposed the other property
stored in the warehouse to theft, then the defendant is liable.

There was a verdict in favor of the defendant, and the plaintiff moved
for a new trial.

1. Because of the exclusion of testimony—see exceptions.

2. Because of the refusal of the court to give instructions as asked.

3. Because of errors in the charge as given.

The motion was overruled, and judgment rendered in favor of the
defendant; the plaintiff appealed.

D. L. RBussell and T. B. Purnell for plaintif.

George Dawis for defendand.

Surra, C. J., after stating the facts: The aspect of the case, pressed
with most earnestness in the argument here, grows out of the fact that
the plaintiff, at a time when the goods could have been removed with
safety, was not allowed to enter the warehouse and take possession of his
own for that purpose, and it is assigned as error, that the instruction
numbered 2, in those requested by the plaintiff to be given to the jury,
was refused. The others following, and denied, are substantially em-
bodied in that, and need not be separately considered. In place of these,
the charge of the court is fully set out, and seems, to us, to more fairly
present the merits of the controversy, as developed in the evidence, to
the minds of the jury. The law is there laid down, both carefully and
with much accuracy, well calculated to aid and guide the jury to
a just verdict. It certainly does mot necessarily follow, that a (387)
want of due regard to the rights and interests of the plaintiff is
manifested, in the refusal, at the time of the conflagration, under the
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attendant cirecumstances, when it was hoped the efforts then made to stay
the progress of the fire would be successful, and the warehouse and what
it contained be saved, to throw open its doors and expose them to in-
creased hazard from entering sparks and depredation of others. The
defendant owned no less a duty to others than to the plaintiff, and its
efforts, with all the forces at command, seemed to have been directed to
the preservation of all the goods in its custody.

The plaintiff was present to look after his, but other owners were not
there; and it was not an unreasonable apprehension, that opening the
house and giving indiscriminate access to the goods therein deposited,
would result in a much greater loss.

There were, moreover, as is proved, a large number of cars blocking
up the way, one hundred and fifty or more, and a large quantity of gun-
powder in some of them, and the efforts of the men, under the direction
of the officers, were mainly made to remove them, so that the flame pass-
ing along them might be arrested before reaching the warehouse, and
this was well nigh accomplished, only one or two left, which it was
found impracticable to move in time, and through these, the fire was
communicated to the warehouse. According to the superintendent, if
the cars could have been removed, the warehouse would not have been
burned. It is unnecessary to repeat the testimony, as it is set out in
full, but it tends to show energetic and well directed efforts to save the
large property of others in its hands and its own, from the spreading
and consuming element that was devouring houses all around, and we do
not see any error in the charge of the court in regard to-its respousi-

. bility. It must not be forgotten that one’s judgment, under such
(388) trying circumstances, is not as calm and deliberate in determining
what then ought to be done, as afterwards upon a retrospect woyld
have promised better results, and this severe rule of liability does not
rest upon the custodian of another’s property. If an honest and reason-
able effort is made, suggested, at the time, as the best line of action to be
pursued, and this in good faith, and of this the peril to the defendant’s
property gives full assurance, it exonerates from liability for loss. The
warehouse, built of brick, and its roof slate covered, seems.to have been
deemed well nigh fire-proof; and even now, in reviewing the past, it is
not clear that the plaintiff should have been permitted to take away his
goods, and thereby endanger, if not insure the destruction of the other
goods; and if it were otherwise, and that the servants of the company
erred in their action, it eould hardly be imputed as negligence in them
to so act upon an honest, though it may turn out to be a mistaken,
judgment.
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But the law is so fairly left to the jury in the charge, that nothing is
required of us in support of its correctness. DBut little aid can assuredly
be derived from adjudged cases, as the facts are seldom, if ever, the same,
and the question of culpable neglect must, in each case, depend upon its
own facts. It must be declared that there is no error, and the judgment
is affirmed.

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Lyman v. B. B., 132 N. C., 125; Whitley v. Powell, 191 N. C,,
476.

(389)

H. H. BURWELL, JOSEPH BURWELL AnD OTHERS, TRADING A8 BURWELL
BROS. & CO., v. W. H. S. BURGWYN.

. Contract—Usury.

1. A contract whereby a banker agreed to pay tickets issued by a tobacco
warehouseman out of moneys deposited by the latter with him, and keep
an account of their transactions, for a compensation of one-fourth of one
per cent for his services, including collection of buyers’ drafts, and if
warehouseman’s funds were not in hand, but sums so paid by banker
should be replaced by 10 A. M. of the following day, the banker was to
have one-half of one per cent, and if not so replaced, he was to have
the further sum of one and one-half per cent per month (or 18 per cent
per annum) on the overdrawn sums, is usurious as to the excess of the
charge for overdrafts above the legal rate of interest allowed for the
loan of money.

2. The nature and terms of a contract determine its character and purpose,
and if it be usurious in itself, it must be taken to have been so intended,
and the parties cannot be heard to the contrary.

Crvir action, heard before Merrimon, J., at Spring Term, 1887, of
the Superior Court of Vance.

The action was brought by the plaintiffs, warehousemen of the town
of Henderson, who, having become indebted in sums advanced to them
by the defendant, a broker of that town, from time to time for several
years, alleged charges of usurious interest, and demanded that the de-
fendant be enjoined from selling certain real property belonging to the
wife of one of the plaintiffs which had been mortgaged to the defendant
to secure a certain sum which was alleged to be part of the money
charged by the defendant against plaintiffs’ firm, that an account be-
tween plaintiffs and defendant be taken, ete.
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The defendant’s answer set up a contract between him and the plain-

tiffs, under which he had advanced the money: denied usury, ete. _

The action was referred to J. R. Young, the clerk of the court,

(390) and he having filed his report, the case was heard upon the

exceptions of the plaintiffs.

His Honor overruled the exceptions and gave judgment according to
the report, from which some of the plaintiffs appealed.
The other facts sufficiently appear in the opinion.

W. R. Henry and E. C. Smith for plaintiffs.
A. C. Zollicoffer, B. H. Battle and S. F. Mordecai for defendant.

Smrrr, C. J. The plaintiffs firm, Burwell Bros. & Co., consisting
first of H. H. Burwell, Joseph Burwell and W. B. Boyd, and changed
afterwards by the substitution of Walter S. Clark in place of the last
named, retaining, however, the partnership name, were, in November,
1882, engaged in the business of warehousing tobacco at Henderson,
in this State, and the defendant had then opened a banking house.in the
name of W. H. S, Burgwyn & Co., and afterwards known as the Bank
of Henderson. At the time mentioned, a contract was entered into
between the parties, as found by the referee to whom had been referred
the matters of account in controversy, whereby the latter was to pay
off tickets issued by the former for tobacco, out of moneys deposited
with him, and keep an account of their transactions, for which the said
Burgwyn was to have one-half of one per cent upon sums so paid out,
as compensation for his services, inclusive of the collection of buyers’
drafts given upon sales.

This arrangement continued in force until superseded by a modifi-
cation that took effect after January following, under which the said
Burgwyn was to receive for his services one-fourth of one per cent
when the plaintiff had funds on deposit sufficient to meet the demand;
and if not, he was to have the former sum of one-half of one per
cent advances, provided they were replaced by the hour of ten a. m. of

the day following. If the moneys were not restored on that day,
(391) the plaintiffs.were to pay a furtlier sum at the rate of one and

one-half per cent per month, the equivalent of eighteen per cent
per annum, on the overdrawn amounts, measured by the time of delay
as shown by the daily balances in the account.

Upon this basis the referee states the account reported in monthly
rests, and exception is taken to so much of the charges for the additional
one and one-half per cent per annum as exceeds the rate of interest
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allowed by the law, and an abatement of five-ninths on each of these
debits, as the usurious excess over the legal rate of interest allowed
upon the loan of money.

The referee, while finding the contract to be as before set forth, re-
ports also that the additional sum mentioned, as consequent upon delay
in reimbursing advaneces, covers interest at eight per cent, and that the
ten per cent was for expenses and services in the assumed agency,
adopted by the parties as the most convenient way of arriving at their
value, and was a fair and proper charge therefor.

The principle of the exception runs threugh the series of monthly
statements rendered by the referee, and these extend over several years,
and if the charge be erroneous, for the reason given, the correction will
be necessarily coextensive with the account, and require a correction
of all the items into which the obnoxious element enters.

This exception must, we think, be sustained, and for the reasons given,
and this notwithstanding the referee’s conclusion, that the additional
per centum, over eight, was intended to be remunerative only for
services to be rendered, for such an inference is unwarranted by the
terms of the agreement.

The compensation is provided independently, and is fixed first at one-
half of one per cent, and afterwards, at the reduced rate of one-fourth
of one per cent, when there are funds of the plaintiffs in hand to
meet the demands upon it—increased to the original sum if
there are not, but the deficiency is made good early on the next (392)
day, and these are the fixed rates to be allowed for clerical
labor, collecting drafts deposited and every other form of service to be
rendered. Thus far, the amount is compensatory merely, and covers
the demand for what the defendant may do pursuant to their contract.
The additional sums to be charged, in case the sums advanced are not
reimbursed within the specified time, is for the use of the moneys of the
defendant, which is, in a legal sense, the interest agreed on for the
advanced sums thence up to the time of replacement. Interest is the
sum that acerues on money loaned, or the value of the use of it for any
given time, and is fixed at six per cent per annum, in the absence of
any agreement as to the rate, and a conventional rate is allowed up to
eight per cent per annum on the principal sum. The Code, secs. 3835,
3836. Usury consists in taking a larger rate, and an agreement to take
such larger rate is a usurious agreement, the effect of which is forfeiture,
when insisted on, of all interest,

Most clearly, the contract before us is of this kind, for the sum to be
paid has no consideration whatever, except the advance of the money
and forbearance of the lender, and is measured by a rate of eighteen
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per cent per annum upon the amount while it remains unpaid. What
else can 1t be, when an agreed price is set upon the personal services to
be given, and this is to be paid solely for indulgence in the moneys paid
out for the plaintiffs’ use while an outstanding debit against them?

-The nature and terms of the contract determine its character and
purpose, and if usurious in itself, it must be so understood to have been
intended by the parties, and they cannot be heard to the contrary.
As was said in reference to fraud, in Cheatham v. Hawkins, 80 N. C,,
161 (164), “If a person does, and intends to do that which from its

consequences the law.pronounces fraudulent, he is held to intend
(393) the fraud inseparable from the act. So the parties to a contraet

usurious upon its face, understandingly entered into, must be
deemed to have intended to provide for the payment of a rate of interest
in excess of that allowed by law, and that is itself a usurious contract.
The inference drawn by the referee, to sustain the charge, is repugnant
to the agreement, as he ascertains and reports it, and does not suffice
to vindicate it from the inherent infectious element, which the law
declares and adjudges to be present in the transaction, and the adverse
ruling in the court below, in this respect, is erroneous. The entire
forfeiture of this compensation is not demanded, nor would it in equity
be allowed; and therefore, from these sums must be stricken out all of
the eighteen per cent above eight per cent, that is, a deduction of five
ninths must be made from these various items, and a correspondent rate
of interest, so that the plaintiffs will be charged with the remaining
~ four-ninths and legal interest thence on each of their debits.

The other exceptions are untenable, and we sustain the action of the
court in overruling them.

To reform the account in accordance with this opinion, the matter
is recommitted to the referce, Young, as most familiar with the case,
to make the required corrections, :

Error. Report recommitted.

Cited: 8. ¢., 105 N. C., 503, 507; Bank v. Bobbitt, 108 N. C., 536;
Churchill v. Turnage, 122 N. C., 430; Owens v. Wright, 161 N, C.,
1381; Bank v. Wysong & Miles Co., 177 N. C., 291; Bank v. Wysong &
Miles Co., thid., 389; Waters v. Garris, 188 N, C., 307; Ripple .
Mortgage Corporation, 193 N. C., 424,
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M. J. YOUNG Anp OtHERS v. P, B. KENNEDY AND OTHERS.
(Vide Young v. Kennedy, 95 N. C., 269.)

Crvin action, heard upon exceptions to a referee’s report. The case
is fully reported in 95 N. C., 265, in which the court directed
a reference to the clerk of this Court, to reform the account (394)
in accordance with the opinion.

RB. F. Armfield for plaintiffs.
D. M. Furches and J. B. Batchelor for defendants.

Davis, J. This action was before this Court at the October Term,
1886, and was then heard upon the exceptions to the report of the
referees and the rulings thereon by the court below. These exceptions,
and the disposition made of them, appear in the case reported in 95
N. C,, 265. As will be seen, by reference thereto, it was referred to the
clerk to reform the account in accordance with the opinion then filed.
This was done by the clerk, and his report was filed at February Term,
18817,

In this report he states that in reforming the account he did not
make a new statement of each special item in the long account on file,
but, taking the aggregate receipts and credits in that aceount, he added
or subtracted such others as the court directed.

In passing upon the second exception of the plaintiff (page 268 of
the report) it is stated that in the division of the slaves between the
tenants in common the share allotted to M. J. Young was $550 in excess
of the other two shares, and she was charged therewith. This excess,
instead of being paid by M. J. Young to the other two tenants in
common, who were then infants, and each entitled to one-half thereof,
was in fact not paid at all, but was entered as a credit by the adminis-
trator as a part of $655 allowed to M. J. Young as a year’s support,
and that, being so, the administrator should have been charged there-
with; but in the distribution of the estate, Thomas M. Young and
Mary Young (or J. M. Howard, her administrator, she being dead)
were entitled to receive the whole of that amount (the $550 and
interest) as so much due to them, in order to make them equal
to M. J. Young in the division of the slaves. ' (395)

This result is attained in the account, as reformed by the
clerk, by adding the said sum of $550 and the interest thereon to the
sum charged, making the balance in the hands of the administrator,
after deducting the credits, $3,689.74, which, as the referee reports, “is
to be divided between M. J. Young, T. M. Young and Mary Young
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(or J. M. Howard, her administrator), after which one third of
$1,391.18, the amount of the excess, with interest thereon, received by
M. J. Young in the division of the slaves, is to be deducted from her
share and added, one-half each to the shares of T. M. Young and Mary
Young, whereby they will receive the whole of the said $550 and
interest, making $1,391.13, as they have already received two-thirds in
the division of the estate.” The defendant, Kennedy, excepts to the
report: “first, for that the referee erred in adding two-thirds of $550
and interest paid M. J. Young for the equality of partition of slaves by
A. L. Young, administrator, without first deducting the whole amount,
$1,391.13, which had been before allowed them, thereby duplicating this
charge against defendant, and making it greater instead of less, as he un-
derstands the ruling of the court to intend, as applied to plaintiff’s sixth
(second) exception, and defendant’s second exception.”

This is a misapprehension. The defendant is credited by $550 and
interest thereon, making $1,391.18 as a part of the item of $655 paid
to M. J. Young (the widow), as her year’s support, when in fact it was
not paid in money out of the estate of his intestate, but was the amount
due from the widow, M. J. Young, not to the estate, but to T. M.
Young and Mary Young, to make them equal in the division of the
slaves; and by the process reported by the clerk the same result is arrived

at as if M. J. Young had paid directly to T. M. Young and Mary
(396) Young the amount due to them from her. The administrator,

instead of paying to her $550 (to be added to $105 paid in cash
to make the amount of her year’s support), allowed her to offset that
amount by the sum due from her to T. M. Young and Mary Young
in the division of the slaves, and thus the administrator, instead of
M. J. Young, became the debtor to them.

Strictly speaking, the item of $550 to make the division of the slaves
equal, should not have gone into the administration account at all, but
as the administrator received credit for it, in paying the year’s support
to the widow, he should be charged with it, but in the settlement of the
estate, T. M. Young and Mary Young (or her estate) should receive
the benefit of it; and this is the result of the account as reformed. This
will appear from a simple calculation, as follows: By charging the
administrator with $550 and interest thereon, the balance in his hands,
as appears from the account, is $3,689.74; this, divided into three parts,
will give to each $1,229.91; but in this division, M. J. Young received
one-third of $1,391.91 (included in the account), to which she was not
entitled ; deducting this one-third of $1,391.18—%$463.71—from $1,229.91,
and we have $766.20, and by adding one-half of it to each of the other
shares, it will make each $1,461.76, one-half which is the result as
arrived at in the report.
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Now, if you deduct the $1,391.13 (the whole of which is due to T. M.
Young and the estate of Mary Young) from $3,689.74, it will leave
$2,298.61, to be equally divided between M. J. Young, T. M. Young
and the estate of Mary Young, giving to each $766.20—one-third—and
then adding one-half of $1,391.13 to each of the shares of the last two
(to the whole of which they were entitled), they have each $1,461.76—
one-half—which is the same result as that arrived at in the report.

The second and third exceptions of the defendant are founded, in
part, upon the same misapprehension as to the effect of the reformed
account, just referred to, and, in part, as the effect of the opinion
(95 N. C., at page 269), overruling the plaintifi’s fifth exception. (397)

"In the settlement with J. M. Howard, administrator of Mary
Young, the defendant will be credited by the sums advanced to the half
brother, J, H. Stewart, as one of the distributees of Mary Young, and
in the settlement of hex estate, J. H. Stewart will be charged with the
sums so advanced, and, as was said, “as her administrator is before
the court, to be bound by what is done,” the subdivision of her share
of her father’s estate may be had in this action, and the distributive
portion of J. H. Stewart charged with the expenditures made in his
behalf. In the distribution of the share of Mary Young, in the hands
of J. M. Howard, her administrator, J. H. Stewart will be required to
account for $445.09, the sum found to be so expended.

The distribution and settlement will be made in accordance with the
report as reformed, and the opinion of the Court in passmg upon the
fifth exception, 95 N. C., at page 269.

J. L. ALLEN v. THE CAPE FEAR AND YADKIN VALLEY RAILROAD
COMPANY AND ANOTHER.

Demurrer Ore Tenus—Damages—Libel—Privileged Communica-
tions—Carriers—=Section 1963 of The Code.

1. A complaint set forth in substance: That defendant was a railroad cor-
poration and common carrier; that plaintiff was a merchant and manu-
facturer, and a patron of defendant, receiving and shipping freight over
its line in the conduct of his business; that defendant, through its super-
intendent, caused a notice to be sent to all its agents, instructing them
to ship no freight to plaintiff, except upon prepayment of all rates and
charges for transportation, and also requested a connecting railroad
company to issue a like notice to its agents; that defendant railroad
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company was accustomed to receive and transport freight for all ship-
pers without prepayment of charges, and up to the issuing of the above
notice, plaintiff had been treated as all other customers of the defendant
in that respect; that the notice applied to him alone, and was a dis-
crimination against him; that upon its attention being called to said
notice, defendant refused to change or modify it, though plaintiff so re-
quested ; that defendant enforced said order against plaintiff; that the
issuing and enforcement of said order by defendant was, as plaintiff
was advised and believed, wrongful and unlawful; that plaintiff, by
reason of the said order, “wrongfully and unlawfully issued,” and
“wrongfully and unlawfully carried out and enforced and published
against” him, was greatly damaged and injured in his business and in
credit as a merchant, to wit: in the sum of $10,000: Held, that the
complaint failed to state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action,
in that: (1) It does not show that defendant, in fact, refused to receive
or transport goods offered for shipment to plaintiff, or that any in-
convenience, expense or delay was caused plaintiff, or that the order
was acted on and enforced to plaintiff’s damage; (2) If the order is
claimed to be libellous, the complaint fails to charge that it was intended
to injure plaintiff in his business; (3)- it appears on the face of the
complaint, that the order was a privileged communication, and it is not
alleged to have been made maliciously. i

2. A common carrier has a right to demand the prepayment of charges for
transportation, before receiving freight for shipment to one individual,
although it may have an established custom to accept shipments to its
other patrons without such prepayment. Section 1963 of The Code
recognizes this right.

(398)  Crviv acrion, tried before Clark, J., at May Term, 1887, of
CumeErLAND Superior Court.

Judgment for defendant dismissing the action, on the ground that
the complaint did not state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action.
The point was raised by motion to dismiss, in the nature of a demurrer
ore tenus. Plaintiff appealed. '

The facts appear in the opinion.

(399) W. A. Guthrie, T. H. Sutton and N. M. Ray for plaintiff.
G. M. Rose and D. Rose for defendants.

SumirH, C. J. The plaintiff sued out a summons against the defend-

ant company, on 14 May, 1884, and, upon the return of service, set.

out his cause of action in the following complaint filed:

1. The above-named plaintiff, complaining, says, that the above
named defendant, “The Cape Fear & Yadkin Valley Railway Com-
pany,” is, and was at the time hereinafter mentioned and referred to,
a corporation, duly created and existing under and by virtue of the laws

of North Carolina, and, as such, was acting as a common carrier in the

316



N.C.] "FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

ArLreny ». R. R.

transportation of passengers and freight to and from the town of
Fayetteville, in said county of Cumberland, and exercising and enjoying
all the rights, powers and privileges appertaining to railway corpora-
tions as common carriers and warehousemen.

2. That the defendant James S. Morrison was at the time hereinafter
mentioned and referred to, in the employment of said corporation de-
fendant as engineer and superintendent of said railway.

3. That the plaintiff, J. L. Allen, at the time hereinafter mentioned
and referred to, was engaged in business in said town of Fayetteville
as a merchant and dealer in furniture and other merchandise, and
also as a manufacturer of furniture and sash, blinds, doors and other
building material.

4. That as such merchant, dealer and manufacturer the plaintiff was
a patron of said railway and was accustomed to use the same in the
transportation of goods and materials to his said place of business
and manufactory, and also in the shipping of furniture, goods, sash,
blinds, ete., from his store and factory in said town of Iayetteville,
using the said road as merchants, dealers and shippers of all
kinds were and are accustomed to do. (400)

5. That on or about 6 May, 1884, the defendant James S.
Morrison caused to be issued from his office an order as follows, viz.:
“6 May, 1884. To Agents: From this date you are instructed to ship
no lumber or merchandise of any description to Mr. J. L. Allen, of
Fayetteville, N. C., except when all freight and charges are paid.
J. 8. Morrison, Engineer and Superintendent,” and caused the same
to be sent to all the agents on the line of said railway, and also re-
quested Major Winder, who is the superintendent of the Raleigh &
Augusta Air Line Railroad, to give the same instruetions to agents
on his road. The said R. & A. A. L. Railroad was at that time the
ounly railroad that connected with the C. F. & Y. V. Railway and de-
livered freight to or received freight from the C. F. & Y. V. Railway.

6. That said C. F. & Y. V. Railway Company was accustomed to
receive and transport goods, merchandise and freight of all kinds for all
shippers without requiring prepayment of freight and charges, and up
to said 6 May, 1884, the plaintiff had been treated as all other cus-
tomers in that respect; but the aforesaid order was a discrimination
against the plaintiff specially, and was not made to apply to the other
customers or patrons of said corporation generally.

7. That the said corporation defendant, upon its attention being
called specially to said order by the plaintiff, refused to change or
modify it, and said corporation has enforced said order against the
plaintiff.

) 317



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [100

ArteN v. R. R.

e

8. That the issuing and enforcement of said order by said J. S.
Morrison and by the C. F. & Y. V. Railway Company, as plaintiff is
advised and believes, was wrongful and unlawful.

9. That by reason of the aforesaid order, wrongfully and unlawfully
issued by said J. 8. Morrison and wrongfully and unlawfully carried
) out and enforced and published against the plaintiff by said J. S.
(401) Morrison, chief engineer and superintendent, and by said \C. F.

& Y. V. Railway Company, the plaintiff has been greatly dam-
aged and injured in his aforesaid business and in his financial standing
and eredit as a merchant, dealer and manufacturer, viz.: in the sum
of ten thousand dollars. Whereupon the plaintiff demands judgment, ete.

The defendants put in their answer, in which they admit the material
facts set out in the complaint, and among them the issue of the order
to the agents of the company to require payment of all goods consigned
to the plaintiff, and this they. justify on the ground of his repeated
refusal and delay in paying freight bills when presented, and the in-
convenlence and embarrassment resulting therefrom, and his disregard
of notice given of the intended action of the company.

On defendants’ motion to dismiss the action, the following judgment
was rendered :

This cause coming on to be heard upon the complaint and answer,
and after argument, it is now, on motion of defendant’s counsel, as
upon a demurrer ore fenus, that the complaint does not state facts
sufficient to constitute a cause of action, ordered and adjudged that
this action be dismissed and that the defendant recover judgment
against plaintiff for costs, to be tazed by the clerk.

From this ruling, and the judgment consequent on it, the plaintiff
appealed.

On examining the complaint it will be seen that it does not show
that the company or any of its agents ever in fact refused to receive or
transport any goods offered for transportation to the plaintiff, or that
any Inconvenience, expense or delay has been incurred by reason of the
issue of the order, or that it has been acted on and enforced to the
plaintif’s detriment or damage. The gravamen of the complaint is
that the order itself is personal and diseriminates between him and

other persons who may wish to use the road for transportation
(402) purposes in requiring of him an advance payment when goods

are sent, which is not required in the case of others; and the
allegation is that this is not allowable, because the company is a public
corporation and a common carrier. Still the fact remains, or at least
the contrary is mnot averred, that the order is still without practical
results of which the plaintiff can complain and until it is put in force it
is no more than a declaration of intention and not a cause of action.
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In the argument before us it is insisted, and such seems to have been
the object in view in framing the complaint, that the order is a libellous
publication, hurtful to the, plaintiff’s credit as a business man, who
has frequent occasion to use the road, and implies, at least, a charge
of impaired credit, if not an approaching insolvency. If this be a
reasonable inference from the terms of the order, it should have been
charged, in direct terms, that such was its meaning, so that, upon the
face of the complaint, it could be determined whether a cause of action
is set out, or it would be exposed to a demurrer. But assuming
this obstacle to be out of the way, the alleged libellous matter consists
merely in a direction given by the company to its subordinates, for
the regulation of their conduct, and a request given to the superin-
tendent of a connecting road which interchanges freight with the de-
fendant company, and seems to be clearly, unless malicious (and malice
is not imputed), a privileged communication, proper in itself, and
essential to the harmonious working on the road.

In Wakefield v. Smithwick, 4 Jones, 327, Pearson, J., thus lays down
the law upon this subject : “The defense, under the doctrine of privileged
communication, is much broader, and much more favorable to the de-
fendant” (referring to a plea of justification), “for if he succeeds
in proving such a relation between himself and the person to whomn
the communication is made, as authorizes him to make it, the burden
is upon the plaintiff to prove that it was not made bona fide, in
consequence of such relation, but out of malice, and that the (403)
existence of such relation was used as a mere cover for his
malignant designs. When, however, the plaintiff shows that the matter
communicated was false, the question of bona fides becomes an open
one, and the defendant is called on for some explanation to meet the
inference arising from the fact that he had communicated false in-
formation.”

The plaintiff, a trader, employed an auctioneer to sell off his goods,
and otherwise conducted himself in such a way that his creditors reason-
ably concluded that he had committed an act of bankruptcy. One of
them sent the auctioneer a notice not to pay over the proceeds of the
sale to the plaintiff, saying, “he having committed an act of bank-
ruptey,” this was held to be a privileged communication, as being made
in the honest defense of defendant’s own interest. Odgers on Libel, 226,
citing Blackham v. Pugh, 2 C. B, 611, and 15 L. J. C. P., 290.

Again, it may be asked wherein consists the alleged libellous matter ?
The order assuming it to have been issued in the interest of the com-
pany, real or supposed, to withdraw from the plaintiff a privilege which
hitherto he had enjoyed in common with other patrons of the road, is
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but the exercise of the right to demand of every ome, that upon all
freight conveyed the charges must be paid in advance, and we do not
perceive any legal wrong done to one to whom credit may not be given
because it is given to others; it may be because of their punctuality in
paying bills whenever they are presented. The statute recognizes the
right, for it compels the company to furnish transportation, not gen-
erally, but “on due payment of the freight or fare legally authorized
therefor.” The Code, sec. 1963. And, therefore, the exaction of pay-
ment of freight for goods consigned to the plaintiff is but the assertion
of a right which might be, if, in fact, it be not enforced, against all
dealers.
(404) The complaint is fatally defective in failing to set out facts
necessary to constitute a cause of action against the defendant,
and departs most widely from any of the approved forms in use in
civil suits for libellous publications.
‘We concur, then, in opinion with the court and affirm the judgment
dismissing the action.
No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Randoll v. B. B., 108 N. C.,, 613; Berry v. B. E., 122 N. C,,
1004.

ARTEMUS McNAIR AND Otaers v. J. T. POPE Axp OTHERS.

Parol Trust, Quantum of Proof to Establish.

1. Where land is purchased at an execution sale, or a sale under a deed of
trust, under an oral agreement with the debtor whose land is sold, that
he shall be allowed to redeem, a valid trust is created which will be
enforced. But to engraft such a trust upon the legal title the proof must
be strong and convincing.

2. Under our former practice, an equity could not be set up in opposition to
a positive denial, unless supported by more than one witness. While this
rule no longer holds, it affords an analogy as to the guenium of proof,
necessary to establish the existence of a denied equity.

3. Where the only evidence offered to support an alleged trust is, that the
land in question was purchased by the alleged trustee at a price some-
what below its value, and the alleged trustee positively denies the ex-
istence of such trust in his sworn answer: Held, that such evidence was
wholly insufficient to establish the trust, and, defendant having de-
murred to such evidence, the court properly instructed the jury to respond
in the negative to an issue as to the existence of the trust.

320



N.C] FEBRUARY TERM, 1888.

McNAIR v. POPE.

Crvin Aoriow, tried before Clark, J., and a jury, at January Term,
1887, of RoBmsoxy Superior Court,

Duncan MeNair being indebted to John MeCallum in a considerable
sum, for which he had given his notes to assure and provide for the
payment thereof, on 20 January, 1869, conveyed by deed of
mortgage to the latter three several tracts of land, containing (405)
in the aggregate more than eleven hundred acres, and conferring
a right to sell in case the debts were not paid on or before the first
day of January, 1874. Early in the year 1871, the said MeCallum
died, having made a will, wherein he appoints Alexander McRae and
John McRae executors, who, after proving the will, accepted the trusts
and took the prescribed oaths as such.

The will vests no power in the executors to dispose of the real estate

of their testator, notwithstanding which they assumed to exercise the
authority conferred in the mortgage, and undertook to sell the lands
therein mentioned. The sale was aceordingly made on 9 March, 1875, at
which the defendants became the purchasers at the price of $3,092.18, the
amount due on the secured debts, and a deed was executed to them by the
executors. On 18 April, 1876, Duncan McNair himself executed a deed
to the defendants, conveying all his estate and interest in the lands, for
the same alleged consideration as that mentioned in the deed of the
executors, increased by the amount some over six hundred dollars,
due from two of the sons of Duncan McNair to the defendants, -and
assumed by him. The previous sales by the executors are therein men-
tioned and recognized, and the sum paid them recited, as, with the
additional amount specified, the consideration of his confirming the
deed. Duncan McNair thereafter died intestate, and the plaintiffs,
who are his children and heirs at law, on 19 March, 1885, instituted
this action to charge the lands so held by the defendants, with a trust
for redemption, growing out of an understanding and agreement made
between the parties at the time, by which it is alleged, that upon the
repayment to the defendants of the moneys so due by their ancestor,
the lands should be reconveyed to him, The complaint, after stating
the making the several deeds mentioned, alleges that the lands were so
bought by the defendants and the title secured to them, under
an express agreement, that they might be redeemed on the pay- (406)
ment of the moneys due, and as set out in the deed of 18 April,
1876, and that all the debts assumed by their father and due from two
of them, as well as a large part of the debt due to the testator and
discharged by the payment made to the executors by the defendants,
have been paid to the defendants during the lifetime of the said
Duncan Mc¢Nair.
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The complaint further alleges; that the lands were of great value
at the time—worth $12,000; that their ancestor remained afterwards,
as before, in the possession and use of the land up to his death, as have
the plaintiffs since.

The relief demanded is the enforcement of the parol trust, and the
taking of the necessary accounts preliminary thereto.

The defendants deny explicitly that any agreement was made between
them and the said Duncan, by which he was to be allowed to redeem,
and aver that he was present at the sale by the executors, and neither
then nor afterwards expressed any dissatisfaction with what was done,
or asserted any claim to redeem the premises. They further answer, in
reference to the continued use and occupation of the premises, that
it was under a contract of lease, for which rent was paid to them;
and they deny that any advantage was taken or fraud practiced by
themselves on the deceased, in securing his deed of release and con-
firmation of the executors’ sale.

Two issues were submitted to the jury, as follows:

1. Did the defendants buy under an agreement with Duncan MeNair,
that they would hold the land only for the purpose of securing the
purchase money ?

2. Was the deed of 18 Aypril, 1876, fraudulent and void ?

The issues, under the charge of the court, were responded to in the
negative.

Upon the trial, and to show the great inadequacy of price purporting
to have been paid for the lands in the deed from McNair to the

defendants in 1876, the plaintiffs introduced, as a witness, one
(407) D. Sinclair, a physician of thirty years practice, who knew

the lands and estimated their value in 1876 at eight or ten
dollars an acre. He said that he knew of the sale by the executors in
1875, which had been advertised at two or more places in the neighbor-
hood, and that it was generally thought to be a fair sale; lands were
then low, and he did not know why more was not bid.

The residue of the testimony offered by the plaintiffs (the defendants
introducing none), was as follows:

W. H. Graham introduced by plaintiffs: Knew the land; had known
it for more than twenty years; lived for that length of time in a mile
of the land. In his opinion the land was not worth more than $5,000;
don’t think in 1876 that the land would have brought more than five
dollars per acre; might not have brought that; four or five dollars
per acre was, in hig opinion, all it was worth in 1876; wouldn’t say
that it would have brought five dollars at a fair sale in 1876; might
have brought less.
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J. B. Rowland, introduced for plaintiff, testified: In his opinion the
land would not have brought more than seven dollars in 1876; certain
it would not have brought more than seven; it might have been put
up at fair sale in 1876, and brought a great deal less than seven; all
he meant to say was, that it would not have brought more than seven.

The defendants demurred to the evidence, as insufficient to warrant
any findings in favor of the plaintiffs upon the issues; and the court
being of opinion that there was none, so instructed the jury, and they
answered the inquiries put to them in the negative.

To this ruling the plaintiffs excepted, and from the judgment ren-
dered on the verdict appealed.

T. A. McNesl for plaintiffs. ’ (408)
D. H. McLean and W. F. French for defendants.

Smrra, C. J., after stating the facts: In Mulholland v. York, 82
N. C.,, 510, it is held, that where one purchases land at an execution
sale, under a verbal agreement with the debtor whose land is sold,
that he shall be-allowed to redeerma on payment of the purchase money,
a valid trust is created between the parties which will be enforced,
"~ and the authorities are, in the opinion, freely examined and discussed,

and the reasons in support of the principle stated. The same rule is
held applicable to a sale under a deed in trust of the debtor’s land, in
Tankard v. Tankard, 84 N. C., 286, and is affirmed generally in McLeod
v. Bullard, ibid., 5155 Cheek v. Watson, 85 N. C., 195 Gidney v. Moore,
86 N. C., 484, and other cases.

But to engraft such a trust upon the legal estate, the proof of its
formation should be strong and convincing; and such is not the case
now presented. It is expressly controverted in the answer, coming from
- the very persons who were parties to the alleged agreement, and must
be cognizant of all the faets that transpired at the sale. Under our
former practice an equity could not be set up in opposition to a positive
denial, unless supported by more than the testimony of a single witness,
and the Court, in such case, would refuse to interfere. Gaither v.
Caldwell, 1 D. & B. Eq., 504 Speight v. Speight, 2 D. & B. Eq., 280;
Hdl v. Williams, 6 Jones Eq., 242; Longmire v. Herndon, 72 N. C,,
629. While the rule does not now prevail, it affords an analogy in the
quality of the proof, and its sufficiency to set up and establish a denied
equity, when the controversy is about its existence. There is, indeed,
no evidence of it furnished in the pleadings, and as little in the testi-
mony of the witnesses. The most that is proved is, that the lands were
bought at a price somewhat below their real value, and this fact is
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wholly insufficient to show any agreement upon which the trust can be

raised, and the court properly instructed the jury, in deference to
which, the verdict was rendered. The quantum of evidence

(409) required to set up the equity was wholly inadequate, under the
rule in which relief was granted in the superceded courts of

equity, whose principles however remain, and there is no error in the

ruling. The judgment is affirmed. Ely v. Farly, 94 N. C,, 1.

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Hinton v. Pritchard, 107 N. C., 137; Hamilton v. Buchanan,
112 N. C, 471; Faison v. Hardy, 114 N. C., 60; Wilson v. Brown,
134 N. C., 405; Avery v. Stewart, 136 N. C., 431; Taylor v. Wahab,
154 N. C.,, 223; Lefkowitz v. Silver, 182 N. C., 349; Gillespie v.
Ghllespie, 187 N, C., 41,

(410)
STATE v. JAMES GUEST.

Fornication and Adultery—Evidence—Arrest of Judgment—
Description of Defendant in Indictment.

1. Where a man and woman were indicted for fornication and adultery, and
the female defendant pleaded guilty, and the male defendant was tried
on the plea of not guilty, the husband of the woman was competent as a
witness for the State.

2. It is competent to offer testimony as to acts committed by a defendant in
an indictment for fornication and adultery more than two years before
the bill was found, for the purpose of enabling the jury to determine
whether he had committed the offense within two years; and for the’
purpdse of enabling them to find whether he had committed the offense
in the county where the bill is found, they may hear evidence of his
acts elsewhere. .

3. It is no ground for arrest of judgment that a married woman who was
indicted with a man for fornication and adultery is described in the bill
as ‘‘spinster.”

Tur defendant and one A. E. Wilson were indicted in the Superior
Court of Transylvania County for fornication and adultery. The female
defendant pleaded guilty, and the defendant Guest was tried upon a plea
of not guilty, before MacRae, J., at Spring Term, 1888, of said court.

One W. P. Wilson, the husband of the female defendant, was offered
as a witness on behalf of the State, and objected to on the ground that he
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was incompetent. The court held that the wife having already pleaded
guilty, and not being on trial, he was competent. The defendant ex-
cepted. ,

“Witness testified that the defendant Guest commenced coming to
witness’ house four or five years ago.” Defendant objected, and the
court instructed the jury that they could only consider testimony as to
the acts committed previous to two years before the bill was found, for
the purpose of enabling them to determine whether the defendant had
committed the offense charged within two years. Defendant excepted.

Witness testified that the defendant continuéd to visit his
house that they had been friends, but the suspicions of the wit- (411)
ness were aroused by the frequency of the defendant’s visits, and
he forbade defendant coming to his house; that he continued to come;
he would stay away awhile, and then come back again; he stayed all
day at witness’ house after being forbidden; witness sent him a written
notice to stay away, and soon afterwards, during last fall, the two de-
fendants went off together, and were gone for two months, when they
were arrested and brought back.

John Lewis, a witness for the State, testified to carrying defendants
in a wagon together to Hendersonville, and to their sleeping together at
that place; that he was paid by defendant Guest for carrying them.

One Lowe testified that he went to Atlanta last fall with a State’s
warrant, and had both defendants, whom he found living together as
man and wife, arrested and brought back to this county. Defendant
objected to the testimony of witness as to acts of adultery in Atlanta;
and this testimony was admitted, for the purpose of enabling the jury to
determine whether the defendant had been guilty of the offense charged
against him in Transylvania County. Defendant excepted.

After other testimony, the court instructed the jury that, as to acts
testified to as having taken place outside the county, or at a period of
time more than two years prior to the finding of the bill, they could only
consider such testimony for the purpose of enabling them to determine,
whether the defendant was in the habit of having sexual intercourse,
with the other defendant, in this county within two years.

There was a verdict of guilty.

The defendant moved in arrest of judgment, on the ground that the
feme defendant is described in the indictmet as a “spinster,” whereas it
appears, by the proof, that she is a married woman.

Motion denied, and the defendant excepted. ) (412)

Judgment, and appeal by defendant.

Attorney-General for the State.
No counsel for defendant.
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Davis, J., after stating the facts: The first exception is, to the com-
petency of the husband of the codefendant, to testify against, not his
wife—for upon her plea of guilty, there was an end of the trial as to
her—but against the defendant Guest, who alone is upon trial. It is
settled, that persons indicted for fornication and adultery, may be tried
separately, and though, from the very nature of the offense, one cannot
be convicted after the acquittal of the other, nor, when tried together,
can one be convicted and the other aequitted, yet when tried alone one
may be convicted and punished, and even when tried together and con-
victed, and one of them appeals, judgment may be had against the other.
8. v. Lyerly, T Jones, 158; S. v. Parham, 5 Jones, 416, and cases cited.

In the case of S. v. Phipps, 76 N. C., 203, a nol. pros. was entered as
to the female defendant, and she was allowed to testify, and prove the
offense charged against the other defendant. We think the husband was
a competent witness, and his evidence could not militate against his wife.
He was not testifying against her.

The exceptions to the evidence of acts anterior to the period when the
statute would bar, and acts beyond the limits of the county of Transyl-
vania, though within two years, may be considered together.

“When the $act of adultery is alleged to have been committed within
a limited period of time, it is not necessary that the evidence should be

confined to that period, but proof of facts anterior to the time
(418) alleged may be adduced in explanation of other acts of the like

nature within the period. Thus, when the statute of limitations
was pleaded, the plaintiff was permitted to begin with proof of acts of
adultery committed more than six years preceding, as explanatory of
acts of Indecent familiarity within the time alleged.” 2 Greenleaf’s
Ev., sec. 47. In our own reports, S. v. Kemp, 87 N. C., 538, and S. ».
Pippin, 88 N. C., 646, are conclusive as to the admissibility of ante-
cedent acts, as shedding light upon acts within the time limited; and
acts committed without the limits of the county are admissible for the
same purpose. As evidence, they can only be considered by the jury in
determining the character of the acts committed within two years, and
within the county of Transylvania, of which there must have been some
evidence. They must convict or acquit, as the facts alleged are or are
not proved beyond a reasonable doubt to have been committed within
two years, and within the county, and the evidence was admissible in
this point of view and no other, and, under the instructions of the eourt,
it was properly submitted to the jury.

The motion in arrest of judgment was properly refused. The indiet-
" ment clearly charges the offense, and that the defendants were not united
in marriage. The use of the word “spinster,” after the name of the
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woman, could not mislead. To arrest the judgment would be an ex-
ceeding “refinement,” and under section 1183 of The Code, an absolute
mockery. S.wv. Tally, 74 N. C., 322; S. v. Lashley, 84 N. C., 754; S. v.
Newmans, 2 Law Rep., 74

There is no error.

Judgment affirmed.

Cited: 8. v. Wheeler, 104 N. C., 894; S. v. Guest, 107 N, C.; 887T;
S. v. Stubbs, 108 N. C., 776; S. v. Dukes, 119 N. C,, 7183; S. v. Raby,
121 N. G, 683; 8. v. Beard, 124 N. C., 814; Kenney v. Guest, 149 N. C,,
326; S. v. Wynna, 151 N. C., 645; Powell v. Strickland, 163 N. C., 397;
S. 4. Wade, 169 N. C., 308.

(414)
STATE v. SAMUEL B. PEARSON.

Farming out Prisoners—Prison Bounds.

1. The Superior Court has not power, at a term subsequent to that at which
one convicted for an affray was sentenced  to imprisonment in the
county jail for twelve months and be discharged upon payment of
costs, to grant an order for him to be hired out by the county commis-
sioners. Only the judge before whom he was tried had the power to
authorize his being farmed out, under the statute. '

2. The provisions of the statute in reference to “prison bounds” for persons
committed for misdemeanors and crimes, other than treason and felony,
does no apply to one in ewecution as a punishment for a criminal
offense.

* Motrow in behalf of the defendant who had been sentenced to jail
at Fall Term, 1887, of the Superior Court of Burke, heard before Mer-
rimon, J., at Spring Term, 1888, of said Court.

At the Fall Term of 1887, of the Superior Court of said county, the
appellant was convicted of an affray and sentenced “to be imprisoned in -
the common jail of Burke County, for twelve months, and be discharged
upon payment of costs”; and he was in execution.

At the Spring Term, 1888, of the same court, he made application to
the court ta be allowed the benefit of “prison bounds,” or to be hired at
labor, etc.s and moved as follows: ,

“Wherefore affiant prays the honorable court to grant him prison
bounds for his health’s sake, being that his offense is not felony, and
failing that, that the court grant an order for his being hired out by the
county commissioners, upon time to be prescribed by the court.”
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The court denied the motion, as follows:
“Upon bearing which motion, and argument of counsel, and the
consent of the solicitor being shown to the court, that either relief might
be granted, as in the judgment of the court might seem best, and
(415) with a full statement of all the circumstances in the case, the
court is of the opinion, that sufficient merit has been shown to
entitle the prisoner to one or the other relief prayed for in the motions
. above set forth, but adjudges, that both motions be refused for the want
of power of the court to grant the relief. And from this judgment de-
claring a want of power in the court to grant either.motion,” the pris-

oner appealed to this Court.

Attorney-General for the State.
J. C. L. Harris for defendant.

Mzrrimon, J., after stating the facts: It is clear that the court, to
whom the application was made, had no authority to make an order
authorizing the county commissioners “to farm out” the appellant as
allowed by the statute (The Code, sec. 3448), because the proviso of the
section eited, expressly provides that “it shall not be lawful to farm out
any such convicted person, who may be imprisoned for the nonpayment
of a fine, or as punishment imposed for the offense of which he may have
been convicted, unless the court, beforé whom. the trial is had, shall in
its judgment so authorize.” It seems that such permission is intended
to be annexed to, and become part of the judgment, and to be allowed
only in the discretion of the court, and.the judgment could not be dis-
turbed at a subsequent term of the court. The purpose of the statute
is to give the particular court—judge—before whom the party convicted
was tried, and who had the better opportunity to hear the facts of the
aggravation or mitigation of the offense, authority to grant permission
“to farm out” the convicted person. There is no statutory provision
that confers upon the court authority to direct such convicted person to
be farmed out. 8. v. Norwood, 93 N. C., 578; S. v. Johnson, 94

N. C., 863.
(416)  We also concur in the opinion of the court below, that it had

not authority to grant to the appéllant the benefit of “prison
bounds,” as allowed in certain cases by the statute. - (The Code, sec.
3466.) That section provides, that “For the preservation of the health
of such persons as shall be committed to jail, the board of commissioners
of each county shall mark out such a parcel of the land as they shall
think fit, not exceeding six acres, adjoining the prison, for the rules
thereof ; and every prisoner, not commatted for treason or felony, giving
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bond, with good security, to the sheriff of the county, to keep within the
rules, shall have liberty to walk thereon out of the prison, for the preser-
vation of his health, and, on keeping continually within the said rules,
shall be deemed to be, in law, a true prisoner; and that every person
may know the true bounds of said rules, they shall be recorded in'the
county records, and the marks thereof shall be renewed, as oceasion may
require.”

The county commissioners are thus empowered “to mark out such a
parcel of the land as they shall see fit, not exceeding six acres, ete.—
that is, the land so marked oyt must adjoin the jail, be such as the com-
missioners have exclusive control of, and adapted, not only to the pur-
pose of the exercise of the prisoner, but as well to prevent, as far as
practicable, his escape—it must be certainly, definitely, and distinctly
marked out, so that the prisoner may see and know the rules and keep
within the same, and others may see that he does so. The boundaries,
thus established, are for all legal and practical purposes, merely a fur-
ther extension or enlargement of the prison walls, in order that the
prisoner’s health may be preserved and subserved; his confinement, thus
enlarged, he is not deemed to be out of prison—out of jail—but he
remaing therein in contemplation of law, and his imprisonment is only
rendered the more tolerable, while he remains within the rules. He is,
“in'law, a true prisoner,” as the statute expressly declares.

But this statutory provision does not apply in favor of persons (417)
who have been convicted of criminal offenses, and sentenced to
imprisonment by the judgment of the court. It applies to prisoners who,
in civil cases, are committed to jail on mesne process, or on final judg-
ment, and in criminal cases, when the prisoner is committed to jail for
lack of bail, in order to secure his presence before the appropriate court,
to answer the criminal charge preferred against him.

The present statute, as recited above, has undergone no essential
change in the scope of its provisions since its first enactment in April,
1741, although it has been repeatedly reénacted. . (Rev. Stats., ch. 90,
gec. 11; The Code, sec. 3466.) The title of the statute, as originally
enacted (Ired. Rev., ch. 18, sec. 3, p. 83), indicates its purpose, and the
extent of its application, as follows: “An act for the building and main-
taining of courthouses, prisons and stocks in every county within this
province, and appointing rules for each county prison for debtors.” The
main purpose was to extend the clause in respect to “prison bounds” to
debtors, who, as the law then, and for more than a hundred years there-
after, prevailed, might, in certain cases, be imprisoned for debt; but its
terms embraced persons committed to answer for criminal offenses other
than “treason or felony.” The statute has been thus uniformly applied
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and interpreted in the past, so far as appears from the decisions of this
Court. Wynn v. Buckett, Tay., 140 (87); Brown v. Frazier, 1 Murph,,
421; Eo parte Bradley, 4 Ired., 543; Northam v. Terry, 8 Ired., 175;
Whitley v, Gaylord, 8 Jones, 286. And so far as we know or can learn,
no prisoner in this State was ever allowed the benefit of “prison bounds”
while he was in execution for a criminal offense. If the right to such
enlargement had belonged to such prisoners, it certainly would have
been claimed and allowed in very many cases before the present time.

The statute does not in terms apply to persons convicted of criminal
offenses. The words used, descriptive of ,classes, are “such persons as

shall be committed to jail,” and “every prisoner not committed
(418) for treason, or felony,” ete. The word committed has a technical

sense in criminal procedure, It implies sent to jail or other
proper prison, to be there detained and held to answer for a criminal
offense preferred, or to be preferred against the party in the course of
procedure, until he shall be discharged according to law. 4 Bl Com,,
296-309; Chit. Cr. Law, 107, 108; Bouvier’'s Law Dic., words, “To
commit, Commitment”; Bur. Law Dic., word “Commitment.” A person
is commzttad to jail by a proper trlbunal to answer for a criminal
offense; upon convmtlon, he is sentenced by the judgment of the court
to be 1mprlson_ed in jail as a punishment, and when put in jail, he is
then in execution of the judgment. The word “commatted,” is used in
the statute in its technical sense, certainly, in its application to pr1soners
charged with eriminal offenses.

Moreover, it is altogether improbable that the Legislature would, by
such provision, interfere to mitigate or qualify the punishment imposed
by the courts upon criminal oﬁenders, and if it had intended to allow
such enlargement to persons in execution for criminal offenses, it would
most probably, have conferred express authority upon the courts to allow
or disallow it in their sound discretion. As this is not done, strained
inference and unreasonable implication cannot be allowed to confer such
authority upon the courts or the sheriff.

The court, therefore, properly held that it had not authority to grant’
the motions of the appellant. There is no error, and the judgment must
be affirmed. Let this opinion be certified to the Superior Court accord-
ing to law.

It is so ordered.

No error. : Affirmed.

Cited: 8. v. Young, 138 N. C., 573.
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(419)
STATE v. CALVIN J. GREEN.

VaMa@ce'; what is, and how determined—dJ ustices’ Courts not Courts of
Record—Evidence; oral of proceedings before Magistrate—Fructus
Industriales; parol exception of—Perjury; form of indictment for.

1. What is a variance is a question of law, and, the facts being admitted
or proven, must be determined by the court. But if the determination
of the question depends upon an issue of fact, it must be passed upon
by the jury, with instructions from the court as to the law.

2. Where defendant is charged with perjury, in falsely swearing in an action
entitled A. v. B., tried before a magistrate, and it is shown by the
summons that the action was against B. and C.: Held, that upon oral
proof that C. was nol. prossed and released before the case was tried,
it was proper to instruct the jury that there was no variance.

3. The court of a justice of the peace is not a court of record, and the rules
of evidence established for the proof and authentication of the pro-
ceedings of courts of record do not apply to such courts.

4. Growing crops, being fructus indusiriales, are presumed to pass with the
title to land on which they are growing, but they may. be excepted or
reserved by parol when the land is sold, and oral evidence is admissible
to prove such exception or reservation.

5. An indictment for perjury charged, “the said B. justice of the peace, as
aforesaid, having then and there competent authority and power to ad-
minister the said oath to the said C. G.,” and it was admitted that the
justice had jurisdiction of the action in the trial of which the alleged
perjury was committed: Held, that a motion in arrest of judgment for
that the indictment failed to allege that the oath was taken before
a court of competent jurisdiction was properly overruled.

Ta1s was an indictment for perjury, tried before Shepherd, J., at the
October Term, 1887, of the Superior Court of DurmaM.

The perjury alleged to have been committed was upon the trial (420)
of an issue joined in a civil action, tried before G. A. Barbee, a .
justice of the peace for the county of Durham, in which the defendant
was plaintiff and A. M. Rigsbee was defendant.

The following is the case on appeal sent to this Court:

“The only record - evidence introduced as to the action before the
justice of the peace was the summons, from which it appeared that the
defendant brought a suit against A. M. Rigsbee and John H. Shipp.

The suit was for the recovery of the value of a crop of oats and other
crops, of the value of fifty dollars, raised in 1887, on land owned by the
defendant Green. This land had been conveyed in trust to J. A. Long,
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to secure a certain indebtedness, and was duly sold under said trust by
said Long, on 14 May, 1887, C. A. W. Barham acting as agent and
auctioneer of said Long, A. M. Rigsbee being the purchaser.

The justice of the peace testified that when the case was called the
plaintiff released Shipp, and that the case was nol. prossed or dismissed
as to hini. : '

The witness did not remember whether he made such an order before
or after the trial. »

A. M. Rigsbee testified that such an order was made by the justice
before the trial was entered upon between defendant and himself. The
defendant testified that the trial was between himself and Rigsbee. There
was no evidence that such an order was entered in writing before the
trial commenced.

It was in evidence that defendant testified that, at said sale, Long,
trustee, and Barham, auctioneer, announced as a part of the terms of
the same, that the crops (including the oats) of 1887, thus growing on
said lands, were reserved and should not pass to the purchaser with said
land, but that they were reserved to the defendant, C. J. Green, and

should remain his property.
(421)  There was also evidence tending to show that said testimony
was wilfully and corruptly false.

There was no objection to the admission of the parol evidence as to
what occurred on the trial before the justice.

* The defendant asked the court to charge that there was a variance,
because the summons showed that the suit was against two defendants,
to wit, Rigsheo and Shipp. ) .

The court charged the jury that if, before the trial commenced, the
justice made an order, by plaintiff’s consent, nol. prossing the defendant
Shipp and discharging him from all liability, then there would be no
variance; but if no such order was made before the trial, there would be
a variance, and the defendant should be acquitted. The court also
charged that it was not necessary that the justice should have at once
reduced the order to writing; that if he announced it as his order, it
would be sufficient for the purposes of this trial. The defendant ex-
cepted.

The defendant also asked the court to charge that, as the trustee,
Long, executed a deed without reservation to the said Rigshee, it could
not be shown by parol that the ecrops were excepted, and that such ex-
ception would be of no avail; that the alleged facts testified to by the
defendant were, therefore, immaterial and the defendant should be
acquitted.

The court declined to so instruct the jury, and the defendant excepted.
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There was a verdict against the defendant, who moved for a new trial
on the exceptions taken, The motion was overruled, and the defendant
moved in arrest of judgment, for that the indictment did not allege that
the oath was taken before a court of competent jurisdiction.

Motion overruled. Defendant excepted.” Judgment and appeal.

Attorney-General for the State.
J. Mamning and E. C. Smith for defendant.

Davis, J., after stating the facts: 1. The first ground of excep- (422)
tion was to the refusal of the court to charge that there was a
variance between the indictment and the proof.

‘What amounts to a variance is a question of law, and the facts being
-admitted or proven, must be determined by the court. The cases of
8. v. Raiford, 2 Dev., 214, and S. v. Isham, 3 Hawks, 185, cited by
counsel for the defendant, were issues joined on pleas of nul tiel record,
and were properly tried by the court, and not by the jury; but if the de-
termination of the question depends upon an issue of fact, it must be
passed upon by the jury, with instructions from the court as to the law,
as was done by the court in this case and this is not in conflict with
8. v. Harvell, 4 Jones, 35. There was, in fact, no variance, as upon the
finding of the jury, under instructions from the court, the action before
the magistrate in which the perjury is alleged to have been committed
was dismissed as to Shipp, and the cause was at issue only between Rigs-
bee and the defendant. §. v. Collins, 85 N. C., 511.

But as the summons was issued against two, it was insisted that parol
evidence was not competent to show that the action was dismissed as to
one. This is a misapprehension. The court of a justice of the peace is
not a court of record, and the rules of evidence established for the proof
and authentication of the proceedings of courts of record do not apply
to such courts. Reeves v. Dawis, 80 N, C., 209.

2. The second exception ig, that the alleged fact testified to was imma-
terial, because it could be of no avail, as the deed passed the crop with
the land, and the parol reservation was of no effect. This, also, is a
misapprehension. Growing crops may be excepted or reserved by parol
in the sale of land, and when so reserved do not pass by the deed con-
veying the land. “The reason is,” as was said by Bynum, J., in Bond v.
Coke, 71 N. C., 97, illustrating the distinetion between those chattels,
which become merged in the land, and those which, though an-
nexed to the land, do not pass with it, “that they are fructus (423)
industriales, and, for most purposes, are regarded as personal
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chattels, even before they are severed from the soil.” Brittain v. McKay,
1 Tred., 265, and Lewis v. McNatt, 65 N. C., 63.

Crops growing on land are presumed to pass with the title, but this
presumption may be rebutted. Walton v. Jordan, 65 N. C., 170.

3. The motion in arrest of judgment was properly overruled. Tt is
not denied that the justice of the peace had jurisdiction of the action,
in the trial of which the alleged perjury was committed, and it is charged
in the usual form, that the oath was duly administered, “the said G. A.
Barbee, justice of the peace, as aforesaid,having then and there com-
petent authority and power to administer the said oath to the said
C. J. Green.” 8. ». Davis, 69 N. C., 495

There is no error.

No error. Affirmed.

Cited: Bailey v. Hester, 101 N. C., 540; 8. ». Griffis, 117 N. C,, 715.

STATE v. F. L, DULA, JESSE DULA anp JOHN DULA.

Justices of the Peace ;. jurisdiction and practice in criminal cases—Ee-
sisting an Officer—Special Deputation of Officers under section 645
of The Code—Warrant ; when must be shown—Ewvidence of Notice.

1. The judgment of a justice of the peace that a defendant charged with an
offense of which a magistrate has final jurisdiction is guilty, and im-
posing a fine, is not void because of irregularity in the warrant, When
defendant failed to appeal.

2. Where defendants, adjudged guilty and to pay a fine and costs, promised
to pay the same within ten days, and upon such promise were permitted
to go at liberty, it was within the power of the magistrate to order their

arrest upon their failure to make such payment at the time agreed on.

3. In such a case the fact that the defendants had been arrested on the
original warrant by the same specially deputized officer, who had in
hand the second order of arrest, was some evidence that they had
notice of the capacity in which he was acting when bhe attempted to
arrest them under the second order.

4. A known officer need not show a warrant when he makes an arrest. An
officer appointed  for a special purpose must show a warrant, if it is
demanded of him, but not otherwige.

5. Although justices of the peace are the sole judges of the “extraordinary
cases” provided for in section 645 of The Code, yet it is well that they
should set out in the special deputation that it is done for the want of
a regularly constitutéd officer:

P
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Tuis was an indictment for an assault with deadly weapons, (424)
and resisting an officer, tried before Clark, J., at March Term,

1888, of Wirkes Superior Court. Verdict of guilty. Defendants ap-
pealed.

It was in evidence that H. Kendall was a justice of the peace for the
county of Wilkes, and, as such, on 10 March, 1886, upon the affidavit
of one W. L. Dula, issued a warrant against the defendant, . L. Dula,
for trespass upon the lands of said W. L. Dula. The warrant does not
state that the trespass was “after being forbidden” or “without license
therefor.” Written on the warrant was the following: “I depute G. B.
Walsh to execute this process, this 10 March, 1886. (Signed) H.
Kendall, J. P. Executed and returned by G. B. Walsh, deputy, 13
March, 1886.

Ine oo $1.00
JUSEICE’S COSE ..o e 1.50
OFFCEI’S COSE oo e 3.40
WItNesSes” COSE ....oo oo 3.00
$8.90

On 7 April, 1886, the following was issued : (425)

“Stare or Norta Carorina—Wirkss Counry.
' Justice’s Court.

State axnp W. L. Dura ¢. F. L. Dura.

Waereas, judgment was rendered against F. L. Dula, in the above
entitled cause, on 19 March, 1886, for the sum of $1 fine, $7.90 costs,
and the said Dula was given 10 days to discharge said fine and cost, and
the said F. L. Dula and Mrs. Dula signed a written agreement to the
aforesaid effeet, and then failed to comply with said agreement, the
time being out and expired. These are, therefore, to command any
lawful officer to arrest or apprehend the said F. L. Dula; and bring him
before the undersigned justice of the peace, that he may be dealt with
a8 the law directs.”

. Signed and sealed by H. Kenparr, J. P.

The following is endorsed thereon:

~ “Depute G. B. Walsh to serve this process on 7 April, 1886.
H. Kenpary, 4. P
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The judgment in the magistrate’s court, sig;led by H. Kendall, is as
follows: “Upon the oath of W. L. Dula, setting forth that F. L. Dula
cut his timber and defaced his line a warrant is issued against the said
F. L. Dula, and was delivered to G. B. Walsh, a deputy officer of said
county, to be executed on 10 March, 1886, Warrant returnable this
13 March, 1886, Executed. Whereupon, the defendant was produced
in court, and the following proceedings had: Case postponed till 19th

" instant. Parties appeared and trial coming on, the testimony
(426) being considered, it is adudged that he pay a fine of $1, and all
costs of the dction, amounting to $7.90.”

There was evidence tending to show that the proceeding before the
magistrate against F. L. Dula was for entering upon land after being
forbidden; that the magistrate “deputed” Walsh to execute the warrant;
that the second process (after the judgment of the court-imposing the
fine and adjudging costs against F. L. Dula) was issued, and placed by
the magistrate in the hands of Walsh, with the deputation endorsed;
that Walsh took the process, and, in company with three others, went to
the “farm of the defendants where they were at work, and attempted to
arrest Lafayette Dula”; told him they had come to arrest him and take -
him before the magistrate to pay the bill of costs, ete. Dula said, “where
is your officer?” Walsh said, “I am the officer’”; (he, Walsh), walked
up near to the defendant Lafayette Dula, who drew back his axe “in a
threatening attitude, and said, he would kill him if he tried to arrest
him” He was within striking distance. The defendants, Jesse and
John Dula—the former ran in between them—threatening to use a knife,
and the latter a pole, which he had in his hand drawn back. Walsh did
not show the process under which he was attempting to make the arrest,
or tell the defendants that he had such process. -

“Coungel for defendants asked the court to charge the jury, that the
proceedings before a justice of the peace were void and did not authorize
the issuing of the process which Walsh had at the time of the alleged
assault, and that the process itself was void. His Honor declined to so
charge the jury, but told them, as the defendants did not appeal from the
judgment therein rendered, the process authorized the arrest of the de-
fendants.” Defendants excepted.

The court was then asked to charge the jury, “that it was the duty of
the deputed officer, Walsh, to either have shown the said process, or have

told the defendants that he had such process in his possession.”.
(427) His Honor declined to so instruct the jury, but told them that “if
the defendant knew that the said Walsh had such process and re-
sisted the process in the manner described by the witnesses, they would
return a verdict of guilty against all the defendants, who assisted in
registing the arrest.” Defendants excepted.
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Attorney-General for the State.
No counsel for defendanis.

Davs, J., after stating the facts: The original warrant, issued by the
justice of the peace, does not state that the trespass on the prosecutor’s
land was after being forbidden or without license, and was very irregu-
lar, but no exception was taken on this account, and if it had been, the
magistrate could have amended it, and, as he had jurisdiction of the
subject-matter tried before him, his judgment was not void. In §. v,
Curtis, 1 Haywood, 471 (Battle’s Edition, 543), it is said: “If a justice
of the peace issue a warrant for a matter within his jurisdiction,
although he may have acted erroneously in the previous stages, the officer
should execute it. . . . If the officer be a known officer of the dis-
trict in which hé is acting, he need not show his warrant when he makes
the arrest; but if he is an officer appointed for a special purpose, he
ought to show his warrant, ¢f demanded.” ‘

In 8. v. Garrett, 1 Winst., 144, it is said that one who is not a known
officer ought to show his warrant, and read it, if required, but even when
required, as was done in that case, he is not made a trespasser ab initio
if the party to be arrested knew he had the warrant.

The magistrate having adjudged that the defendant, Lafayette Dula,
should pay the fine and costs, his agreement to pay it within ten days,
and the assent thereto by the magistrate, did not operate as a discharge
of the judgment, and it was competent for him to issue the warrant to
enforce the judgment, and, being within his jurisdietion, the
officer was justified in executing it. The fact that Walsh was the (428)
same special officer who first executed the process, was some evi-
dence of notice of the capacity in which he was acting.

We were not favored with an argument for the defendants in this
Court, and we take occasion to say, that while justices of the peace must
be the judges of the “extraordinary cases” mentioned in section 645 of
The Code, in which they are authorized to issue precepts or mandates to
persons other than a regular officer, it is always well to state that the
person specially appointed or deputed, is so appointed for the want of a
regularly constituted officer, and we believe that such has been the
practice. The statute does not contemplate the appointment of special
constables, except in “extraordinary cases.”

We think that neither of the exceptions to the ruling of his Honor
can be sustained, and there is another view of the case, fatal to the .
defendant. : ,

The assaults were with deadly weapons. Can there be any doubt, that
if Walsh had been killed, under the circumstances testified to, the de-
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fendants would have been guilty, at least, of manslaughter? It has been
said, that “when the facts of a case of homicide constitute the crime of
manslaughter, if no killing ensue, the same state of facts will necessarily
make the case of an assault and battery.” 8. . Leary, 88 N. C., 615;
Braddy v. Hodges, 99 N. C,, 319.

There is no error.

Affirmed.

Cited: S. v. Sykes, 104 N. ., 701; S. v. Armistead, 106 N. C., 641,
644; S, v. Wynne, 118 N. C,, 1209; 8. v. Beal, 170 N. C., 767.

(429)
STATE v. STEPHEN FREEMAN,

Rape; dec?ama‘tiom of P¢08‘e‘cutrm;Evddence,' former consistent declara-
tions of Witness—Juror under ch. 83, sec. 19, L. °85, and sec. 1722,
The Code—Alibi—~Sec. 413, The Code.

1. A juror drawn on a special vehire, under chapter 63, sections 19, Laws
1885, is competent, under section 1722, The Code, although not a free-
holder.

2. The refusal to reject an incompetent juror cannot be assigned for error,
if the prisoner fails to exhaust his peremptory challenges.

3. Semble, that when a man is charged with rape the full particulars of
a complaint, made by the woman raped against him to other persons,
in his absence, too long after the perpetration of the crime to be part
of the res gestw, may be given in evidence by the prosecutrix.

4. When a witness is subsequently impeached it is not error to allow him to
testify, when first examined, as to consistent statements made by him
to other persons. The admission of such statements before the witness
is impeached, although inopportune, is not more detrimental to .the
prisoner than it would have been if permitted at a later stage of the trial.

5. The refusal to permit a proper question to be asked cannot be assigned
for error if the fact embraced in the question is afterwards permitted
to be shown. '

6. In a prosecution for rape it is error to refuse to allow the defendant to
show by the prosecutrix, on cross-examination, that she bhad formerly
given birth to a bastard.

7. The judge, in summing up the evidence of the prosecutrix, said, “Whether
her testimony be true or false, she testified most positively that the
prisoner was the man who committed the rape upon her,” and was about
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to proceed to consider the other testimony, when prisoner’s counsel called
attention to his failure to state that the prosecutrix had said that she
did not know the woman C. G., to which the judge said, “Yes, I believe
that she did say that”: Held, that such remark was a sufficient response
to the request of prisoner’s counsel, and did not convey an opinion of the
judge in violation of section 413, The Code.

8. While the doctrine that when an ¢libi is relied on as a defense the burden
is shifted to the prisoner to establish it, is not sanctioned, yet, if the
jury are so instructed, the effect of the instruction is done away with,
if followed by an instruction that the State must prove, beyond a reason-
able doudbt, both the corpus delicti and its perpetration by the prisoner.

InpricrmeNT for rape, tried before Meares, J., at November (430)
Term, 1887, of the Criminal Court of New Hanover County.
The facts are set out in the opinion.

Attorney-General for the State.
Thomas W. Strange for defendant.

Surra, C. J. The prisoner is charged with having committed a rape
upon the body of one Addie Sellers, and upon his trial in the Criminal
Court of New Hanover County at November Term, 1887, was found
guilty by the jury, and from the judgment rendered upon the verdiet,
appealed to this Court. The prosecutrix,’a married woman, of the age
of twenty-three years, and residing alone with a young child in the city
of Wilmington, her husband being at work in Georgia, testified as
follows:

In the afternoon of the day preceding the night on which the outrage
was perpetrated, while the witness was in conversation with one Mary
Jones, a colored woman, who had come to her house, which contains but
a.single room, the prisoner came to the door and asked witness if she
had any empty bottles to sell, remaining but a few moments, and then
inquired if witness lived there alone; witness replied “yes,” and that her
husband had gone to Georgia. She did not at the time know the name
of the prisoner, but she noticed that his voice was a very peculiar one.
Later in the night, between the hours of 1 and 2 o’clock, while aloné
with her child, a person knocked at the door and asked to be let in. On
her refusal in positive terms to admit him, he inquired if there were any
fast girls in the neighborhood, and witness told him of a house where it
was said lived women of that class, and he went away. In a little time
he returned and again asked to be admitted, adding that he would not
hurt her. Being again refused, he said there were then four men outside
and if she did not open the door they would break in, to which
witness replied, that she would shoot him if he forced the door (431)
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open. He then leaving the front door went to a window and tried to
_ break it open, at the time firing a pistol. Whereupon she was fright-
ened and screamed in a very loud voice. He then went to the back door
and tried to force an entrance, which she resisted by pushing against it,
but he overcame her resistance and forced the door open and entered the
room. Thereupon she retreated towards the front door screaming with
all her might, when he advanced, seized her by the throat and choked
her with such severity as to suppress her cries, threw her down upon the
_ floor, dragged her out to a fence a few feet from the house, and still
holding her by the throat accomplished his purpose. He then inquired
if she knew him, and she, fearing that he would take her life if she did
know him, answered “no” she did not know him, and she gave the
answer in fear for her life, while she could recognize and identify him
both from his appearance and unusual voice, but did not then know his
name, nor did it occur to her that he was the same man who had called
the day before and learned about her being alone, but after the rape was
consummated, she called to mind the coincidence. When he effected an
entrance there was a bright light burning in the room and she had a
good look at him and has no douh§ whatever of the identity of the pris-
oner as the person who committed the ecrime. Very soon after, afraid to
remain, she went alone to the house of one Robert Skylock, an elderly
colored man, who resided in the neighborhood in a house of his own,
part of which is rented and occupied by one Smith, an elderly white
woman, to obtain shelter and protection, and after telling him of the
criminal assault, requested him to go and nail up the doors of her house,
which was done. There was corroborative testimony from others who
heard the cries after midnight and the report of the pistol, and there

‘Wwere many witnesses who swore to the presence of the prisoner at
(432) his own house with his wife on the night in question; and tend
_ to.show that he remained at home during the period within which
the criminal assault was made. It is not deemed necessary to set out
the evidence in detail, which is voluminous and extends over more than
twenty pages of law cap, in order to a proper understanding of the
rulings to which exception is taken by the prisoner.

1. The first exception is to a disallowance of a challenge of one S. S.
Mitz, a juror tendered to the prisoner, for that he was not a freeholder,
and to the refusal of the court to permit an inquiry into the fact of this
alleged disqualification. The juror was one of the number of the special
venire drawn from the jury box under the directions of the act of 1885,
ch. 63, sec. 19, which requires the jurors to be taken from the box pre-
pared by the board of county commissioners, and to possess the qualifica-
tions of jurors in the Superior Courts. Hence, such as would be compe-
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tent, and whose names are directed to be put in the jury box, from
which, in the Superior Courts, the regular panel is formed according to
section 1722 of The Code, are competent to serve in the Criminal Court,
as they are drawn in the same manner, and among the required qualifica-
tions is not that of having a freehold estate. S. v. Wincroft, 76
N. C, 38.

But if. there were error in the ruling, it is removed by the fact that
the juror was peremptorily challenged, and a jury of good- and lawful
men constituted without exhausting the number of jurors allowed to be
peremptorily challenged, with which the prisoner was content. S. v.
Arthur, 2 Dev., 217; 8. v. Hensley, 94 N. C., 1021.

2. The second exception is to the admissions of the declarations made
by the prosecutrix to Skylock and Mrs. Smith, soon after the occurrence,
when she went over to their house, and in which she gave a minute and
particular account of what transpired at her own house. Testimony
was received from her of what she said to others, at d1ﬂerent times,
when detailing the occurrence.

The objection is not to her making complaint of the outrage, (433)
for this is corroborative of her testimony at the trial, and tends to
repel the inference drawn, from silence and inaction, of the connection
having been with her consent, but that the particular facts cannot be
given in evidence to support her credit, unless it has been assailed. Such
seems to be the law, as laid down in the decisions of the courts, and
thence derived by recognized and approved writers on the subject.

The rule which thus shuts out the words in which the complaint is
made, and early arrests the testimony so that it cannot be seen what
kind of complaint was made, and its import, as corroborating the charge,
seems, notwithstanding its general acceptance, not to commend itself, for
sufficient and satisfactory reasons, to the judicial mind. Accordingly,
in a foot note, appended to the subject of rape in the third volume of
Greenleaf’s Evidence, are found these words: “Mr. Stephens also, in his
note 5 to article 8, states that the practice of admitting particulars of the
complaint, is in accordance with common sense, and cites the language
of Park, B., in Regina v. Walker, 2 M. & Rob., 212 (to which we have
not had access), where he says the sensa of the thing certainly is, that the
jury should, in the first instance, know the nature of the complaint made
by the prosecutrix, and @ll that she then said. But, for reasons which
I never could understand, the usage has obtained that the prosecutrix’s
counsel should only inquire whether a complaint was made by the
prosecutrix of the prisoner’s conduct towards her, leaving the prisoner’s
counsel to bring before the jury the particulars of the complaint by
cross-examination.” “It is said,” proceeds the note, “that Baron Brom-
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well, of the English Court of the Exchequer, was in the habit of ad-
mitting the complaint itself.” In this country the practice has been to

admit only theé fact that a complaint was made, unless the com-
(434) plaint was made so soon after the offense as to be part of the

res gestw. The comments of Baron Park are mentioned, but not
with entire approval, by the author of another valuable treatise, Best on
Evidence, p. 471, notes. Again, we find this statement of the ruling in a
recent case, ‘Regina v. Wood, 14 Cox, C. C., 46, also not in our library:
“When a man is charged with committing a rape, the full particulars of
the complaint the woman made against him to other persons in his
absence, some time after the alleged offense, may be given in evidence”—
by whom, is not stated.

This is in consonance with adJudlcatlons in this State, Whlch when-
ever the witness 1s impeached and in whatever manner, even if it be done
in the cross-examination, permits his credit to be sustained by proof of
declarations made to others similar to the testimony given in and as-
sailed, and these may be proved by the witness who made them. S. v.
George, 8 Ired., 324; March v. Harrell, 1 Jones, 329, and subsequent
cases; vide S. v. Whitfield, 92 N. C., 831. As any mode of assailing the
truthfulness of a witness warrants a resort to the necessary means of re-
pairing the injury to his credit, and reinstating it before those who are
to pass upon its weight, so a witness may be surrounded by circum-
stances tending to impair his credit, such a conspirator testifying against
his associates in crime, who comes before the jury under a cloud, which
would seem to admit of its dispersion by evidence in support of his
credit, and if the rule be thus extended, it would be difficult to put the
prosecutrix testifying to an outrage on her person, to which, most com-
monly, she is the sole witness, outside the sphere of its operation.

But, in enumerating the difficulties attending the gemeral rule, we do
not find it necessary to declare that the narration of the particulars of
the crime, so near the time of its commission, was proper to be received;

¢ there was abundant impeaching and contradictory evidence
(435) offered, subsequently, to render that in dispute, if heard after-
wards, competent ; nor do we see in what manner its being offered

at an inopportune time could be, for that reason, more detrimental to the
prisoner’s defense than it would have been if heard at a later stage of the
trial. These views have more or less application to all the confirmatory
declarations of the prosecutrix, made to dlfferent persons, descmptwe of
what transpired. :

8. The next exception is to the ruling out of the question asked by the
prisoner’s counsel, on the cross-examination of the prosecutrix, as to
whether she had ever given birth to a bastard child? = The ruling was
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clearly erroneous, and would have led to a new trial, but that the fact
was afterwards proved and admitted both by the solicitor and the prose-
cuitrix, recalled for the purpose of testifying to the fact, with a brief
crogs-examination of the prisoner’s counsel, and this in unequivocal
terms,

4, The judge, while recapitulating the testimony of the prosecutrix
and commenting thereon, used this language: “The prosecutrix testified
that she wag certain that the prisoner was the man who came to her
house on the afternoon before the rape was committed upon her, and
while Mary Jones was in her house, and asked if she had any bottles to
dispose of ; and also inquired if she lived there alone; and that he was
the man who came to her house and effected a forcible entrance and
committed a rape upon her on the night in question. Whether her testi-
mony be true or false, she testified most positively that the prisoner was
the man who committed the rape upon her.” The court, having con-
cluded the recapitulation of the testimony of the prosecutrix, was about
to proceed to comsider the other testimony, when the prisoner’s counsel
called attention to the failure to state, that the prosecutrix, replying to a
question of the solicitor, had said that she did not know the woman
Celia Gardner; to which the court, in a distinet voice said, “Yes,

I believe that she did say that.” This, as an insufficient response (436)
to request of counsel, forms the subject of another exception.

In this we see no invasion of the principle contained in the act of
1796, The Code, sec. 413, which forbids the judge to give any opinion,
“whether a fact is fully or sufficiently proven.” He but states what was
sworn to by the witness, and the positive manner in which she declared
her recognition of the prisoner as the author of the assault upon her,
with which the omitted part seems to have no very clear connection;
nor 1s there indicated, so far as we can see, any inclination of the judge’s
own mind upon the question of identity.

5. The following portion of the charge is also excepted to as an erro-
neous statement of the law, following instructions bearing upor® and
applieable to the facts testified to:

“The general rule applicable to all criminal cases is, that the burden
rests upon the State to establish the guilt of the prisoner (accused)
beyond a reasonable doubt, and, applying it to the facts of this case, the
.law requires that the State must establish two facts beyond a reasonable '
doubt in order to convict the prisoner. In the first place, the State must
establish the fact, beyond a reasonable doubt, that a rape was committed
on the person of the prosecutrix, on the night in question, by some man;
and in the second place, that, if a rape was committed on the person of
the prosecutrix on the night in question, the prisoner at the bar is the
343
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man who committed it. And, therefore, if the State fails to establish
either one of these facts, beyond a reasonable doubt, in the minds of the
jury, the prisoner should be acquitted.” The obJectlonable part is in the
words that follow: “The prisoner denies the existence of both of these
facts. He denies, in the first place, that any rape has been committed
on the person of the prosecutrix; and, in the next place, denies that he
was present if one was committed upon her.
(487)  One of the defenses set up by the prisoner is that of an alibi;
that is, he asserts, that at the time of the alleged rape, he was at
home, on his bed, in another part of the city, and, therefore, it was im-
possible for him to have committed the rape. The rule of law is, in a
cage of this kind, where the prisoner sets up the defense of an alibi, that
ig, that he was at some other place at the time when the crime was com-
mitted, the burden of proof rests on the prisoner to establish the fact to
the satisfaction of the jury that he was not present, but was at some other
place when the crime was committed. If the jury is satisfied from the
evidence that the prisoner remained at home on the night in question,
this would be an end of the case, and the prisoner should be acquitted.
But if they are not satisfied of the truth of the altbi, then it is for them
to say whether they are satisfied, beyond a reasonable doubt, that the
rape was committed upon the person of the prosecutrix by the prisoner,
as alleged by the State.”

We reproduce, at length, the 1nstruct10n to which exception is taken,
in order that it may be understood, and the sufficiency of the grounds
upon which it rests be determined.

‘While we do.not assent to what is said about the shifting of the burden
of proof, when the proof offered by the prisoner tends to show his
absence from the place where the offense was perpetrated, and his
presence elsewhere at the time, yet the charge in general is so clear and
explicit, as to what is required of the State in order to a conviction,
that it could not be misleading to the jurors, fairly considered.

The defense known as an aldbi is operative as disproving the charge,
and impairing, if not destroying, the credit of the witnesses who testify
to the identity of the party accused, an essential element in the case. It
is testimony against testimony in reference to the identity, in the
present instance, and opposing evidence whi